
PLANNING COMMITTEE
10.00 am

THURSDAY
26 JANUARY 2023

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
SHIRE HALL, GLOUCESTER

MEETING PAPERS





PLANNING COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Thursday 26 January 2023
VENUE: Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  APOLOGIES Andrea Griffiths

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
To receive declarations by members of (a) personal interests 
(including their nature) and (b) prejudicial interests under the 
Code of Conduct. Members who have an interest to declare are 
asked to complete the Declarations of Interests form at the back 
of the chamber.

Andrea Griffiths

3.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Committee.

The closing date/time for the receipt of questions is 10am on 
Thursday 19th January 2023.

Andrea Griffiths

4.  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
To answer any written members’ questions about matters which 
are within the powers and duties of the Committee.

The closing date/time for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 
Thursday 19th January 2023.

Andrea Griffiths

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 24)
The Committee is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting 
held on the 7th July 2022.  

Andrea Griffiths

6.  MEMBERS SITE VISIT (Pages 25 - 36)
To receive the notes of the Members Site Visit held on 10th 
November 2022.

Sarah Pearse



Date Published: 10 January 202310/01/23

7.  APPLICATION REFERENCE: 19/0081/TWMAJM (DISTRICT 
REFERENCE 19/01231/CM) SITE: LAND AT BOW FARM, 
BOW LANE, TWYNING, TEWKESBURY (Pages 37 - 316)

Marcus Sparrow

The Committee is asked to consider the proposed new 
vehicular access off A38, plus haul road, weighbridge/office, 
processing plant and equipment (including concrete batching 
plant), creation of clean water ponds, silt ponds, stock piles 
and other works and ancillary development associated with the 
extraction of sand and gravel and import of inert materials with 
restoration using site derived material to wetlands, nature 
conservation and agriculture (cross-boundary application with 
Worcestershire). 

8.  DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 317 - 322) Sarah Pearse
The Committee is asked to note the report.  

NOTES

MEMBERSHIP –Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Paul Baker, Cllr David Brown, 
Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Tim Harman, Cllr Alex Hegenbarth, 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Chris McFarling, Cllr Graham Morgan, 
Cllr Gill Moseley, Cllr Emma Nelson, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines and 
Cllr Susan Williams

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Rob Ayliffe 01452 328506
 e-mail: rob.aylifee@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the 
meeting. 

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect 
reports relating to any item on this Agenda or have any other general queries 
about the meeting, please contact 
AndreaGriffiths, Democratic Services Unit 
: 01452 324206/ e-mail: andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) TRAINING/SUBSTITUTION – All members must have received recent training 
before they can sit on the Committee and take part in discussion and vote. 
Substitution arrangements are as set out in the Constitution. 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on Thursday 7 July 2022 
commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Phil Awford
Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Tim Harman
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington
Cllr Chris McFarling

Cllr Dr Andrew Miller
Cllr Graham Morgan
Cllr Gill Moseley
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE
Cllr Robert Vines
Cllr Susan Williams

Officers: Simon Excell (Assistant Director of Planning & Economic 
Development), Carrie Denness (Principal Lawyer), Kevin Phillips 
(Team Manager Minerals & Waste Planning), Sarah Pearse 
(Principal Planning Officer), Denis Canney (Senior Planning 
Officer), Stephen Hawley (Technical Adviser for Highways), Gary 
Kennison (County Ecologist), David Lesser (Technical Adviser for 
Flooding) and Andrea Griffiths (Democratic Services Officer).  

Apologies: Cllr Paul Baker, Cllr David Brown and Cllr Alex Hegenbarth

17. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

On calling for nominations for the Chairmanship of the Committee, Cllr Mackenzie-
Charrington was proposed and duly seconded.  There being no other nominations, 
the Committee 

Resolved

That Cllr Mackenzie-Charrington be elected as Chairman for the ensuing civic 
year.

18. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 

On calling for nominations for the Vice-Chairmanship of the Committee, Cllr Hale 
was proposed and duly seconded.   Councillor McFarling was also proposed and 
duly seconded.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

On being put to the vote, Councillor Hale was duly appointed as the Vice-Chair of 
the Planning Committee

Resolved

That Cllr Hale be elected as Vice-Chairman for the ensuing civic year.

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Vines declared he was a member of Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) 
and a member of their Planning Committee and had no involvement with this 
application.  

20. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received.  

21. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

No member questions were received.  

22. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 12th May be approved as 
a correct record.  

23. MEMBERS SITE VISIT 

The Committee received the site visit notes.  

24. APPLICATION NO:22/0003/TWR3MJ SITE: LAND SOUTH OF BADHAM 
PHARMACY HEAD OFFICE, A435, BISHOPS CLEEVE, CHELTENHAM, 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE GL52 8SA 

A summary of the application was presented by Denis Canney, Senior Planning 
Officer aided by a power point presentation.  (A copy of the presentation is attached 
to the signed minute book). 

It was noted that pages 39 – 44 of the report introduced the application in detail.  
Slide 2 depicted the inset map, (a detailed version of the map was available on 
page 41 of the report), which showed the application site, Gotherington to the north 
and Bishops Cleeve to the south. The plan showed the red line planning application 
boundary, Badham Pharmacy HO, residential properties in Bishop’s Cleeve to the 
south and the A435 road adjoining the site to the west.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Slide 3 showed the Badham Pharmacy Head Office, the proposed school building 
footprint, access and outdoor sport facilities. It was noted that the application 
proposed the phased development of a new 2 storey primary school with two form 
entry, expanding to 3 form entry at a later date. A single storey nursery was also 
proposed, which could be delivered at any point during the phasing process. Phase 
1 would facilitate up to 420 pupils with phase 2 between 580 and 630. The nursery 
was proposed to provide 2 pre-school groups, (26 children per group) 
accommodating a total of 52 pre-school children.

Members were informed that associated facilities included the staff parking area, 
vehicular access directly off the A435, Multi Use Games Area (MUGA), rounder’s 
pitch, running track and a grass pitch. The sports pitches would be located to the 
north of the site and the school buildings to the south where 3 ponds would replace 
the existing pond in that part of the site. 

It was explained that the site, as displayed at slides 4,5, and 6 were undeveloped 
land with an area of 2.5 hectares. It was located on the eastern side of the A435, 
approximately 200m to the north of the junction with Evesham Road, at the northern 
end of Bishop’s Cleeve. The site was adjacent to the Old Farmers Arms which was 
now the Head Office of Badham Pharmacy, and recently constructed houses on 
Valentine Road to the south. Members noted there was a watercourse (Dean 
Brook) running along the southern boundary.  The site was located 1.3 miles from 
the Bishop’s Cleeve Town Centre and 4.9 miles from Cheltenham Town Centre.

The map at slide 7 showed that the site was located outside of the Cotswolds Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) (more than 1,270 m at its nearest point) to 
the east. The site was also outside and to the south west of the Special Landscape 
Area (SLA) at Gotherington. The case officer explained most of the site was within 
Flood Zone 1, which represented a low risk of flooding. To the south-west of the site 
there was a small area situated in Flood Zone 3. The site contained a pond in the 
south-west corner and the southern boundary was defined by the Dean Brook 
watercourse which formed the boundary between the Parishes of Bishop’s Cleeve 
and Gotherington as well as the extent of the settlement boundary. The Committee 
noted the topography of the site was generally sloping, with the highest point being 
in the north eastern corner, sloping down to the lowest point at the south western 
corner. The overall level change was around 6m.

Members were advised that the site lay outside but adjoined the Bishop’s Cleeve 
settlement boundary and was within the identified Gap of Strategic Importance 
identified in the Tewkesbury Local Plan and the Gotherington Neighbourhood Plan.

The case officer referred the committee to report pages 45-53 which covered the 
policy context. It was noted that report paragraphs 4.1- 4.9 referred to the relevant 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) guidance. Paragraphs 4.10 - 4.24 
covered relevant development plan policies in the GCC Waste Core Strategy, The 
Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS), the 
Tewkesbury Borough Council Local Plan and the Gotherington Neighbourhood 
Plan.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

In terms of representations, members were informed that the application was 
advertised by both site and press notice along with neighbour notification on two 
separate occasions following submission of revised highway plans. Following this 
exercise 19 objections were received. It was noted full details of the public 
representations were available through the link provided at paragraph 5.2 of the 
report. 

The Committee noted that paragraph 5.3 of the report summarised the objections.  
It was confirmed that objections had been received from both Gotherington and 
Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Councils and were detailed in the report. Members were 
advised the main issues related to site location and highway/transport concerns. It 
was noted that members were directly sent the Bishop’s Cleeve objections to the 
application which were contained in the report.

Part 6 of the report referred to the consultations undertaken, it was noted that 
Tewkesbury Borough Council Policy comments had referred in particular to Policy 
LAN 3 Gap of Local Importance formerly referred to as the Strategic Gap.   The 
Environmental Health Officer (EHO) advice regarding noise impact was also 
provided.

The case officer clarified that Gotherington and Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Council 
consultation responses were on page 57 – 64 of the report and both were objecting 
to the application.

It was stated that Natural England, Severn Trent Water Ltd, Wales and the West 
Utilities and Western Power Distribution had raised no objection, as did Sport 
England following revised plans being submitted.

In terms of GCC consultees, this was detailed in Part 7 of the report (pages 70 – 
76) this showed the Highway Authority response. However, following an initial 
request for deferral and upon consideration of revised drawings, the Highways 
Authority (HA) raised no objections subject to conditions. A representative of the HA 
was present at the meeting to answer any questions regarding any highway matters 
that arose during the course of the meeting.

It was noted that no objections were received from the County Archaeologist or the 
Lead Local Flood Authority and County Ecologist subject to planning conditions. 
Two technical representatives were present to answer any relevant questions 
regarding flood, drainage and ecology. In addition, the County Landscape Officer 
representative, following clarification and revised drawings raised no objections and 
neither did the County Glint/Glare adviser.

Part 8 of the report detailed the Planning Consideration.  This identified the main 
considerations material to the application starting with the Planning Policy Context. 
Paragraph 8.4 referred to the identification of the site for a school but the Inspector 
did not allocate it in the Plan leaving it to be determined under development 
management policies to decide its appropriateness.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

The recently adopted Tewkesbury Local Plan (TLP) referred to the Gap of Local 
Importance Policy LAN 3 (slide 7) commenting that the policy sought to avoid 
development, except in exceptional circumstances, in the gap between 
Gotherington and Bishop’s Cleeve.

Para 8.12 of the report identified that the officer opinion was that the application 
departed from policy and, if approved, would need to be referred to the Secretary of 
State. The case officer explained should the application not be “called in” then 
following the prescribed time period planning permission could be issued.

It was explained in terms of the educational need consideration, the Education 
Authority and the planning agent referred to the increased housing in the area and 
the lack of physical capacity to expand at the current Bishop’s Cleeve school site.

The case officer explained that Paragraph 95 of the NPPF was referenced which 
gave great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools. Overall it was 
considered to comply with policies SP1 and INF4 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS).

Paragraph 8.19 of the report referred to the site location consideration. A site 
options appraisal was undertaken prior to submission of the application. The 
section concluded having considered the constraints, that on balance, the site was 
an acceptable location for school development. 

It was clarified that Highways and Transport was considered on paragraphs 8.22-
8.33 of the report.  The Highways Authority (HA) had considered the application 
documents, revised highway design and the concerns of the objectors and the 
response was provided within the report.   The HA raised no objection subject to 
conditions being satisfied that the safety of children, parents and staff was 
accommodated in the highway design. The highway design promoted had 
deliberately accepted the lack of drop off/pick up provision as part of sustainable 
travel requirements promoted by local and national policy. The HA accepted that an 
inevitable consequence of this was that parents would drop off pupils further away 
from the school entrance and/or park in nearby residential streets.

The application was supported by a Travel Plan (TP) which stated that transport 
would be organised as appropriate for pupils with special educational needs but no 
vehicular drop off/parking facilities for parents would be provided on or off site. The 
TP identified nearby bus stops to the school as depicted at slide 19.  
 
Slides 20 and 21 showed the revised highway drawings. Members were referred to 
the larger plans on display in the meeting room. Slides 22-24 showed the walking 
distance radii and the recent housing developments.

The case officer recapped whilst the concerns raised on highway matters were 
acknowledged and considered material, it was the professional technical opinion of 
the HA that the highway design considerations were acceptable and satisfactory, 
subject to planning conditions. The highway design satisfied sustainable transport 
considerations encouraged by both local and national policy. As such the proposal 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

was considered to comply with policy INF1 of the JCS, policies TRAC1 and TRAC2 
of the TBP and paragraphs 104, 105, 110, 111 and 112 of the NPPF.

Members were referred to Slide 8-13 and paragraphs 8.31-8.59 of the report which 
detailed the ecology.  It was explained that a full suite of ecology reports had been 
undertaken to include trees, hedgerows, badgers, bats, great crested newts, 
dormouse, water vole, otter and reptiles as listed at paragraph 8.2 of the report.  
The County Ecologist had provided detailed responses and they were summarised 
in the report. 

It was noted that the application documents had considered and appropriately 
addressed ecology implications of the proposed development. Whilst the loss of the 
traditional orchard was unfortunate it was, with mitigation and compensation, not 
considered unacceptable to warrant a sustainable reason for refusal of planning 
permission. The ecology section concluded subject to the conditions referred to in 
paragraph 8.57, it was considered that the proposed development satisfied policies 
NAT1 of the TBC development plan, policy SD9 of the JCS and NPPF paragraphs 
126 and 174.  The County Ecologist was also present at the meeting to answer any 
detailed questions.

The case officer referred to the landscape considerations as detailed at paragraph 
8.60 – 8.68 of the report.  Members were informed that the County Landscape 
Adviser (CLA) identified that the site lay within the Gap of Local Importance and lay 
outside the AONB and Gotherington SLA. The CLA identified that the site was small 
for what was being proposed, this was also identified by other consultees. The loss 
of the historic orchard adjacent to the A435 road was regrettable, but it was noted 
that it was compensated and mitigated by new tree planting on the site. Overall, 
after submission of additional information and clarification of details there was no 
landscape objection raised subject to planning conditions relating to those identified 
in paragraph 8.67 of the report. 

Whilst the CLA considered that the proposal represented an over development of 
the site, he was satisfied that the proposed landscaping and mitigation was 
achievable through the imposition of appropriate planning conditions.  

The CPA considered that the proposed development departed from TBP LAN3 
(Gap of Local Importance), and having taken into account the landscape issues 
that, in the planning balance, the proposal broadly accorded with the aims of JCS 
Policies SD6 (landscape) and INF3 (Green Infrastructure) and TLP NAT1 
(Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural Features) subject to the conditions 
identified in paragraph 8.67 of the report.

Slides 15 and 16 showed the drainage strategy and the SUDS.  The Lead Local 
Flood Authority (LLFA) had considered the proposed development and the 
documents submitted. They concluded that the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) had 
assessed whether the application site was likely to be affected by flooding and 
whether the proposed development was appropriate in the suggested location. The 
FRA and drainage strategy submitted with this application showed that the 
development could proceed providing a school that will be safe from flooding and 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

without increasing flood risk elsewhere.  It was noted the LLFA had no objection to 
this proposal subject to conditions.  A representative of the LLFA was present at the 
meeting to answer any detailed questions.

The Committee were informed that the County Archaeologist (CA) advised that the 
application area was subject to full archaeological evaluation at pre-application 
stage, and no significant archaeology was found to be present. In the CA’s view 
there was a low risk that archaeological remains would be adversely affected by 
this development proposal. The CA had recommended that no archaeological 
investigation or recording needed be undertaken in connection with this scheme.

Members attention was drawn to slides 3 and 4, which showed the modern design 
of the proposed building.  It was two storeys and occupied the southern part of the 
site at a lower level than the adjoining sports pitches to the north. The land sloped 
towards the south with a difference in level of 6 metres. The proposed school 
building had been designed to be Carbon Neutral and achieve net Zero Carbon 
Building Operational Energy and to an A+ Energy Performance Certificate (EPC). 

Members were advised that the siting, design, materials and access was informed 
by both the planning policy context and the planning constraints. The development 
of the site had to make compromises regarding outdoor sports provision and the 
loss of existing trees, pond area and parent drop off provision. These matters had 
all been assessed by technical advisers and subject to conditions they were 
satisfied that the proposed development was acceptable. 

The Committee were advised that the building design and materials palette chosen 
had attempted to reflect the rural setting. Overall, it was not considered that in 
design terms the development was unacceptable and could be considered to 
generally accord with JCS policy SD4 and the principles of the NPPF.

Slides 17 and 18 referred to noise and it was noted at the Members site visit the 
issue of traffic noise was raised. Slide 17 showed the noise monitoring locations 
near to the road and the residential properties to the south and also the expected 
noise readings at the ground floor and first floor facades of the school building. 
Slide 18 provided an extract from the Noise and Acoustic report. The report 
identified that mitigation would be required suggesting Natural Ventilation with Heat 
Recycling and/or Mechanical Ventilation with Heat Recovery.  It was confirmed the 
EHO had assessed the report and mitigation proposed and raises no objections 
subject to conditions.

The case officer clarified that overall, it was considered that amenity impacts with 
regards to air quality, noise, dust and glint and glare mitigated by planning condition 
was acceptable and in accordance with JCS policy SD14 
Also in terms of Health and Environmental Quality, the energy efficiency and carbon 
footprint were referred to in paragraphs 8.108-8.114 of the report.  

The CPA considered that the design of the proposed new School, through the use 
of appropriate materials and technology together with innovative design, meets the 
requirements of Paragraph 154 (b) of the NPPF which sought to ensure that “new 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

development should be planned for in ways that can help to reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions, such as through its location, orientation and design.”

However, the school building itself was not the only consideration when looking at 
climate change. This proposal would also involve the removal of established 
hedgerow and traditional orchard representing a carbon and biodiversity loss. 
Notwithstanding the proposed ecological compensation and mitigation provided a 
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG), as referred to in ecology consideration, this was 
balanced against the climate change implications of the development.

It was explained that in terms of waste minimisation and management and subject 
to planning conditions, the proposed development was considered to accord with 
GCC Waste Core Strategy (WCS 2) policy.  

Paragraphs 8.117 - 8.129 of the report referred to the community engagement. The 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) described the elements of the 
consultation that had been undertaken prior to the submission of the application.  It 
was clarified that the following forms of consultation had been undertaken prior to 
submission:
• Pre-application discussions with Planning Officers at GCC; and 
• Two consultation events held at Bishop’s Cleeve Primary Academy School. 

On that basis the CPA was satisfied that appropriate community engagement had 
taken place and the applicant had considered the responses made by the public in 
consideration of the proposed development. 

The case officer summarised that the proposed development, subject to planning 
condition compliance and mitigation works relating to landscaping, ecology and 
highway matters, was not considered to significantly adversely impact upon, the 
amenity of residents in the vicinity, the environment; the local highway network; 
upon the Cotswolds AONB and the Gotherington SLA. Overall, whilst departing 
from Policy LAN 3 in the newly adopted TLP it was considered that, on balance, the 
educational need outweighed any adverse impact perceived or otherwise by the 
proposed development and was therefore recommended for approval.  

The case officer concluded the Planning Committee be minded to grant planning 
permission for the reasons summarised in paragraph 8.133 of the report, subject to 
the application being first referred to the Secretary of State to consider as a 
departure application from the adopted TLP 2011-2032, in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and 
subject to the conditions set out in the report. Also that the Team Manager 
Development Management and Minerals & Waste Planning is granted delegated 
authority to impose such conditions relating to Great Crested Newt’s (GCN) in line 
with the GCN licensing approach to be taken prior to the decision being actioned. 

The Chairman invited the following registered speakers to address the Committee: 

Supporting: Lisa Summerbell (Gloucestershire Learning Alliance)

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

“The Gloucestershire Learning Alliance (GLA) is an established and successful 
local school trust, comprising of 8 primary schools serving the needs of over 2000 
pupils.

Across the GLA, our vision of 'Outstanding Outcomes for Children', is at the centre 
of all that we do; it is the driver that ensures that each and every child in the Trust is 
given the opportunities and support that they need to ensure they are able fulfil their 
potential. Within the GLA we are also keen to preserve and celebrate the 
uniqueness and individuality of each of our schools. The new school, 'Greenacres 
Primary Academy', will be committed to enabling our children to achieve their full 
potential both academically and personally, and to be the very best that they can 
be. This will be woven into the school culture using the Greenacres unique vision

Do Something Great! Aim High; Work Hard; Dream Big

Further to this, we are keen to expand these individual 'flavours' in our schools. The 
new school will take the lead on climate and sustainability issues. Children will 
understand that to be a pupil at Greenacres is to be a part of something great, 
trailblazing the eco approach to sustainability and environmental conservation in 
the trust and sharing their learning and ideas with the other schools. We are 
delighted that the building will have such impeccable green credentials and we will 
continue to do everything we can to limit the school's carbon footprint. One of the 
best ways we can do this is to ensure that the system provides capacity at the point 
of need or as Gloucestershire County Council would say-local schools for local 
children.

 Greenacres will be a village school. We will serve the community so that our 
children walk, scoot or cycle to school. It seems to us that this is the most 
sustainable way for education to fit properly into a full range of policy measures that 
will be needed as we all tackle climate change.

AII GLA schools have active travel plans with Modeshift Stars and Greenacres will 
be no exception -we are actively pursuing all possible ideas to promote safe and 
sustainable ways of getting to school for our families and staff in order to establish 
Greenacres as a flagship green school. We already offer the cycle-to work scheme 
for Staff; we will also operate walking buses for children and there will be a scooter 
and bike park. We are even exploring creative ideas like the 'cycle-bus' that many 
schools use in Holland.

Our early consultations are showing that there is a good appetite for this and we will 
promote this at every opportunity including through the section L0 consultation.

We are excited to secure this school in the heart of its community providing an 
excellent education. We are proud to be the sponsor of choice and have a strong 
team of senior staff and trustees involved in the development process and together 
we wholeheartedly support this proposal.”

Applicant: Gareth Vine, Universal Commissioning Manager/Head of 
Commissioning for Learning, GCC

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

“The County Council has a statutory duty to ensure that sufficient school places 
available within its area.  

In 2019 primary forecasts which include pupils generated from now new housing 
revealed there will be a shortfall in school places of up to 60 places (2 form entry) 
from 2023/24.  The LA carried out an options appraisal in consultation with the 
existing primary and secondary schools in the Bishop’s Cleeve area to explore how 
the additional places could be provided.  There was agreement that the existing 
primary schools could not be expanded to meet this additional growth. The 
recommendation was to explore Cleeve School to become an all through school 
covering both primary and secondary phases by developing a primary school on the 
site at Kayte Lane.

This proposal attracted strong opposition to the location of the new school primarily 
as the site is located to the south of Bishops Cleeve and not in the northern area 
where the new housing is.  This was viewed as unsustainable as it would mean 
children would have to be transported across the village to the school.  
  
Following a review of available land within the Bishop’s Cleeve area, taking on 
board the need to be near the new housing, the current site was identified as a 
more suitable site.  

In December 2020, Cabinet approved the proposal to establish a new school to 
serve the Bishops Cleeve area.  

It is proposed the school will open from September 2024 with an intake of 60 pupils 
(2 form entry) in reception and grow each year in line with the additional demand of 
60 places each year, reaching its capacity of 420 places by 2030. 

The school has been designed that it can expand its intake to a total of 90 places 
for reception from 2031 to meet further growth from housing becoming a 3 form 
entry school with a capacity for 630 places

If a new school is not provided to meet this additional local demand the County 
Council will be failing in a statutory duty to provide sufficient school places where 
they are needed.  Furthermore, the County Council will be required to provide 
places further afield and also pay for the transport which is not sustainable either 
financially or environmentally.”

Agent: Joe Seymour 

“Good morning, I’m here as the Agent speaking on behalf of the Applicant today, 
there are two key points I wish to make.

1. Firstly, it is necessary to emphasise that local and national planning policies 
are overwhelmingly supportive of the provision of new primary schools. The 
Government’s ‘Planning for Schools Development Statement’ outlines the key 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

policies relating to state-funded education development and it states there is a 
presumption in favour of granting planning permission for new schools. 

That means your default position should be to grant planning permission, and all of 
the evidence before you in the Officer’s Report also concludes that planning 
permission should be granted. 

2. My second point relates to whether or not the proposal is a departure from 
the Development Plan. Let me be clear, this proposal is NOT a departure from the 
Development Plan. 

The only issue that is identified in the Officer’s Report is the fact the site lies within 
the ‘Gap of Local Importance’, which is controlled by Policy LAN3. This policy sets 
out how you can build within the Gap of Local Importance when three tests relating 
to landscape impact are satisfied. 

The Case Officer has concluded in paragraph 8.65 that the undeveloped character 
of the Gap of Local Importance would not be significantly adversely affected. The 
County Landscape Officer concurs with this. Consequently, there is no conflict with, 
or departure from, the Development Plan. 

This means the application should be permitted today, and it does not need to be 
referred to the Secretary of State as a departure. 

Thank you.”

Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Council: Councillor Wendy Hopkins

“Firstly members, I want to make it absolutely crystal clear that Bishops Cleeve 
needs a new primary school.   There is no doubt about that, we have a growing 
population and we welcome the decision to build a new primary school to 
accommodate our rapidly growing population in the village. 

However, we have concerns about the application in its current form, firstly it’s the 
Active Travel Plan.  Essentially, the Active Travel Plan is submitted to accompany 
the application which proposes a new 5m wide shared footpath and cycle way to be 
constructed alongside the new school, new speed restrictions along the A435 near 
the school, a Toucan crossing, and traffic regulation orders (TRO’s) being 
established for surrounding residential streets and an Urban Clearway on the A435 
to deter parents from parking locally to drop-off and collect their children at the 
beginning and end of the school day.  

There is no provision on site for the drop-off or collection of children traveling to 
school by car and this will inevitably lead to illegal parking in nearby street and 
directly on the A435 itself.     The lack of provision for safe drop-off and collection 
for primary aged children, aged between 4 and 12 years old, is completely 
unrealistic, ill-conceived, unworkable and sadly dangerous, as no doubt should this 
development go ahead without this provision it would endanger the young lives of 
these future pupils.  

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

Just in terms of future pupils, we are talking about 630 future pupils in the school 
and 52 pre-school aged children, that’s nearly 700 children.  

On that basis, it is my opinion that it would be neglectful for the Members here 
today to support the proposal in its current form and Members should be deferring 
this decision to request and ensure that the safe provision of drop-off and collection 
facilities are provided on-site. 

Members, given the location and constraints of the site and the primary aged 
children, do not let anyone persuade you that safe drop-off and collection is 
contrary to planning policy because that is simply not true.  It may be cheaper in 
development costs and we’ve already heard that officers consider the site to be 
small and it’s an on balanced decision, but you know the interpretation of 
“sustainability” has been distorted to disguise this as being acceptable.  Which in 
this instance disregards the truth and the interests of those young children 
attending the school and nearby residents whose streets will be congested with 
illegal parking and hazardous. 

I need not remind Members that the social responsibilities of ensuring the children 
arrive safely at this school, arterial road users are served, and the amenities of local 
residents are safeguarded should be given weight and it is this social dimension 
that adds value and legacy to your decision-making. 

Furthermore, a recent amendment to the application by Gloucestershire Highways 
was to remove the metal barriers near the school entrances in favour of open 
verges, this will only encourage further illegal parking and drop-offs and will not 
protect a distracted young child from running out into fast moving and often heavy 
freight vehicle.  The current Active Travel Plan just simply does not work other than 
to achieve a minimum spend and to put young children’s lives at risk.  

Were also concerned about flood risk and members need further clarity on the three 
ponds that are proposed, are they for ecology or are they for attenuating water.  

Essentially there is a 35m diameter pond or lake is a better word to use. That sits 
along Deans brook and that attenuates and there is standing water in there at the 
moment.  I think members need to be satisfied that flood risk is dealt with suitably 
as we’re currently not satisfied.  Also the nursey is located nearer the road than the 
school and the acoustic report makes no reference to that.  Thank you.”

County Councillor: Alex Hegenbarth

“The application being discussed today is a vital piece of community infrastructure 
for Bishop’s Cleeve, and will support the thousands of new families that have, and 
will, and have settled in our village and the surrounding area over the next few 
years. To be clear, I support the application, but there are several issues that need 
to be addressed that I hope committee members will take under consideration when 
making your decision and that officers can provide answers for.

First, I want to give my thanks to the Parish Council for their detailed comments and 
to Hydrock for the Technical Design note that has been circulated - I hope members 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 13 -

have had the opportunity to read them. I had a number of questions regarding flood 
management but feel they have now been addressed in the design note, so I will 
leave questions regarding that to others.

Second, I wanted to raise concerns around safety of travel for the children to and 
from the site that need to be included as part of the development of the school and 
not be seen as add-ons to be worked out at a later date. As obvious as it sounds, it 
is vital that appropriate land is secured for any cycle ways and footpaths that run 
alongside the A435, and where appropriate that both should be flanked by barriers 
to protect from the heavy traffic that uses that road.

With this, a Traffic Regulation Order must be put in place to extend the 40mph zone 
from its current location before the turning out from Evesham Road to well beyond 
the site, coupled with a 20mph School Zone, again to be in place ready for when 
the first pupils walk through the gates. I was glad to see in a letter written by the 
Highways Development Management Team Leader, dated 29th April that the 
Development Team have recognised the importance of this.

Third, the most important point is the desperate need to counter the complete lack 
of dropping-off facilities for a site situated in a semi-rural location and in a strategic 
gap between two villages. In the same letter just mentioned, the Highways 
Development Management Team Leader states in regard to drop-offs that, quote 
“these can be accepted on existing streets for the short duration that they occur and 
this is its own right does not lead to a safety or capacity issue that would conflict 
with paragraph 111 of the NPPF”, I quote, paragraph 111 stating “Development 
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the 
road network would be severe.” 

Now, suggesting that parking should just be pushed down into residential streets 
does not reduce the amount of people who are going to be driving and parking at 
the site, it just moves it to a different location.  So all this suggests is that rather 
than having a managed system on site, we would have an unregulated drop off 
system, it would be made an unmanaged site and unmanaged system where 
parkers would have to battle through residential streets and estates at peak times 
during the day.  

I support the application, the addition of hundreds of cars battling past resident’s 
areas at the busiest parts of the day – would most certainly cause severe impacts 
on the existing road networks which are already being pushed to capacity due to 
continual local development. 

Due to this many parents may potentially park on the A435 outside of the school for 
lack of options and potentially put motorists, themselves, and children, at risk. While 
the policy of restricting drop-off access in favour of promoting sustainable transport 
is a noble one, and one I do support in terms of promoting sustainable transport, 
the site location, the age of the children having to walk to school, and common 
sense, needs to be taken in to consideration by members.   

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 14 -

Bishop’s Cleeve needs a new primary school and I welcome this application, but we 
need to make sure that any new piece of community infrastructure supports the 
local community rather than acting as an imposition upon it. The issues raised by 
residents, myself, and others, must be addressed, and members have it on their 
power to make sure that happens.  Thank you” 

The Chairman advised the Committee he had requested a radial map in order to 
show the 2km walking distance of school children in the Bishops Cleeve and 
Gotherington local area to the school. He also referred to the planned housing 
developments in the local area, which were covered by the map.

The Chairman proceeded to invite questions from Members.  

Councillor Williams asked a question relating to the catchment area, members were 
advised that catchment areas did not exist and if a school place was available a 
child could travel from any distance to attend the school.  

Councillor Williams referred to the active travel plan in terms of walking and cycling 
to the school, however she felt in reality most parents would drop off their child by 
car.  She wondered if was possible to make a recommendation that a drop off point 
be provided.  The Principal Lawyer explained there was no drop off provision for 
any school within Gloucestershire.  The Technical Adviser for Highways explained 
in his professional judgement it was not possible to condition it and the school was 
designed for the local community to walk, cycle or scoot to school.  

Councillor Moseley wished to ask various questions, first she sought to clarify as to 
what was meant by the term ‘Ghost Lane’.  The Technical Adviser for Highways 
explained that it was a right turning lane in a hatched area on the road.  Secondly, 
she wished to know the number of staff parking space allocated within the site, this 
was confirmed as 53 parking spaces.  Thirdly, she questioned the reduction of the 
road speed from 40mph to 20mph.  The Technical Adviser for Highways considered 
the 40mph speed limit to be suitable, with a 20mph advisory speed limit during peak 
times for vulnerable users and this was a condition of the application.  It was noted 
that it would require a Traffic Regulation Order to amend the road speed.  

Councillor Miller referred to the MSV and wondered where the drop off point for 
children with special educational needs/disabled would be.  The Technical Adviser 
for Highways clarified that would be an issue for the school management and 
perhaps disabled access could be utilised via the staff car park if required.  

Councillor Miller also questioned the disruption to the natural environment by the 
removal of the pond and the change to 3 attenuation ponds and the impact this 
would have on the great crested newt population.  The County Ecologist explained 
that there was a raft of ecological reports contained within the papers and 
confirmed there were no newts in the onsite pond.  In terms of the removal of 
vegetation this would be a gradual process, as the height of the vegetation would 
naturally encourage reptiles to move.  The 3 ponds would be ecologically diverse 
and there was an ecology management plan in place.  It was clarified there were no 
bats currently roosting on the site.  

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 15 -

Councillor Miller felt the application site was not that large and wondered how it 
compared to other 3 form entry primary schools.  The Principal Lawyer explained 
that the size of the site was clear in the report and the site was big enough to 
accommodate a 3 form entry.  The Chairman recapped that the officers report 
considered all the elements in detail.  

Councillor Vines felt that the majority of children would walk to the school along the 
A435 and he wondered if there was any consideration by highways for a barrier to 
make it safer, given that large vehicles often travelled at speed.  The Technical 
Adviser for Highways reiterated there was a pavement barrier of 5 metres provided.  
Highways had tried to introduce landscaping, in terms of grass verges and shrubs, 
thus reducing the need for galvanised railing.  It was noted they tried to limit the use 
of metal railing where possible, but railings would be installed near the Evesham 
Road.  Near the school entrance, landscaping barriers would be used as an 
alternative.  

The Chair questioned why it was not possible to have a mix of railings and 
landscaping, he appreciated the need for soft landscaping but it could be used in 
conjunction with railings. 

Councillor McFarling referred to the local visual assessment for the planting of 
trees, hedgerows, and replacement rates, he wondered if the application should be 
creating greater connectivity given the spatial constraints and not removing them 
from the natural landscape.  The County Ecologist explained that the trees on site 
would be replaced and there would be more enhanced alternatives in order to 
manage the land.  In terms of the application he was satisfied there were good 
ecological connections and he was mindful of the additional highways work that 
were beyond the school boundary, including the enhancement of verges.  

Councillor McFarling questioned the biodiversity net gain should be regarded as a 
last result and not the first go to option, when all other options have been 
considered.  The County Ecologist explained that the need for biodiversity net gain 
was in policy at the moment and the County Council would be looking at that for 
any application, as the Council was the applicant, overall the calculation was 
acceptable and the metric used would soon be a mandatory requirement.  There 
was a 11% net gain on habitats and in excess 20% gain on hedgerows and it 
seemed reasonable. Any future developments would require 30 year plans, the key 
aspect was the landscape and ecology management plan.  

Councillor McFarling asked if new apple trees would replace the habitats specific 
with ancient orchards.  The County Ecologist explained there would be a delay 
while the trees matured, so there was a small impact but overall the small 
invertebrate interest would be enhanced overall given the full range of habitat 
proposals.  

Councillor McFarling wished to know the distance of the pond  that contained great 
crested newts (GCN’s)  from the application site and how far would the GCN’s 
travel, it was explained the pond was approximately 100m to the south of the site 

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 16 -

and it was possible that the newts would travel that distance, therefore a licence 
would be required.  

Councillor McFarling sought clarity as to the departure element, the Principal 
Lawyer advised the committee that officers considered that it was a departure from 
the local plan and it would require referral to the Secretary of State if the application 
were to be granted.  

In response to a question regarding the calculation of carbon offsets, the County 
Ecologist confirmed Biodiversity Net Gain was a separate calculation for carbon.

Councillor McFarling wondered if there was direct access to the school site from the 
neighbouring greenacres housing development.  The Technical Adviser for 
Highways clarified there was no access and users would have to walk to the main 
entrance.  

Councillor McFarling continued to ask if the houses opposite the site had been 
subjected to flooding in the extreme weather events, the Technical Adviser for 
Flooding confirmed the LLFA had no records of flooding in the local area.  The 
Chairman referred to the technical note from Hydrock, that referred to the new 
drainage proposals, the need for jetting the culvert and their opinion that there 
would be no flooding problems.  

At this juncture, the Chairman adjourned the meeting (11:45am) for a comfort 
break, members were reminded that the Committee was still in session and they 
should not discuss the application during the comfort break.  

The Committee reconvened at 11:55am

Councillor McFarling asked if 80 cycle spaces were sufficient for the 630 school 
pupil capacity, he continued to refer to the active travel plan and wondered if it 
would cause any congestion issues.  The Technical Adviser for Highways explained 
that the number of cycle spaces were sufficient and it was based on national 
guidance.  He confirmed that he didn’t foresee the travel plan causing any 
congestion issues, the intention was to travel out of car by using cycles, push 
scooters or walking.  

Councillor McFarling asked if the heavy clay soil would compromise the drainage 
on the site.  The Technical Officer for Flooding explained that the site drainage 
would be managed through pipework and storage tanks under the staff car parking 
area.  

Councillor McFarling questioned if the site allowed for future expansion from 2031 
should demand increase, members were advised that it was only possible to 
consider the application before the Committee.  

Councillor McFarling asked if there were bus stops on both sides of the road. The 
Technical Adviser for Highways replied that there were not. However bus usage 

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 17 -

would be low and there were stops accessible within a reasonable walking 
distance.

Councillor Tracey enquired about the newts and the orchard, the County Ecologist 
explained fencing would be in place to protect the new habitat and there were some 
additional conditions, including a licence.  The case officer advised that the 
traditional orchard would be lost but given the constraints of the site there would be 
some losses in terms of potential features.  

Councillor Tracey raised concern for the safety of the nursery children, given the 
location of the attenuation ponds, it was explained that the ponds would be fenced 
off accordingly.  The case officer confirmed there would be safety features in place.  

Councillor Tracey wondered why was the drop off point was not included when the 
plans were originally drawn up.  The Highways Adviser explained that the active 
travel plan strategy sought to discourage and reduce car journeys.  The space on 
the site was limited and there was no capacity for a drop off point.  It was noted the 
new school proposal was driven by the new housing development and children in 
the locality should be able to walk to the school, therefore reducing carbon 
emissions.  

Councillor Tracey continued to ask if service vehicles would be accommodated on 
site and in terms of site maintenance who would be responsible for the upkeep.  
The Highways Adviser explained that service vehicles would be able to access the 
site and the maintenance of verges outside of the school boundary was an issue for 
the Highways Authority in the long term.  

Councillor Tracey asked if the number of cars would be monitored, it was explained 
that it was not possible to monitor people’s habits as some parents may drop their 
children at school on the way to work.  

Councillor Tracey asked about the phased site development and the possible use 
of solar panels.  The case officer explained that the proposal included solar panel 
and the glint and glare study formed part of the conditions.  He continued to clarify 
that it was a phased two storey development and the additional part of the school 
and nursery would be built later on in the development.  

Councillor Morgan questioned the proposed school safety zone and the need for 
flashing lights at peak times.  The Technical Adviser for Highways confirmed that 
conditions had been proposed to the application for signs, safety lights and an 
advisory speed of 20 mph during peak times.  Councillor Morgan added he would 
have preferred to see the inclusion of a road safety camera and the speed of the 
road reduced to 30mph, as a 20mph advisory was not enforceable.  

Councillor Morgan questioned the flooding element as referred to in the Hydrock 
design note and the condition of the gully.  The Technical Adviser for Highways 
explained that drainage on the A435 would be significantly realigned and the gully 
maintenance would be upgraded.  The Technical Adviser for Flooding confirmed 

Page 17



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 18 -

that surface water would drain away in the attenuation ponds and the water would 
have a managed route through the SUDS provision into the watercourse.  

Councillor Moseley asked what provision was there to stop parents from accessing 
the staff parking loop to drop off children.  The case officer explained there was a 
school management plan and there may be a gate or barrier to prevent parents 
from accessing the loop.  Councillor Moseley asked what would a drop off point 
look like, the Highways Adviser suggested that it could be a loop arrangement in 
order to minimise conflict.  

Councillor Moseley wondered why if the properties had been flooded, had GCC not 
been notified.  It was explained there were many reasons why flooding incidents 
were not reported to the Authority but it was down to the individual.  

Councillor Moseley referred to flooding and the word ‘maybe’ in paragraph 8.78 of 
the report and the status of the pond. The Flooding Adviser explained that the 
existing pond was not a flood management feature, and the three new ponds would 
fulfil multiple purposes, primarily to control the greenfield run off rate.  These ponds 
have been designed for biodiversity and the attenuation of water.  It was noted the 
attenuation tanks would be installed under the staff car park, to control the surface 
water into the watercourse at a managed rate.  

Councillor Moseley also questioned the low number of consultation responses, she 
wondered if this was typical response rate and was it adequate consultation.  The 
case officer referred members to paragraph 8.118, which detailed the consultation 
exercises undertaken by the applicant.  

The Committee entered into debate.  

The Chairman reminded the Committee that it was a complex report and the 
specialist advisers had answered all the questions in detail.  He urged members to 
be mindful of the report recommendation, when considering the benefits to the local 
community and the negative aspects.  

The Chair referred to the radial map and felt parents who chose this school would 
be aware of the lack of provision for a drop off point.  He noted the school would be 
of benefit to the large growing local community.  Members were referred to the 
email submission from the Parish Council circulated prior to the meeting and was 
well thought out.  It was recapped that there was no right of appeal for the Authority 
and an alternative site would need to be sought if the application were to be 
refused.  

Councillor Fisher felt the planning element was more complex and he referred to 
paragraph 104 of the NPPF, and remarked that a car was a form of transport and 
should be considered.  People will travel to take their child to school, he added 
many schools were now academies they could attract the pupils hey wanted 
through a selective admissions policy.  

Page 18



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 19 -

He added many schools had drop off points and he used that facility at his 
grandchild’s school when he was doing the school run.  Nobody denied the need 
for a school and it was necessary but all forms of transport needed to be taken into 
account.  Councillor Fisher remarked that the A435 was a very busy road and a 
drop off zone would be a sensible approach, as no-one who lived in Gotherington 
would walk a small child the distance to school, especially during winter.  The reality 
was that parents would drive their child to school on their way to work.  He felt he 
was unable to support the application without the proper provision of a drop off 
zone.  

Councillor Fisher referred to Teddington Primary School, where a farmer allowed 
the school to use part of a field as a drop off point.  

Councillor Miller felt the MSV was very constructive but it was unlikely that many 
parents would walk their children to school in a 50mph zone.  He added he would 
drive if he had a child at the proposed school and that parking in the local streets 
would annoy the local residents and he didn’t feel he could support the application 
in its current state.  He accepted the need for a school but felt there was a definite 
need for a drop off zone.  Councillor Miller felt the application needed rethinking and 
suggested that perhaps the staff parking could be moved and the current pond 
could be retained for nature lessons.  

Councillor Morgan agreed with a lot of Councillor Fisher’s comments and he felt the 
concept of not driving was unrealistic, especially in bad weather as people would 
choose to drive.  He also felt that in the current climate both parents had to work, 
giving the cost of living crisis.  There was no enforcement to make people walk to 
the school and the school active travel plan was a pointless concept. It was noted 
that he had experience of local schools in his ward on new housing developments 
that had the same issues.  He felt that officers and members needed to witness 
schools at pick up and drop off times in order to understand the demands.  Also in 
his opinion the school safety zone needed to be enforceable by a speed camera.  

Councillor Moseley felt the MSV was a valuable way of assessing the site but she 
had some reservations about the application.  The pavement walking route required 
safety barriers and she felt a more illustrative diagram would have been beneficial.  
Councillor Moseley accepted that parents worked and it often resulted in linked 
journeys by car and she accepted that the school drop off and pick up was often a 
chaotic experience and parking on the nearby estate would be inevitable.  She also 
felt unable to support the application in its current form, and felt the school needed 
a drop off point given its location.    

Councillor McFarling explained that he had experience as a school governor and 
Forest Dean Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency, he supported the transport 
decarbonisation plan, but he accepted this would take time to change people’s 
attitudes.  He accepted that a drop off point was required to begin with, as 
introducing the active travel plan from day one would cause difficulties and phasing 
out vehicle usage would take time.  Councillor McFarling also felt meeting the 
needs of the wildlife should be met and he didn’t think this was the right site for the 
school and would therefore proposed that the application be refused on the basis of 

Page 19



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 20 -

an irreplaceable loss of ancient orchard, a decrease in the natural land network and 
a departure from the TBC local plan, which would require it to be called in by the 
Secretary of State.  

Councillor Williams appreciated the extensive work undertaken by officers in the 
preparation of the report but she couldn’t accept the proposal in its current form.  It 
was a fact that speed kills children, and that needed to be resolved to prevent 
serious injuries.  It was also not possible to change people’s attitudes and 
behaviour wouldn’t change overnight and without the option of a drop off point it 
was not feasible.  She accepted that parents and guardians needed to work longer 
hours to provide for their families in the current financial situation and people will 
drive as they don’t have the time to walk and cars would park on local roads, 
causing issues for local residents.  

Councillor Fisher remarked there was no evidence on link journeys and therefore 
should not be included in the report.  

Councillor Tracey stated the school was for future generations and children needed 
schools.  Most schools she was aware of were built on main roads, as more 
infrastructure required the appropriate facilities.  She stated that school drop off 
times were only at peak times and dispersed quickly and she would support the 
application and conditions should be for safety.  

Councillor Vines referred to the history of the proposal, he believed that originally a 
site was proposed at Kayte Lane to accommodate the school, however this was 
deemed to be at the wrong side of the village and far away from the new housing 
development.  The application site was now at the right side of the village.  He 
accepted that the parish was not against the application for a school but not on this 
site.  It was never possible to tick all the boxes but it was a question of making do 
with the best available.  No one had approached the adjacent land owners to ask 
for access and he felt nothing had been done to explore this possibility.  Councillor 
Vines had concerns over the safety of the A435 and he appreciated the highways 
view but a barrier either metal or railway sleepers was far safer for children, there 
was never going to be a perfect scenario.  

Councillor Vines suggested that a bridge could be installed over Deans 
brook/Valentine Road and Conway Drive so this could facilitate parking away from 
the A435.  He remarked that all these new houses would require a school in the 
locality and he would not refuse the application.  

Councillor Harman recapped that everyone recognised the need for a school and 
he was minded to be in favour of supporting the application.  The bone of 
contention was the lack of drop off and wondered if the application could be 
approved with amendments to resolve this issue or deferred until the issues had 
been investigated.  

The Principal Lawyer explained that it was possible to defer the application on the 
aspect of the drop off/pick up zone and  for officers to look at that specific point in 
more detail to come back to Committee.  It was not possible to approve the 

Page 20



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 21 -

application with amendments, it was the application before committee that was 
subject to determination.  If deferred the only issue for discussion when returned to 
committee would be that point alone, therefore members accept in principle all 
other aspects of the application.  

Councillor Hale felt it was an ideal time to include the drop off zone, in order to 
make the school safer and he had experience in his local ward of school drop off 
zones.  He was concerned about the 1.3m of standing water ponds to be 
acceptable for local wildlife, he felt the danger was that water also attracted children 
given the location of the nursery.  Councillor Hale made reference to the MSV and 
the top soil onto clay, he didn’t think given the condition of the ground the SUDS 
would be acceptable, as water will find its way out, especially if the top soil was 
removed.  

The Chair explained that the issue of water on the site had been carefully thought 
through, as per the Hydrock note and there would be tanks to take the excess water 
under the staff car park and works to the highways would mean the water could be 
controlled.  

Councillor Fisher moved for a deferral on the grounds of looking at the provision of 
a drop off zone.  He sought clarification on the grounds of refusal at a later date.  
The Principal Lawyer advised if the Committee did not feel the additional 
information to be provided overcame members concerns then it was permissible to 
refuse the application.  Councillors Fisher also asked if there was additional 
evidence on linked journeys and para 104 of the NPPF in terms of all forms of 
transport.  

Councillor Moseley seconded Councillor Fisher’s proposal for deferral. 

Councillor Vines felt it was a sensible way forward but wanted clarity on the drop off 
zone and his original suggestion of a bridge over Deans brook.  

The Chair recapped if a deferral were voted for a drop off zone and it was for 
officers to look at proposals to mitigate concerns.  The Principal Lawyer confirmed 
this was the position.  

Councillor Morgan added that he would never vote against a new school but it 
should be deferred and the school safety zone should be included.  

Councillor McFarling felt given the constraints of the site, he accepted that it would 
take time for people to transition to the active travel plan.  He also suggested a 
deferral to look at alternative sites or the use of neighbouring land for a drop off 
point.  He also sought clarification on the referral to the Secretary of State. 

The Principal Lawyer advised the Committee that departure from the TBC Local 
Plan, would automatically be referred to the Secretary of State.

Page 21



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 22 -

Councillor Miller proposed a small amendment to deferral, and referred to 
Councillor Vines additional request for a deferral on the basis of a bridge in addition 
to the drop off zone request.  Councillor Miller seconded Councillor Vines proposal.  

Councillor Awford suggested if the application was going to be deferred for the drop 
off zone, then the wider opportunities should be looked at in terms of the highway 
safety on the A road and safe route to school’s principles. Councillor Morgan 
agreed with Councillor Vines.

The Principal Lawyer clarified that the deferral would be on the basis of highways 
safety, the drop off/pick up zone and the suggestion of an alternative arrangement 
in terms of the bridge be investigated.  Councillor Fisher agreed to amend his 
proposal on this basis and this was seconded by Councillor Moseley.  The 
Committee were reminded these were the only matters for discussion at a later 
meeting and they confirmed they were content with all other aspects of the 
application.  

Councillor McFarling wished to reserve the right to refuse the application on the 
deferral information.  

On being put to the vote for a deferral on the basis of further clarity for highways 
safety, including the drop off point and the alternative access to the site via a 
bridge, it was agreed 11 for and 1 against.  

Resolved 

That a deferral was sought on the basis of further clarity for highways safety, 
including the drop off/pick up point and the alternative access to the site via a 
bridge. 

25. ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

During the discussion, members suggested that  Enforcement Team was under 
resourced, The Committee appreciated the work of the Enforcement Officer but felt 
more resources were required to cope with the increased demand.  It was 
suggested that the Chair should write to the Cabinet Member requesting more 
resources for the team.

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report.   

26. DELEGATED DECISIONS REPORT 

The Committee noted the report.  

Page 22



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 23 -

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.32 pm

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Member Site Visit Meeting

10th November 2022

Weather conditions: Mostly dry, windy with a hint of mizzle.

Planning Committee Member Attendance:

Councillors:
AWFORD, Cllr Philip
BAKER, Cllr Paul
BROWN, Cllr David
FISHER, Cllr Bernard
HALE, Cllr Terry**
HARMAN, Cllr Tim
HEGENBARTH, Cllr Alex

P
AP
Ap
Ap
P
Ap
Ap

MACKENZIE-CHARRINGTON, Cllr Mark*
MCFARLING, Cllr Chris
MORGAN, Cllr Graham
MOSELEY, Cllr Gill
NELSON, Cllr Emma
TRACEY, Cllr Pamela
VINES, Cllr Robert
Williams, Cllr Sue

P
P
P
P
P
P
P
Ap

Chairperson* Vice Chairperson **

Key: P=present, Ab=absent, Ap= Apologies

Officers in attendance: 

Sarah Pearse, (SP) Principal Planning Officer, Kevin Phillips, (KP) Team Manager, 
Marcus Sparrow (SP), Senior Planning Officer (Case Officer), and Carrie Denness 
(CD), Principal Lawyer. 

Members were joined on site by Mr Ahmet Donmez, the Puckrup Hall Hotel General 
Manager, Mr Luckett representing Twyning Parish Council, Mr David and Mr Phillip 
Martineau representing the adjacent Church End Nursery, Mr Nick Warner from the 
closest residence and Ms Nikki Reeves representing the Action group REACT.

Members were also joined by approximately 50 Members of the REACT Action 
group who made a peaceful protest about the proposal.

Planning application 19/0081/TWMAJM for a proposed new vehicular access off 
A38, plus haul road, weighbridge/office, processing plant and equipment (including 
concrete batching plant), creation of clean water ponds, silt ponds, stock piles and 
other works and ancillary development associated with the extraction of sand and 
gravel and import of inert materials with restoration using site derived material to 
wetlands, nature conservation and agriculture (cross-boundary application with 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



2

Worcestershire) by Mr Moreton Cullimore on land at Bow Farm, Bow Lane, Twyning, 
Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire.

The Members of the MSV stood in the grounds of the Puckrup Golf Club to view the 
site where Case Officer described the site and the proposal – (see Appendix 1 
attached Officer Briefing Notes.) highlighting relevant site features.

At the request of Cllr McFarling, the Case Officer pointed out the site boundary within 
the landscape with reference to the site location plan. Members noted the direction 
of the wind which was coming from the direction of the proposed mineral processing 
plant site.

After this brief presentation, members moved inside the Golf Club building for the 
remainder of the presentation. At this point Mr Donmez introduced himself and 
explained that the hotel had an associated health club and golf club. He explained 
that in the course of a year with seasonal variations there were approximately 200 
employees at the complex. He explained that guests expect a peaceful, silent stay 
and don’t want a quarry. The associated noise, dust and traffic will have an impact 
and customers will be lost. This could lead to the business becoming unviable and 
closing.

Member Questions:

Following the case officer presentation identifying that parts of the site were in 
different flood zones, Cllr MacKenzie-Charrington asked the case officer to explain 
the differences between flood zones. The case officer (CO) explained that flood 
zones are a guidance tool, formed by the Environment Agency, to demonstrate the 
probability of river and sea flooding in areas across England. Flood zone 1 has a low 
probability of flooding, flood zone 2 has a medium probability and flood zone 3a has 
a high probability, with 3b forming the functional flood plain.

Cllr McFarling asked whether the fields under the control of the operator would all go 
and if intert material would be brought onto site for restoration. The CO explained 
that the top soil and overburden will be removed and stored on site, for use in 
restoration. He confirmed that inert material would be brought in to restore the site to 
existing or near existing levels.

The CO explained that the majority of the mineral extraction area lies with 
Worcestershire, who approved their application at their planning committee on 31st 
October, subject to this current GCC application for access arrangements and plant 
area being determined favourably. 

Cllr McFarling asked if both counties would be responsible for enforcement at the 
joint site? The CO answered yes and also for monitoring. As for dealing with the 
applications there will be cross boundary co-operation.

Page 26



3

Cllr McFarling asked about the bund and acoustic fence, will it be possible to see 
over it into the site from the Gloucestershire side? Will noise go over the 1 m high 
acoustic fence?

The CO explained that the acoustic fence will sit on top of a 3m high bund around 
the plant site. There is a 16 m height difference between the extraction site and the 
access point on the A38. He pointed out that the tops of the glass houses at the 
adjacent Church End Nursery can be seen above intervening vegetation, from the 
Golf Course.

Cllr Tracey asked if there was any change of traffic lights at the junction of the 
access track with the A38 as it is a busy road? The CO explained that that does not 
form part of the application, and it is not a requirement of the Highway Authority. 
There will however be a traffic filter lane. 

Cllr Tracey asked if the bridleway would be fenced off? The CO stated that the 
advice of the British Horse Society had been sought and there will be a 1.4m high 
fence which is shown on the application plans.

Cllr Tracey asked if the stables mentioned were working. The CO confirmed that 
they were.

Cllr Tracey asked about the “feedstock” mentioned in the presentation. The CO 
confirmed that he was referring to the sand and gravel extracted from the site which 
will be used in the batching plant.

Cllr Tracey asked about the railway line that was mentioned in the presentation. The 
CO pointed out that this was a disused and dismantled railway that is now a mature 
hedge.

Cllr Morgan asked about the processing plant location. The CO explained that the 
haul road would be on the Puckrup Hall side of the glass houses and illustrated this 
using a plan.

Cllr Hale asked about the sediment ponds. The CO explained that they would be 9 
metres deep, but would gradually silt up over time. Water would be recycled from the 
ponds after sediment had settled out.

The Twyning Parish Council representative was invited to speak. He thanked the CO 
for a very comprehensive briefing. He was aware of the limitations about speaking at 
MSV and would explain the Parish Council Objection at the Planning Committee 
meeting.

The Church End Nursery representative was invited to speak, but declined.

Mr Warner, the resident at Gardeners Cottage was invited to speak. He commended 
the CO presentation and highlighted the direction of the prevailing wind with 
reference to noise and dust.

Page 27



4

The Action group representative was invited to speak, but said she would make 
comments at the planning committee.

MSV ended at 12.00 

Members of the MSV moved to view the mineral extraction application site from a 
vantage point near the M50 and Bow Farm. The extent of the site was pointed out to 
members on a plan and in the field. Whilst travelling along Bow Lane the CO pointed 
out Cemex’s proposed mineral site north of the M50 motorway, along with Towbury 
Hillfort, Puck Cottage and Padsview Stables.

Page 28



5

Member Site Visit Meeting

Date: Thursday 10th November 2022

Officer Briefing Notes:

The planning application to which this site visit relates is for ‘proposed new vehicular 
access off the A38, plus the installation of a haul road, weighbridge/office, 
processing plant and equipment (including concrete batching plant), creation of clean 
water ponds, silt ponds, stock piles and other works and ancillary development 
associated with the extraction of sand and gravel and import of inert materials with 
restoration using site derived material to wetlands, nature conservation and 
agriculture.

The application site is within the borough of Tewkesbury and the parish of Twyning. 
The Bow Farm application site covers an area of approximately 65 hectares. The site 
straddles the administrative boundaries of both Gloucestershire (9.1 hectares) and 
Worcestershire (55.9 hectares) and the site is in the sole ownership of Moreton C 
Cullimore (Gravels) Ltd.

(show Location Plan)

The Site is located about 1.3 kilometres west of junction 1 of the M50 Motorway and 
about 3.6 kilometres south-west of junction 8 of the M5 Motorway. The village of 
Twyning is located approximately 895 metres north-east of the application site red 
line boundary (about 1.7 kilometres north-east of the extraction area); the village of 
Ripple is situated about 550 metres north of the proposal on the northern side of the 
M50 Motorway; the village of Church End is located approximately 310 metres east 
of the application site red line boundary (about 1.2 kilometres east of the extraction 
area); and the town of Tewkesbury is located approximately 3.1 kilometres south-
east of the site.

The Site is currently in agricultural use and is comprised of several field parcels that 
are separated by internal boundaries that lie in the open countryside of south 
Worcestershire, within Malvern Hills District, and north Gloucestershire, within 
Tewkesbury Borough. The neighbouring land uses are dominated by agricultural 
activities such as the large greenhouses at Church End Nursery, the northern most 
corner of which is located approximately 54m to the south of the proposed haul route 
that would serve the Site. Land immediately north of the Site consists of the grounds 
to Hilton Puckrup Hall Hotel & Golf Club.

Appendix 1

Page 29



6

(show Plant Site Details drawing and point out Church End Nursery and golf 
course)

The land edged red (application site) on the Site Location drawing includes 
approximately 0.29 hectares of registered Common Land in Gloucestershire.

Twyning Bridleway 37 (Bridleway ATW37) within Gloucestershire crosses the 
proposed haul road north to south. Twyning Footpath 34 (Footpath ATW34) also 
within Gloucestershire runs west to east from Puckrup Lane to the A38, to the north 
of the application site.

(show Proposed Bridleway Crossing Detail drawing)

The topography of the Site in Gloucestershire slopes downwards east to west across 
the Site. The proposed access onto the A38 at the Site’s most easterly point has a 
ground surface contour of 34m Above Ordnance Datum. To the far west of the Site, 
in Gloucestershire, the western edge of the proposed clean water pond would have a 
ground surface contour of 11m Above Ordnance Datum. The topography of the area 
of land proposed for the processing plant site is at approximately 15 metres to 16 
metres Above Ordnance Datum.

An underground Exolum Pipeline System oil pipeline and Defence Infrastructure 
Organisation redundant oil pipeline run north to south though the application site on 
land between the proposed processing plant site and the access onto the A38 in 
Gloucestershire. The pipelines are located outside the proposed extraction 
boundary.

(show Proposed Pipeline Crossing drawing)

Whilst there are no residential properties within the red line of the application site, 
the site is in close proximity to a number of residential properties. The nearest 
residential property to the red line boundary within Gloucestershire is Fairfield, an 
occupied detached bungalow in the ownership of the applicant, the boundary of 
which is sited approx.11m north of the proposed haul road near the proposed access 
onto the A38. Bow Farm Farmhouse, which is also owned by the applicant, lies 
approximately 689 metres to the north-west of the proposed screening and washing 
plant and 780 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant.

A number of residential properties front onto Bow Lane in Worcestershire to the 
north-west of the proposed plant site area, these include:

 Puck Cottage: approximately 50 metres east of the application boundary (in 
Worcestershire), 1.03km from the proposed screening and washing plant, and 
1.08km from the proposed concrete batching plant.

 The Threshing Bow: approximately 60 metres east of the application boundary 
(in Worcestershire), 1km from the proposed screening and washing plant and 
1.05km from the proposed concrete batching plant.

Page 30



7

 Bow Cottage: approximately 80 metres east of the application boundary (in 
Worcestershire), 960 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant 
and 1km from the proposed concrete batching plant.

 Bowfields: approximately 55 metres east of the application boundary (in 
Worcestershire), 868 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant 
and 924 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant.

On Puckrup Lane in Gloucestershire to the north-west of the proposed plant site 
area are the following residential properties: 

 Dadsley Cottage: approximately 200 metres east of the proposal in 
Worcestershire, 473 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant 
and 522 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant.

 Bowbridge Cottage: approximately 260 metres east of the proposal in 
Worcestershire, 502 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant 
and 541 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant.

Accessed off Puckrup Lane in Gloucestershire and sited north of the proposed plant 
site area are a number of residential properties, including:

 The Cider House: approximately 536 metres from the proposed screening and 
washing plant, 470 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 689 
metres north-east of the application boundary in Worcestershire.

 Puckrup Hall Farm Cottages: approximately 513 metres from the proposed 
screening and washing plant, 441 metres from the proposed concrete 
batching plant and 693 metres north-east of the application boundary in 
Worcestershire.

 Gardners Cottage: approximately 452 metres from the proposed screening 
and washing plant, 376 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 
681 metres north-east of the application boundary in Worcestershire.

Accessed off the A38 (Gloucestershire) and sited to the east of the proposed plant 
site area, the closest residential properties, include:

 Far End: approximately 317 metres from the proposed screening and washing 
plant, 213 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 771 metres 
east of the application boundary in Worcestershire. The middle of the 
proposed site access off the A38 would be approximately 197 metres to the 
north-east of Far End.

 A cluster of residential properties are located on the east side of the A38, 
approximately 218 metres south of the proposed Site access. These 
properties are sited between 492 metres and 507 metres from the proposed 
screening and washing plant and between 400 metres and 427 metres from 
the proposed concrete batching plant.

To the south of the proposed concrete haul route adjoining the A38 and south-east 
of proposed ‘Silt Pond 1’, the nearest residential properties are:

Page 31



8

 Twyning Farmhouse: approximately 421 metres from the proposed screening 
and washing plant, 453 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 
810 metres south-east of the application boundary in Worcestershire.

 Rose Bank: approximately 561 metres from the proposed screening and 
washing plant, 556 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 992 
metres south-east of the application boundary in Worcestershire.

 Le Bourg des Templiers: approximately 423 metres from the proposed 
screening and washing plant, 481 metres from the proposed concrete 
batching plant and 777 metres south-east of the application boundary in 
Worcestershire.

 Owl’s End: approximately 470 metres from the proposed screening and 
washing plant, 551 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant and 764 
metres south-east of the application boundary in Worcestershire.

Approximately 411 metres south of the Site boundary adjoining ‘Silt Pond 1’ is the 
property known as Redpools Farm, which is approximately 606 metres from the 
proposed screening and washing plant, 717 metres from the proposed concrete 
batching plant and 750 metres south-east of the application boundary in 
Worcestershire.

With the exception of surrounding farmland, there are multiple commercial 
properties/developments within the vicinity of the application boundary, the most 
notable of which are: 

 Hilton Puckrup Hall Hotel & Golf Club in Gloucestershire: approximately 455 
metres from the proposed screening and washing plant, 364 metres from the 
proposed concrete batching plant and 740 metres from the application 
boundary in Worcestershire.

 Church End Nursery in Gloucestershire: the northern most corner of the 
greenhouses is located approximately 54m to the south of the proposed 
section of concrete haul route that would serve the Site off the A38.

 Sunset View Park in Gloucestershire: the entrance to this established holiday 
home development is approximately 661 metres south-east of the proposed 
screening and washing plant, 608 metres south-east of the proposed concrete 
batching plant and 1.1km from the application boundary in Worcestershire.

 Dawleys Caravan Park in Gloucestershire: the entrance to which is 
approximately 764 metres south of the proposed screening and washing 
plant, 880 metres south-west of the proposed concrete batching plant and 910 
metres from the application boundary in Worcestershire.

 Curtilage of land at Padsview Stables, Bow Lane, in Worcestershire: 
approximately 586 metres north-west of the proposed screening and washing 
plant, 650 metres north-west of the proposed concrete batching plant and 45 
metres east of the proposed extraction area in Worcestershire.

(point out residential properties on ‘Phases 3 and 4 Extraction’ drawing)

Page 32



9

The Site area west of the ‘Dismantled Railway’ line falls within Flood Zone 2 and 
3 of the Environment Agency fluvial flood risk map. The Site east of the 
‘Dismantled Railway’ line that includes the processing plant area is within Flood 
Zone 1.

(show line of dismantled railway on ‘Phases 3 and 4 Extraction’ drawing)

The application site comprises Grades 2 and 3 agricultural land and, therefore, 
comprises, in part, Best and Most Versatile agricultural land.

Bredon Hill which forms part of the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty National Landscape is located about 4.3 kilometres east of the application 
site and is also designated in part as a Special Area of Conservation and 
National Nature Reserve. The Malvern Hills AONB National Landscape is located 
about 7.6 kilometres broadly to the west of the proposed extraction area. Dixton 
Wood Special Area of Conservation is located approximately 9.8 kilometres 
broadly south-east of the application site.

There are a number of statutory and non-statutory wildlife designated sites within 
3 kilometres of the proposal.

The application site is hydrologically linked to the Severn Estuary Special 
Protection Area and Special Area of Conservation which are European 
designated sites.

At approximately 747 metres north-north-west of the boundary to the proposed 
plant area is Towbury Hill camp, which is the nearest Scheduled Ancient 
Monument.

(show Towbury Hillfort SAM Cross Sections drawing)

There are a number of Listed Buildings within the vicinity of the application site, 
this includes the Grade II Listed Building of Puck Cottage which is located 
approximately 50 metres east of the application site (extraction area). The Grade 
II Listed Buildings of Bow Bridge Cottage and Barn (circa 10 metres north-east of 
Bow Bridge Cottage) are located on Puckrup Lane approximately 250 metres to 
the east of the application site. Six further Grade II Listed Buildings (Barn, Barn 
and Pigsties, Stable Block, Puckrup Farmhouse, The Bothy, and Puckrup Hall) 
are situated about 680 metres east of the extraction area and 350 metres north of 
the proposed access haul road onto the A38 at their closest point. The Grade II 
Listed Building of Twyning Farm including Walled Garden and Dairy is located 
approximately 310 metres south of the application site and approximately 810 
metres south-east of the proposed extraction area.  Further Grade II Listed 
Buildings (Shuthonger Villa, Shuthonger House, boundary wall, gates and gate 
piers to Shuthonger House and Crown Cottage) are located beyond in Hamlet of 
Shuthonger. A number of Listed Buildings are located within the village of Church 
End including the Grade II* Church of St Mary Magdalene located about 1.4 
kilometres east of the proposed extraction area and 510 metres from the 

Page 33



10

application site. Further Listed Buildings are located on the western bank of the 
River Severn including the Grade II* Listed Buildings of Church of Saint Nicholas 
and Pull Court, Screen, Archway and Gates located approximately 1.1 kilometre 
north-west and 760 metres west of the application site, respectively.  

Church End Conservation Area is located approximately 320 metres east of the 
application site.

Following the retention of all veteran trees across the site, the estimated mineral 
yield of approximately 1.5 million tonnes was reduced to approximately 1.44 
million tonnes.

(show Tree Protection Plan)

Only approximately 40,000 tonnes of mineral extraction would take place in 
Gloucestershire, which would be derived from the creation of the proposed silt 
and clean water lagoons. These lagoons would be surrounded by a soil bund 
measuring approximately 1 metre in height and post and rail fence measuring 
approximately 1.2 metres high where they boarder Bridleway ATW37. A post and 
rail fence measuring approximately 1.4 metres high would run along the eastern 
boundary of the proposed haul route, for the safety of users of the bridleway.

(point out silt pond and clean water ponds on Plant Site Details drawing)

The maximum depth of extraction in Gloucestershire would be 9.5 metres to 
create the silt lagoons and 7.5 metres in Worcestershire. It is estimated that the 
Site would be exhausted of mineral and restored within 9 years of the 
commencement of the development. The applicant states that this 9-year period 
can be subdivided into the following activities: the extraction is anticipated to take 
between 6.5 to 7 years. Site set up and mobilisation is expected to take 
approximately 3 to 6 months. To complete infilling / restoration is anticipated to 
take 1 year and a margin of error of 6 to 9 months to allow for market fluctuations, 
and delays to site operations due to climatic conditions.

(show Proposed Restoration drawing)

The Site would be progressively restored using a combination of site derived 
soils, overburden and imported inert waste material. The application submission 
defines imported inert waste as “including uncontaminated or treated sub-soils, 
as well as construction, demolition and excavation waste such as, but not limited 
to concrete; bricks; tiles; and ceramics that will not undergo any physical, 
chemical or biological transformations of significance and will not give rise to 
environmental pollution or risk harm to human health as a result of coming into 
contact with other matter”.

Approximately 1.4 million tonnes of inert waste material would be required to 
return the proposed linear Phases 1 to 9 in Worcestershire back to pre-extraction 

Page 34



11

levels. The estimated annual rate of disposal would be about 165,222 tonnes per 
year.

The applicant states that compared to the current baseline, the proposed 
restoration scheme would result in the replacement of over 25 hectares of lower-
grade agricultural land with biodiversity and nature conservation gain.

The applicant states that approximately 55% to 60% of the extracted sand and 
40% to 50% of extracted gravel would be used as feedstock in the proposed 
onsite concrete batching plant.

(show ‘Plant Site Elevations’ drawing and highlight dimensions of plant)

It is estimated that the proposal would generate approximately 144 HGV 
movements per day (72 HGVs entering the site and 72 exiting the site per day), 
equalling approximately 13 two-way HGV movements per hour, or approximately 
1 HGV movement in either direction every 5 minutes during a weekday. It is 
estimated that staff vehicular movements to and from the proposed development 
would be a worst-case scenario of approximately 40 vehicle movements per day 
(20 vehicles entering the site and 20 vehicles exiting the site per day).

With regard to internal dump truck movements, the applicant estimates that there 
would be approximately 50 internal dump truck movements per day within the 
site. Material would be transported between the proposed extraction and 
processing plant areas along the connecting haul road using 2 dump trucks 
operating rotationally. The haul route would be constructed from Ministry of 
Transport Type 1 material, which is a crushed gravel no larger than 40mm, which 
would be located between the proposed processing plant site in Gloucestershire 
and Phase 9 of the extraction area located in Worcestershire. An internal access 
spanning approximately 300 metres by 7.3 metres wide and constructed from 
concrete would be constructed between the proposed processing plant site area 
and the A38 junction, lined by a grassed bund measuring approximately 1 metre 
high to mitigate noise and dust impacts resulting from HGV movements.

The applicant has confirmed that imported inert material would be stockpiled 
within the plant site area and transported for deposit within the extraction area by 
dump truck.

Visibility splays measuring approximately 4.5 metres by 160 metres in each 
direction are proposed, and to achieve this, trees on the boundary frontage with 
the A38 would be removed and the hedgerow managed to a level of no more 
than 0.6 metres high.

A wheel washing facility would be provided within the proposed processing plant 
area in Gloucestershire to service HGVs when exiting from the proposed 
processing plant site. Water would be sourced from the proposed clean water 
lagoon to feed the facility.

Page 35



12

(show ‘Plant Site Details’ drawing and point out wheel washing, sheeting 
area, weighbridge office, welfare office and store)

It is proposed that the operating hours associated with the mineral extraction, 
processing and import / export of material would be between 07:00 to 18:00 
hours Mondays to Fridays; 07:00 to 13:00 hours Saturdays; and no working on 
Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.  

That concludes my presentation.

The End

Page 36



1 
 

 

APPLICATION NO: 19/0081/TWMAJM VALIDATION 

DATE: 

19th November 2019 

DISTRICT REF: 19/1231/CM 

 

AGENT: David Jarvis Associates Ltd, 1 Tennyson Street, Swindon, 

Wiltshire. SN1 5DT 

 

APPLICANT: M C Cullimore (Gravels) Ltd, Netherhills, Fromebridge Lane, 

Whitminster, Gloucestershire, GL2 7PD. 

 

SITE: Land At Bow Farm, Bow Lane, Twyning, Tewkesbury, 

Gloucestershire. 

 

PROPOSAL: Proposed new vehicular access off A38, plus haul road, 

weighbridge/office, processing plant and equipment (including 

concrete batching plant), creation of clean water ponds, silt 

ponds, stock piles and other works and ancillary development 

associated with the extraction of sand and gravel and import of 

inert materials with restoration using site derived material to 

wetlands, nature conservation and agriculture (cross-boundary 

application with Worcestershire). 

 

PARISH OF: Twyning Parish Council 

 

   

SITE AREA: 

 

GRID REF: 

65 hectares 

 

387861E  236407N 

   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission is GRANTED for the reasons 

summarised in paragraphs 7.505 to 7.536, subject to the planning conditions 

recommended in Section 8.0 of this report. 

 

 

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

1.1 The Bow Farm application site (the Site) covers an area of approximately 

65ha. The Site straddles the administrative boundaries of both 

Gloucestershire (9.1 hectares) and Worcestershire (55.9 hectares) and is in 

the sole ownership of Moreton C Cullimore (Gravels) Ltd. Approximately 43.3 

hectares of land is proposed for mineral extraction. The most northerly part of 

the application Site adjoins the embankment of the M50 motorway. The most 

easterly part of the red lined boundary (application site) adjoins the A38 

highway, approx. 71m south of the junction to Page’s Lane. The most 

southerly and western edges of the Site adjoin the eastern bank of the River 

Severn. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF


2 
 

1.2 The Site is located about 1.3 kilometres west of junction 1 of the M50 

Motorway and about 3.6 kilometres south-west of junction 8 of the M5 

Motorway. The village of Twyning is located approximately 895 metres north-

east of the application site red line boundary (about 1.7 kilometres north-east 

of the extraction area); the village of Ripple (Worcestershire) is situated about 

550 metres north of the proposal on the northern side of the M50 Motorway; 

the village of Church End is located approximately 310 metres east of the 

application site red line boundary (about 1.2 kilometres east of the extraction 

area); and the town of Tewkesbury is located approximately 3.1 kilometres 

south-east of the site. The proximity of these settlements to the cross 

boundary application site can be viewed on Site Location drawing DR-0011 

S4-P1. 

 

Inset Map No.1: Site Location 

 
 

1.3 The area of the Site that lies within Gloucestershire is proposed as the 

location for the plant site and associated silt and clean water ponds, haul route 

and site access off the A38.  

 

1.4 The Site is currently in agricultural use and is comprised of several field 

parcels that are separated by internal boundaries that lie in the open 

countryside of south Worcestershire, within Malvern Hills District, and north 

Gloucestershire, within Tewkesbury Borough. The neighbouring land uses are 

dominated by agricultural activities such as the large greenhouses at Church 

End Nursery, the northern most corner of which is located approximately 54m 

to the south of the proposed haul route that would serve the Site. Land 

immediately north of the Site consists of the grounds to Hilton Puckrup Hall 

Hotel & Golf Club. 

Page 38

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF


3 
 

Inset Map No.2: Proposed plant site and vehicular access 

 
  
 

Common Land 

 

1.5 The land edged red (application site) on Site Location drawing No. DR-0011 

S4-P1 includes approximately 0.29 hectares of registered Common Land in 

Gloucestershire, which extends from the existing culvert bridge over Mythe 

Brook to the proposed bridge over Ripple Brook. This Registered Common 

Land is sited between the proposed plant site (in Gloucestershire) and the 

extraction area (in Worcestershire). 

 

1.6 The MPA has been advised that an application under Section 38 of the 

Commons Act 2006 for consent to construct works on common land has been 

made to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) by the applicant’s common land 

consultant. Consent is needed for any works that would prevent or impede 

access to common land or for works for the resurfacing of land. 

 
1.7 The Planning Inspectorate assess such applications based on how the 

proposal affects the interests of: 

 

• anyone who has rights on the land or is occupying it (particularly 

anyone exercising rights of common over it) 

• the neighbourhood 

• the public interest, for example nature and landscape conservation, 

protecting public rights of access to any area of land, archaeological 

remains or features of historic interest 

• any other matters the Planning Inspectorate considers to be relevant. 

 

Page 39

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0020_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0020_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0019_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0019_S4_P2.PDF


4 
 

1.8 The Planning Inspectorate will assess such application with a view to 

managing, improving or protecting the common and maintaining its traditional 

uses. 

 

Footpath & Bridleway 

 

1.9 Footpath RP-550 adjoins the Site boundary and runs along the eastern bank 

of the River Severn, adjoining footpaths Tewkesbury 49 and Tewkesbury 2. 

Footpaths BU-556 and BU-514 form part of the Severn Way, a long-distance 

footpath from the River's source to the sea, which runs along the western side 

of the River Severn in this location. Twyning Bridleway 37 (Bridleway ATW37) 

within Gloucestershire crosses the proposed haul road north to south. 

Twyning Footpath 34 (Footpath ATW34) also within Gloucestershire runs west 

to east from Puckrup Lane to the A38, to the north of the application site. 

 

Topography 

 

1.10 The topography of the Site in Gloucestershire that is shown edged red on the 

‘Site survey and proposed excavation areas’ drawing Ref. BOWFHIA1907 

No.2 Version B on page 23 of 40 of the Hydrogeological and Hydrological 

Impact Assessment and Flood Risk Assessment document dated August 2019 

slopes downwards east to west across the Site. The contours on this drawing 

show the area of the proposed access onto the A38 at the Site’s most easterly 

point as having a ground surface contour of 34m Above Ordnance Datum 

(AOD). To the far west of the Site, in Gloucestershire, the western edge of the 

proposed clean water pond would have a ground surface contour of 11m 

AOD. The topography of the area of land proposed for the processing plant 

site is at approximately 15 metres to 16 metres AOD. 

 

Pipelines and overhead electricity lines 

 

1.11 An underground Exolum Pipeline System oil pipeline and Defence 

Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) redundant oil pipeline run north to south 

though the application site on land between the proposed processing plant site 

and the access onto the A38 (within Gloucestershire). The pipelines are 

located outside the proposed extraction boundary.  

 

Residential properties 

 

1.12 Whilst there are no residential properties within the red line of the application 

site shown on Site Location drawing DR-0011 S4-P1, there are a number in 

close proximity to the Site. The nearest residential property to the red line 

boundary within Gloucestershire is Fairfield, an occupied detached bungalow 

in the ownership of the applicant, the boundary of which is sited approx.11m 

north of the proposed haul road near the proposed access onto the A38. Bow 

Farm Farmhouse (Bow Lane, Worcestershire), which is also owned by the 

applicant, lies approximately 689 metres to the north-west of the proposed 

Page 40

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0018_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_FRA_PART1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_FRA_PART1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0017_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF


5 
 

screening and washing plant and 780 metres from the proposed concrete 

batching plant. 

 

1.13 A number of residential properties front onto Bow Lane (Worcestershire) to the 

north-west of the proposed plant site area (in Gloucestershire), these include: 

 

• Puck Cottage: approximately 50 metres east of the application 

boundary (in Worcestershire), 1.03km from the proposed screening and 

washing plant, and 1.08km from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• The Threshing Bow: approximately 60 metres east of the application 

boundary (in Worcestershire), 1km from the proposed screening and 

washing plant, and 1.05km from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Bow Cottage: approximately 80 metres east of the application boundary 

(in Worcestershire), 960 metres from the proposed screening and 

washing plant, and 1km from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Bowfields: approximately 55 metres east of the application boundary (in 

Worcestershire), 868 metres from the proposed screening and washing 

plant, and 924 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

 

1.14 On Puckrup Lane (Gloucestershire) to the north-west of the proposed plant 

site area (in Gloucestershire) are the following residential properties:  

 

• Dadsley Cottage: approximately 200 metres east of the proposal (in 

Worcestershire), 473 metres from the proposed screening and washing 

plant, and 522 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Bowbridge Cottage: approximately 260 metres east of the proposal (in 

Worcestershire), 502 metres from the proposed screening and washing 

plant, and 541 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

 

1.15 Accessed off Puckrup Lane (Gloucestershire) and sited north of the proposed 

plant site area are a number of residential properties, including: 

 

• The Cider House: approximately 536 metres from the proposed 

screening and washing plant, and 470 metres from the proposed 

concrete batching plant. 

• Puckrup Hall Farm Cottages: approximately 513 metres from the 

proposed screening and washing plant, and 441 metres from the 

proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Gardeners Cottage: approximately 452 metres from the proposed 

screening and washing plant, and 376 metres from the proposed 

concrete batching plant. 

 

1.16 Accessed off the A38 (Gloucestershire) and sited to the east of the proposed 

plant site area, the closest residential properties, include: 

 

• Far End: approximately 317 metres from the proposed screening and 

washing plant and 213 metres from the proposed concrete batching 

Page 41



6 
 

plant. The middle of the proposed site access off the A38 would be 

approximately 197 metres to the north-east of Far End. 

• A cluster of residential properties are located on the east side of the 

A38, approximately 218 metres south of the proposed Site access. 

These properties are sited between 492 metres and 507 metres from 

the proposed screening and washing plant and between 400 metres 

and 427 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Sion House (Pages Lane): approximately 206 metres north-east of the 

proposed site access off the A38. 

 

1.17 To the south of the proposed concrete haul route adjoining the A38 and south-

east of proposed ‘Silt Pond 1’, the nearest residential properties are: 

 

• Twyning Farmhouse: approximately 421 metres from the proposed 

screening and washing plant and 453 metres from the proposed 

concrete batching plant. 

• Rose Bank: approximately 561 metres from the proposed screening 

and washing plant and 556 metres from the proposed concrete 

batching plant. 

• Le Bourg des Templiers: approximately 423 metres from the proposed 

screening and washing plant and 481 metres from the proposed 

concrete batching plant. 

• Owl’s End: approximately 470 metres from the proposed screening and 

washing plant and 551 metres from the proposed concrete batching 

plant. 

 

1.18 Approximately 411 metres south of the Site boundary adjoining ‘Silt Pond 1’ is 

the property known as Redpools Farm, which is approximately 606 metres 

from the proposed screening and washing plant, and 717 metres from the 

proposed concrete batching plant. 

 

Commercial properties 

 

1.19 With the exception of surrounding farmland, there are multiple commercial  

properties/developments within the vicinity of the application boundary, the 

most notable of which are:  

 

• Hilton Puckrup Hall Hotel & Golf Club (Gloucestershire): approximately 

455 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant, and 364 

metres from the proposed concrete batching plant. 

• Church End Nursery (Gloucestershire): the northern most corner of the 

greenhouses is located approximately 54m to the south of the proposed 

section of concrete haul route that would serve the Site off the A38. 

• Sunset View Park (Gloucestershire): the entrance to this established 

holiday home development is approximately 661 metres south-east of 

the proposed screening and washing plant, and 608 metres south-east 

of the proposed concrete batching plant. 

Page 42



7 
 

• Dawleys Caravan Park (Gloucestershire): the entrance to which is 

approximately 764 metres south of the proposed screening and 

washing plant, and 880 metres south-west of the proposed concrete 

batching plant. 

• Curtilage of land at Padsview Stables (Bow Lane, Worcestershire): 

approximately 586 metres north-west of the proposed screening and 

washing plant, and 650 metres north-west of the proposed concrete 

batching plant. 

 

Flooding & Watercourses 

 

1.20 The site edged red on Site Location drawing DR-0011 S4-P1 falls within Flood 

Zones 1, 2 and 3. Ripple Brook crosses the application site between the 

proposed plant site and mineral extraction area. The ‘EA fluvial flood risk map’ 

on page 35 of 40 of the Hydrogeological and Hydrological Impact Assessment 

and Flood Risk Assessment document dated August 2019 shows the Site 

area west of the ‘Dismantled Railway’ line falling within Flood Zone 2 and 3. 

The Site east of the ‘Dismantled Railway’ line is within Flood Zone 1. The land 

in Worcestershire that is comprised of Phases 1 – 9 within the eastern part of 

the site are predominately located within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of 

flooding), but are also partially within Flood Zone 2 (medium probability of 

flooding) and Flood Zone 3 (high probability of flooding). 

 

Grade of agricultural land 

 

1.21 The application site comprises Grades 2 and 3 agricultural land and, therefore, 

comprises, in part, Best and Most Versatile (BMV) agricultural land (Grades 1 

to 3a).  

 

Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

 

1.22 Bredon Hill which forms part of the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty (AONB) National Landscape is located about 4.3 kilometres east of the 

application site and is also designated in part as a Special Area of 

Conservation (SAC) and National Nature Reserve. The Malvern Hills AONB 

National Landscape is located about 7.6 kilometres broadly to the west of the 

application site (proposed extraction area). Dixton Wood SAC is located 

approximately 9.8 kilometres broadly south-east of the application site. 

 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 

 

1.23 There are a number of statutory and non-statutory wildlife designated sites 

within 3 kilometres of the proposal. This includes Windmill Tump Site of 

Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), which is situated about 1.1 kilometres south-

west of the application site. Upham Meadow & Summer Leasow SSSI is 

located approximately 1.9 kilometres north-east of the proposal and 

approximately 2.9 kilometres north-east of the proposed extraction area.  

Upton Ham SSSI is situated about 2.3 kilometres north-west of the application 

Page 43

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0011_S4_P1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_FRA_PART1.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_FRA_PART1.PDF


8 
 

site. Ley Farm Lake and Wood Local Wildlife Site (LWS) is located 

approximately 2.7 kilometres broadly north-east of the application site 

(proposed extraction area). Old River Severn, Upper Lode SSSI and Severn 

Ham, Tewkesbury SSSI are located approximately 2.8 and 3.1 kilometres 

south of the proposal, respectively.  

 

1.24 In addition, the application site is hydrologically linked to the Severn Estuary 

European Marine Site which has both Special Protection Area (SPA) and 

Special Area of Conservation (SAC) status. The Severn Estuary is also 

notified as a Ramsar Site (of international importance) and the closet part is 

also designated at a national level as the Upper Severn SSSI, located 

approximately 40 kilometres south-west of the site.  

 

Strategic Nature Areas (Ecological Networks/Green Infrastructure) 

 

1.25 To the far west of the application site lies an area of land adjoining the 

boundary with Worcestershire that falls within the Bushley Strategic Nature 

Area (SNA), which is part of an important ecological network where 

opportunities for nature recovery are sought. The main habitat within the 

Bushley SNA is comprised of wet grassland. SNAs will be part of a local 

evidence base to inform a new Nature Recovery Network which will start to be 

defined within new mandatory Local Nature Recovery Strategies of which one 

will be covering Gloucestershire. 

 

Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) 

 

1.26 Local Wildlife Sites (LWSs) have been designated locally for their ecological 

interest across parts of Gloucestershire and adjoining Worcestershire. Ripple 

Lake & The Napps LWS is located immediately adjacent to the application site 

(proposed extraction areas in Worcestershire), along the western boundary of 

proposed Phases 1 to 9 and to the north of Flexible Working Area A. Ripple 

Brook LWS is located within the application site crossing the route of the 

proposed haul road within Gloucestershire (following the County boundary). 

The River Severn LWS and Ripple Gravel Pits, a restored former sand and 

gravel quarry has local importance for wetland birds form the western 

boundary of the site. Queenhill Brickpit LWS is situated about 915 metres 

north-west of the application site. The River Avon LWS is located about 1.5 

kilometres east of the application site and about 2.4 kilometres east of the 

proposal extraction area. Bredon's Hardwick Gravel Pit LWS is located about 

1.8 kilometres south-east of the proposal and about 2.6 kilometres south-east 

of the proposal. Aggberrow, Sarn Hill & Voulter's Woods LWS at its closest 

point is located about 1.5 kilometres broadly south-west of the application site 

(proposed extraction area) at its closest point. Heath Hill Orchard LWS is 

situated approximately 2.5 kilometres broadly north-west of the proposal. 

 

Scheduled Ancient Monument (SAM) 

 

1.27 At approx. 747 metres north-north-west of the boundary to the proposed plant  

Page 44



9 
 

area is Towbury Hill camp, which is the nearest SAM. Further afield are the 

Schedule Monuments of Ripple village cross, Cross north of St Mary's Church, 

and Uckinghall cross which are located approximately 1 kilometre, 640 metres 

and 660 metres north of the application site, respectively. At approximately 3 

kilometres to the east of the application site is The Tithe Barn 170m west of 

the Church of St.Giles, Bredon. The closest SAM south of the application 

boundary is the site of St. Mary’s Abbey at approximately 3.4 kilometres. At a 

distance of approximately 3 kilometres to the west of the application boundary 

is the moated site at Moat House. 

 

1.28 Historic England describes the SAM listing for Towbury Hill camp as follows: 

 

“The monument includes a slight univallate hillfort situated on a relatively low 

lying plateau immediately overlooking the Ripple Brook. The hillfort survives 

as a roughly triangular enclosed area of approximately 4.2ha defined by a 

slight rampart and largely in-filled outer ditch which survives differentially 

throughout the circuit. The interior contains traces of ridge and furrow 

cultivation and to the south west there is a sandstone quarry. The original 

entrance is in the north east. Chance finds of pottery dating from the Iron Age 

to 1st century AD have been made within the interior.” 

 

Listed Buildings 

 

1.29 There are a number of Listed Buildings within the vicinity of the processing 

plant site, this includes the Grade II Listed Buildings of Bow Bridge Cottage 

and Barn (circa 10 metres north-east of Bow Bridge Cottage) which are 

located on Puckrup Lane approximately 448 metres to the north-east of the 

northern boundary to the processing plant site. Six further Grade II Listed 

Buildings (Barn, Barn and Pigsties, Stable Block, Puckrup Farmhouse, The 

Bothy, and Puckrup Hall) are situated approximately 350 metres north of the 

proposed access haul road onto the A38 at their closest point. The Grade II 

Listed Building of Twyning Farm including Walled Garden and Dairy is located 

approximately 310 metres south of the processing plant site. Further Grade II 

Listed Buildings (Shuthonger Villa, Shuthonger House, boundary wall, gates 

and gate piers to Shuthonger House and Crown Cottage) are located beyond 

in Hamlet of Shuthonger. A number of Listed Buildings are located within the 

village of Church End including Grade II Listed Building of Glebe Cottage 

about 352 metres east of the proposed site entrance, and the Grade II* 

Church of St Mary Magdalene located about 510 metres from the eastern 

boundary of the application site. 

 

Conservation Areas 

 

1.30 Church End Conservation Area is located approximately 290 metres east of 

the application site. At approximately 2.15km from the southern boundary of 

the application site that adjoins the bund around Silt Pond 1 is Tewkesbury 

Conservation Area. Ripple Conservation Area and Uckinghall Conservation 

Page 45

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%2FHeritage%2FConservation%20areas%2FTwyning%2C%20Church%20End%20%2D%20conservation%20area%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%2FHeritage%2FConservation%20areas&ga=1


10 
 

Area are located approximately 1.65km and 2.07km north-west of the mineral 

processing plant area, respectively.  

 

Air Quality Management Area 

 

1.31 The nearest Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) is Tewkesbury Town 

Centre AQMA, which is located approximately 2.6 kilometres south-east of the 

application site. 

 

 

2.0 THE PROPOSAL 

 

Background 

 

2.1 In 2010, mineral exploration was undertaken at the Site. Within the proposed 

extraction areas, the investigation identified sand and gravel deposits across 

the site with an estimated yield over 2 million tonnes. The exploratory 

investigation was focussed entirely upon land within Worcestershire. 

 

2.2 In March 2018 the applicant submitted an EIA Scoping Opinion Request to 

both Gloucestershire County Council and Worcestershire County Council. 

Both Councils adopted and issued a Scoping Opinion in May 2018. The 

Scoping Opinions set out what information should be included in the 

Environmental Statement (ES) for the proposed development. The submitted 

Scoping Opinion Request indicated a potential mineral yield of approximately 

2.2 million tonnes of sand and gravel. Since then, further investigation, 

technical assessment and the inclusion of mitigation measures have reduced 

the extraction boundary previously proposed, resulting in an estimated mineral 

yield of approximately 1.5 million tonnes, which was further reduced to 

approximately 1.44 million (1,441,052) tonnes as the applicant is now seeking 

to retain all veteran trees across the site. 

 

2.3 The application site straddles the administrative boundaries of Gloucestershire 

and Worcestershire. The Government’s Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

(Paragraph Reference IDs: 22-034-20141017 and 14-011-20140306) states 

that if an application site is on land that falls within the boundary of more than 

one local planning authority (straddles one or more local planning authority 

boundaries), then identical applications must be submitted to each local 

planning authority, identifying on the plans which part of the site is relevant to 

each. Consequently, parallel applications have been submitted to both 

Gloucestershire County Council and Worcestershire County Council. This 

report focuses on the impacts within Gloucestershire, although reference is 

made to the development in Worcestershire and matters which have been 

considered by Worcestershire County Council are highlighted. 

 

Proposed Development 

 

2.4 Parallel applications have been submitted to both Gloucestershire County 

Page 46

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_GLOS_CC_SCOPE.PDF


11 
 

Council and Worcestershire County Council (Worcestershire County Council 

ref.19/000048/CM). The majority of the mineral extraction is proposed within 

Worcestershire (with only approximately 40,000 tonnes of mineral extraction 

taking place in Gloucestershire derived from creation of the proposed silt and 

clean water lagoons), with the proposed processing plant site and access onto 

the A38 within Gloucestershire. 

 

2.5 The sand and gravel would be extracted over a seven-year period at a rate of 

approximately 250,000 tonnes per annum. The maximum depth of extraction 

in Gloucestershire would be 9.5 metres to create the silt lagoons and 7.5 

metres in Worcestershire. It is estimated that the Site would be exhausted of 

mineral and restored within 9 years of the commencement of the 

development. The applicant states that this 9-year period can be subdivided 

into the following activities: the extraction is anticipated to take between 6.5 to 

7 years. Site set up and mobilisation is expected to take approximately 3 to 6 

months. To complete infilling / restoration is anticipated to take 1 year and a 

margin of error of 6 to 9 months to allow for market fluctuations, and delays to 

site operations due to climatic conditions. 

 

2.6 The Site would be progressively restored using a combination of site derived 

soils, overburden and imported inert waste material. The application 

submission defines imported inert waste as “including uncontaminated or 

treated sub-soils, as well as construction, demolition and excavation waste 

such as, but not limited to concrete; bricks; tiles; and ceramics that will not 

undergo any physical, chemical or biological transformations of significance 

and will not give rise to environmental pollution or risk harm to human health 

as a result of coming into contact with other matter”. 

 

2.7 Approximately 1.4 million tonnes of inert waste material would be required to 

return large areas of the site (proposed linear Phases 1 to 9) back to pre-

extraction levels. The estimated annual rate of disposal would be about 

165,222 tonnes per year. The applicant states that it would not be necessary 

to import topsoil for restoration purposes. Restoration would take place 

progressively as mineral extraction advances through the application site, 

seeking to restore the Site to wetland, nature conservation and agriculture. 

  

2.8 The applicant states that compared to the current baseline, the proposed 

restoration scheme would result in the replacement of over 25 hectares of 

lower-grade agricultural land with biodiversity and nature conservation gain. 

This would be largely directed towards the proposed Flexible Working Areas A 

and B in Worcestershire, adjacent to the River Severn. The proposed nature 

conservation area would comprise a mosaic of wetland grassland, scrapes 

and shallows and open water. 

 

2.9 Preliminary operations at the Site would commence in Gloucestershire with 

the construction of the site access. An internal access spanning approximately 

300 metres by 7.3 metres wide and constructed from concrete would be 

constructed between the proposed processing plant site area and the A38 

Page 47

http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=19/000048/CM&backURL=%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299940%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%20%3E%20%3Ca%20href%3D%27wphappsearchres.displayResultsURL%3FResultID%3D379433%2526StartIndex%3D1%2526SortOrder%3DAPNID%2526DispResultsAs%3DWPHAPPSEARCHRES%2526BackURL%3D%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299940%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%27%3ESearch%20Results%3C%2Fa%3E
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0007_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF


12 
 

junction, lined by a grassed bund measuring approximately 1 metre high to 

mitigate noise and dust impacts resulting from HGV movements.  

 

2.10 The internal access would cross the route of an underground oil pipeline and a 

redundant pipeline, both running north to south between the proposed site 

access and proposed processing plant site in Gloucestershire. The applicant 

states that a short bailey bridge would be constructed over the location of the 

pipelines to maintain their integrity throughout the duration of works.  

 

2.11 Following construction of the proposed site access, soils and overburden 

would be stripped within the footprint of the proposed processing plant site 

area in Gloucestershire. The applicant states that the processing plant site 

location has been chosen due to its position within Flood Zone 1 (low 

probability of flooding) and scope for natural screening by the topography of 

the land and existing established vegetation. The applicant goes onto state 

that to further enhance screening of the processing plant site, stripped soils 

and overburden would be stored in separate grass-seeded bunds, located 

around the boundaries of the processing plant site, with gaps for access and 

egress. Along the northern, north-western and eastern boundaries of the plant 

site, the proposed topsoil bund would measure approximately 3 metres high. 

In addition, atop the northern and north-western bunds the applicant is 

proposing a close-boarded acoustic fence, measuring approximately 1 metre 

high. Along the south-eastern boundary of the plant site the overburden bund 

would measure approximately 5 metres high. Along the western boundary of 

the plant site the overburden bund would measure approximately 4 metres 

high. Topsoil bunds measuring approximately 1 metre high would enclose the 

silt ponds.  

 

2.12 Once established, the proposed processing plant site would comprise a 

screening and wash plant (mineral processing plant), concrete batching plant 

and silos, weighbridge, wheel washing facility and lorry sheeting area, 

weighbridge office, welfare office, store, and staff and visitor car parking.  

 

2.13 The screening and wash plant would measure approximately 33.9 metres long 

by 98.6 metres wide by a maximum of 10.4 metres high. The concrete 

batching plant would comprise a number of elements, including a mixing 

tower, cement silos, batch cabin and aggregate storage bins. The maximum 

height of the batching plant would be 9.6 metres. The weighbridge office 

would measure approximately 10.5 metres long by 3.3 metres wide by 3.5 

metres high. The welfare office would measure approximately 10.5 metres 

long by 3.3 metres wide by 2.8 metres high. The applicant has confirmed that 

all the above would all be coloured Leaf Green (RAL: 6002). 

 

2.14 The applicant states that approximately 55% to 60% of the extracted sand and 

40% to 50% of extracted gravel would be used as feedstock in the proposed 

onsite concrete batching plant located in Gloucestershire. However, it should 

be noted that the applicant states this is a broad estimate and subject to 

fluctuation depending on market demands.   

Page 48

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0017_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_3RD_REG25_APPDX_8.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF


13 
 

2.15 A series of silt settling and clean water lagoons, with a maximum depth of 9.5 

metres would be constructed adjacent to the processing plant site. These 

would be surrounded by a soil bund measuring approximately 1 metre in 

height and post and rail fence measuring approximately 1.2 metres high where 

they boarder Bridleway ATW37. Clean water from the lagoon would be used 

to supply the proposed mineral wash plant. Silt water from the wash plant 

would be piped to the silt settling lagoon. Following settlement of silt, clean 

water from the silt settling lagoon would be piped back to the clean water 

lagoon, thereby allowing a recycling of water throughout the life of the 

proposed quarry. 

 

2.16 A below-ground foul sewage treatment plant would be installed in proximity to 

the welfare facilities. Treated waste would be discharged as clean water and 

pumped into the clean water lagoon.  

 

2.17 A haul route constructed from Ministry of Transport (MOT) (the predecessor of 

the Department for Transport) Type 1 material (which is a crushed gravel no 

larger than 40mm), located between the proposed processing plant site in 

Gloucestershire and Phase 9 of the extraction area located in Worcestershire. 

The route would cross Bridleway ATW37 in Gloucestershire. The applicant 

states to avoid any need to divert or stop-up this Public Right of Way, a 

concrete pad would be installed to safeguard the bridleway and retain access 

for recreational users. A series of warning signs would also be erected. A post 

and rail fence measuring approximately 1.4 metres high would run along the 

eastern boundary of the proposed haul route, for the safety of users of the 

bridleway.  

 

2.18 An extended culvert crossing, and installation of a temporary single span 

bridges would be established over Ripple / Mythe Brooks to complete access 

between the proposed processing plant site and proposed extraction area. 

 

2.19 Following the completion of the above preliminary operations in 

Gloucestershire, preparation works would commence for the proposed 

extraction of sand and gravel in Worcestershire across the nine linear phases 

and two flexible working areas. 

 

2.20 The as-dug material transported by conveyor would be stored within stockpiles 

(stock area) in Phase 9 and then hauled to the processing plant site in 

Gloucestershire by dump trucks.  

 

2.21 Following the completion of mineral extraction operations, the proposed 

processing plant site and internal haul routes would be removed and largely 

returned to agriculture. The proposed silt settlement and clean water lagoons 

would be retained as wetland features. This would comprise a combination of 

reedbed planting and natural regeneration. The site access would be retained 

to provide long-term agricultural access into the site. 

 

Page 49

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0018_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0019_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0007_S4_P9.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0007_S4_P9.PDF


14 
 

2.22 To mitigate effects of restoring the site with less permeable material (inert 

waste material), a surface water runoff management scheme is proposed 

which consists of a single elongated infiltration basin along the western 

boundary of excavation (Phases 1 to 9 in Worcestershire). Although the 

longitudinal and cross-sectional profiles of the proposed attenuation feature 

resemble those of a ditch or a swale, it is described by the applicant as an 

infiltration basin as its primary purpose is not to convey flow but to store it and 

to enable infiltration. Excess runoff would be discharged from the infiltration 

basin (via an outflow aperture) into the infiltration basin proposed on the 

western perimeter of Phases 1 to 9 in Worcestershire.  

 

2.23 It is proposed that the operating hours associated with the mineral extraction, 

processing and import / export of material would be between 07:00 to18:00 

hours Mondays to Fridays; 07:00 to 13:00 hours Saturdays; and no working on 

Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.   

 

2.24 It is estimated that the proposal would generate approximately 144 HGV 

movements per day (72 HGVs entering the site and 72 exiting the site per 

day), equalling approximately 13 two-way HGV movements per hour, or 

approximately 1 HGV movement in either direction every 5 minutes during a 

weekday. It is estimated that staff vehicular movements to and from the 

proposed development would be a worst-case scenario of approximately 40 

vehicle movements per day (20 vehicles entering the site and 20 vehicles 

exiting the site per day). 

 

2.25 With regard to internal dump truck movements, the applicant estimates that 

there would be approximately 50 internal dump truck movements per day 

within the site. Material would be transported between the proposed extraction 

and processing plant areas along the connecting haul road using 2 dump 

trucks operating rotationally.  

 

2.26 The applicant has confirmed that imported inert material would be stockpiled 

within the plant site area and transported for deposit within the extraction area 

by dump truck. 

 

2.27 The applicant has confirmed that the layout of the processing plant area is 

designed to ensure that HGVs can circulate through the site in forward gear, 

without any need for reversing manoeuvres.  The exception to this is concrete 

mixers which have to spend a very short period of time reversing into the 

loading silo pad for overhead safety reasons and to ensure that the mixer gear 

always positions directly under the chute.  The applicant has also confirmed 

that all site plant and machinery would be fitted with white noise reversing 

alarms.  

 

2.28 The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, which covers 

the following topics: alternatives, water environment and flood risk, ecology, 

landscape and visual impact, noise and vibration, dust and air quality, 

transport and highways, archaeology and cultural heritage, soil resources and 

Page 50



15 
 

agricultural land classification, arboriculture, health and wellbeing and 

cumulative effects.  

 

 Haul Road 

 

2.29 As shown on drawing No.J32-3580-005 on page 19 of the Transport 

Assessment Addendum dated August 2020, the entrance to the proposed haul 

road would be sited off the west side of the A38 approx. 71m south of the 

junction to Page’s Lane on the east side of the A38. 

 

2.30 The distance from the back edge of the highway (A38) to the double leaf gates 

that would secure the site is approx. 24 metres. 

 

2.31 The area of haul road that would be constructed from concrete (as annotation 

on drawing DR-0002 S4-P9) would extend from the back edge of the highway 

(A38) to the weighbridge. The remaining haul route and plant area would be 

consolidated with Type 1 material (which is a crushed gravel no larger than 

40mm). 

 

Pre-application Engagement 

 

2.32 The proposals fall within scope as requiring Environment Impact Assessment 

(EIA) by nature of scale and location. The site extends beyond 25 hectares. In 

accordance with paragraph 19 of Schedule 1 of the Town and Country 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, the proposal 

automatically triggers the requirement for an Environmental Statement.  The 

advice of the Mineral Planning Authority (MPA) was sought prior to submission 

to determine the scope of the EIA to accompany the application. No other 

formal pre application advice was sought by the applicant.   

 

 Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 

 

2.33 By virtue of the surface site area exceeding 25 hectares, the proposed 

development falls within Schedule 1, Part 19 “Quarries and open-cast mining 

where the surface of the site exceeds 25 hectares, or peat extraction where 

the surface of the site exceeds 150 hectares” of the Town and County 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. For projects 

that fall under Schedule 1 of the EIA Regulations 2017 an Environmental 

Statement is mandatory. 

 

2.34 In March 2018 the applicant submitted an EIA Scoping Opinion Request to 

both Gloucestershire County Council and Worcestershire County Council. 

Both Councils adopted and issued a Scoping Opinion in May 2018. The 

Scoping Opinions set out what information should be included in the 

Environmental Statement for the proposed development. 

 

Neighbouring Development 

 

Page 51

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_11.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P9.PDF


16 
 

2.35 Since the submission of Bow Farm application 19/0081/TWMAJM 

(Gloucestershire) and application 19/000048/CM (Worcestershire), an 

application for proposed extraction of approximately 475,000 tonnes of sand 

and gravel with restoration to agriculture and nature conservation, including 

ponds, wetlands, hedgerows and lowland mixed deciduous woodland and 

meadows at Ripple East, Bow Lane, Ripple Worcestershire (known as Ripple 

East Quarry, MPA Ref: 22/000015/CM) has been submitted to Worcestershire 

County Council (WCC) by CEMEX and is pending consideration by WCC. 

Cemex propose to transport the mineral by barge along the River Severn to 

Ryall House Farm (MPA Ref: 15/000012/CM, Minute No. 940 refers) for 

processing. The proposed Ripple East Quarry is located approximately 50 

metres north of the Bow Farm Quarry proposal, on the northern side of the 

M50 Motorway in Worcestershire.  

 

2.36 It should be noted that the Bow Farm development that falls within the 

administrative boundary of Worcestershire was approved by Worcestershire 

County Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee on the 31st October 

2022. A copy of the committee report for Worcestershire application 

19/000048/CM can be found here. 

 

 

3.0 PLANNING HISTORY 

 

Planning Reference Development Decision 

18/0024/SCOPE 

(Gloucestershire) 

Scoping opinion for land 

accommodating a plant area and 

site access associated with 

proposed mineral extraction 

located at Bow Farm Ripple (cross 

boundary with Worcestershire 

County Council). 

Opinion 

issued 

22.05.2018 

 

 

4.0 POLICY CONTEXT 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

 

4.1 The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 20 

July 2021 and replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and July 

2018 and February 2019. A National Model Design Code was also published 

on 20 July 2021. The government expect the National Model Design Code to 

be used to inform the production of local design guides, codes and policies.  

 

4.2 The revised NPPF sets out the government’s planning policies for England 

and how these are expected to be applied and is a material consideration in 

determining the application and should be read as a whole (including its 

footnotes and annexes).  

 

Page 52

http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=22/000015/CM&backURL=%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299946%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%20%3E%20%3Ca%20href%3D%27wphappsearchres.displayResultsURL%3FResultID%3D379439%2526StartIndex%3D1%2526SortOrder%3DAPNID%2526DispResultsAs%3DWPHAPPSEARCHRES%2526BackURL%3D%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299946%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%27%3ESearch%20Results%3C%2Fa%3E
http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=15/000012/CM&backURL=%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299947%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%20%3E%20%3Ca%20href%3D%27wphappsearchres.displayResultsURL%3FResultID%3D379440%2526StartIndex%3D1%2526SortOrder%3DAPNID%2526DispResultsAs%3DWPHAPPSEARCHRES%2526BackURL%3D%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D299947%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%27%3ESearch%20Results%3C%2Fa%3E
http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/MediaTemp/984-32163.pdf
https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P671R4HN01600
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


17 
 

4.3 The NPPF should be read in conjunction with the government’s planning 

policy for waste (National Planning Policy for Waste). Annex 1 of the NPPF 

states that "The policies in this Framework are material considerations which 

should be taken into account in dealing with applications from the day of its 

publication".  

 

4.4 The NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to 

the achievement of sustainable development. Achieving sustainable 

development means that the planning system has three overarching 

objectives (economic, social and environmental), which are interdependent 

and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways (so that opportunities can 

be taken to secure net gains across each of the different objectives). 

 

• an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and 

competitive economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types 

is available in the right places and at the right time to support growth, 

innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying and 

coordinating the provision of infrastructure; 

 

• a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy 

communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes 

can be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations; 

and by fostering well-designed, beautiful and safe places, with 

accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future 

needs and support communities’ health, social and cultural well-being; 

and 

 

• an environmental objective – to protect and enhance our natural, built 

and historic environment; including making effective use of land, 

improving biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising 

waste and pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, 

including moving to a low carbon economy. 

 

4.5 These objectives should be delivered through the preparation and 

implementation of plans and the application of the policies in the NPPF; they 

are not criteria against which every decision can or should be judged. 

Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding 

development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local 

circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities 

of each area. 

 

4.6 In assessing and determining planning proposals, the local planning authority 

(in this case the MPA) should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable 

development, which is the main focus of the NPPF in relation to both the plan-

making and decision making process. For decision taking, this means: 

 

• approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 

development plan without delay; or  

Page 53



18 
 

• where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies 

which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, 

granting permission unless:  

 

o the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets 

of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 

development proposed; or  

 

o any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 

policies in this Framework taken as a whole.  

 

4.7 The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the 

statutory status of the Development Plan as the starting point for decision-

making. Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date 

Development Plan (including any neighbourhood plans that form part of the 

Development Plan), permission should not usually be granted. Local planning 

authorities may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date Development 

Plan, but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the 

plan should not be followed. 

  

4.8 The following policy contained in the NPPF is considered to be of specific 

relevance to the determination of this planning application: 

 

• Section 2: Achieving sustainable development  

• Section 4: Decision-making 

• Section 6: Building a strong, competitive economy 

• Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities 

• Section 9: Promoting sustainable transport  

• Section 11: Making effective use of land 

• Section 12: Achieving well-designed places 

• Section 14: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and 

coastal change 

• Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

• Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  

• Section 17: Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance 

 

4.9 The government first published the NPPF in March 2012 with the latest 

revision published in July 2021. The National Planning Practice Guidance 

(NPPG) was first published in March 2014. Together, the NPPF and NPPG 

set out what the government expects of local authorities. The NPPG adds 

further context and guidance to the NPPF and it is intended that the two 

documents should be read together. As with the NPPF, the NPPG is also a 

‘material consideration’ when taking decisions on planning applications. 

 

Page 54



19 
 

4.10 The following topics within the NPPG are considered by the WPA to be of 

most relevance in the consideration of this application: 

 

Air Quality 

4.11 Paragraph: 005 Reference ID: 32-005-20191101 of the NPPG states: 

 
“Where air quality is a relevant consideration the local planning authority may 

need to establish: 

 

• the ‘baseline’ local air quality, including what would happen to air 

quality in the absence of the development; 

• whether the proposed development could significantly change air 

quality during the construction and operational phases (and the 

consequences of this for public health and biodiversity); and 

• whether occupiers or users of the development could experience poor 

living conditions or health due to poor air quality.” 

 

“For large and complex industrial processes, the Environment Agency should 

also be able to help by identifying: 

 

• if an environmental permit is also required before the proposed 

development can start operating; 

• if there are any significant air quality issues that may arise at the 

permitting stage (so there are ‘no surprises’); and 

• whether there are any special requirements that might affect the 

likelihood of getting planning permission (such as the height of 

chimneys).” 

 

4.12 Paragraph: 006 Reference ID: 32-006-20191101 of the NPPG states: 

“Considerations that may be relevant to determining a planning application 

include whether the development would: 

 

• Lead to changes (including any potential reductions) in vehicle-related 

emissions in the immediate vicinity of the proposed development or 

further afield. This could be through the provision of electric vehicle 

charging infrastructure; altering the level of traffic congestion; 

significantly changing traffic volumes, vehicle speeds or both; or 

significantly altering the traffic composition on local roads. Other 

matters to consider include whether the proposal involves the 

development of a bus station, coach or lorry park; could add to turnover 

in a large car park; or involve construction sites that would generate 

large Heavy Goods Vehicle flows over a period of a year or more; 

• Introduce new point sources of air pollution. This could include furnaces 

which require prior notification to local authorities; biomass boilers or 

biomass-fuelled Combined Heat and Power plant; centralised boilers or 

plant burning other fuels within or close to an air quality management 

Page 55

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/air-quality--3


20 
 

area or introduce relevant combustion within a Smoke Control Area; or 

extraction systems (including chimneys) which require approval or 

permits under pollution control legislation; 

• Expose people to harmful concentrations of air pollutants, including 

dust. This could be by building new homes, schools, workplaces or 

other development in places with poor air quality; 

• Give rise to potentially unacceptable impacts (such as dust) during 

construction for nearby sensitive locations; 

• Have a potential adverse effect on biodiversity, especially where it 

would affect sites designated for their biodiversity value.” 

 

4.13 Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 32-007-20191101 of the NPPG states, 

amongst other matters: 

 

“It is not necessary for air quality assessments that support planning 

applications to duplicate aspects of air quality assessments that will be done 

as part of non-planning control regimes, such as under Environmental 

Permitting Regulations. Air quality is a consideration in Environmental Impact 

Assessment, if one is required, and also in a Habitats Regulations Appropriate 

Assessment.” 

 

Transport 

4.14 Paragraph: 013 Reference ID: 42-013-20140306 of the NPPG states: 

 

“Paragraph [113] of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out that all 

developments that generate significant amounts of transport movement 

should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment. 

 

Local planning authorities must make a judgement as to whether a 

development proposal would generate significant amounts of movement on a 

case-by-case basis (i.e. significance may be a lower threshold where road 

capacity is already stretched or a higher threshold for a development in an 

area of high public transport accessibility). 

 

In determining whether a Transport Assessment or Statement will be needed 

for a proposed development local planning authorities should take into 

account the following considerations: 

 

• the Transport Assessment and Statement policies (if any) of the Local 

Plan; 

• the scale of the proposed development and its potential for additional 

trip generation (smaller applications with limited impacts may not need 

a Transport Assessment or Statement); 

• existing intensity of transport use and the availability of public transport; 

• proximity to nearby environmental designations or sensitive areas; 

Page 56

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements


21 
 

• impact on other priorities/strategies (such as promoting walking and 

cycling); 

• the cumulative impacts of multiple developments within a particular 

area; and 

• whether there are particular types of impacts around which to focus the 

Transport Assessment or Statement (e.g. assessing traffic generated at 

peak times).” 

 

Flood Risk 

 

4.15 Paragraph: 013 Reference ID: 7-013-20220825 of the NPPG states: 

 

“Minerals and waste planning authorities need to take account of flood risk 

when allocating land for development. They should prepare their plan policies 

with regard to any available Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. The location 

of Mineral Safeguarding Areas and site allocations, in particular in relation to 

sand and gravel workings which are often located in functional floodplains, 

need to be identified and assessed in Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. 

Minerals and waste planning authorities could explore possible benefits, such 

as restoring mineral working located in flood risk areas to increase flood water 

storage, which can also enhance the natural environment. Partnership 

working on joint Strategic Flood Risk Assessments offers the best opportunity 

to identify and realise these opportunities.” 

 

Minerals 

 

4.16 Paragraph: 012 Reference ID: 27-012-20140306 of the NPPG states: 

 

“The planning and other regulatory regimes are separate but complementary. 

The planning system controls the development and use of land in the public 

interest and, as stated in paragraphs 204 and 170 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework, this includes ensuring that new development is appropriate 

for its location – taking account of the effects (including cumulative effects) of 

pollution on health, the natural environment or general amenity, and the 

potential sensitivity of the area or proposed development to adverse effects 

from pollution. 

 

In doing so the focus of the planning system should be on whether the 

development itself is an acceptable use of the land, and the impacts of those 

uses, rather than any control processes, health and safety issues or emissions 

themselves where these are subject to approval under regimes. Mineral 

planning authorities should assume that these non-planning regimes will 

operate effectively.” 

 

Noise 

 

4.17 Paragraph: 006 Reference ID: 30-006-20190722 of the NPPG states: 

 

Page 57

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/noise--2


22 
 

“The subjective nature of noise means that there is not a simple relationship 

between noise levels and the impact on those affected. This will depend on 

how various factors combine in any particular situation. 

 

These factors include: 

 

• the source and absolute level of the noise together with the time of day 

it occurs. Some types and level of noise will cause a greater adverse 

effect at night than if they occurred during the day – this is because 

people tend to be more sensitive to noise at night as they are trying to 

sleep. The adverse effect can also be greater simply because there is 

less background noise at night; 

• for a new noise making source, how the noise from it relates to the 

existing sound environment; 

• for non-continuous sources of noise, the number of noise events, and 

the frequency and pattern of occurrence of the noise; 

• the spectral content of the noise (i.e. whether or not the noise contains 

particular high or low frequency content) and the general character of 

the noise (i.e. whether or not the noise contains particular tonal 

characteristics or other particular features), and; 

• the local arrangement of buildings, surfaces and green infrastructure, 

and the extent to which it reflects or absorbs noise. 

 

More specific factors to consider when relevant include: 

 

• the cumulative impacts of more than one source of noise; 

• whether any adverse internal effects can be completely removed by 

closing windows and, in the case of new residential development, if the 

proposed mitigation relies on windows being kept closed most of the 

time (and the effect this may have on living conditions). In both cases a 

suitable alternative means of ventilation is likely to be necessary. 

Further information on ventilation can be found in the Building 

Regulations. 

• In cases where existing noise sensitive locations already experience 

high noise levels, a development that is expected to cause even a 

small increase in the overall noise level may result in a significant 

adverse effect occurring even though little to no change in behaviour 

would be likely to occur. 

• Noise Action Plans (where these exist), and, in particular the Important 

Areas identified through the process associated with the Environmental 

Noise Directive and corresponding regulations should be taken into 

account. Defra’s website has information on Noise Action Plans and 

Important Areas. Local authority environmental health departments will 

also be able to provide information about Important Areas. 

• the effect of noise on wildlife. Noise can adversely affect wildlife and 

ecosystems. Particular consideration needs to be given to the potential 

Page 58



23 
 

effects of noisy development on international, national and locally 

designated sites of importance for biodiversity; 

• where external amenity spaces are an intrinsic part of the overall 

design, the acoustic environment of those spaces should be considered 

so that they can be enjoyed as intended. 

• some commercial developments including restaurants, hot food 

takeaways, night clubs and public houses can have particular impacts, 

not least because activities are often at their peak in the evening and 

late at night. Local planning authorities will wish to bear in mind not only 

the noise that is generated within the premises but also the noise that 

may be made by customers in the vicinity. 

 

When proposed developments could include activities that would be covered 

by the licensing regime, local planning authorities will need to consider 

whether the potential for adverse noise impacts will be addressed through 

licensing controls (including licence conditions). Local planning authorities 

should not however presume that licence conditions will provide for noise 

management in all instances and should liaise with the licensing authority. 

 

4.18 Paragraph: 008 Reference ID: 30-008-20190722 of the NPPG states: 

 

“For an area to justify being protected for its tranquillity, it is likely to be 

relatively undisturbed by noise from human sources that undermine the 

intrinsic character of the area. It may, for example, provide a sense of peace 

and quiet or a positive soundscape where natural sounds such as birdsong or 

flowing water are more prominent than background noise, e.g. from transport. 

Consideration may be given to how existing areas of tranquility could be 

further enhanced through specific improvements in soundscape, landscape 

design (e.g. through the provision of green infrastructure) and/or access.” 

 

4.19 Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 30-009-20190722 of the NPPG states: 

 

“Development proposed in the vicinity of existing businesses, community 

facilities or other activities may need to put suitable mitigation measures in 

place to avoid those activities having a significant adverse effect on residents 

or users of the proposed scheme. 

 

In these circumstances the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) will need to clearly 

identify the effects of existing businesses that may cause a nuisance 

(including noise, but also dust, odours, vibration and other sources of 

pollution) and the likelihood that they could have a significant adverse effect 

on new residents/users. In doing so, the agent of change will need to take into 

account not only the current activities that may cause a nuisance, but also 

those activities that businesses or other facilities are permitted to carry out, 

even if they are not occurring at the time of the application being made. 

 

The agent of change will also need to define clearly the mitigation being 

proposed to address any potential significant adverse effects that are 

Page 59



24 
 

identified. Adopting this approach may not prevent all complaints from the new 

residents/users about noise or other effects, but can help to achieve a 

satisfactory living or working environment, and help to mitigate the risk of a 

statutory nuisance being found if the new development is used as designed 

(for example, keeping windows closed and using alternative ventilation 

systems when the noise or other effects are occurring). 

 

It can be helpful for developers to provide information to prospective 

purchasers or occupants about mitigation measures that have been put in 

place, to raise awareness and reduce the risk of post-purchase/occupancy 

complaints.” 

 

4.20 Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 30-017-20190722 of the NPPG states: 

 

“Noise can constitute a statutory nuisance and is subject to the provisions of 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and other relevant law. This includes 

noise affecting balconies and gardens. 

 

When assessing whether a statutory nuisance exists, local authorities will 

consider a number of relevant factors, including the noise level, its duration, 

how often it occurs, the time of day or night that it occurs and the ‘character of 

the locality’. The factors influencing the ‘character of the locality’ may include 

long-established sources of noise in the vicinity – for example, church bells, 

industrial premises, music venues, public houses or airfields, and whether 

they are constant or intermittent. 

 

Local authorities have a duty to take such steps as are reasonably practicable 

to investigate a statutory nuisance complaint. It is a matter for them whether 

they take further formal action to remedy a statutory nuisance.” 

 

National Planning Policy for Waste 

 

4.21 The National Planning Policy for Waste was published on 16 October 2014 

and replaces "Planning Policy Statement 10 (PPS 10): Planning for 

Sustainable Waste Management" as the national planning policy for waste in 

England. The document sets out detailed waste planning policies, and should 

be read in conjunction with the NPPF, the Waste Management Plan for 

England and National Policy Statements for Waste Water and Hazardous 

Waste, or any successor documents. All local planning authorities should 

have regard to its policies when discharging their responsibilities to the extent 

that they are appropriate to waste management. 

 

The Development Plan 

 

4.22 Under Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 

planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 

Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 

Gloucestershire Minerals Local Plan (MLP) (adopted 2020) forms part of the 

Page 60

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/43/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste/national-planning-policy-for-waste


25 
 

Development Plan and provides the strategic and local policy for all minerals-

related land use matters for development within the county for the 

consideration of mineral matters until 2032. The following are the main 

policies of the MLP that are considered the starting point and relevant to this 

planning application are listed as follows: - 

 

 Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire - adopted 2020 

 

• MW01 – Aggregate provision 

• MW06 – Ancillary minerals development 

• MA02 – Aggregate working outside of allocations 

• DM01 – Amenity 

• DM02 – Cumulative impact 

• DM03 – Transport 

• DM04 – Flood risk 

• DM05 – Water resources 

• DM06 – Biodiversity and geodiversity 

• DM07 – Soil resources 

• DM08 – Historic environment 

• DM09 – Landscape 

• MR01 – Restoration, aftercare and facilitating beneficial after-uses 

 

Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (WCS) 

 

4.23 The policies that are considered by the MPA to be of most relevance to the 

consideration of the development to which this application relates are set out 

below: 

 

• Policy WCS8 – Landfill 

 

 Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 

 

4.24 The adopted Joint Core Strategy (JCS) forms part of the Development Plan 

and provides the strategic policy for development across the three 

administrative areas of Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury until 2031.  

Tewkesbury Borough Council formally adopted the Joint Core Strategy (5th 

December 2017) along with Gloucester City Council (23rd November 2017) 

and Cheltenham Borough Council (11th December 2017). 

 

4.25 The JCS contains a number of strategic objectives, three of which (Objectives 

5, 7 and 8) promote a “…prosperous and competitive urban and rural 

economy (including employment and businesses in both existing settlements 

and rural areas). This also includes the provision of infrastructure;” (Objective 

5); “Conserving and enhancing the built and natural environment (including 

heritage assets, urban and architectural design, landscapes and biodiversity), 

steering development away from the most sensitive areas and towards those 

identified as being suitable for growth, making the most effective use of land 

Page 61

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2096569/mlp-for-glos-2018-2032-adopted-march-2020.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/gloucestershire-waste-core-strategy/
https://www.jointcorestrategy.org/adopted-joint-core-strategy


26 
 

by giving priority to brownfield sites where available and appropriate, 

maintaining and enhancing networks of habitats and green infrastructure” 

(Objective 7); and “Meeting the challenges of climate change and resource 

conservation (including managing flood risk, energy efficiency, renewable 

energy and waste minimisation)” (Objective 8). The JCS is currently 

undergoing a review. A draft plan is being prepared for consultation, which is 

expected to continue in Spring 2023 with a Preferred Options Consultation. 

 

 Relevant JCS policies are considered to be: 

 

• Policy SP1 – The Need for New Development 

• Policy SD3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 

• Policy SD4 – Design Requirements 

• Policy SD6 – Landscape 

• Policy SD8 – Historic Environment 

• Policy SD9 – Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

• Policy SD14 – Health & Environmental Quality 

• Policy INF1 – Transport Network 

• Policy INF2 – Flood Risk 

• Policy INF3 – Green Infrastructure 

• Policy INF5 – Renewable Energy and low carbon energy development. 

• Policy INF6 – Infrastructure Delivery. 

 

Joint Core Strategy Review  

 

4.26 Since the JCS was adopted back in December 2017, Gloucester City, 

Cheltenham Borough and Tewkesbury Borough Councils have been working 

towards its review. This continues to be a collaborative strategic development 

plan of the three areas and includes a close working relationship with 

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC). 

 

4.27 The JCS (now Joint Strategic Plan – JSP) authorities have published an 

'Issues and Options' consultation under Regulation 18 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. The 

consultation period ran from 12th November 2018 to the 11th January 2019.  

Since the consultation closed in January 2019, the JSP authorities are 

preparing a draft Reg. 18 plan for consultation, which is expected to 

commence in Spring 2023.This is at an early stage in the review process and 

therefore carries no significant weight. No other consultations are live. 

 

 Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (Adopted 8th June 2022) 

 

4.28 Having reviewed the policies within the newly adopted Tewkesbury Borough 

Plan 2011-2031, it is the opinion of the MPA that the policies of most 

relevance in the consideration of the development to which this application 

relates are as follows:  

 

Page 62

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FLocal%20plan%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Plan%202011%20to%202031%2FAdoption%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Plan%20Adoption%20Version%5FFinal%20minus%20Foreword%20with%20Appendices%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FLocal%20plan%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Plan%202011%20to%202031%2FAdoption&ga=1


27 
 

• Policy HER1 – Conservation Areas 

• Policy HER2 - Listed Buildings 

• Policy HER4 - Archaeological Sites and Scheduled Monuments 

• Policy NAT1 - Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural 

Features 

• Policy NAT2 - The Water Environment 

• Policy NAT3 – Green Infrastructure: Building with Nature 

• Policy ENV2 – Flood Risk and Water Management 

• Policy COM4 - Neighbourhood Development Plans 

• Policy TRAC9 – Parking Provision 

 

 Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan 2001-2011 (Adopted March 2006) 

 

4.29 The adoption of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 on the 8th June 

2022 had the effect of revoking all ‘saved’ policies from the Tewkesbury 

Borough Plan to 2011 (adopted in 2006).  

 

Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 

 

4.30 At it’s Full Council meeting on the 17th April 2018, Tewkesbury Borough 

Council brought Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-

2031 into legal force, under Section 38A(4) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. The Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the statutory 

Development Plan for the Borough of Tewkesbury. 

 

4.31 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance: 

 

• Policy GD3 – Development principles 

• Policy GD4 – Landscape and biodiversity 

• Policy GD5 – Provision for vehicles 

• Policy GD6 – Effect on nearby occupants 

• Policy GD7 – Water resources, quality and flood risk 

• Policy GD8 – Lighting 

• Policy LF1 – Infrastructure 

• Policy E1 – Principles of employment development 

• Policy TP1 – Traffic 

• Policy TP2 – Access 

• Policy ENV1 – Nature conservation areas 

 

Other County Council Policy 

 

Gloucestershire County Council Climate Change Commitment 

 

4.32 On the 15th May 2019, Gloucestershire County Council endorsed a climate 

change emergency and committed to help deliver a carbon neutral County by 

2050.  Councillors agreed at Full Council to work with partners to identify what 

measures are needed to deliver a stepped target of 80 percent reduction of 

Page 63

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan%2FTwyning%20Neighbourhood%20Plan%20%2D%20adopted%20version%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan&ga=1


28 
 

carbon emissions by 2030.  This commitment refers to the inclusion in the 

Council’s major strategies such as the Local Transport Plan to having clearly 

identified strategies to reduce carbon emissions. 

 

4.33 On 20th December 2019, Gloucestershire County Council Cabinet met to 

discuss the Climate Change Strategy for the period 2019/20 to 2024/25. 

Cabinet members resolved to approve the immediate action plan (on climate 

change) and endorse the Climate Change Strategy. 

 
4.34 On the 22nd December 2021 Cabinet met and noted the report of the 

Gloucestershire Climate Change Strategy Second Annual Report & Action 

Plan 2022/23 to 2026/27 and resolved to “note the overall emissions for the 

county council and for Gloucestershire outlined in the report and in Annex 1; 

note the progress and planned key actions outlined in the report and in Annex 

2, 3 and 4; and approve the outline five year Action Plan (Annex 4).” 

 

4.35 While not part of the Development Plan, the Council’s Climate change 

commitment could be considered a material consideration when determining 

planning applications. Members have expressed a desire to consider climate 

change matters in Planning Committee meetings.    

 

Gloucestershire’s Local Transport Plan 2020 – 2041 

 

4.36 Whilst not part of the Development Plan, Gloucestershire’s Local Transport 

Plan (LTP) 2020-2041 is a material consideration when determining planning 

applications.  The LTP sets out the long-term transport strategy up to 2041.  It 

aims to influence how and when individuals choose to travel so that individual 

travel decisions do not cumulatively result in the failure of the transport 

network, negatively impacting on the desirability of Gloucestershire as a place 

to live, work and invest. The LTP was approved at Cabinet on 27th January 

2021 and was adopted at Full Council on 17th March 2021. 

 

Other Material Policy Considerations 

 

Waste Management Plan for England (2021) 

 

4.37 The Government, through Defra, published the latest Waste Management 

Plan for England in January 2021. The Waste Management Plan for England 

is required to fulfil the requirements of the Waste (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2011 and together with its associated documents, local 

authorities’ waste local plans and, combined with the equivalent plans 

produced by the devolved administrations in Scotland, Wales and Northern 

Ireland, and Gibraltar, it ensures that waste management plans are in place 

for the whole of the UK and Gibraltar. It supersedes the previous Waste 

Management Plan for England (2013).  

 

4.38 While the Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England (2018) sets out 

a vision and a number of policies to move to a more circular economy, such 

Page 64

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s77480/20221222%20Cabinet%20Glos%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20Annual%20Report%20FINAL%20v2.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s77480/20221222%20Cabinet%20Glos%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%20Annual%20Report%20FINAL%20v2.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-2020-2041/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2105626/ltp-policy-document-final-v131.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2105626/ltp-policy-document-final-v131.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/955897/waste-management-plan-for-england-2021.pdf


29 
 

as waste prevention through policies to support reuse, repair and 

remanufacture activities, the Waste Management Plan for England focuses on 

waste arisings and their management. It is a high-level, non-site specific 

document. It provides an analysis of the current waste management situation 

in England and evaluates how the Plan will support implementation of the 

objectives and provisions of the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 

2011. It will be supplemented by a Waste Prevention Programme for England, 

which will set out the Government’s plans for preventing products and 

materials from becoming waste, including by greater reuse, repair and 

remanufacture supported by action to ensure better design to enable this to be 

done more easily. 

 

Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England (2018) 

 

4.39 This Strategy is the first significant government statement in relation to waste 

management since the 2011 Waste Review and the subsequent Waste 

Prevention Programme 2013 for England. It builds on this earlier work, but 

also sets out new approaches to long-standing issues like waste crime, and to 

challenging problems such as packaging waste and plastic pollution. The 

Strategy is guided by two overarching objectives:  

 

• To maximise the value of resource use; and  

• To minimise waste and its impact on the environment.  

 

The Strategy sets five strategic ambitions:  

 

• To work towards all plastic packaging placed on the market being 

recyclable, reusable or compostable by 2025;  

• To work towards eliminating food waste to landfill by 2030;  

• To eliminate avoidable plastic waste over the lifetime of the 25 Year 

Environment Plan;  

• To double resource productivity by 2050; and  

• To eliminate avoidable waste of all kinds by 2050. 

 

4.40 It contains 8 chapters which address: sustainable production; helping 

consumers take more considered action; recovering resources and managing 

waste; tackling waste crime; cutting down on food waste; global Britain: 

international leadership; research and innovation; and measuring progress: 

data, monitoring and evaluation. Chapter 3 – 'Resource Recovery and Waste 

Management' is the most relevant chapter to this proposal. 

 

4.41 This states that whilst recycling rates in construction have improved since 

2000, from 2013 onwards recycling rates have plateaued. The government 

wishes to drive better quantity and quality in recycling and more investment in 

domestic recycled materials markets. The government wants to promote UK-

based recycling and export less waste to be processed abroad. The 

government wish to: 

Page 65

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf


30 
 

• Improve recycling rates by ensuring a consistent set of dry recyclable 

materials is collected from all households and businesses; 

• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from landfill by ensuring that every 

householder and appropriate businesses have a weekly separate food 

waste collection, subject to consultation; 

• Improve urban recycling rates, working with business and local 

authorities;  

• Improve working arrangements and performance between local 

authorities;  

• Drive greater efficiency of Energy from Waste (EfW) plants;  

• Address information barriers to the use of secondary materials; and  

• Encourage waste producers and managers to implement the waste 

hierarchy in respect to hazardous waste. 

 

The Government Review of Waste Policy England 2011 

 

4.42 The Government Review of Waste Policy in England 2011 seeks to move 

towards a green, zero waste economy, where waste is driven up the waste 

hierarchy. The waste hierarchy gives top priority to waste prevention, followed 

by preparing for re-use, recycling, other types of recovery (including energy 

recovery) and last of all disposal.  

 

4.43 In relation to infrastructure and planning paragraph 26 states that the 

Government continues to support local authorities in the provision of 

necessary waste infrastructure. Paragraph 256 identifies that the 

Government's ambitions for waste highlight the importance of putting in place 

the right waste management infrastructure at the right time and in the right 

location. The Government's ambition is to have appropriate waste 

reprocessing and treatment infrastructure constructed and operated effectively 

at all levels of the waste hierarchy to enable the most efficient treatment of our 

waste and resources. 

 

Building with Nature Standards Framework 

 

4.44 Para.8.56 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (Adopted 8th June 

2022) states that “in 2017 a partnership between the Gloucestershire Wildlife 

Trust and the University of the West of England launched the ‘Building with 

Nature’ scheme. Building with Nature introduces a set of best practice 

standards for the development of green infrastructure, bringing together 

existing guidance to recognise the importance of high quality green 

infrastructure at all stages of the development process. The standards help to 

define what good green infrastructure is and set out the basic approach to 

providing it through new development. The Building with Nature standards can 

be used as a tool for demonstrating the provision of high quality green 

infrastructure as part of new development in accordance with Policy NAT3.” 

 

Page 66

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/EYD7A-elsItMkhHojop2pk4BcQeVgaMMLycUKkGa7dvkGQ?e=SsIJPB


31 
 

4.45 Legislation and guidance considerations that are material to the proposed 

development includes: 

 

• Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended)  

• The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (as amended) 

• Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (NERC) Act 2006 

• Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

• Protection of Badgers Act 1992  

• Hedgerow Regulations 1997 

• Biodiversity – Code of practice for planning and development BS 

42020:2013  

 

 

5.0 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

5.1 In synchronisation with the publicity undertaken by Worcestershire County 

Council for the application (19/000048/CM), application 19/0081/TWMAJM 

was publicised by site notices dated 5th December 2019 and a press notice in 

the Gloucestershire Echo newspaper also on the 5th December 2019.  The 

expiry date for comments was 17th January 2020 for both forms of 

advertisement. Following the consideration of the comments that were 

received on it, the MPA wrote to the applicant requesting additional 

information in respect of the Environmental Statement, in relation to 

archaeology and cultural heritage, dust and air quality, noise and vibration, 

ecology, arboriculture, landscape and visual impact, soils, highways and 

public rights of way, water environment and health. Further public 

consultation, in accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and Country 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, as amended 

by The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure, 

Listed Buildings and Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) 

(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 was carried out between 27 

August to 8 October 2020.  

 

5.2 Following the consideration of the comments that were received on the further 

information, the MPA wrote to the applicant requesting further information in 

respect of the Environmental Statement, in relation to ecology, landscape and 

visual impact, cultural heritage, noise, vibration and air quality, restoration 

materials, highways, geology, site security and Public Rights of Way. Further 

public consultation, in accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, as 

amended by The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning, Development 

Management Procedure, Listed Buildings etc.) (England) (Coronavirus) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2020 was carried out between 8 April to 14 May 

2021.  

 

5.3 Following the consideration of the comments that were received on the further 

information, the MPA wrote to the applicant requesting further information in 

Page 67

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1012/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/69
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/16/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/51/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1997/1160/contents/made
https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/1398/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/1398/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/1398/contents/made


32 
 

respect of the Environmental Statement, in relation to ecology (including 

derogation tests and deadwood hibernacula), landscape and visual impact, 

cultural heritage, best and most versatile agricultural land and soils, transport 

and highways, public rights of way, noise, dust, arboriculture (veteran trees) 

and other matters (including matters relating to the proposed concrete 

batching plant). Further public consultation, in accordance with Regulation 25 

of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 2017, as amended by The Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning, Development Management Procedure, Listed Buildings etc.) 

(England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 was carried out 

between 23 September to 26 October 2021.   

 

5.4 Following the consideration of the comments that were received on the further 

information, the MPA wrote to the applicant requesting further information in 

respect of the Environmental Statement, in relation to arboriculture (veteran 

trees), aftercare, best and most versatile agricultural land and soils, mineral 

yield, and other matters including dust, residual silt deposits and movement of 

inert restoration material within the site. Further public consultation, in 

accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 was carried out 

between 20 January to 24 February 2022.   

 

5.5 Following the submission of a separate planning application to Worcestershire 

County Council by CEMEX for “proposed extraction of sand and gravel with 

restoration to agriculture and nature conservation, including ponds, wetlands, 

hedgerows and lowland mixed deciduous woodland and meadows on land at 

Ripple East, Bow Lane, Ripple, Worcestershire” (MPA Ref: 22/000015/CM), 

the applicant wrote to the MPA submitting additional information in the form of 

an addendum to the Environmental Statement. The addendum provides an 

assessment of the potential for cumulative impacts resulting from the 

simultaneous operation of the proposed quarry at Bow Farm and the 

neighbouring quarry proposal by CEMEX on land at Ripple East. Further 

public consultation, in accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 was 

carried out between 9 June to 11 July 2022.  

 

5.6 The application and accompanying Environmental Statement have been 

advertised by way of multiple site notices, newspaper advertisements and 

neighbour notification letters. To date, 335 contributors have responded, of 

which 72 are letters of support, 7 of which are comments and 256 of which are 

objections. 

 

Letters of Support 

 

5.7 A summary of points made by supporters is set out below: 

 

Page 68



33 
 

• Cullimore is a reputable company who care about the community that 

puts back into the community. Also, this is a significant reserve of 

minerals that is essential to the ambitious plans in the community. 

• We need the mineral resources this site has to continue our housing 

requirements, also the added employment potential is huge and should 

be carried forward asap. 

• This application should be approved as it will release much needed 

mineral that is needed for construction projects within the County. 

• Minerals are required locally for ambitious local housing plans. 

• The restoration scheme will be beneficial to flood alleviation in the 

future and create a fantastic bio diverse environment for wildlife. 

• The proposal will create local employment opportunities with a long 

established reputable local company. 

• The minerals in this reserve would be of considerable benefit to the 

construction industry and needed to support local planned 

infrastructure and development within Gloucestershire and 

Worcestershire helping to improve the local economy. 

• The proposal offers significant employment, not only in the immediate 

area but extending further into Gloucestershire and Wiltshire. 

• Local jobs will be created during the excavation and restoration period 

and the land will be returned to stunning award winning condition. 

• The restoration scheme will assist in providing much needed additional 

flood storage capacity, which in turn will significantly enhance nature in 

the area after restoration. 

• With the recent increase of housing within Twyning and the potential 

expansion, this site will have very minimal impact as its already on a 

main road and outside of the village. 

• The project will bring much needed employment to the area. 

• Minerals that can be used for local housing plans which would of 

course keep down the costs of these projects by negating the cost of 

transportation. 

• Mineral resources are in short supply nowadays but still in very high 

demand from business, building contractors and the general public and 

therefore such a significant reserve of mineral cannot be ignored. 

• The impact to some businesses has been mentioned but not, it 

appears, by the actual businesses themselves. 

• It will have a hugely significant reduction on a carbon footprint if we 

don't have to bring these materials in from other parts of the country. 

• In Ashton Keynes, Cullimore’s are a large employer and very strong 

supporter of local schools and charities. 

• Cullimore's exemplary practices in sustainability will ensure that the 

local community will be safeguarded and protected. 

• Twyning could benefit economically from the extra staff using the local 

amenities such as shops, pubs, cafes, restaurants etc. 

• Minerals can only be worked where they are found. 

• NIMBYism (Not in My Back Yard) should not hinder planning 
applications for mineral extraction. 

Page 69



34 
 

• Any previous issues at the Frampton site have previously been 
resolved quickly and professionally by the Managing Director.  

• Note the site would be progressively restored and only last 9 years in 
total.  

 

Letters of Objection 

 

5.8 A summary of issues raised by objectors is set out below: 

 

Traffic, transport and highway safety 

  

• Traffic along this road often travel at 60 - 70 mph and unless the splay 

has a filter in lane the congestion will be significant. 

• The A38 is not built for heavy traffic of this nature and this frequency. 

• It is likely that Twyning traffic will not use Pages Lane due to the 

congestion, dirty roads, noise, traffic and danger. 

• Increase in traffic through Church End on a single track road that is 

already dangerous for pedestrians and motorists alike. 

• The statement that a HGV was liable to leave or enter the site every 5 

minutes during the 5.5 working days is completely contrary to; NPPF 

Para 108 - Sustainable Transport Modes; NPPF Para 109 - 

Unacceptable impact on Highway Safety; GCC Minerals Plan Policy 

DM03. 

• Stating the access to the river cannot be achieved on land owned by 

the applicant is clearly questionable. 

• The level of vehicle movement on the Highway Network and the levels 

of CO2 pollution created by the HGV movements are unacceptable 

when added to the addition wear on the Highway and the accompany 

noise levels. 

• The road traffic date is questionable given that peak hour levels are not 

incorporated. 

• Junction design will cause backlogs as HGV entering the site from the 

north will create logjams of traffic. 

• The proposed haul road would run alongside the golf course for the 

whole of its length, causing a serious disturbance to the enjoyment of 

the facility at Hilton Puckrup Hall Golf Club. 

• Increased risk of accidents on the junctions of the A38 into and out of, 

Twyning, Puckrup and Ripple. 

• Many of the issues could be eased by using water transport for remote 

processing of the material, in line with Worcestershire’s planning 

policies. 

• A separate fleet of lorries would be required to avoid contamination of 

the lorries hauling the washed product. 

• Confusion as to why the applicant states there is no river access as the 

supplied map clearly shows otherwise. 

• Worcestershire has a far-sighted and 'green' approach to transportation 

from such sites promoting the use of waterways. Gloucestershire 

Page 70



35 
 

should work with Worcestershire on this, because it is something to be 

encouraged, or even to be made a condition precedent in this case. 

• Disruption to A38 commuter traffic especially during winter weather 

when lorries carrying wet sand/gravel deposit water on icy roads. 

• It appears senseless to have a processing plant in this area causing 

untold damage to businesses, scenery and transport, when there is one 

which could be utilised only 1 mile along the river. A wharf is already in 

existence, and the applicant should make arrangements to use this 

facility. 

• An increase in HGV traffic will further endanger, pedestrians, cyclists 

and horse- riders.  The A38 is unsuited to additional HGV traffic and is 

historically a dangerous road. 

• Reversing alarms are a particular source of nuisance and most 

households in the area have had to put up with this loud beeping noise 

in the past from CEMEX. 

• If the application is approved, it will be an impossible task to police the 

situation to ensure that lorries will only use the access road. 

• It will be inevitable that for 9/10 years the independent lorries going to 

pick up aggregates and the ones bringing in landfill will follow their 

sat.nav. 

• The application fails to involve non-road based transport when there is 

a precedent in the local area for using river based transportation. There 

is also nothing in the application to reduce the carbon emissions by the 

transport or processing plant. 

• The nearby lanes are narrow and have no passing points or verges. 

• Weight restrictions on bridges in the area and through Tewkesbury 

town could force lorry drivers to seek alternative routes which are 

unsuitable for large vehicles and result in traffic jams. 

• Proximity of proposed site access would create a crossroads with 

Pages Lane that would create a hazard for those using the nearby bus 

stop. 

• It is likely that the vehicles will be diesel based and unlikely to be the 

most modern to satisfy the more stringent exhaust emission regulations 

being demanded by most large local authorities (London, Birmingham 

etc). 

• The Applicant is currently refusing to entertain taking the minerals out 

by river on the basis that he does not own land with a river frontage. 

This is untrue. He has also verbally (at the Consultation Meeting at 

Ripple on 28 February 2019) ruled out the suggestion of collaboration 

with Cemex to use their wharf. 

• There is an axle weight restriction of 8 tonnes on Bow Bridge over 

Ripple Brook. 

• If this proposed mineral extraction used the CEMEX facilities located 

1.5km (approximately) upstream of Bow Lane on the River Severn then 

none of this infrastructure would be necessary. And huge numbers of 

lorry movements would also be negated. 

Page 71



36 
 

• The carbon and wider environmental footprint of these items listed 

above, plus the lorry movements, is significant and goes directly 

against Gloucestershire County Council's declaration of a Climate 

Emergency (in 2019) and their/your aspiration to become net zero by 

2030. 

• Can the applicant explain how all the lorry movements will require less 

embedded and produce less operational carbon emissions than simply 

putting the extracted material on barges to the CEMEX plant at Ryall 

Quarry, as is done for the mineral extraction north of Upton upon 

Severn, which is almost the same distance away as this development. 

 

Public Rights of Way 

 

• Riding a horse over a ramp above a noisy industrial site is likely to 

endanger the lives of both horse and rider. 

• Concern that the use of a ramp over the public right of way shows a 

complete lack of understanding of how the community uses the 

countryside. 

• Concern regarding the proximity of the development to Twyning 

Bridleway 37, which should be protected for quiet recreation and 

exercise. 

• Concern that crossing the bridleway will add a slip and collision risk for 

horses and also for other users e.g. cyclists, walkers and their dogs. 

• Where equestrians are relying on a soft track to avoid a road surface it 

is unacceptable to interrupt the route with a slippery dangerous surface. 

• Any crossing over the bridleway should be of a non-slip nature and be 

inspected regularly to ensure it does not becoming too smooth or 

covered in mud, gravel and stones. 

• Appropriate warning signs on the bridleway about a traffic crossing and 

on the road to warn drivers must be installed. 

• If a rider falls could the horse bolt into the area of the washing and 

cement plant? This would be mitigated by electrically operated gates 

erected on the road by the pad and only opened when a vehicle needs 

to pass through. 

• The Health and Safety specification and briefing for all attending the 

site should include a section covering use of Twyning Bridleway 37 by 

equestrians. 

• Sudden movement or noises of machinery should be avoided where 

horses are within range. A machine making a movement is more of a 

threat than one that is still. 

• Operators must be able to shut off machinery or to stop movement and 

noise while horses pass. 

• Machinery or activity should not resume until horses are at least twenty 

metres past. 

• Loose fencing and banners that flap and rustle in wind must be 

avoided. 

Page 72



37 
 

• How is the noise both continuous and sudden going to be mitigated on 

the Bridleway. 

 

Dust, Noise and Vibration 

 

• The noise, dust and general disturbance to life in Twyning and 

surrounding area will make it more industrial than rural. 

• Why is Puckrup Hotel and its Golf Course not identified as a sensitive 

receptor? 

• The level of noise and dust pollution created by the sorting, washing, 

storing and conveying of materials is also not identified. 

• Conflicting statements on whether the site would be worked dry 

(increased dust problem) or wet (increase noise by 24-hour use of 

pumps). 

• Selective data collection has taken place and important factors have 

been avoided. 

• It is pushing credibility beyond the reasonable to assume that none of 

these issues will cause anything other than a 'negligible impact'. 

• Local businesses will be severely impacted by the proximity of the haul 

road, processing area and A38 access. 

• Noise and dust pollution affecting the mental health and health of the 

members and visitors to the golf club. 

• Concern that the quality of life of those residents living approximately 

40 metres from the proposed workings would be destroyed by noise, 

dust and reversing sirens, which can clearly be heard from the Cemex 

workings adjacent to Queenhill bridge. 

• The distances from sensitive receptors to the site quoted in the Noise 

Impact Assessment are incorrect, Puck Cottage is located 50 metres 

from the site and not 70 metres as the Noise Impact Assessment 

states. 

• Concern about the combined noise impact of quarries if CEMEX gain 

permission to extract sand and gravel at Silvermead on Bow Lane, 

which would result in Bow Lane being blighted by quarry sites. 

• The proximity to the sand and gravel extraction would mean the closest 

local residents would be continually exposed to noise form machinery, 

except for a small window on Sundays, which would be intolerable. 

• The submitted Noise Impact Assessment shows no details on how the 

results have been reached and give misleading noise values. The 

information included seems to demonstrate background noise levels 

exceed the noise levels of the plant in full operation at the same point, 

which is impossible. The data appears to make the local environment 

quieter than the pre-existing conditions and is data manipulation. 

• Concern that the water table is so high that virtually any hole made will 

fill with river water, necessitating the use of noisy pump equipment.  

• The Championship Golf Course at Puckrup Hall is in a peaceful setting 

and rural environment.  

Page 73



38 
 

• There is no reference to Hilton or the golf course in relation to any of 

the noise receptors mentioned in the plans. With the predicted high 

volume of plant and heavy vehicles that will be working in the area, 

noise will clearly have a significant negative impact on the golf course. 

• There is very little natural shielding from the site and the area is very 

open and the prevailing winds would cause dust to move very freely 

across the valley impacting on other communities in the area. 

• Failure to demonstrate that the noise from mineral extraction operations 

can be mitigated to an acceptable level so as not to interfere with local 

residents use and enjoyment of their properties and that the extraction 

would have an unacceptable, adverse impact on the environment 

arising from the impact of dust for those living, visiting and working in 

the vicinity. 

• The buffer zones are minimal and the effects have not been analysed 

in sufficient detail to allow approval of such short distances or indeed 

how any mitigation and monitoring will be provided. 

• There is no data on the dust particle distribution within the sand 

element, no mitigation means, no decisive detail of whether the site will 

be worked wet of dry, no prevailing wind data etc. 

• Reversing alarms are a particular source of nuisance and most 

households in the area have had to put up with this noise in the past 

from CEMEX operations. 

• Noise levels have not been calculated from the proposed cement batch 

plant. 

• The most intrusive sound is that of reversing beeps and the whoosh of 

materials being loaded/unloaded. 

• Many local authorities have statutory stand-off distances of 250 metres 

from mineral workings to residential properties. 

• The impact of noise on horses can be reduced by acoustic barriers; by 

vegetation or buildings. 

• Concern that dust and vibration reports omit the nearest receptors to 

the proposed processing plant. 

 

Impact Upon Local Businesses 

 

• Proposal would decrease the use of the golf club and therefore Hilton 

could close it down as being unprofitable. 

• Customer avoidance would result in significant financial loss to local 

businesses. 

• Puckrup Hall draws visitors from all over the UK, Europe and further 

afield. It has 850 leisure Club members, 400 Golf Club Members and at 

least 40,000 sleepers each year. Concerns raised that this application 

would spoil their business. 

• The adjacent fruit growing farm will probably be rendered unworkable 

from dust on the greenhouses. 

• The impact of the proposal could certainly effect guest bookings at the 

hotel, which in turn could effect the viability of the hotel and jobs. 

Page 74



39 
 

• Small and medium size enterprises in the leisure, tourism and other 

industries are growing in the area - this initiative would have a material, 

detrimental impact. 

• Other businesses in close proximity to the proposed processing plant 

area include fishing lakes and holiday lets. 

• There is concern that the works will have a huge negative impact on 

noise levels, course drainage, air quality, access, the nature seen on 

the course and the overall golfing experience. This in turn will certainly 

result in reduced member numbers, reduced visitors to the course and 

reduced benefits to the local economy. If member numbers and visitor 

numbers drop then the Club will not be viable. 

• In addition to golf, these visitors visit local towns and villages and 

contribute significantly to the local economy as tourists. Also there are 

a number of local businesses and suppliers who rely on Puckrup as a 

customer. 

• 'Hotel Golf' survives in part on the quality of reviews left by people who 

visit and enjoy the experience. Puckrup currently enjoys excellent 

reviews. We fear that the knock on effect of people commenting on the 

course as being 'noisy', 'dusty', 'poorly drained' etc, will be a greatly 

reduced numbers of visitors. This will be very bad for the Club, the 

Hotel business, the local economy, local businesses and may result in 

job losses. 

• There is no doubt that a raspberry farm is not conducive to the dust 

being emitted only a few meters from the growing area.    

• Puckrup Hall Hotel is a very popular wedding venue and also has a 

heavily used golf course.  In the same vicinity there are Hillview Fishing 

Lakes, Twyning Riding School and Church End Nurseries. All of these 

will be seriously affected by the high volume of HGV traffic, noise, dust 

and commercial vehicle exhaust pollution. 

• The statement that a HGV is liable to leave or enter the site every 5 

minutes during the 5.5 working days suggests that the level of dust 

pollution on the raspberry growing business at Church End Nursery will 

be significant. 

• The raspberry growing business at Church End Nursery is 

environmentally sensitive to adverse effects such as the reduction of 

light and the limiting of adequate ventilation by virtue of dust pollution 

on the glass and ventilating gear. Soft fruit is particularly vulnerable to 

climatic and environmental effects and needs careful and skilled 

management. 

• Many local businesses depend upon a tranquil location, clean fresh air, 

access to beautiful countryside via public rights of way. Consider the 

impact this undertaking would have on local hotels and pubs, bed and 

breakfast establishments, the fishing lakes and angling clubs, the 

caravan park, the nurseries, the riding school, the golf club. Many jobs 

and livelihoods are at risk. 

• The glasshouses [at Church End Nursery] will be covered in dust which 

reduces the light available to the growing plants and dust will also 

Page 75



40 
 

contaminate the crop rendering it unsaleable as it cannot be washed 

prior to sale. 

• Church End Nurseries would undoubtedly have to close as dust would 

cover their soft fruit plants & pollute their open rainwater collection 

system. 

• Concern that the proximity of the development to the Puckrup hotel 

risks significantly damaging local tourism. 

• Who would want to visit Puckrup Hall Spa Hotel & Golf Club with open 

cast mining going on next door creating dust & noise pollution. 

 

Employment 

 

• Puckrup Hall employs approximately 110 staff, many of whom live in 

the area and contribute to the local economy. 

• The jobs that will be put at risk by this proposal far exceed the number 

of jobs retained or created by it. 

• Concern that the proposal does nothing for employment in the local 

community. 

• It’s hard to conceive how putting some 300 local jobs at risk to employ 

around 17 people strikes any sort of acceptable balance. 

• The number of people to be employed in this enterprise (up to 20 

quoted in the Supporting Statement to the application) may be existing 

employees of the Applicant's company and will be negligible compared 

with those employed by some of the sensitive receptors in the area, 

which are completely ignored in the application i.e. Puckrup Hall Hotel, 

Church End Nurseries and Hillview Fishing Lakes and Cabins. 

 

Adverse Health Impacts 

 

• Dust pollution increasing risk to health of vulnerable people with 

respiratory ailments, COPD (Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease), 

asthma, cystic fibrosis etc. 

• The health impacts are understated at sensitive dwellings. 

• Dust covers gardens, cars, arable land, livestock and people. It enters 

homes and lungs. 

• Silicosis (long term lung disease) is a slow and painful killer.  

• A report produced by Band CE Holdings titled ‘Silica -The Next 
Asbestos’, produced in March 2020 concludes silica has the same 
health burden as asbestos. 

• Just because the HSE, Environment Agency and other government 
agencies have failed to research and acknowledge the lethal effects of 
silica should not give the County Council the green light to ignore 
proven facts.  

 

Visual Impact and Landscape Character 

 

• Proposed concrete batching plant, screening, washing plant and  

 

Page 76



41 
 

conveyor system would be visible and completely out of character in 

this rural setting. 

• Uncertainty over the visible height of the plant machinery and whether 

the bunding will mask the proposed processing area. 

• No height specifications of the concrete batching plant have been 
submitted. 

• A haul road crossing an ancient bridleway and Common Land in itself 
would be an eyesore without taking into account the impact of the HGV 
movements. 

• A concrete plant is an industrial intrusion in a rural setting and is 

contrary to advice set out in the National Planning Framework. 

• The scale of the operation, particularly in a low lying area will have a 

negative visual impact on the wider landscape for all and especially 

those in elevated areas. 

 

Light Pollution 

 

• Lack of information with regard lighting of the plant during working 

hours and the impact that will have on light pollution to the surrounding 

area. 

 

Historic Environment 

 

• Stand-off distances to nearby Grade 2 listed buildings are too short, 

causing irreversible damage to these historic buildings. 

• Concern that the applicant has not provided any data to support the 

submission that Puck Cottage will not be damaged by sand and gravel 

excavations in such close proximity. 

• The proposed sand and gravel workings will produce high amplitude 

ground frequencies in the 4 to 20 Hz range and this will propagate into 

the foundations of Puck Cottage. 

• Insurance claims and premiums will increase, as nearby fragile historic 

buildings suffer in the wake of continuous heavy traffic. 

• The desk-based Archaeological Report submitted by the Applicant 

himself admits that "....the site is likely to contain important prehistoric 

and Roman archaeological remains and that gravel extraction will have 

a negative impact of a number of designated and undesignated 

heritage assets". 

 

Water Environment, Drainage and Flooding 

 

• There are some pages missing from the Hydrogeological & 

Hydrological Assessment and FRA (Flood Risk Assessment) and the 

documentation format appears different to that in the Worcestershire 

application. 

• There is no explanation as to the likely long-term effects of de-watering 

on licenced extractions and the area impact on the aquifer. 

Page 77



42 
 

• Given the intention to work these sites all year round, the risk of 

flooding, given the prominence of climate change induced intense 

rainfall conditions, there is every likelihood that parts of the site will be 

flooded on a regular basis. This creates real contamination issues 

(such as hydrocarbon identified in the application) as run off will enter 

the River Severn. 

• The lower end of Bow Lane already floods every time the Severn rises 

and the bunds will create a damming effect which will prevent the water 

for draining away. 

• Impervious backfill will change the underlying aquifer structure with the 

effect that water will not drain and properties in the east may well flood. 

• Concern raised over impact the proposal would have upon a well sited 

within the curtilage of residential property in Shuthonger. 

• Concern that the proposal will significantly increase flood risk to Bow 

Lane and the adjacent properties. 

• Concern about the effects the works will have on the drainage run 

around the golf course. The areas adjacent to the planned works 

include a number of lakes that have a connected drainage run that 

flows underground towards the River Severn. This drainage is essential 

to the viability of the golf course. Backfilling the holes made when 

extracting the sand and gravel, will be with materials that will not have 

the drainage properties of sand and gravel. This will decrease the 

ability of the land to drain effectively and would have a serious negative 

impact on the course. 

• There is no detail design and assessment of the extended culvert and 

how this will prevent the backup of flood waters into Bow Lane. 

• The application doesn’t show how resilient the site workings are to 

climate change - or indeed to how recent flood events would affect the 

proposal. 

• Water tables and well water will be affected. 

• The Environment Agency has predicted that there will be severe water 

shortages for the UK in 25 years, so these huge sand and gravel pits 

should be used as reservoirs to help alleviate future need for water 

instead of being filled with materials that could change the whole area's 

soil conditions and drainage and have a potentially negative impact on 

water quality. 

• It is unclear whether the site will be worked dry or wet. 

• Concern raised about the increased risk of flooding in the area due to 

the removal of the natural sand & gravel land filter. 

• The backfilling with impervious material will adversely impact on the 

golf courses drainage. 

 

Contamination and Pollution 

 

• Concern over who would oversee what inert materials goes into the 

holes and the effect on drinking water supplies and animals/fish stocks. 

Page 78



43 
 

• Vital production processes are not identified, such as the noise, dust 

and contaminant associated with the concrete batching process. 

• The automatic irrigation process at Church End Nursery is supplied by 

a sustainable surface water collection system where rainfall is 

harvested from the glasshouse roofs. It follows that if the dust particles 

falling on the glasshouses is collected with the rainfall, the end result 

will be a polluted water supply. This would interact with the growing 

cycle of the plants and their fruit with a potentially deleterious effect. 

• Selective data collection has taken place and important factors have 

been avoided. 

• Doubt has been expressed about the availability of suitable material for 

the restoration of the site. 

 

Biodiversity 

 

• Concern that a full assessment has not been completed on the impact 

the application will have upon on-site wildlife, such as ground nesting 

birds. 

• Serious consideration should be given to the ecological impact given 

the large scale destruction of natural habitat within the defined area and 

the neighbouring Ripple Nature Reserve.   

• Concern that the proposed restoration of the site would not result in the 

return of the wildlife species that currently inhabit the area. 

• Polluted hedgerows and damage to the ecosystem will be detrimental 

to wildlife and wildflowers. 

• Conversion of post extracted site into a wetland is a much better option 

for restoration than infilling with inert material. 

• The track along the old railway line is a breeding ground for adders. 

These are protected by law. 

• The County Council have a duty to protect the environment as 

referenced by Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities (NERC) Act 2006.  

• Wildlife including deer, badgers, adders, hedgehogs, buzzards, tawny 

owls, voles, bats, dormice, great crested newts, adders and toads 

would be affected and disappear. 

• Large scale destruction of natural habitat. 

• Loss of protected species. 

• The golf course adjacent to the site contains many wildflowers including 
orchids. 

 

Agricultural Land 

 

• Concern that the site will never be restored to its pre-extraction quality, 

and should be left as open water with landscaped perimeters, as per  

the Cemex site adjacent to the River Severn. 

• No backfill with inert material should be permitted. Post extraction the 

site should be left to fill with water and attract wildlife. 

Page 79



44 
 

• As the topography of the land after restoration will be lower than the 

current AOD what remains will be far more subject to flooding and 

therefore of extremely low probability of being able to be used for 

arable purposes. 

• There will be both a temporary and a permanent loss of prime 

farmland. 

• Quarrying here will remove 300+ acres of land used to grow food 

crops.   

• The area of extraction would remove valuable arable land at a time of 

food shortages. 

• Concern that over time the land around the cement processing plant 

would become so contaminated that nothing grows and that land would 

be permanently taken out of food production. 

 

Common Land 

 

• States that the application site is located on Common Land and that 

consent should be sought from the Secretary of State for Environment 

in England or the Welsh Government (section 38 of the Commons Act 

2006) in addition to any planning. 

 

Adverse impact upon tourism and leisure activities 

 

• It will ruin the enjoyment not only of the 450 plus members [Puckrup 

Hall Golf Club] but also the vast numbers of visitors. 

• Concern that the hundreds of extra lorry journeys along the A38 will 

become a no go area for leisure cyclists. 

• Concern that the planned nine years gravel extraction will have a 

detrimental effect on local tourism. 

• Riding a horse over a ramp above an industrial site of this magnitude is 

likely to endanger the lives of both horse and rider. 

 

Restoration 

 

• Artist impressions are presented and yet the Uckinghall lake does not 

have tree planted islands for habitat and sound dampening, nor does it 

have trees around a lakeside walk.... it has a few bulrushes. 

 

Use of inert material 

 

• There is a Climate Emergency which is increasing in severity and the 

idea of burying valuable resources which should be used elsewhere is 

beyond logical comprehension. 

 

Cumulative Impacts 

 

• Consideration should be given to the number of extraction processes 

Page 80



45 
 

that take place in a relatively small area at any one time. 

• There are already other extractions going on and until these are 

finished, others should wait. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

• Adverse impact upon residential amenity.  

• Located too close to local residents.  

• Increased flood risk would increase the use of the 24-hour pump which 

would result in an increase in noise levels and adversely impact on 

residential amenity. 

• Doors and windows would need to be closed during the summer months. 

• Considers the application should be refused because every 
homeowner has the right to enjoy their property without threat of 
disturbance from dust and noise.  

• Operational hours should be limited to weekdays only. 
 

Need 

 

• There is already a processing plant only a couple of miles upstream on 

the river, and there is therefore little justification for a second in such 

close proximity. 

• Gloucestershire has absolutely nothing to gain from this proposal which 

will create traffic havoc, ruin a peaceful scene, damage local 

businesses and deter visitors whilst delivering nothing to 

Gloucestershire's minerals obligations. 

 

Viability 

 

• Given the location so close to the Severn, it is highly questionable if this 

site, over a 10-year period, is indeed viable. 

 

Prematurity 

 

• This application is premature and should not be considered viable until 

such time as Worcester County Council publish their Minerals Site 

Allocations Development Plan. 

 

Permanency  

 

• The processing plant will doubtless process gravel from other locations 

and in so doing become a permanent fixture in the area. 

• If the processing plant becomes established in the location detailed in 

this application, it is obvious that it will also form part of their plans for 

future development of these other sites for many more years. 

• Concern raised that should this application be approved, further 

applications for the development of the Pages Lane site will follow. In 

Page 81



46 
 

which case, the processing plants will no doubt become a feature for 

many years to come in this area. 

 

Planning Policy 

 

• Proposal is totally contrary to those planning policies that seek to 

encourage tourism. 

• The site is not of a preferred status. 

• Gloucestershire does not need extra sand and gravel resources to fulfil 

its quotas as it has adequate preferred sites elsewhere and the 

relatively small quantity of minerals to be won is in no way worth the 

destruction of a natural site with sensitive wildlife and of historical 

importance. 

• The mineral extraction would be crucial to meeting the demands of the 

new housing. 

 

Alternatives 

 

• Suggest alternative land adjacent to the M50 Motorway for the 
processing plant and cement batching plant and access.  

 

Other Matters 

 

• There is reference to storage facilities for fuel, hazardous material, 

machinery and septic tanks. None of this is identified in regards 

location in the application. 

• Information on the equipment to be used in the processing area is very 

limited. 

• Whilst appreciating the need for sand and gravel it is not acceptable to 

sacrifice businesses and communities to meet this need. 

• Question why would the County Council consider it justifiable to have 2 

mineral processing plants (the proposed processing plant at Bow Farm 

and the existing Ryall House Farm Processing plant) in such close 

proximity to each other.  

• Question the motives of the applicant.   

• Devaluation of property prices. 

• The applicant benefits financially. 

• Adverse impact on human rights (Article 8). 

• To approve them would be an affront to our human rights and the right 

of every citizen to live a life free from toxic airborne particles. 

• No information on how the oil pipeline could be protected from 

potentially devastating environmental catastrophes. 

• Questions why have local residents already been advised regarding the 

location of overhead powerlines which would need to be relocated.  

• Questions why the land agents for the pipeline that crosses the site 

stated that mineral extraction at this site was always planned for. 

Page 82



47 
 

• Questions why a valid objection from a pipeline company has been 

withdrawn.  

• Suggest that local residents consider the planning decision has already 
been made and the process is simply a waste of everyone’s time.  
 

Zinc Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Club (objection) 

 

• Zinc Puckrup Hall Hotels Limited own the freehold interest in the land 

which is currently let to Puckrup Hall Hotel.  

• Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Club is a source of employment in the area 

and an increase in noise, dust and vibration would affect its viability. 

• Noise and dust emanating from the site would affect the quality of 

enjoyment of guests and not conducive to a relaxing break. 

• Flood risk has not been sufficiently addressed within the planning 

application. 

• The submitted Environmental Statement or the Noise and Vibration 

Assessment does not consider the proximity of the hotel and golf course 

to the site. 

• Inadequate information has been submitted and the application should 

be refused. 

• Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Club is not recognised as a receptor within 

the Dust and Air Quality Assessment Report. 

• The submitted Landscape and Visual Assessment appears to be a draft 

version. 

• Both receptor points identified within the assessment appear to be at a 

low elevation within the topography of the site.  

• Two viewpoints based on the position of footpaths is insufficient in the 

context of 140 acres. 

• The applicant has not demonstrated that adverse impacts can be 

avoided with regard to noise, vibration, air quality, dust, light pollution 

and the visual effect on the open landscape.  

• No effort in reducing HGV movements and considers that the impact on 

transport infrastructure have not been adequately addressed. 

• The concrete batching towers would be seen from the Hotel and golf 

course and would be out of context within a sensitive rural landscape. 

• No prospective Bride or Groom would want a concrete batching plant in 

the wedding photos. 

• The proposal is an industrial intrusion into the open countryside and 

would have an unacceptable impact on the setting of the Malvern Hills 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

• Issues relating to biodiversity, ecology, arboriculture, and listed buildings 

are contrary to the Council’s and Government’s policies.  

• Considers that should the proposal be approved, it would cause untold 

damage to the viability of the Hotel and golf course. 

• Noise impacts from temporary activities such as soil stripping, boundary 

bund creation suggest noise levels at Puckrup Lane (Puckrup Hall) 

would be between 35-43 dB for such temporary operations, while with 

Page 83



48 
 

screening bunds in place, extraction in Phases 1 & 2 would be noisier at 

this location (39-49 dB) and again so with Phases 3-9 at 38 – 42 dB. It 

seems perverse that the noisiest operations associated with mineral 

extraction, which are those involving the stripping of top and subsoils and 

creating boundary screens are likely to generate lower noise levels at 

Puckrup Hall than extraction operations taking place behind said 

boundary screens and at a depth below surrounding ground levels.  

 

Ripple Extraction Action Community Team (REACT) Residents’ Group 

(objection) 

 

• The site is not included in the emerging Mineral Site Allocation DPD and, 

therefore, does not comply with policy. 

• The application is premature and should not be considered until the 

government has approved the emerging Worcestershire Minerals Local 

Plan.  

• The application site is not included in the Worcestershire Minerals Local 

Plan.  

• Gloucestershire County Council 2018 Scoping Opinion did not reveal the 

site as an option, and they question how the current planning application 

has got to the stage of a planning application. 

• Current operational sites should be exhausted first. 

• Sites that have been approved should be worked first. 

• Shortfall of inert waste material in the UK. 

• Concerned about where the inert material would be sourced from, and 

notes that section 5.23 ‘Restoration using Import Fill’ of the County of 

Hereford and Worcester Minerals Local Plan [now replaced by the 

Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan] states that it is a condition that the 

applicant needs to prove where the inert landfill would be sourced from 

before works can commence. This is currently unknown.  

• The Environment Agency is working with DEFRA and has developed 

technology that utilises inert landfill materials and converts them into 

aggregate that can be used in the building industry. This will inevitably 

mean that inert materials will be even more hard to come by and of 

course this technology sits well within the Government’s environmental 

policies. The Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) report 

states that 20% of aggregate is already produced this way. 

• Understand that the Environment Agency would only undertake random 

checking of loads of inert waste, therefore, how do residents know what 

material would be infilled.  

• Cannot see on the plans where inert material would be stored. 

• Concerned about the dust that would be generated from inert material as 

it is transported around the site.  

• Restored inert landfill cannot effectively be used as arable land due to 

the reduced yield potential. Losing arable land to aggregates is common. 

• Considers that the applicant does not consider the impact of the proposal 

in terms of noise dust, pollution and traffic on residents. 

Page 84



49 
 

• The proposal would substantially increase the risk of flooding to 

properties located on Bow Lane. 

• Comments that since the flood defences were erected in Uckinghall it 

has been observed that once the water stops rising up the flood gate, 

water can still be seen torrenting over the agricultural flood bank at 

Saxon’s Lode. This water is currently being absorbed by the sand and 

gravel, but this would be replaced by less permeable inert material, 

exacerbating flooding in the area.  

• Concerned about the long-term maintenance of the proposed drainage 

features in the application site.  

• No weight restrictions on the two disused railway bridges. 

• The proposal would contravene Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 

1991 regarding prohibition on obstructions etc. in watercourses.  

• Conflicting information has been provided by the applicant regarding the 

number and frequency of HGV movements and proposed tonnage that 

would be extracted from the site and transported per year. 

• The frequency of HGV movements would amount to HGVs entering or 

leaving the site every five minutes for 5.5 working days and does not 

accord with the NPPF or Policy DM03: ‘Transport’ of the adopted 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire. 

• The Air Quality Assessment states that the occurrence of fine dust 

particles of less than 10 microns would be negligible and that the 

mitigation risk has been scoped out. Clarification is sought on the 

provenance of the background concentrations provided by the applicant. 

• When dust particles become airborne, they are a serious risk to health 

and are proven to cause cancer, silicosis, bronchitis, COPD and other 

respiratory diseases. 

• Silica is one of the most hazardous airborne contaminants in the world, 

which are particle size PM2.5 easily becomes airborne.  

• The US has limited dust exposure to 25 micrograms per 8-hour day, the 

British Government to 100 micrograms per 8-hour day. Recently 

publication regarding Wood Burning Stoves confirms that 27% of PM2.5 

is caused by construction related activity.  

• In 2009 a case went to court involving The Corby Group and the 

reclamation of the redundant iron and steel works land in Northampton. 

Large earthworks and spoil transport was involved. A cluster of children 

living within a 3-kilometre radius were born with anatomical defects. It 

was proved that the dust, in this case PM10, had been carried 3 

kilometres on the wind rather than the 1 kilometre suggested in the 1995 

Government Environmental Report. For PM2.5 particles the distance 

would have been 10s of kilometres. The judge found in favour of the 

claimants which was upheld on appeal. 

• No further information has been submitted about how the inert material 

would be transported to and around the site. No assessment of dust 

created by HGVs moving around the site has been submitted. 

Page 85



50 
 

• Concern that HGVs, which are heavy and wide, would be routed through 

the villages of Ripple and Uckinghall, which have narrow lanes with 

multiple users. 

• Further clarity is sought about flood management and the effect of 

pollution on the River Severn if silt is pumped directly into it, which would 

exacerbate flooding further upstream. 

• Concern that excavated inert material would be downgraded to make up 

the national shortfall. 

• Consider that the submitted documents are misleading to the public, who 

are not technical experts. 

• Concerned that as the phases progress the open pits in Phases 1 and 3 

are not restored and infilled. As the phases progress the screening bund 

is dismantled which leaves the pits visually open to the properties on 

Bow Lane. Consider that this is not progressive restoration, particularly 

when pits 1 and 3 have not been restored by year 9. These unfilled pits 

are a great concern, as they would be under treat from fly tipping.  

• If the screening bunds are dismantled then there would be no visual, 

noise and noise screen barrier.  

• There is a gap in the bund for the retained field access, therefore, the 

south-westerly winds would blow dust into the nearby villages eradicating 

the protection the bund would offer. Also question what vehicles would 

use this access.  

• Considers the proposal needs a carbon offset plan.  

• Concerned that Exolum are objecting to the proposal and make it very 

clear that the Energy Act 2013 would be contravened by the 

development, therefore, the Planning Committee could not legally 

approve the planning application.  

• If the pipeline was to be damaged there is a very real possibility to cause 

a catastrophic environmental disaster. Information taken from the 

National Fire Chiefs Council website states that ‘up to 2 million litres of 

oil could be released in a 30-minute period’. Even a small leak from the 

pipeline, which could go unnoticed could impact the aquifer and river.  

• Current background levels of harmful 10-micron particles are already at 

over 30% of the permissible levels so again it is inconceivable that the 

levels would not be exceeded when mining starts. 

• In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) 

relating to cumulative impacts, REACT states that the language used by 

the consultants in the addendum is not reassuring, as conclusions are 

caveated, e.g., in relation dust, the addendum states “the proposed 

workings can be operated in a manner ‘unlikely’ to cause significant 

adverse air quality or dust impacts on the vicinity”. 

• Given the addendum on cumulative impacts was undertaken by the 

applicant it seems very inappropriate, as they are not impartial, therefore, 

it should be disregarded by the MPA.   

• The requirement for minerals has not been examined recently by 

councils making decisions on mineral sites. Matt Western MP stated in 

his parliament recorded Hansard 29 October 2019 that the amount of 

Page 86



51 
 

housing required is now at a vastly different level to that which was 

estimated 15 years ago. It says: the construction of housing has already 

been identified as overstated. The local 5-year housing supply figure 

identified 17,000 homes for construction in Warwick District, yet the 

Office of National Statistics forecasts a need for half that figure. There 

are many other parts of the country where that overstatement is 

reflected. That overstatement is a critical part of my argument.  

• Comment that a recent article in the Guardian by George Monbiot 

undertook some in depth investigative journalism and revealed that 

during a rare prosecution in 2019, a court was told that a large illegal 

waste dump in a quarry close to Chew Valley Lake in Somerset might 

end up costing us as much as £9 billion in remediation, if the 

contaminants leach into the water supplying Bristol and other 

settlements. REACT question if this is a risk that the County Council is 

prepared to take.  

• REACT consider that it is pure common sense that two open quarry 

sites, situated side by side would increase dust and air quality pollution, 

noise pollution, and associated health risks.  

 

Residents Against Gravel Extraction (RAGE) Residents’ Group (objection) 

 

• Several mature trees are located in the midst of the site and have not 

been included within the Arboricultural Report. 

• Insufficient information has been submitted about prevailing wind 

directions and sensitive receptors.  

• Dust particles below 5 microns in size, equating to 75,000 tonnes, have 

the potential to migrate 1 kilometre from source, as stated in section 2.1 

of the Amended Dust Management Plan. 

• The submitted data is misleading and does not consider any sand being 

exposed or excavated. 

• Current agricultural dust emissions have been extrapolated to signify that 

there would be no significant dust issues once quarrying begins. 

• Fine dust can travel significant distances. 

• The Amended Dust Management Plan states that the DEFRA 

information relates only to the soil airborne contamination when the site 

is being stripped. The residents’ group dispute this without any reference 

data provided. 

• The Amended Dust Management Plan refers to Hartford Quarry, which 

brings into question the reliability of the applicant’s data and information. 

• The Amended Dust Management Plan notes various angular directions 

in relation to the primary dust source, but no information is provided on 

prevailing wind directions. For example, the sensitive receptor at Church 

End Nurseries there would be an adverse wind / dust conditions in the 

range of 34% to 35%. 

• Adverse dust impact upon Church End Nurseries, which would 

contaminate the soft fruit crop or block out sunlight by creating an 

obscuring dust layer on the glazed roof.   

Page 87



52 
 

• The applicant has chosen not to submit any data on the distribution 

between sand and gravel and no particle size distribution or quantity of 

the fine sand / dust element has been submitted. There could be about 

75,000 tonnes of material below 5 microns in size. 

• Puck Cottage would be adversely affected by continual dust emissions 

exacerbated by the profile of the bund forcing dust laden airflow up and 

over in a westerly direction. 

• Puck Cottage should have a larger standoff distance to limit adverse 

impacts further. 

• The applicant has failed to present any scientific data analysis to 

demonstrate the structure of Puck Cottage would not be damaged by 

vibration.  

• Dispute the findings of the noise and vibration surveys regarding the 

impact on Puck Cottage and questions who would be liable for damages 

should the structure of the cottage be damaged. 

• The Amended Dust Management Plan contradicts information submitted 

in support of a previous planning application.  

• Insufficient information has been submitted relating to wind speed, wind 

speed frequency and size distribution of windblown dust (or more 

accurately not presented), with small particle sizes being the most 

dangerous to human health. 

• Mobile dust extraction equipment is mentioned in the Amended Dust 

Management Plan, but insufficient information about what the equipment 

does. 

• The applicant has scoped out any reference within the Amended Dust 

Management Plan to fine dust particles and, therefore, does not offer any 

potential mitigation measures. 

• Refers to Section 6 of the Amended Dust Management Plan and 

questions the procedure about complaints by a member of the public and 

whether a complaint would be sent to the Environmental Health Officer. 

• The Amended Dust Management Plan is virtually worthless and 

deliberately sets out to ignore major sources of dust, occurrence of dust 

and what action would be taken or mitigation measures. 

• The applicant has failed to show there is no health risk to nearby 

sensitive receptors from dust emissions from the site.  

• The Amended Dust Management Plan references the residential 

properties in Bow Lane as principal dust receptors but does not 

reference them in terms of noise. 

• The applicant has failed to show they can comply with noise emissions 

from the site and has not used BS: 5228 (British Standard: Noise Control 

on Construction and Open Sites) to analyse the noise generated by the 

proposed machinery but has instead used gross underestimates of 

‘synthetic’ noise values. The applicant has also not used worst case 

scenarios for the combined effects of machinery close to sensitive 

receptors.   

• Huge noise and dust implications for the village of Ripple and the Hilton 

Puckrup Hall Hotel. 

Page 88



53 
 

• No information has been submitted to support the removal of the Crack 

Willow trees referred in the Amended Arboriculture Report and removal 

of the trees is for the commercial viability of the site. 

• Key controls within the submitted Arboriculture Method Statement should 

be conditioned and monitored. 

• Clarity is sought about the felling of any trees with Tree Preservation 

Orders referred to in Section 7.1 of the Amended Arboriculture Report. 

• The height of any proposed buildings should be conditioned. 

• The existing green perimeter screening is deciduous and, therefore, not 

viable mitigation during the winter months. 

• A substantial amount of vegetation is on land outside the red line plan 

and not in the applicant’s ownership and, therefore, the applicant has no 

control over whether the vegetation would be retained or removed. 

• The vegetation / tree cross sections are misleading and do not relate to 

the features present on site. 

• Consider that the earthworks and bunds would be detrimental to the 

landscape. 

• Reference to Towbury Hill Camp in the ES should consider sight lines 

from the Scheduled Monument during the winter months. 

• Confirmation sought regarding the traffic density analysis includes the 

impartation of infill material. 

• Clarification sought on the proposed HGV routes and which entrances 

would be used during the different phases of the development. 

• Clarification sought on how the infill material would be received and 

used. 

• Submitted plans do not show the internal road layout of the site and 

whether infill material would use the Bow Lane entrance.  

• The applicant has failed to demonstrate there is sufficient inert material 

available to support the timescales proposed for the development and 

where on site this material would be stored and how it would be 

distributed. 

• Query if the figure of 1.4 million tonnes of inert material is correct. 

• Question if the Soil Association or a similar organisation independently 

confirmed that the same level of high-grade agricultural land would be 

reinstated post restoration.   

• The applicant has failed to confirm whether sand and gravel would be 

quarried underneath the screening bunds, which would result in there be 

no noise attenuation during this initial extraction, which has not been 

accounted for in the noise analysis.  

• Question how the removal of ancient trees can be in the interest of public 

safety, when the public are not allowed on the site once operational.  

• Considers the proposal fails the derogation tests for a protected species 

licence from Natural England.  

• Question the need and relevance of the applicant’s statement at 

paragraph 2.38 of the ES referring to the long-term viability and available 

mineral reserves at Bow Farm quarry.  

Page 89



54 
 

• Overall employment levels would not increase due to one site closing as 

the application site becomes operational. 

• The applicant’s website shows that the company are diversifying into 

transport and building businesses. 

• Clarity is sought about when the 10-year period of proposed aftercare of 

the interceptor ditch would start and who takes responsibility after that 

time and states that 10 years is not sufficient. 

• Questions when the aftercare period would commence.  

• Concern regarding how flood water would be managed on and off site. 

• Recommends that a condition is imposed requiring material to be 

exported by river should planning permission be granted. 

• Considers under drainage should be installed under the restored land 

from the outset.  

• In times of flood, the workings would fill with ground water if not fully 

isolated from the surrounding aquifer.  

• Loss of effective floodplain capacity after the site is restored.  

• Consider that the applicant is waging a war of attrition by never fully 

supplying all the requested information in the hope that the County 

Councils would give up as there is still a major shortfall in the data 

supplied and recommend that the application should not be determined 

until all the information has been submitted. 

• Note that Worcestershire County Council and Gloucestershire County 

Council have a duty to cooperate but advise that Gloucestershire County 

Council should refuse the application and that Worcestershire County 

Council could still proceed to determine the application, but that the 

applicant would be forced to take material out of the site by river.  

• Notes that the applicant could build a wharf from the site and alleviate 

any adverse impacts on the Puckrup Hall Hotel and Church End 

Nurseries, environment, wildlife, public rights of way and bridleways, oil 

pipelines, and highway issues, by taking the material out by river for 

processing elsewhere.  

• Concern about the impartiality of the information and reports that have 

been submitted to date. 

• Considers that there are bat roosts across the site and not just as 

identified adjacent to the A38.  

• Adverse impact upon ecology and biodiversity.  

• Concern that the replacement of the sand and gravel aquifer with a non-

porous inert landfill would be degradation. 

• The applicant has not calculated the volume of wood felling proposed, 

which would require a license if it were above the 5 cubic metre 

thresholds. 

• No mention of ground nesting birds in the application submission. 

• Skylarks are present on site and questions how their nests would be 

legally protected. 

• The applicant has failed to show the River Severn would not be 

ecologically damaged by pollution by silt.  

Page 90



55 
 

• The applicant has failed to consider what would happen when the River 

Severn floods and inundates the site workings. These are up to 6 metres 

deep adjacent to the river and up to 8 metres deep elsewhere on site. 

The only practical way to pump out this water filled void, is to pump it into 

the river with all the associated silt.   

• The proposed lakes would be under water during the routine flooding 

incidents and questions how this would impact on the viability of the 

quarry.  

• Query who is responsible for the long-term care of the interceptor ditch, 

which is critical in perpetuity. No apparent aftercare has been identified. 

• A condition should be imposed limiting the height of structures on the 

site. 

• The applicant has failed to present a worst-case cumulative noise 

assessment.  

• Data submitted by the applicant does not adequately address the issue 

of vibration. 

• Considers that the proposal would have an adverse landscape character 

and visual impacts. 

• Disputes the ES’s findings in relation to adverse landscape character 

and visual impacts, particularly in relation to soil stripping and views from 

public rights of way.   

• The visual sight lines submitted by the applicant do not reflect the actual 

sight lines on the site or from the nearest residential properties. 

• The concrete batching towers are the bulkiest and most prominent piece 

of equipment located closest to the nearby sensitive receptors. 

• The application fails to show the location of several visually detrimental 

structures which also contain hazardous materials.  

• The applicant notes the use of various facilities such as oil interceptors, 

onsite fuel storage facilities, a chemical storage shed, a septic tank but 

none of these are shown anywhere on the submitted plans. No one can 

assess the size, location and visual impact of these facilities. 

• Consider the processing plant and associated structures are not in 

keeping with the rural landscape.  

• The setting of Puckrup Hall Hotel and associated leisure facilities would 

be harmed by the large number of HGV movements and proposed 

mineral processing plant.  

• The applicant has refused to address a possible offsite location of the 

mineral, processing plant, which would ease many of the site’s negative 

impacts.  

• MacMillan House is located on a clay stratum and is known to attenuate 

seismic waves. 

• Spurious to compare a delicate old timber framed building next to a 

significant mining operation with a modern housing estate under 

construction. 

• The applicant has not provided any data on the weight of HGVs using 

the Mythe Bridge route or anticipated vehicle movements and weights 

over King Johns Bridge into Tewkesbury. 

Page 91



56 
 

• HGVs weighing 32 tonnes are proposed to use the Mythe Bridge which 

has a weight limit of 17 tonnes. 

• Whilst the total vehicles using the A38 northbound would increase by 3% 

and southbound by 4%, this would still be a significant number of HGV 

movements and would increase the overall HGV movements on the A38 

by approximately 46% northbound and approximately 21% southbound.   

• Adverse highway safety as HGVs are some 20 times the weight of an 

average family car.  

• There is an imminent planning application for a warehouse operation / 

business park adjacent to the M50 Motorway / A38 junction which would 

also add additional HGV traffic on the road network. 

• Considers the proposal would result in HGVs queueing on the A38.   

• Note that Exolum object to the proposal and are concerned about the 

proposed bridge crossing of the pipelines is constructed correctly. 

Therefore, this matter should be fully resolved before either 

Gloucestershire County Council or Worcestershire County Council are 

minded to grant planning permission. If Exolum’s objection cannot be 

overcome, then planning permission should be refused.  

• The drawing of the proposed bridge over the pipeline shows deep piles 

into the ground either side of the single pipe. There is no analysis to say 

how safe the pile driving would be close to the highly pressurised 

pipework. The installation of the bridge construction could be as 

damaging as the vibrations created by multiple 32 tonne trucks feeding 

their loads into the bridge piles over literally decades. 

• The application site is not allocated as a preferred site and is not 

included in the adopted Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan or emerging 

Mineral Site Allocations DPD and consider the site should not be 

considered for approval.  

• Objections have been submitted to the application site being included in 

the emerging Mineral Site Allocations DPD, therefore, for the County 

Council to make a decision on the application would pre-empt the formal 

consideration and adoption of the emerging Mineral Site Allocations 

DPD. 

• The applicant has failed to demonstrate a net economic benefit from the 

proposal when offset against the detrimental negative effects on local 

businesses.  

• The applicant has not clearly stated whether the aftercare period is 5 

years or 10 years and from when this timescale starts.  

• The proposal would commercialise the Common Land.  

• There would be a significant carbon footprint associated with the 

proposed development, therefore, the applicant should submit a carbon 

offset plan.  

• Consider that on a cumulative basis the application should be refused.  

• In relation to alternatives, whilst acknowledging the applicant has 

examined 5 different scenarios, consider that these are not the only 

option and refer to use of barges, and smaller area of extraction with 

buffer to residential and commercial properties.   

Page 92



57 
 

6.0 CONSULTATIONS 

 

6.1 The comments below summarise comments from consultees: 

 

County Councillor Cate Cody (Division Tewkesbury) 

 

6.2 County Councillor Cate Cody objects to the application on the grounds that the 

proposal would have significant negative impacts on local residents and 

wildlife. 

 

6.3 From a climate perspective, Cllr Cody comments that “we have to be reducing 

our use of concrete and hard materials in construction, not endorsing them, 

especially in such a completely inappropriate location. Many mature trees and 

rich habitats for wildlife (including bats) will be removed and the river will be at 

risk of pollution too.” 

 

6.4 Councillor Cody is of the opinion that traffic, including heavy duty lorries will 

increase, both around the site and through Tewkesbury Town Centre. Cyclists, 

walkers and horse riders would be at even greater threat than they already 

are. Significant pollution from noise, sand dust and traffic emissions will affect 

local residents and the aesthetics in this rural location will be detrimentally 

altered. 

 

6.5 Councillor Cody notes that whilst there may be economic advantage to the 

applicant, it could decimate the soft fruit business [at Church End Nursery] that 

operates locally. Overall, Councillor Cody believes it to be a devastating 

proposal to the area and local people. 

 

Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) 

 

6.6 Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) make a number of observations and 

comments on the application. The Borough Council state that the applicant’s 

response to the EIA Regulation 25 Request (further information) in respect of 

noise appears satisfactory and confirms that all operational noise levels would 

be in line with the relevant guidance. The submitted Noise Management Plan 

appears satisfactory. However, they recommend that a scheme for noise 

monitoring be included in the Noise Management Plan.   

 

6.7 In relation to the proposed concrete batching plant TBC consider that the 

proposed noise mitigation measures, bunding, acoustic fencing and 

broadband reversing alarms, as recommended in the original Noise 

Assessment, together with the proposed hours of operations are adequate 

and that the cumulative (quarrying and processing) noise levels at nearest 

sensitive receptor(s) are within the levels set out in the PPG for mineral 

operations. In terms of any planning condition relating to noise, TBC 

recommend conditioning the use of only broadband reversing alarms for site 

vehicles for the proposed processing plant. If GCC in its capacity as MPA has 

any significant concerns regarding the Noise Assessment predictions, then 

Page 93



58 
 

GCC may also wish to consider requiring a Noise Assessment(s) to be 

undertaken once the processing plant and the concrete batching plant are 

operational. 

 

6.8 With regard to vibration, the Borough Council state that in terms of the 

predicted worse case vibrational impact at Puck Cottage (0.1mm/s PPV) this 

is within the Worcestershire Regulatory Services’ guidance value of 1mm/s 

PPV for occupied residential dwellings and, therefore, considered acceptable 

in terms of vibration nuisance. 

 

6.9 In respect of air quality, the Borough Council state that the Air Quality 

Assessment is satisfactory and is in line with the relevant policy and guidance. 

The Assessment concludes that there would be moderately adverse impacts 

as a result of the proposed development at all near receptors and slight 

adverse impacts elsewhere provided that the dust mitigation measures 

outlined in the Dust Management Plan are adhered to. The Borough Council 

recommend the imposition of a condition requiring continuous dust monitoring 

at (a) location(s) agreed with the MPA on the site boundary before 

commencement of operations as an early warning system of excess dust in 

the atmosphere and to complement the submitted Dust Management Plan.  

 

6.10 They have also considered the comments from local residents’ groups in 

terms of noise, air quality and dust impacts and they reiterate the response 

from Worcestershire Regulatory Services (see WRS comments below).  

 

6.11 They state in relation to the proposed concrete batching plant that this would 

require a permit from TBC in order to operate such a plant. As such it would 

be for the local permitting authority to determine if they consider the need for 

the stockpiles to be stored in three sided bays in addition to the proposed 3 to 

5-metre-high bunds around the boundary of the processing / storage area.  

Any stockpile heights would need to be restricted, to minimise wind whipping, 

so that they do not exceed the bund heights, and this would have to be a 

condition of the permit together with management conditions to minimise 

particulate matter being deposited outside of the site boundary. They do not 

consider that such dust suppression systems would be necessary given that 

the proposed concrete batching plant is surrounded by the bunds and that the 

aggregate bays, conveyors, silos and mixing / concrete discharge building 

should be enclosed / partially enclosed. In any case, this would be for 

Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Environmental Health Department to 

determine if such a system should be installed when considering any 

application for a permit to operate the concrete batching plant. 

 

6.12 With regard to contaminated land, they have no adverse comments to make. 

 

6.13 Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Conservation Officer states that the 

development site and the proposals within it have the potential to affect the 

setting of a number of designated heritage assets within Tewkesbury Borough 

identified as being within the visual envelope of the proposals. These include a 

Page 94



59 
 

number of nearby Grade II Listed buildings including Puckrup Hall and 

associated cottages and ancillary buildings, Twyning Farm and associated 

structures, Bow Bridge Cottage and associated barn. There are also more 

distant listed buildings and the Church End Conservation Area. There may 

also be non-designated built heritage assets that could be affected. However, 

no specific examples were identified at the time of initial inspection. Visual 

impact upon Towbury Hill Camp Scheduled Monument would be deferred to 

the County Archaeologist for consideration. 

 

6.14 An assessment of designated and non-designated built heritage assets is 

included within the Archaeological Desk Based Study. Given the divergent 

nature of the work required for a desk-based study of archaeology as opposed 

to an assessment of visual impact upon the setting of built heritage assets it 

would be expected that the two component reports be separated or at the very 

least the title of the study amended accordingly. It is noted that no non-

designated heritage assets were observed to be affected by the development. 

 

6.15 The Desk Based Study assesses the impact of development upon listed 

buildings and identifies all the listed buildings within close proximity to the site. 

The findings suggest that the impact is either not significant or minor adverse. 

However, at the time of this study very little information had been submitted 

with this application in regard to the height and form of the structures 

associated with the batching plant. This information has now been provided. 

Likewise, in other areas of the extraction sites presumably there may be 

stockpiles of gravel and associated conveyors which could also result in tall 

and visually intrusive forms. There still does not appear to be any definitive 

information regarding the appearance or the anticipated forms and extent / 

heights of new structures. 

 

6.16 In regard to the further information provided none of it appears to assess the 

impact of the proposed concrete batching plant which is close to the Grade II 

Listed Twyning Farm including walled garden and dairy. The Landscape and 

Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) Addendum has a section on listed buildings, 

but only discusses the impact on Puck Cottage and Bowbridge Cottage and is 

silent regarding Twyning Farm.  

 

6.17 On the basis of the information available, a site visit was conducted by TBC’s 

Conservation Officer. They consider that there would appear to be no direct 

visual harm to any of the heritage assets identified (in Tewkesbury Borough) 

around the gravel extraction or the concrete batching plant. As for impacts 

upon heritage due to vibration, noise, light and dust from the proposed plant 

and activities they observed that there is likely to be some additional noise and 

traffic movements, however, based on the information available it is not 

realistically possible to attribute any tangible harm to heritage assets. In view 

of this, they state that there does not appear to be a policy reason regarding 

heritage to object to this proposal. 

 

Page 95

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%2FHeritage%2FConservation%20areas%2FTwyning%2C%20Church%20End%20%2D%20conservation%20area%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%2FHeritage%2FConservation%20areas&ga=1
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0016_S4_P3.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_2ND_REG25_APPDX_7.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_2ND_REG25_APPDX_7.PDF


60 
 

6.18 In response to the EIA Regulation 25 Request (further information) 

consultation, the Conservation Officer confirmed that they had no further 

comments to those set out above and do not require any further information. 

However, the Conservation Officer recommends the imposition of a condition 

that the infrastructure of the batching plant be finished in a recessive colour 

such as dark green.  

 

6.19 With regard to impacts upon trees, the Borough Council comment that there 

are a significant number of individual trees, groups of trees and hedgerows 

within the application site that would be affected by the proposal and are 

important to the biodiversity of the area. Veteran trees have irreplaceable 

habitats with decay features which contribute to their biodiversity attributes. 

The Borough Council are also concerned about the potential impacts the 

development would have on surrounding hedgerows and trees which would in 

turn have an indirect impact on wildlife in the area. The proposal would have a 

detrimental consequence on the health of existing trees and hedgerows by 

damage which includes their soils, ground flora or fungi. There is a high risk of 

damage around the tree roots from machinery and vehicular traffic, particles of 

pollution in the ground around them from chemicals / fuels that can leach into 

soil and a change of soil levels around woody vegetation, which can deplete 

oxygen or increase compaction, both of which can be fatal to roots, causing 

root death and dieback. There would be an increase of pollution and dust 

which may affect the trees’ ability to photosynthesise which could result in 

slower growth, root damage and over time, death. This could result over time 

to a change in the landscape character of the area. 

 

6.20 The Borough Council also draw the MPA’s attention to the 10 separate third 

party objections and 1 from Twyning Parish Council, and request that they are 

taken into account in the determination of the planning application. 

 

Malvern Hills District Council (MHDC) 

 

6.21 MHDC comments that it would appear that only a small part of the proposed 

workings would be located within a preferred area for sand and gravel 

extraction (Policy 1: ‘Preferred Areas’) of the County of Hereford and 

Worcester Minerals Local Plan (1997) [now replaced by the Worcestershire 

Minerals Local Plan]. The District Council note that the remainder of the site 

falls within the Lower Severn Corridor as defined in the emerging Minerals 

Local Plan [now adopted by the County Council and forms part of the 

Development Plan]. It is clearly for the decision-maker to determine the weight 

attached to adopted and emerging minerals policy balanced against the tests 

set out at paragraphs 5.3 and 5.4 (Sieve Test) of the County of Hereford and 

Worcester Minerals Local Plan [now replaced by the adopted Worcestershire 

Minerals Local Plan]. With regards to the elements of the scheme located in 

Gloucestershire, it is recommended that further advice in respect of these 

specific aspects of the scheme is sought from Tewkesbury Borough Council 

whose administrative area they fall within. 

 

Page 96



61 
 

6.22 In relation to archaeology, the District Council comment that the submission 

has been assessed by the District Archaeologist who advises that the 

submitted desk-based assessment, geophysical survey, geo-archaeological 

investigation and trench evaluation have adequately assessed the 

archaeological potential of the proposed development area. The application is 

now considered to be in accordance with the NPPF, subject to the imposition 

of a condition requiring a programme of archaeological work, including a 

written scheme of investigation. The District Archaeologist wishes to defer to 

the County Archaeologist on the scope of works. 

 

6.23 In respect of the impacts upon built heritage, Malvern Hills District Council’s 

Conservation Officer supports the proposal stating that further information has 

been submitted that provides a statement of significance for Puck Cottage and 

an assessment of impact of the development. The findings of the Statement 

are agreed and the previous and revisited conclusions about the impact of the 

development upon the heritage asset are also considered accurate. The 

submitted Dust Management Plan is also considered to set out an appropriate 

scheme for the control of dust in relation to the heritage asset, Puck Cottage. 

 

6.24 The Conservation Officer at MHDC considers that there would be a less than 

substantial harm on the Listed Building of Puck Cottage and Conservation 

Areas of Ripple and Uckinghall. With Puck Cottage the adverse impacts would 

be mitigated by the methods described so that the less than substantial harm 

would be low during the extraction period for the quarry. The less than 

substantial harm to the Conservation Areas is considered to be negligible due 

to distance, topography and intervening M50 Motorway.   

 

6.25 In response to the EIA Regulation 25 Submission (further information) in 

relation to cumulative impacts, the Conservation Officer at MHDC states that 

their above comments remain unchanged.  

 

6.26 In terms of landscape impacts, MHDC notes that a LVIA (Landscape Visual 

Impact Assessment) has been submitted in support of this planning 

application. It is understood that the proposed development would take place 

over a period of approximately 9 years and incorporates embedded mitigation 

measures designed during the iterative design process. Included amongst 

these is the retention of peripheral hedgerows, the formation of grassed 

bunds, the sequential extraction of the mineral followed by the immediate 

restoration of the worked areas and considering the appropriate siting of static 

plant at the lowest point of the site. The restoration phase would return the 

land to its baseline, agricultural condition whilst providing a net benefit in 

biodiversity through the creation of woodland, wetland and the hedgerows. 

Should planning permission be granted for this development, planning 

conditions should be imposed to control the phasing of both the extraction and 

restoration of the site. However, the District Council are not clear how Flexible 

Areas A and B fit into this programme. 

 

Page 97



62 
 

6.27 MHDC notes that Worcestershire Regulatory Services have been consulted 

on this application and urge the MPA to have regard to their comments in 

respect of noise, dust, air quality and the health impacts of the development. 

 

6.28 With respect to ecology, the District Council comment that as the MPA will be 

aware, the application site is located in relatively close proximity to the Severn 

Estuary SPA and SAC which are European sites. This site is also notified at 

international level as the Severn Estuary Ramsar site and at a national level 

as the Severn Estuary SSSI. The application site also falls immediately 

adjacent to Ripple Lake and the Napps LWS and Ripple Brook LWS and is 

close to the River Severn LWS. These sites are of high value for wetland 

wildlife, and they require water that is suitable both in terms of quantity and 

quality for their continued survival. 

 

6.29 MHDC note that the MPA (Worcestershire) have consulted the County 

Ecologist (Worcestershire), Worcestershire Wildlife Trust and Natural England. 

In light of the sensitive nature of the surrounding area, the District Council 

urge the MPA to have regard to the consultation responses received to ensure 

that the County Council successfully discharges its duties with regard to 

biodiversity and protected species. Notwithstanding this, the District Council 

consider that ecological mitigation and enhancement measures should be 

secured by planning condition, if planning permission is granted, and 

recommend that the applicant be required to submit compliance statements to 

confirm that the necessary mitigation and enhancement measures have been 

provided. The District Council also recommend that the MPA seek expert 

advice in relation to the submitted Arboricultural Report and Veteran Tree 

Strategy. 

 

6.30 Should planning permission be granted, the District Council recommend the 

imposition of conditions to control the phasing of both the extraction and 

restoration of the site. 

 

6.31 With regard to traffic and highway safety the District Council welcomes the 

revised design of the proposed access arrangement, which now includes for a 

right turn lane ghost island serving the development access. The District 

Council consider that consideration should be given to restricting the routes 

that HGVs take when approaching or leaving the site and that no loaded 

lorries shall leave the site unless they are sheeted, or the load is otherwise 

adequately secured. Furthermore, the public highway located around the site 

entrance should be kept clear of mud or other deleterious material deposited 

on the highway by vehicles associated with the proposed development. 

 

6.32 The District Council note that it is anticipated that inert materials would be 

sourced within a 20-mile radius of the application site, derived within a 

catchment containing large towns and cities including Worcester, Tewkesbury, 

Cheltenham and Gloucester. It is important that inert waste is sourced as 

locally as possible and, therefore, the MPA may wish to consider the 

Page 98



63 
 

imposition of a condition requiring these sources to be agreed prior to any 

importation taking place. 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

 

6.33 No comments received. 

 

Tewkesbury Town Council (TTC) 

 

6.34 Date comments received: 18.12.2019 

Summary Observation: Expressed ‘serious concerns’ on highways grounds. 

Comments made: 

 

• “Tewkesbury Town Council has serious concerns about this application 

due to the potential impact of HGVs approaching and leaving the site. 

The Town Council would like to point out that the Mythe Bridge is not 

suitable for HGVs. In addition, the presence of traffic lights on the 

approaches to the bridge would cause vehicles to wait and thus impact 

negatively on the level of air quality in the vicinity, which already gives 

us cause for concern. Also, the Town Council is concerned about the 

potential movement of lorries through the town, between the concrete 

mixing plant and potential building sites to the east and south of 

Tewkesbury.” 

 

6.35 Due to concerns about the potential adverse impact of HGVs from the site on 

Tewkesbury’s road infrastructure and also on air quality in the vicinity of the 

Black Bear roundabout, the Town Council requests that, in the event of the 

proposal being permitted, it should be on the condition that HGVs from the site 

do not cross the Mythe Bridge or pass through Tewkesbury Town Centre, and 

also HGVs do not attempt to use the Black Bear roundabout and Bredon 

Road. 

 

6.36 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the Town Council comment that the additional impact 

caused by the proposed Ripple East Quarry would be of little significance 

within its own parish, but there may well be additional noise and dust impacts 

on the parishes of Twyning and Ripple. 

 

Twyning Parish Council (TPC) 

 

6.37 Twyning Parish Council objects to the proposed development, stating that the 

application is being taken out of context with either County Minerals Local 

Plan and is developer led without any strategic reasoning. The applicant has 

tweaked reports referenced in the Regulation 25 Submission Addendum, but 

the fact still remains that the River Severn is already a highly polluted river and 

current habitats should be preserved rather than disturbed. Dust and surface 

water run-off would adversely affect the watercourse, surrounding 

environment and residents. There are less harmful sites available in 

Page 99



64 
 

Worcestershire than the proposed site and the Parish Council agree with 

residents’ comments as follows:  

 

• The submitted Dust Management Plan does not include any size 

distribution for the sand to be quarried and portrays the dust issue as 

trivial as it deliberately scopes out any analysis of the fine dust pollution 

risk. There are health implications here to local residents as well as 

damage to a Grade II Listed Building’s thatched roof and also 

potentially devastating effects on local businesses such as Church End 

Nurseries and Puckrup Hall Hotel. The Parish Council have observed 

other operated sites where a thick film of dust covers nearby vegetation 

until it dies.  

 

• There is still a very high risk of the site workings being inundated by 

river flood events which in terms of the flexible working areas are also 

at risk during minor flooding even in the summer. Areas of the site 

workings are up to 6 metres deep close to the river and 8 metres deep 

in the main phases. The only way these voids could be pumped out is 

directly into the river with the attendant silt damage to the river 

ecosystem. 

 

• The traffic plan still includes 32 tonne loaded HGVs using the 17 tonnes 

weight limit Mythe Bridge and shows not only a huge - over 40% - 

increase in HGV traffic on the A38 but also introduces a whole new 

class of vehicles to this stretch of road. 

 

• There is no storage shown for the imported infill material for the site 

and no confirmed internal site routes for its use. The Parish Council 

consider that due to the applicant’s stated delivery schedule for the 

material and the propensity for the site to be unworkable due to flooding 

events, an appropriate storage mass would be at least 30,000 tonnes.  

 

• Other potentially hazardous storage items are not shown on any of the 

plans. 

 

• The Parish Council consider that the applicant should investigate the 

use of offsite remote processing upriver from the workings.  

 

• The applicant shows sand and gravel being quarried from under the 

bunds without any noise attenuation means whatsoever. This should be 

prevented by a planning condition should the application be approved.  

 

• Questions if there has now been approval for the commercial 

exploitation of the Common Land to be used by the applicant between 

the site workings and the process plant? 

 

Page 100



65 
 

• The main aftercare documentation still states a 5-year period, however, 

the Parish Council understood this would be extended to 10 years. 

Question which timescale is correct?  

 

• Because of the huge carbon footprint generated by the site and 

especially with the production of concrete the Parish Council consider  

 
the applicant should be subject to a carbon offset requirement.  

 

6.38 The Parish Council also consider that the Regulation 25 Submissions (further 

information) does not satisfy the requirements of the following Policies: 

 

• The accumulative effect on nearby businesses and the damaging 

impact on the environment cannot in any regard meet the exacting 

standards on sustainability found in NPPF paragraph 8. 

 

• The exclusion zone round the Grade II Listed Building (Puck Cottage) is 

nowhere near enough to prevent serious damage being done to this 

valuable building by vibration. This is contrary to the Listed Buildings 

and Conservation Act 1990 (as amended).  

 

• The Parish Council have no confidence that the many health issues 

have been adequately addressed and as such the application is 

contrary to paragraph 210(f) and 211 (b) and (c) of the NPPF.  

 

• There is no satisfactory solution to resolve the undoubted flood risk the 

application raises, particularly in regard to moving flood waters 

elsewhere contrary to paragraph 167 of the NPPF.  

 

• The Parish Council consider that there are no satisfactory solutions to 

counter the effects of noise, dust, vibration, air pollution and the 

intrusion into the landscape contrary to the NPPF.  

 

• The emerging Minerals Site Allocations DPD is the critical supporting 

document to the Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan and does not exist 

and, therefore, no decision can be made on this application and it 

should be dismissed on the grounds of prematurity. 

 

6.39 The Parish Council state that they consider that the unacceptable disruption to 

local businesses, the environment and the local community considerably 

outweighs the commercial necessity for such industrial activity.  

 

6.40 The Parish Council state that their objection is primarily based on the adverse 

environmental impact in that the business operation is contrary to Policy 

DM01: ‘Amenity’ of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire and paragraph 

174 (a, b & e) of the NPPF, in that it is not adequately demonstrated that the 

adverse impacts can be avoided. This policy applies equally to the subjects of 

Page 101



66 
 

noise, vibration, air pollution, including significant dust impact, light pollution 

and the visual intrusion into the open landscape. The Parish Council consider 

that the application would change environmental conditions to the extent that 

there would be an impact on human health or cause health inequality through 

the density of dust pollution which would affect agricultural, horticultural and 

fisheries businesses. This is contrary to Policy SD14: ‘Health and 

Environmental Quality’ of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint 

Core Strategy (JCS). The processing and concrete batching operation when 

added to the volume of expected HGV journeys to and from the site would 

threaten compliance with Policy DM02: ‘Cumulative impact’ of the Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire. 

 

6.41 The Parish Council consider that there is an opportunity to use the existing 

processing plant at Ryall House Farm with excavated mineral transported by 

barge, thus eliminating the construction of a new plant on BMV (best and most 

versatile) agricultural land. Whilst there may be cost implications, the Parish 

Council consider that the environment should be valued more highly. There is 

no doubt that the quarry would destroy the local area stripping away the 

natural habitat for burrowing animals and threatened bird species and 

removing ancient trees and hedgerow. 

 

6.42 Due to this being a cross-boundary application, the restoration of this site may 

be of little importance and, therefore, the use of unsuitable infill materials may 

result. The site may be on the edge of each County but is important to the 

floodplain and continued biodiversity of the flood margin. The Parish Council 

consider it is not clear how flooding would be avoided onsite during use of the 

site or how the site would be managed to avoid polluting the river when flood 

waters recede. The Parish Council consider that the River Severn is already 

heavily silted with diminishing fish stock and would, therefore, suffer as a 

result of permitting this proposal. This application does not eliminate the flood 

risk being increased elsewhere and is contrary to paragraph 167 of the NPPF 

and Policy INF2: ‘Flood Risk Management’ of the JCS. 

 

6.43 The Parish Council also make the following detailed comments:  

 

Common Land 

6.44 The Parish Council considers that use of Common Land for a road access is 

not acceptable as in their view Common Land should be kept open and 

accessible to the public for walking, horse riding and grazing and is an 

important green landscape which should be protected. Access by HGVs is 

against all objectives of preserving this important green space. 

 

Prematurity  

6.45 The fundamental objection to this application is that Worcestershire’s 

emerging Minerals Local Plan [now adopted by the County Council and forms 

part of the Development Plan] and emerging Minerals Site Allocation DPD 

have not yet been adopted by the Council. Until such a time that both 

documents are adopted, this application cannot be considered as its 

Page 102

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0019_S4_P2.PDF


67 
 

submission is premature. In addition, Twyning Parish Council consider that it 

is highly questionable that Worcestershire County Council would nominate this 

site as a preferred site under the guidance in the NPPF.  

 

Omissions and anomalies 

6.46 The Parish Council consider that there are numerous omissions, 

inconsistencies and inaccuracies in the application, which reinforces the 

prematurity of the submission as well as its status in the planning process. For 

example, whether the site would be worked dry or wet; confusing timeline; no 

explanation as to the likely long-term effects of de-watering on licenced 

extractions; the area impact upon the aquifer; and Puckrup Hall Hotel and its 

Golf Course are not identified as a sensitive receptor.  

 

Extent of the development  

6.47 Although the mineral extraction would take place in Worcestershire, the 

biggest impact would be upon Gloucestershire, as the applicant proposes a 

processing plant site in Gloucestershire. This would create traffic turmoil, 

destroy the rural setting and damage local businesses whilst delivering 

nothing to Gloucestershire’s mineral obligations.  

 

6.48 Amenity would be lost with several public rights of way crossing and adjoining 

the site, which are used by walkers and visitors to Puckrup Hall Hotel. The 

proposed industrial processing plant would be unsightly, noisy and dusty 

facility spanning at least 500 metres by 200 metres. Concrete batching plant 

structures can be up to 30 metres tall.  

 

6.49 The applicant has submitted limited information about the equipment and 

production processes (sorting, washing, storing and conveying) proposed in 

the processing plant site area, which would be the source of the noise, dust 

and contaminant (powdered concrete) associated with the concrete batching 

plant. There is also no reference to storage facilities for fuel, hazardous 

material, machinery and septic tanks.  

 

Noise and vibration 

6.50 Consider that the noise values submitted as part of the application are highly 

questionable, and at best are an underestimate. The level of noise would be 

highly damaging to Puckrup Hall Hotel, as customers would not want to have 

a luxury break, play golf or have their wedding celebrations competing with 

noise from an adjacent industrial process. The proposed concrete batching 

plant, spoil heaps and washing plant would be in full view from the golf course.  

 

6.51 The Parish Council consider that the proposal would be damaging to health 

and the quality of life and would fail to protect the tranquil area of the open 

countryside. The applicant has also not demonstrated the proposal would not 

have an adverse vibration impact upon Puck Cottage.  

 

Traffic generation  

Page 103



68 
 

6.52 Considers that the proposed level of traffic the proposed development would 

generate is totally unacceptable and is contrary to paragraphs 110 and 111 of 

the NPPF, Policy DM03: ‘Transport’ and paragraphs 297, 298 and 299 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire. The fact that major alterations are 

required to the local rural lanes to accommodate the turning circles of these 

HGVs demonstrates how incongruous this development is with the local 

surroundings.  

 

6.53 The Parish Council consider that the level of Carbon Dioxide emissions 

created by HGV movements, associated noise levels and wear and tear on  

local roads have not been addressed by the applicant.  

 

6.54 The Parish Council consider that the proposed access onto the A38 is 

extremely dangerous. The A38 is easily gridlocked when the M50 and M5 

Motorways are closed. The Parish Council consider that it appears unusual 

that Gloucestershire should have to accept the proposed altered layout on the 

A38 to provide access for HGVs to a site which has no benefits to the County 

of Gloucestershire or the local economy.  

 

6.55 The Parish Council do not accept that the traffic flow figures quoted are 

correct and that they do not relate to a normal time and conditions (i.e., no 

COVID-19 pandemic). Even assuming the applicant controls the traffic, which 

the Parish Council do not think in practice is likely, the additional heavy traffic 

which cause major and extremely dangerous risk of long delays and possible 

serious injuries at the A38 junction. 

 

6.56 The applicant is currently refusing to entertain taking the minerals out by the 

river on the basis that the land on the river frontage is out of their 

landownership. The applicant should investigate this option further.  

 

Dust 

6.57 No accurate data is provided on dust particle size, assessment of air quality, 

health hazards and nuisance. The Parish Council consider that there has not 

been a proper assessment of the impact on the most sensitive receptors close 

to the site e.g., private residences, Church End Nurseries and Puckrup Hall 

Hotel and Golf Course. This pollutant poses a huge risk to health, wildlife and 

vegetation and beauty of the countryside with the processing operations 

proposed for up to 10 years. The Parish Council also states that dust 

emissions have been significantly underplayed and the construction of 3-

metre-high bunds would have the effect of ramping particulate distribution. 

The application, therefore, fails to accord with paragraph 211 c) of the NPPF, 

and the dust emissions would not be effectively removed at source.  

 

6.58 The Parish Council comment that they are seriously concerned that the 

proposed bunds would not give sufficient protection to the existing adjacent 

greenhouse business (Church End Nursery) or to Puckrup Hall Hotel, which 

could well cause serious loss of business and probable closures with loss of 

employment. 

Page 104



69 
 

6.59 The cumulative effect of pollutants would have a devastating impact on the 

businesses at Church End Nursery, Puckrup Hall Hotel, Hillview Lakes fishing 

complex, Tewkesbury Riding School and other sensitive sites along Page’s 

Lane.  

 

Health risk  

6.60 Adverse impacts upon the health of local residents. Insufficient data provided 

by the applicant on the type and quantity of dust that would be generated and 

wind direction.  

 

River pollution and flooding 

6.61 Risks of pollution of the River Severn, damage to wildlife and high risk of 

flooding to the whole site during rainy months would be inevitable. Certain 

parts of the site flood and the proposals would increase flood risk and the 

contamination of the land and run off into the river. 

 

6.62 The applicant’s expectation that bunds would be used to minimise dust and 

noise would have the opposite effect as regards flooding. The lower end of 

Bow Lane already floods every time the River Severn rises, and the bunds 

would create a damaging effect which would prevent the water from draining 

away. Impermeable backfill would change the underlying aquifer structure with 

the effect that water would not drain and properties in the east may well flood.  

 

Historic environment  

6.63 Great weight should be given to the prevention and conservation of the 

archaeological heritage assets and not deliberately destroyed. The Parish 

Council consider that the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 200 and 210 of 

the NPPF.  

 

Local employment 

6.64 The need for local jobs is not in question, however, the number of people to be 

employed in this proposed enterprise (up to 20 people) may be existing 

employees of the applicant’s company and would be negligible compared with 

those employed by some of the sensitive receptors in the area. Puckrup Hall 

Hotel and Golf Course employs approximately 110 people and has a total of 

approximately 1,250 members of the Golf Club and Leisure Club. Church End 

Nurseries consists of glasshouses growing soft fruit. The glasshouses would 

be covered in dust which reduces light available to growing plants and the 

dust would also contaminate the crop rending it unsaleable, as it cannot be 

washed prior to sale. Hillview Lakes fishing complex would suffer as a result of 

damage to the aquifer and may drain or de-oxygenate the dishing ponds.  

 

Restoration  

6.65 The restored lake may look acceptable, but there would be no public access. 

Biodiversity is irreparably damaged and potential land use severely impaired. 

In addition, it seems unlikely that the applicant would be able to source 

sufficient acceptable replacement material leading to probable flooding and 

use of potentially hazardous waste for infilling.  

Page 105



70 
 

Ripple Parish Council (RPC) (neighbouring parish in Worcestershire) 

 

6.66 Ripple Parish Council objects to the proposal, stating that the mineral 

extraction and restoration needs to be achieved in a more environmentally 

way than what is being proposed. The Parish Council note that residents have 

major concerns and worries about the application and the Parish Council do 

not consider that the EIA Regulation 25 Submissions (further information) are 

satisfactory.  

 

6.67 The Parish Council state that whilst they recognise the importance of 

maintaining mineral supplies, they consider this should be from sites where 

proposals do so in the most environmentally and sympathetic manner and 

which mitigate and decrease the risk of flooding. Proposals should not 

adversely affect the health and welfare of local residents and businesses and 

recreational facilities and fully comply with planning statements. Ripple Parish 

Council cannot see how these criteria would be met and, therefore, 

recommend refusal of this application.  

 

6.68 The Parish Council comment that for over a decade Ripple Parish has been 

host to a number of mineral workings, this includes Ripple Quarry, Ryall North 

Quarry and Ryall House Farm / Saxon’s Lode Quarry. They consider that 

these proposals for a further 9 years of mineral extraction at Bow Farm would 

not comply with the NPPF, namely: “to ensure that permitted and proposed 

operations do not have an adverse impact on the natural and historic 

environment or human health, taking into account the cumulative effects of 

multiple impacts from individual sites and / or a number of sites in the locality” 

(paragraph 210 f) of the NPPF).   

 

6.69 Ripple Parish Council also consider the proposal does not accord with the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, in particular Policy DM02: 

‘Cumulative impact’.  

 

6.70 Ripple Parish Council request evidence that current mineral requirements 

cannot be met from extant or current sites in Worcestershire. The Parish 

Council also note that the application seeks to extract approximately 1.5 

million tonnes of sand and gravel [now 1.44 million tonnes], however, the 

submission in response to Worcestershire County Council’s ‘Call for Sites’ 

refers to 2 million tonnes on site. The Parish Council question how much 

mineral would be extracted from the site and how much inert waste material 

would be imported to the site.  

 

6.71 The Parish Council comment that there are no prescriptive details provided 

about the aftercare and restoration schemes. There are also no details on 

whether inert landfill would be available to keep pace with extraction. In view 

of this, the Parish Council consider that a prescriptive scheme is required, and 

the MPA should impose a timed condition, which should include monitoring. 

This should include phasing of the extraction, and a condition restricting 

imported inert material to not be stockpiled.  

Page 106



71 
 

6.72 In times of extreme flooding the whole site may be flooded, therefore, this may 

lead to commination issues due to the inert landfill.  

 

6.73 The Parish Council notes that clay is proposed to be used to line the voids, 

however, if there is a shortfall, they question if clay would have to be imported 

to the site.  

 

6.74 The role of Ripple Brook which feeds into Mythe Brook is significant in Ripple 

Parish and does not appear to have been considered in depth by the 

applicant. Any rebalancing of the aquifer has the potential to increase flooding. 

This is particularly significant as the land is to be infilled leaving it less 

permeable to water within Ripple Brook to the east, which is seeking to 

permeate to the River Severn in the west. Disruption of the surrounding 

aquifer by sealing off extraction areas, formerly part of the aquifer, may 

potentially have adverse effects on the Uckinghall flood relief scheme and 

implications for land drained by Ripple Brook. In view of this, the Parish 

Council consider that the Environment Agency should fully consider the 

application and its potential implications. In addition, the Parish Council 

consider that the drainage mitigation measures are inadequate, and little 

attention has been given to the effects of climate change. Calculations relating 

to rainfall and groundwater recharge appear to be based on average figures. 

 

6.75 The Parish Council consider that the proposal would not accord with Policy 

WCS 10: ‘Flood risk and water resources’ of the adopted Worcestershire 

Waste Core Strategy, Policies MLP 7: ‘Green Infrastructure’ and MLP 38: 

‘Flooding’ of the adopted Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan or Policy INF2: 

‘Flood Risk Management’ of the adopted Cheltenham, Gloucester and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy.  

 

6.76 The Parish Council consider that part of the haul route would pass over 

Common Land. This needs clarification and delineation on a map to 

accompany this application. Gloucestershire County Council have a duty to 

protect Common Land and ensure that residents commons rights are 

maintained. 

 

6.77 The Parish Council are concerned that the application has progressed to this 

stage with so much detailed information missing, questioning what is the 

chronological sequence of supporting infrastructure construction and what 

materials would ancillary buildings be constructed from? Would bunds be 

constructed progressively or at the commencement of the works and would 

this require the importation of material? What materials would the haul road be 

constructed from? No details are given about the porta cabins proposed. No 

details on the plans in respect of site offices, weighbridge, screening and 

vehicle wash plant, cement processing plant, conveyor belt, external lighting, 

car parking and toilet facilities, foul drainage and availability of fresh water and 

electricity services. 

 

Page 107



72 
 

6.78 With regard to restoring the site with inert materials, the Parish Council 

question if the benefits of restoring the site back to agricultural land outweigh 

improving drainage around Bow Lane area, which is known to flood. The 

Parish Council state that inert landfill is more commercially viable for the 

applicant, particularly as they own a fleet of haulage vehicles, but this factor 

should not outweigh the environmental harm that landfill import by road would 

create. In view of this, the Parish Council consider the proposal would be 

contrary to the adopted Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy Policies WCS 4, 

WCS 8 and WCS 12. 

 

6.79 The Parish Council state there are no proposals on how the site would be 

protected and secured against indiscriminate dumping of waste by third 

parties and how this would be monitored.  

 

6.80 The Parish Council state that the submission does not include an aftercare 

plan, to demonstrate how the site would be returned to BMV agricultural land. 

 

6.81 With regard to traffic and highway safety the Parish Council state the sheer 

volume of lorries entering and leaving the site entrance (6-8 per hour) would 

cause major congestion and pose potential health and safety issues to drivers.  

 

6.82 A mineral processing plant is located at Ryall (known as Ryall House Farm), 

and in the past it served Ripple Quarry, which is located adjacent to this 

application site. Ryall House Farm mineral processing plant currently 

processes minerals from the operational Ryall North Quarry site, near Upton-

upon-Severn. Essentially while all processed minerals leave the site by road 

haulage, all incoming raw minerals are delivered to the site via the River 

Severn by barge. A wharf exists on third party land adjacent to the proposed 

Bow Farm Quarry site. Whilst the Parish Council appreciate that the Ryall 

House Farm mineral processing plant is in the ownership of a third party, the 

submitted Transport Appraisal dismisses utilisation of river transport on the 

basis that they have no riverside land even if they were to construct their own 

wharf. The Parish Council are at a loss to understand this statement as land 

ownership along the River Severn exists within the area of proposed Flexible 

Working Area B. The Parish Council appreciate that there would be no overall 

net gain in reducing the number of eventual road trips if river transport was 

used, as haulage of all processed aggregate and landfill material would 

ultimately be by A38 road haulage. There could, however, be a net gain in 

processing the aggregate only at Ryall as this would negate the need for an 

additional processing plant at the proposed Bow Farm Quarry site.  

 

6.83 The Parish Council consider that the proposal would be contrary to the 

Gloucestershire Local Transport Plan, in particular Policy PD 4:5 ‘Enabling 

Development’, which states that “development should be resisted where a 

severe impact on the transport network cannot be mitigated”.  

 

6.84 The proposal would result in an increase of traffic on the A38 by approximately 

3.4% which is already a busy road, and this increase would be channelled into 

Page 108



73 
 

a single road access entrance / exit, which the Parish Council consider is 

highly significant. The application submission fails to consider vehicle 

movements emerging / entering Page’s Lane or its closeness to the entrance. 

 

6.85 Data relating to traffic volumes and speed on the A38 have been collected 

over one week in late March 2018. The Parish Council would expect data to 

be collected during both summer and winter periods. South Worcestershire / 

North Gloucestershire Councils all have plans to increase housing within their 

districts over the next ten years which would invariably lead to increased traffic 

flow along the A38. No consideration has been given to this projected traffic 

flow over the life of the quarry. General assumptions have been made in the 

application submission on which routes lorries would take. The Parish Council 

question on what basis these assumptions have been made.  

 

6.86 The Parish Council notes that the primary destination of sand and gravel 

would be to the Cullimore Mix Ltd at Frampton on Severn in order to build 

33,500 proposed homes outlined in the Joint Core Strategy for Cheltenham, 

Gloucester and Tewkesbury. The Parish Council states that whilst 

Worcestershire aggregates and village communities would be exploited, very 

little aggregate is going towards Worcestershire’s needs as outlined and 

required in the Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan.  

 

6.87 The Parish Council consider that bus services are totally lacking in terms of 

frequency and timing for employees, cycle access is only achievable via the 

A38 unless staff work in Twyning or Ripple, and there are no nearby rail links. 

In terms of sustainability the workforce would invariably be vehicle reliant, 

adding to traffic flow and pollution. 

 

6.88 The Parish Council welcomes the amended proposed A38 access design but 

consider that the volume of heavy commercial vehicles utilising the A38 along 

a single stretch of road would be significant. Whilst the access is outside the 

area covered by Ripple Parish Council, a great many of their residents use 

this road on a daily basis for work, school and shopping trips and their safety 

is important. The applicant has stated that there are likely to be 144 two-way 

HGV movements per day, which is 13 per hour or 1 HGV movement in either 

direction every 5 minutes. The Parish Council assume this also includes 

Saturday mornings, not just Monday to Friday. The applicant estimates that 

90% of the traffic would use the Motorway network and, therefore, travel north 

to the M50 / M5 Motorway junction. 5% would go west using A438, 

presumably over Mythe Bridge which has a weight limit which would be 

exceeded by his vehicles, or through Tewkesbury Town. The applicant also 

states that traffic would increase northwards by 3%, but this relates to all types 

of traffic. In 2019 the Transport Assessment showed there were an average of 

156 HGV movements going north, if the estimate of a further 72 movements 

by the applicant’s vehicles is added to this the increase is more like 46% of 

HGV movements. The increase in the volume of HGVs using the A38 would 

be significant. At the CEMEX (Ryall House Farm) exit further up the A38, 

stones (and mud) are frequently scattered on to the road as the HGV turns 

Page 109



74 
 

out. Some cars have had their windscreens damaged. The Parish Council 

consider that further analysis of the traffic movements should be undertaken, 

as this increase would have a cumulative effect on the local road network. 

 

6.89 The trip distribution figures remain only an estimate, as invariably drivers may 

seek to take the shortest routes. No analysis has been carried out on the 

number of heavy haulage aggregate vehicles currently using the A38 / M50 

Motorway junction to access the CEMEX aggregate distribution site.  The 

Parish Council consider that there would be a cumulative effect on the local 

road network. 

 

6.90 With regard to noise impacts, the Parish Council consider that a single day 

monitoring is wholly insufficient for an operation of this nature when the 

welfare, health and safety implications for residents could be adversely 

affected over a period of up to 9 years. Measurements should be taken from 

fixed monitoring positions close to the critical receptors for short periods over 

seasonal changes. The Parish Council requests that Worcestershire County 

Council and / or Gloucestershire County Council carry out their own 

independent analysis of the applicant’s noise reports and publish their findings 

as part of the ongoing consultation and planning determination process. 

 

6.91 The Parish council also consider that the vibration assessments is completely 

lacking, whilst figures are provided on vibration levels emitted from plant, none 

of these correlates to the potential effects on critical receptors. The Parish 

Council are concerned about the vibration effects on all critical receptors along 

Bow Lane, particularly the Grade II Listed Buildings. 

 

6.92 With regard to dust impacts, the Parish Council states dust emissions may 

reach the critical receptors along Bow Lane, the commercial Church End 

Nurseries and Puckrup Hall Hotel and potentially the village of Ripple and, 

therefore, consider that conditions should be imposed should planning 

permission be approved to ensure monitoring takes place on a regular basis. 

The Parish Council are also concerned that in the dust assessment, the 

calculations are based on the wind direction data provided by Pershore 

monitoring station. The Parish Council question why a temporary wind 

monitoring station was not placed at the site.  

 

6.93 The Parish Council comment that the CEMEX site on the A38 (Ryall House 

Farm), generates dust daily and at time generates a great deal of dust which 

spreads a considerable distance, even as far as Naunton (in Worcestershire). 

It is not correct to compare potential dust emissions with those generated by 

agricultural working, which are usually very brief and transient in nature. The 

Parish Council fail to see how the workings would not cause significantly 

adverse air quality or dust impact within the vicinity. 

 

6.94 With regard to the historic environment, the Parish Council state that without a 

full Archaeological Field Evaluation Report based on trial digs, the Parish 

Council considers that the application is contrary to Policy SWDP 24: 

Page 110



75 
 

‘Management of the Historic Environment’ of the adopted South 

Worcestershire Development Plan and paragraph 194 of the NPPF. 

 

6.95 The Parish Council are concerned about the loss of recreational amenity in 

relation to the public rights of way in the vicinity of the site, particularly views 

from the Severn Way and views from the east, as walkers would experience 

substantial adverse effects. There does not appear to be a Recreational User 

Assessment other than identifying footpaths. There is also a danger that in 

upsetting the balance of the aquifer and the subsoils abilities to retain water 

across the site, surrounding trees may suffer. The Parish Council request 

conditions are imposed to ensure access to public rights of way are 

maintained at all times during the development and the field and hedge 

structures restored to the pre-existing works landscape. 

 

6.96 Should planning permission be granted the Parish Council would have major 

concerns about the ongoing sustainability of significant businesses on the 

border of the proposal, namely Church End Nurseries and the Puckrup Hall 

Hotel and Golf Course. The Parish Council understand that the Puckrup Hall 

Hotel employs in excess of 100 staff and receives over 40,000 sleeper 

bookings per year, plus around 850 Leisure Club members. The Golf Club has 

over 450 members and is used widely by locals as well as guests. Slightly 

further to the east, Hillview Lakes offers visitors fishing facilities. Horse riding 

stables are situated in Bow Lane immediately opposite the extraction site. 

 

6.97 If planning permission is granted the Parish Council recommend the 

imposition of conditions limiting working hours between 07:00 to 18:00 hours 

Mondays to Fridays, with no working on weekends, or Bank Holidays. No 

quarry related traffic should use Puckrup Lane and Bow Lane. The existing 

agricultural access along Bow Lane should be sealed to prevent fly tipping. 

The site perimeter should be fenced to deter rural crime. A formal Community 

Liaison Group should be established. The permission should be time limited. 

The Parish Council also request the applicant contributes funding for 

improvements to Ryall Recreation Ground and a recreation area for the 

community. 

 

6.98 In response to the applicant’s response to the EIA Regulation 25 Request 

(further information), the Parish Council states that the applicant has not 

provided assurances that third party inert material is available for infilling of the 

proposed quarry void, to keep pace with the restoration of the site. The Parish 

Council are concerned that due to the proximity of the River Severn and 

Severn Trent Water Limited’s Water Treatment Works for North 

Gloucestershire that it is imperative that there is no leeching of landfill 

pollutants to the river. In view of this, the Parish Council are opposed to landfill 

as a means of restoring the site.  

 

6.99 With regard to the proposed interceptor ditch, the Parish Council request 

clarification and assurances that the calculations included in the application 

are based on the final restoration, as Bow Lane currently floods. If the aquifer 

Page 111



76 
 

is replaced with significantly less permeable landfill, flood waters would be 

displaced to the western infiltration basin. As a result, the Parish Council query 

whether the proposed interceptor ditch would be draining to what would 

already be a flooded infiltration basin. In addition, the Parish Council consider 

that little regard has been given to Ripple Brook and the effects of this 

proposal impacting the brook and flooding. The Parish Council acknowledge 

that Flexible Working Areas A and B would be restored to lower levels, but the 

main Phases 1 to 9 would be restored to existing levels. Therefore, the chance 

to improve any post restoration flooding in Bow Lane would not be made and 

could be made worse due to infill by inert material. 

 

6.100 Phases 1 to 9 are proposed to be worked dry and that water from the 

excavated voids which would be clay lined, would consist of only rainwater 

which would be pumped to the interceptor ditches. The Parish Council 

question how this would function at times of flood.  

 

6.101 In respect to site security the Parish Council request that the Bow Lane 

perimeter is fully fenced to industrial standards and that this requirement 

should be secured by condition.   

 

6.102 With regard to agricultural land the Parish Council states that there does not 

appear to be any independent confirmation that the current high grade 

agricultural land would be available after restoration if the topsoil is merely 

placed over poor quality impervious inert infill, typically construction and 

demolition waste, which is what is being proposed. In addition, there is only 

limited information regarding quality, quantity and timescales of delivery of the 

infill and it suggests therefore, that, at times, storage of these inert materials 

would be required. There is nothing to say how or where this would be stored 

and therefore could be both unsightly and possibly have pollution implications. 

The Parish Council remain opposed to landfill as a means of restoration of the 

site. 

 

6.103 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) in relation to 

cumulative effects, the Parish Council states that they acknowledge there is a 

pressing need for sand and gravel and that each application has to be 

considered individually, however, it seems totally unfair on the residents of 

both Ripple and Uckinghall that they should be subjected to two possible 

mineral extraction sites at the same time. The fact that the applicant has been 

asked for a response about cumulative effects must surely illustrate that there 

is some concern about the proximity of the sites to each other and the impact 

upon residents. For more than a decade mineral extraction has been ongoing 

in Ripple Parish, and it is envisaged that this application is likely to last 

approximately 9 years. It is devastating for the residents that their lives and 

wellbeing are going to be blighted for all this time, possibly by two 

simultaneous quarry workings.  

 

6.104 The two proposed sites (Bow Farm Quarry and Ripple East Quarry) are very 

close to each other, and the Parish Council is surprised that the ES addendum 

Page 112



77 
 

considers that there are no significant adverse effects from the simultaneous 

working of Bow Farm Quarry and Ripple East Quarry, as the M50 Motorway 

acts as an attenuation buffer between the two sites. The Parish Council feel 

this is of little comfort to the residents and cannot see how there would not be 

some detrimental effects.  

 

6.105 Both sites are accessed down narrow lanes, and vehicles accessing both sites 

would either access through Bow Lane from Puckrup, or via Ripple Village 

itself, which leads to safety concerns for residents.  

 

6.106 Ripple Parish Council state that whilst the individual levels of noise emanating 

for each site, may not be considered excessive, they have concerns that the 

cumulative effects of noise would be damaging to the peaceful rural ambiance 

of the area and have harmful effects on the health and wellbeing of local 

residents. It must also be noted that in Ripple village there are many 

properties that are very close to both sites and would suffer the full effect, with 

little respite.  

 

6.107 The Parish Council are concerned about the proximity of the sites (Ripple East 

Quarry and Bow Farm Quarry) to one another in terms of dust impacts. There 

has been recent research that suggests that silica dust can cause silicosis and 

lung cancer, as well as other lung problems. The Parish Council hope that 

when considering the application both Worcestershire County Council and 

Gloucestershire County Council will look at this in depth and not rely on 

information submitted by the applicant. 

 

Bushley Parish Council (neighbouring parish in Worcestershire) 

 

6.108 The Parish Council objects to the proposal and makes the following 

observations:  

 

• There is a very large amount of sand and gravel to be extracted which 

would cause damage to the environment. 

• They note the heavy traffic required to complete the extraction.  

• The origins of the inert restoration materials do not appear to have 

been specified in the application. 

• They note the very lengthy period of extraction and restoration. 

• The Parish Council consider that the proposed wetland environment 

requires mineral extraction on such a largescale and over such a 

prolonged period it would cause irreparable damage. 

 

Longdon, Queenhill and Holdfast Parish Council (neighbouring parish in 

Worcestershire) 

 

6.109 The Parish Council objects to the proposal, stating that the A38 is a busy main 

road and becomes very quickly congested when there are problems on the M5 

and M50 Motorways. The application does not take into account the additional 

traffic likely to arise on the A38 from new housing developments planned over 

Page 113



78 
 

the next 10 years. The alternative option of using the River Severn for 

transport has not been thoroughly explored before being ruled out.  

 

6.110 The future risk of air pollution from quarry dust has not been robustly 

researched in the application. Although the submission refers to a negligible 

impact based on past data, the applicant has not taken into account the future 

mineral extraction workings in the area. 

 

6.111 Furthermore, the Parish Council consider that until the Worcestershire 

Minerals Local Plan has been adopted [now adopted by the County Council 

and forms part of the Development Plan] it is impossible to determine the real 

impact both of air pollution and road congestion.  

 

 GCC Public Health (‘Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities Hub’ team) 

 

6.112 Date comments received: 13.05.2022 

Summary Observation: Given that matters pertaining to noise and dust have 

been considered in the Environmental Statement and recommended 

mitigations will be implemented, GCC Public Health raise no objections to the 

proposal. However, for future applications of this type GCC Public Health 

strongly encourage the submission of an in-depth Health Impact Assessment. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

 Noise: 

• “The environmental assessment indicates that ‘noise levels are 

predicted to achieve the required noise limits set by relevant guidance 

and standards and would not exceed the maximum noise limit or the 

aim of background noise for the site lifetime. It does highlight however 

that activities such as soil-stripping, the construction and removal of 

baffle mounds, soil storage mounds and spoil heaps, construction of 

new permanent landforms and aspects of site road construction and 

maintenance will be particularly noisy.” 

 

• “Noise is also a nonspecific stressor that has been shown to have an 

adverse effect on human health, especially following long-term 

exposure.” 

 

• “The National Planning Policy Framework makes it clear that minerals 

planning authorities should ensure that unavoidable noise emissions 

are controlled, mitigated or removed at source and we would advocate 

for close monitoring of noise, particularly for those properties in near 

proximity of the site.” 

 
Economic Benefits: 

• “The development of the quarry could have a positive impact in terms of 

job creation and the likely benefits to the associated manufacturing and 

construction industry in the local area.” 

 

Page 114

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNPH_COMM_13MAY22.PDF


79 
 

Air Quality: 

• “Particulate Matter (PM) is a generic term used to describe a complex 

mixture of solid and liquid particles of varying size, shape, and 

composition. Some particles are emitted directly from sources such as 

cars and other vehicles, and operations that involve burning fuels such 

as wood or coal (primary PM); others are formed in the atmosphere 

through complex chemical reactions (secondary PM). The composition 

of PM varies greatly and depends on many factors, such as 

geographical location, emission sources and weather. PM is often 

classified according to aerodynamic size and referred to as: 

 

o coarse particles (PM10; particles that are less than 10 microns 

(µm) in diameter) 

o fine particles (PM2.5; particles that are less than 2.5 µm in 

diameter) 

o ultrafine particles (PM0.1; particles that are less than 0.1 µm in 

diameter) 

 

The size of particles and the duration of exposure are key determinants 

of potential adverse health effects. Particles larger than 10 µm are 

mainly deposited in the nose or throat, whereas particles smaller than 

10 µm pose the greatest risk because they can be drawn deeper into 

the lung. The strongest evidence for effects on health is associated with 

fine particles (PM2.5). 

 

There is an extensive body of evidence that long-term exposure to PM 

increases mortality and morbidity from cardiovascular and respiratory 

diseases. Outdoor air pollution, particularly PM, has also been 

classified by the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) 

as carcinogenic to humans (a Group 1 carcinogen) and causing lung 

cancer. There is some experimental evidence that ultrafine particles 

may also pass through the lungs into the bloodstream. There is a 

developing evidence base for a link between exposure to particulate 

matter and poorer early childhood development as well as the 

development of central nervous system conditions such as Alzheimer’s 

and Parkinson’s disease. Currently, there is no clear evidence of a safe 

level of exposure to PM below which there is no risk of adverse health 

effects.” 

 

• “Many minerals contain silica and produce silica dust known as 

respirable crystalline silica (RCS). The Bow Farm Quarry will be 

extracting sand and gravel and the crystalline silica concentrations are 

around 70% in these minerals.” 

 

• “All RCS is hazardous by inhalation as the ‘respirable’ dust, which is 

very fine and invisible under normal lighting, can get deep into the 

lungs. In the planning documentation, the Dust Management Plan 

dated December 2021 notes: 

Page 115



80 
 

‘The Defra predicted background concentrations for the earliest year of 

operation (2021) for the grid squares of the proposed development 

were 11.4 and 7.4 µg/m3 for PM10 and PM2.5 respectively. In 

accordance with the IAQM guidance, when background PM10 

concentrations are below 17 µg/m3 it is considered unlikely that the 

quarry process contribution would lead to an exceedance of the annual 

mean objective. 

 

The impacts on PM10 and PM2.5 from Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) 

traffic generated by the proposed quarry were assessed in a separate 

detailed air quality assessment. The assessment found that the Air 

Quality Observations (AQOs) at the façade of all existing receptors 

would be met with or without the quarry in place and no further air 

quality mitigation measures were recommended for the operational 

phase of the proposed development.’” 

 

• GCC Public Health “note that whilst the Defra guidance says that ‘from 

the experience of the Working Group, adverse dust impacts from sand 

and gravel sites are uncommon beyond 250 m measured from the 

nearest dust generating activities’, it also says: ‘In the absence of other 

information it is commonly accepted that the greatest impacts will be 

within 100 m of a source, and this can include both large (>30 µm) and 

small dust particles. The greatest potential for high rates of dust 

deposition and elevated PM10 concentrations occurs within this 

distance. Intermediate-sized particles (10 to 30 µm) may travel up to 

400 m, with occasional elevated levels of dust deposition and PM10 

possible. Particles less than 10µm have the potential to persist beyond 

400 m but with minimal significance due to dispersion.’ Six properties 

are within a 100m of the site and therefore fall within the ‘greatest 

impacts’ zone outlined in the Defra guidance. 

 

• The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) indicate that “no cases of 

silicosis have been documented among members of the general public 

in Great Britain, indicating that environmental exposures to silica dust 

are not sufficiently high to cause this occupational disease”. However, 

“The World Health Organisation (2021) note that small particulate 

pollution has health impacts even at very low concentrations – ‘indeed 

no threshold has been identified below which no damage to health is 

observed’.” 

 

• “The Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants (COMEAP) 

published an advice note on the health evidence relevant to developing 

targets for fine particulate air pollution (PM2.5) under the Environment 

Bill in July 2021. They note that both long-term and short-term 

exposures affect health but likely in different ways. People with pre-

existing disease are likely to be most sensitive to effects of short-term 

exposure, including effects that might not have occurred without peaks 

of elevated concentrations. Long-term exposure likely has the potential 

Page 116



81 
 

to affect everyone, by contributing to the initiation and/or progression of 

disease. 

The report further notes that ‘the newer evidence indicates associations 

of adverse effects with lower concentrations than were previously 

studied. The studies have not indicated a threshold of effect below 

which there is no harm nor a threshold below which there are 

decreases in relative risk (for example, the risk per 10 µg/m3 PM2.5) 

associated with long-term average concentrations of PM2.5. These 

findings suggest that continuing to reduce concentrations even below 

the WHO guideline value of 10 µg/m3 would benefit public health’.” 

 

• “The Dust Management Plan notes, ‘dust receptors can be within or 

beyond a quarry site boundary. Whilst dust generation within a minerals 

site is primarily of concern to its operator, staff and visitors, dust can 

propagate beyond the site boundary to affect people and properties 

beyond, unless adequate control measures are in place’, and ‘there are 

High sensitivity residential receptors within 250 m of the proposed 

development’. The Dust Management Plan could be strengthened by 

including acknowledgement that even at low levels PM2.5 poses a 

health risk, particularly for those properties within 100m of the site, and 

enhancing any operational and design control measures. We would 

highlight that where the Plan recommends visual assessment, this will 

not identify the smallest particles which are not visible under normal 

lighting.” 

 

• “Public health has taken into account the responses from: Public Health 

England in 2019 which state that it has ‘no significant concerns 

regarding risk to health of the local population from this proposed 

development, providing that the applicant takes all appropriate 

measures to prevent or control pollution, in accordance with the 

relevant sector technical guidance or industry best practice’; Worcester 

Regulatory Services; and the chapters in the Environmental Statement 

which address matters pertaining to health and wellbeing such as 

noise, dust and air quality.” 

 

• “Reducing public exposures to non-threshold pollutants (such as 

particulate matter and nitrogen dioxide) below air quality standards has 

potential public health benefits. Consequently, we would support any 

approaches which minimise or mitigate public exposure to non-

threshold air pollutants, address inequalities (in exposure), and 

encourage their consideration, implementation and monitoring 

throughout. We would support the following mechanisms highlighted in 

the reports: 

 
o Dust control measures be fitted to plant to avoid unacceptable 

emissions of dust; 

Page 117



82 
 

o Care be taken to avoid unacceptable dust emissions when inert 

material with relatively low moisture content is handled, 

especially in dry windy conditions; 

o Conditions Monitoring will be undertaken by Officers from 

Worcestershire County Council and Gloucestershire County 

Council to ensure adherence to requirements of planning 

conditions; 

o All pneumatic tools/compressors used on site shall be silenced 

or be sound reduced models and located away from noise 

sensitive receptors where possible.” 

 

Environment Agency 

 

6.113 Environment Agency have no objections to the proposal, subject to the 

imposition of conditions regarding ground and surface water monitoring 

scheme; a scheme for flood storage compensation including flood risk 

betterment (post scheme) and improvements to flood flow; and fish rescue 

being carried out in accordance with the submitted Fish Rescue Strategy.  

 

6.114 With regard to hydrogeology and hydrology, the Environment Agency state 

that they are in agreement with the assessment of potential impacts from this 

development as discussed for operational, restoration and post development 

phases and the mitigation proposed to reduce any of the identified impacts. 

 

6.115 In respect to the EIA Regulation 25 Request (further information) submission 

the Environment Agency re-confirm that they have no concerns. They 

comment that they are satisfied that any relevant impacts on the water 

environment could be suitably mitigated against to enable the development to 

proceed. The Environmental Impact Assessment assessed the potential 

impacts from this development for operational, restoration and post 

development phases and the mitigation proposed to reduce any of the 

identified impacts. The Regulation 25 Request (further information) 

submission reinforces the assessment in the Environmental Impact 

Assessment, confirming that there would be no adverse effects upon the 

surrounding water environment and the Environment Agency concur with 

these findings, subject to a scheme of monitoring for surface and groundwater 

is carried out to observe any potential changes from quarrying operations 

upon the water environment, and to ensure that mitigation is applied where 

necessary should any adverse effects be noted during quarry operations.  

 

6.116 The Environment Agency notes that clarification has been provided as to the 

proposed clay cut-off wall (interceptor ditch) and how this would operate 

during site works (Phases 1 to 9). The details confirm that there would be no 

groundwater abstraction from the sand and gravel aquifer for dewatering and, 

therefore, no drawdown effects placed upon the local water environment. The 

Environment Agency are satisfied with this technical solution, with the 

overarching being that no dewatering of the mineral would be necessary to 

enable extraction of the mineral. It is understood that the Flexible Working 

Page 118



83 
 

Areas A and B would be worked wet which are within the floodplain, and there 

would be no pumping, no cut-off installed and no de-watering of these areas. 

The mineral in these areas would be worked dry above the water table and 

wet beneath it.  

 

6.117 With regard to the proposed clay cut-off wall, the Environment Agency 

understand this would be constructed from site won materials extracted from 

the underlying Branscombe Mudstone Formation, which underlies the sand 

and gravels in this valley which is a good use of local materials. The 

Environment Agency agree that the Branscombe Mudstone Formation is a 

good material to construct the clay bund due to its geological and geotechnical 

properties. The construction of the cut-off ditches into these clay strata would 

also provide a good geological foundation to these structures and provide the 

hydraulic clay cut off required for this proposal to work effectively and convey 

water as proposed around the perimeter of the site. However, overtime these 

ditches would build up with silt at the bottom and be colonised by vegetation 

altering levels and the site operator would need to maintain the integrity of the 

ditches to make sure they are working effectively for their primary purpose 

conveying groundwater around the site. 

 

6.118 The Environment Agency recommend that chemical herbicides are not used 

for vegetation clearance to protect water quality in the surrounding aquifers 

and mechanical methods should be used instead. 

 

6.119 The Environment Agency agree with the proposal to monitor groundwater 

levels outside of the bund on the western side of the site to actually monitor 

the groundwater levels between the excavation void and the local waterbodies 

and thus confirm / demonstrate whether pre-development baseline conditions 

are being maintained during the operational and restoration phases. It is 

understood that the principle of the groundwater interceptor drains which are 

routed around the northern and southern perimeters of quarry Phases 1 to 9 is 

that when the base of the ditch starts to move above the groundwater level on 

the northern boundary, then the intercepted groundwater flow within the ditch 

would start to recharge and infiltrate back into the underlying sand and gravel 

strata. On the southern boundary the ditch base is likely to remain in contact 

with the underlying groundwater, enabling it to recharge intercepted 

groundwater back into the aquifer. The Environment Agency agree in principle 

with this approach.  

 

6.120 The Environmental Impact Assessment provided much detail regarding the 

importation of inert waste to enable restoration of Phases 1 to 9 back to pre-

extraction ground levels. Flexible Working Areas A and B would be restored to 

waterbodies and wetland using only site derived mineral waste (silts and 

clays) and would have a final landform below pre-extraction ground levels. 

The Environment Agency encourages the applicant to minimise the need for 

infill and to maximise the flood storage potential and associated biodiversity 

net gain. The importation of any inert waste post extraction is a landfilling 

activity which would require an Environmental Permit under the Environmental 

Page 119



84 
 

Permitting Regulations. Restoration of this site would be controlled by the 

Environmental Permit conditions and the Environment Agency have no 

concerns from a hydro-geological/groundwater protection point of view with 

this restoration proposal, as long as the materials being brought in are 

screened sufficiently. The Environmental Permit would require the site to have 

an adequate liner with an appropriate monitoring network to demonstrate 

compliance. The Environmental Permit would also control emissions to land 

air and water (e.g., noise and dust emissions). 

 

6.121 It is important that before the material is even brought to site, it should be 

sorted at source so that only inert materials are accepted at the site before 

landfilling and they would need to be appropriately screened and Waste 

Acceptance Criteria (WAC) tested to make sure that they are compliant and 

suitable for use as suggested as inert landfill under the Environmental Permit. 

The site-specific permit itself would detail the inert materials which can be 

landfilled at the site. 

 

6.122 The Environment Agency also comment that a permit to discharge may be 

required where a discharge is to be made from a septic tank or onsite package 

treatment sewerage plant.  

 

6.123 With regard to oil tanks on site, the Environment Agency state that the location 

and size of these tanks would have to meet the requirements of the Oil 

Storage Regulations and all appropriate pollution prevention measures should 

be in place to protect the water environment. To prevent pollution of the water 

environment any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals should be 

sited on impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls.  

 

6.124 With regard to flood risk, the Environment Agency comment that sand and 

gravel workings are classed as ‘water compatible’ development and although 

two of the proposed excavation areas do fall within Flood Zone 3 (high 

probability of flooding), the proposed use is suitable in all flood zones. Parts of 

the site also lie within Flood Zone 2 (medium probability of flooding) and Flood 

Zone 1 (low probability of flooding). The majority of the excavation areas are 

located in Flood Zone 1. A Flood Risk Assessment has been undertaken and 

the Environment Agency confirm they are generally satisfied with the 

document which confirms that excavation areas (Flexible Working Areas A 

and B) in the floodplain would be restored to open water and wetlands with 

ground levels lower than existing so post development there would be a ‘gain’ 

in flood storage at the quarry. 

 

6.125 The Flood Risk Assessment confirms that Phases 1 to 9 would be restored to 

or below existing ground levels. The key is, therefore, to ensure that flood risk 

to third parties is not increased by the development by impacting upon flow 

routes or by the loss of flood storage due to stockpiles of material or 

landscaping bunds. As highlighted in the Flood Risk Assessment, previous 

pre-application discussions have taken place with the Environment Agency 

where it was agreed that hydraulic modelling would not be required, providing 

Page 120



85 
 

flood storage would not be reduced at any phase of the works and that flow 

routes would be maintained. The Flood Risk Assessment includes details of 

the flood storage compensation scheme. Certain assumptions have been 

made as part of this storage assessment, for example that 20% of the length 

of the bunds would be open to allow floodwater to pass through the structure 

so this would need to be adhered to. However, the Environment Agency are 

satisfied with the information submitted which confirms that there would not be 

any losses resulting from stored material or the screening bund, as this is 

being offset by the quarrying works and the storage proposed to be provided 

is on a level for level volume for volume basis. Any impacts resulting from 

temporary bridges are likely to be negligible although this is also being 

compensated for. However, there is no mention of conveyance and impacts 

on flood flow routes, but this could be controlled by a condition requiring a 

scheme for flood storage compensation including flood risk betterment (post 

scheme) and improvements to flood flow.  

 

6.126 In response to comments from local residents, in particular the residents’ 

group REACT in relation to flooding and the proposed drainage regime. The 

Environment Agency state that in most places the ditch is higher than the 

design fluvial flood level anyway so would not be impacted by the River 

Severn backing up it. In other parts backing up of the ditch could occur (water 

will always find a way to reach the peak whether it is through ditches or over 

land) but is located away from the local properties. There is always a risk 

water cannot drain into the River Severn when it is high, although the 

catchments are so different in size the peak of the River Severn should not be 

up when the ditch is peaking. 

 

6.127 In response to the comments from Ripple Parish Council regarding the role of 

Ripple Brook which feeds into Mythe Brook, and the relevance of any impact 

to the Uckinghall flood relief scheme, the Environment Agency state that they 

have previously made comments in relation to fluvial flood risk in the context 

of the Flood Risk Assessment, and the nature of the proposals i.e., a quarry 

which is ‘water compatible’ development, including that material is going to be 

excavated from the floodplain, along with future management proposals, 

which would be beneficial in the long-term. Their original response to this 

planning application confirmed that they are generally satisfied with the 

document which confirms that excavation areas (Flexible Working Areas A 

and B) in the floodplain would be restored to open water and wetlands with 

ground levels lower than existing so post development there would be a ‘gain’ 

in flood storage at the quarry. The Flood Risk Assessment also confirms that 

Phases 1-9 would be restored to or below existing ground levels.  

 

6.128 Flood storage has been provided with Appendix 13 of the Flood Risk 

Assessment showing details of the flood storage compensation scheme and 

calculations up to the design flood level of 13.20 metres AOD. The Lead Local 

Flood Authority may have comments to make as the watercourses in question 

(Ripple Brook and Mythe Brook) are classed as ‘ordinary’ under their 

Page 121



86 
 

jurisdiction, but the major influence here is the River Severn – Main River, 

backing up or limiting flows away from the tributaries. 

 

6.129 The Environment Agency state that Uckinghall flood defences are designed to 

a level of 13.2 metres AOD, which represents the 1% Annual Exceedance 

Probability (AEP) flood level. The design flood level at the Bow Farm Quarry is 

set out in the Flood Risk Assessment. Appendix 13 of the Flood Risk 

Assessment states “the peak 1:100-year flood (Flood Zone 3 – ‘active 

floodplain’) level, including a 20% climate change allowance, is 13.19 metres 

AOD. However, for the purpose of this volumetric [flood storage] exercise, the 

‘active floodplain’ is conservatively assumed to be 13.20 metres AOD (rather 

than 13.19 metres AOD)”. The Environment Agency consider it is unlikely that 

the Uckinghall flood defence scheme would be impacted by the proposed 

works. The Flood Risk Assessment does not show a significant rise in flood 

levels as a result of the works. 

 

6.130 With regard to the tributaries (Ripple Brook and Mythe Brook), due to the scale 

of the Severn floodplain and the influence of the River Severn, any change to 

levels in the tributaries would be insignificant in comparison. Given the 

catchment sizes flood events on the River Severn and the two tributaries are 

not likely to occur at the same time. If flow levels in the River Severn are high, 

it does not necessarily follow that flow levels in the tributaries would be high, 

and vice versa. The rivers are likely to behave very differently through different 

events. 

 

6.131 With regard to the comments about potentially “downgrading” wastes to make 

them inert and therefore suitable as restoration materials, whilst some natural 

soils may be contaminated with hazardous elements, there is currently a ban 

on mixing / blending wastes to simply “dilute” hazardous components down to 

safe levels.  Barring changes to existing environmental protection legislation, 

any review of current hazardous classifications would of course require very 

careful technical assessment, it is not simply a case of “relabelling” materials 

to say they are now “inert”.   

 

6.132 With regard to the Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH), according to 

the Environment Agency’s records, there is an adjacent ‘major accident 

hazard pipeline’ in proximity of the development site. The developer is advised 

to check with the pipeline operator where known, or the Local Authority to 

inform land use planning and before proceeding. 

 

6.133 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the Environment Agency state that after reviewing the ES 

addendum, they agree in principle with the cumulative assessment undertaken 

and make the following comments below. 

 

6.134 Although the proposed sand and gravel quarry developments at Ripple East 

(by CEMEX) and Bow Farm (by M C Cullimore (Gravels) Ltd) are 

geographically near to one another, in terms of risk to the water environment, 

Page 122



87 
 

Bow Farm Quarry would not be dewatered thus reducing risks to water 

receptors, utilising a low permeability cut-off trench to effectively seal the Bow 

Farm Quarry site from the surrounding gravel aquifer. The Ripple East Quarry 

development on the other hand, would be dewatered lowering the 

groundwater table locally within the sands and gravels to the development 

with mitigation and monitoring proposed to protect water receptors as 

identified and discussed in the application and accompanying ES. Dewatered 

groundwater at Ripple East Quarry would be pumped into the adjacent 

watercourse to the west of the site conveying this water to Ripple Lake (Ripple 

Lake & The Napps LWS) further south to mitigate and compensate for any 

impacts from drawdown during quarry dewatering activities at the quarry. The 

Bow Farm Quarry development, therefore, cannot be affected by Ripple East 

Quarry dewatering as Bow Farm Quarry would in effect be cut-off from the 

surrounding gravel aquifer. 

 

6.135 The applicant’s consultants have reviewed the documentation provided by 

CEMEX for the Ripple East Quarry development, and they agree with the 

submitted CEMEX cumulative impact assessment concluding that both 

developments can happen simultaneously without affecting each other and 

without increasing the impact on the surrounding environment. The proposed 

impermeable cut-off at Bow Farm Quarry would limit the radius of the 

dewatering implications from the pumping activities at Ripple East Quarry. The 

addendum also states that whilst the baseline conditions may differ from the 

original Bow Farm Quarry ES and Hydrological and Hydrogeological Impact 

and Flood Risk Assessment, if dewatering commences on the Ripple East 

Quarry site prior to cut-off placement at the Bow Farm Quarry site, once the 

cut-off is in place (which is prior to below groundwater table mineral 

excavation at Bow Farm Quarry), the findings and conclusions reached in the 

original ES and Hydrological and Hydrogeological Impact and Flood Risk 

Assessment for the proposed mineral extraction at Bow Farm Quarry would 

remain entirely valid, and the proposed dewatering activities, groundwater 

dewatering discharge and low-level restoration associated with the proposed 

development at Ripple East Quarry would have no detrimental impacts on 

Bow Farm Quarry site.  

 

6.136 In terms of cumulative fluvial flooding, the Environment Agency are satisfied 

with the conclusion reached in addendum, that there should be no cumulative 

flood risk impact resulting from the Ripple East Quarry and Bow Farm Quarry 

sites operating adjacent to each other providing works are carried out in 

accordance with the submitted Flood Risk Assessments for the separate 

applications. 

 

6.137 In summary, the addendum concludes that there would be no increased 

cumulative impact with respect to water related matters when considering both 

Ripple East Quarry and Bow Farm Quarry proposal, and the proposed 

dewatering at Ripple East Quarry site would most likely be restricted by the 

impermeable cut-off at Bow Farm Quarry, limiting the impact of the dewatering 

to the south of both Ripple East quarry and Bow Farm Quarry developments.  

Page 123



88 
 

6.138 The Environment Agency agree in principle with the above conclusions and 

consider that the risk of cumulative impacts from both the Ripple East Quarry 

and Bow Farm Quarry proposals occurring simultaneously are low to the water 

environment in the surrounding area, as long as appropriate mitigation and 

water monitoring are implemented for both developments, as outlined in the 

Environment Agency’s consultation response to both applications (set out 

above).  

 

6.139 In response to the HRA Appropriate Assessment (AA), the Environment 

Agency originally requested further information in relation to impacts upon 

migratory fish. In response to the additional information from the applicant 

providing a Fish Rescue Strategy, and the subsequent updated HRA AA, the 

Environment Agency comment that they note the Strategy is principally 

directed to the proposed flexible working phases located in Flood Zone 3, but 

the Strategy would be applied site wide, if and when required. The 

Environment Agency consider that the Fish Rescue Strategy addresses their 

previous concerns and is satisfactory. They recommend securing the Strategy 

with the imposition of an appropriately worded planning condition. The 

Environment Agency confirm they have no further comments on the HRA AA. 

 

UK Health Security Agency (formerly Public Health England) 

 

6.140 The UK Health Security Agency (UKHAS) commented that based on the 

information submitted, they have no significant concerns regarding the risk to 

health of the local population from this proposed development, providing that 

the applicant takes all appropriate measures to prevent or control pollution, in 

accordance with the relevant sector technical guidance or industry best 

practice. 

 

6.141 UKHAS also note that this development, or specific phases of it may require 

an Environmental Permit from the Environment Agency, for which UKHSA 

would be a consultee.  

 

6.142 UK Health Security Agency consider that the main concerns from an 

environmental public health perspective are nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emissions 

from vehicles travelling to and from the site, and on-site movements, and 

fugitive emissions of dust and fine particulates in the Particulate Matter (PM) 

PM10 (particles with a diameter of 10 microns or less), and PM2.5 sized 

fractions (particles with a diameter of 2.5 microns or less), from on-site 

operations and vehicles travelling to and from the site, and on-site 

movements. UK Health Security Agency also notes that the submitted ES 

included two assessments concerned with the risk to air quality from dust and 

other PM, and NO2 emissions, respectively. The assessments demonstrate 

that the annual mean and one-hour mean UK Air Quality Strategy (AQS) 

objectives for NO2 are forecast to be met at the façade of all existing 

receptors. The PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations are also forecast to meet their 

respective UK National Air Quality Strategy (AQS) objectives, at all modelled 

receptors. 

Page 124



89 
 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services  

 

6.143 Although no longer contracted by Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) to 

provide advice on environmental health matters pertaining to contaminated 

land, air quality, noise, dust and vibration, Worcestershire Regulatory Services 

(WRS) had provided comments on application 19/0081/TWMAJM on behalf of 

Tewkesbury Borough Council up to the end of May 2022. 

 

(Dust and Air Quality) 

 

6.144 WRS state that the Air Quality Assessment is satisfactory and is in line with 

the relevant policy and guidance. The report concludes that there would be 

moderately adverse impacts as a result of the proposed development at all 

near receptors and slight adverse impacts elsewhere provided that the dust 

mitigation measures outlined in the Dust Management Plan are adhered to. 

They also state that the submitted Dust Management Plan appears 

satisfactory. They state they are satisfied that the submitted air quality / dust 

information is acceptable. In terms of dust exposure for people working on the 

site, this would be a matter for the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) under 

the relevant work regulations.  

 

6.145 WRS state that they have reviewed public comments, in particular the 

comments from local residents’ groups with respect to PM2.5 (particles that 

have diameter of 2.5 microns or less), the guidance (Institute of Air Quality 

Management (IAQM) ‘Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust Impacts 

for Planning’, May 2016(v1.1)) states that “the other potential air quality impact 

is the increase in ambient suspended PM concentrations local to the site. As 

noted earlier, the PM10 fraction is relevant to health outcomes. For quarries 

most of this suspended dust would be in the coarse sub-fraction (PM2.5-10), 

rather than in the fine (PM2.5) fraction”. Any PM2.5 levels in the area could 

not readily be attributed to the quarry and are likely to be transboundary or 

associated with agricultural activities and the M50 Motorway. 

 

6.146 With regards to the statement from a local residents’ group that “the applicant 

in section 3.5 notes that current background levels of harmful 10 micron 

particles are already at over 30% of the permissible levels so again it is 

inconceivable that the levels will not be exceeded when mining starts”. The 

guidance states that “if the long-term background PM10 concentration is less 

than 17 micrograms (μg) / cubic metre (m3) there is little risk that the Process 

Contribution would lead to an exceedance of the annual-mean objective” and 

“evidence provided by the Minerals Guidance Working Group suggests that 

the maximum annual mean Process Contribution is likely to be around 15 

μg/m3 although occasionally it can be greater”. The background PM10 

concentration for the opening operational year is estimated to be 12 .52μg/m3 

(Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (2019). Background 

Mapping data for local authorities – 2017), therefore, it is unlikely that the 

annual-mean objective for PM10 would be exceeded. 

 

Page 125



90 
 

6.147 WRS state that while enclosing stockpiles of material within three sided bays 

would be an ideal technique to further reduce any wind whipping, it may not be 

practical and would require additional vehicle movements, which would create 

more noise and potentially more fugitive dust emissions.  The regulation of the 

concrete batching area would be a matter for Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

As some of the stockpiled materials would be used in the concrete batching 

plant, the site won stockpiles may be considered to be technically connected 

and the operational permit for the concrete batching plant may cover dust 

management of the stockpiles.  

 

6.148 WRS go on to state that the processing activity is a wet process, thereby 

reducing the potential for dust emissions compared to a dry process. WRS 

reviewed the Dust and Air Quality Assessments as well as the Dust 

Management Plan and concluded that the proposed monitoring and mitigation 

measures are acceptable.  

 

6.149 With regard to Church End Nurseries, an assessment of the risk has been 

carried out for activities affecting this location and the Magnitude of Dust 

Effects was assessed as “Negligible”. 

 

6.150 In response to the comments from the local residents group REACT, which 

“require clarification on the provenance of the ‘background concentrations”. 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services comment that the background PM 

concentrations quoted in the assessment are taken from the Defra 

Background Mapping Data tool for local authorities.  

 

6.151 REACT go onto state that “we feel that there are many areas where details on 

crucial aspects are entirely lacking, amongst these are lorry movements of the 

Inert materials. There are no details as to how the materials will reach the site 

or how they will be transported around the site. These movements will also 

create dust, which has not been taken into account in the Dust Mitigation 

Report”. Worcestershire Regulatory Services comment that they cannot 

comment on how vehicles would reach the site or how they would be 

transported around the site or the routing of the vehicles to and from the site, 

however, dust control measures of vehicle movements on the site and HGVs 

leaving the site are addressed by the applicant in the submitted Dust 

Management Plan.   

 

6.152 WRS raised no objections on matters concerning dust and air quality, subject 

to the imposition of a condition requiring continuous dust monitoring at 

locations on the site boundary before commencement of operations as an 

early warning system of excess dust in the atmosphere and to complement 

the submitted Dust Management Plan. In addition to which WRS suggest a 

condition restricting the height of stockpiles so that they do not exceed the 

height of the surrounding bunds. 

 

 

 

Page 126



91 
 

 (Noise and Vibration) 

 

6.153 Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) (on behalf of TBC) have no 

objections to the proposal, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring an 

updated Noise Management Plan and controlling the operating hours.  

 

6.154 WRS consider that the proposed noise mitigation measures, bunding, acoustic 

fencing and broadband reversing alarms, as recommended in the original 

noise assessment, together with the proposed hours of operations are 

adequate and that the cumulative (quarrying and processing) noise levels at 

nearest sensitive receptor(s) are within the levels set out in the Planning 

Practice Guidance for mineral operations.  In terms of any planning condition 

relating to noise, WRS recommend conditioning the use of only broadband 

reversing alarms for site vehicles, along with undertaking periodic noise 

monitoring during the operational phase of the proposed development in order 

to demonstrate compliance with the Planning Practice Guidance for Mineral 

Operations noise limits. 

 

6.155 In terms of potential noise and dust from the proposed concrete batching 

plant, this activity would require an Environmental Permit from Tewkesbury 

Borough Council. In the experience of WRS when such facilities are properly 

managed, they do not create significant noise or dust emissions and any 

deposition of dust beyond the site boundary would be a breach of a permit 

condition and dealt with appropriately. In terms of noise exposure for people 

working on the site, this would be a matter for the HSE under the Noise at 

Work Regulations. 

 

6.156 WRS state that they have reviewed public comments, in particular the 

comments from local residents’ groups, and consider that the applicant’s 

responses to the EIA Regulation 25 Request (further information) relating to 

noise appear satisfactory and confirm that all operational noise levels would 

be in line with the relevant guidance. 

 

6.157 WRS understand that the sound pressure levels used within the noise 

assessment are actual measured levels as opposed to predicted sound power 

levels based on the BS5228 reference tables and, therefore, should be more 

accurate. 

 

6.158 In terms of the receptor positions chosen these appear to have been 

addressed within the applicant’s responses to the EIA Regulation 25 Request 

(further information).  

 

6.159 In relation to noise impacting Church End Nurseries, WRS have reviewed the 

submitted further information and the applicant’s response 

and continue to raise no objections on noise grounds.  

 

6.160 In relation to noise impacting Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Course, they also 

consider that the response from the applicant is acceptable and the proposed 

Page 127



92 
 

additional noise barriers around the proposed processing / concrete batching 

plant area would further reduce noise impacting these areas and should 

ideally be implemented. 

 

6.161 WRS consider that the submitted Noise Management Plan appears 

satisfactory, however, they recommend that a scheme for noise monitoring be 

included in the Noise Management Plan. In view if this, a condition should be 

imposed requiring the Noise Management Plan to be updated and submitted 

for approval. WRS originally recommended that the MPA may also wish to 

consider restricting noisy works to after 08:00 hours Mondays to Saturdays in 

order to minimise early morning noise, but they note the applicant’s response 

stating that this should not be necessary due to the prevailing noise climate in 

the area and therefore, WRS withdraw this recommendation.  

 

 GCC Landscape Advisor (LA) 

 

6.162 Date comments received: 10.01.2020 

Summary Observation: The landscape advisors for both GCC and WCC are in 

general agreement on the key issues of the application as it affects both 

Counties. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• From their site observations, the LA is of the opinion that the 

“landscape & visual impacts on both counties from the quarry area will 

be limited, taking into account limited numbers of receptors, topography 

and existing vegetation.” 

 

• “Potentially the most substantial visual impacts will come from the 

works within GCC and particular the visual impact of moving traffic on 

receptors to the south of the access road from the quarry to the 

processing area and from there to the A38. The existing landscape is 

characterised by the lack of roads or lanes and thus vehicle movements 

in a low intensity agricultural landscape. As such movements of HGVs 

and other quarry traffic on the haul road and within the process 

compound will be very noticeable. In respect of this I would be pleased 

if you could ask the applicant: 

 

o If consideration has been or can be given to the use of a 

conveyor to move material from the in-quarry stockpile to the 

process area? 

o If consideration can be given to greater screen bunding to the 

haul road to the A38? 

o If consideration can be given to temporary mounding within the 

blue line on the ridgeline east and parallel to the process area 

where the additional height and proximity to receptors should 

assist in screening views both of traffic movements and, as 

Page 128

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=22


93 
 

indicated by sections on drawing DR-0013, where static plant is 

not fully screened by the currently proposed bunding?” 

 

• Looking at the final restoration plan, the LA asked if “it possible for any 

biodiversity enhancement works to be undertaken to better physically 

link the area of ponds formed from the settlement lagoons with the 

wetland area created in Flexible Working Areas A & B?” 

 

6.163 Date comments received: 13.01.2020 

Summary Observation:  

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• The LA states that there are a number of areas where they have been 

unable to identify sufficient detail in the submission to allow them to 

fully consider the impacts of the development where it lies within 

Gloucestershire, nor in considering the cumulative effects of the 

substantive quarry area located within Worcestershire. 

 

• For Gloucestershire the LA states that the main potential landscape 

and visual impacts arising from the development within the county 

relate to “the haul road from the main extraction area, the plant and 

processing area and the access to the A38. There are however 

potential cumulative impacts arising from the potential visual impacts of, 

in particular the stockpiles and radial conveyor in quarry area 9, from 

the workings for flexible phases A & B and from vehicle movements, 

both of won material from quarry to process area and thence to the A38 

but also from vehicle movements to import the 1.4m tonnes of inert 

material required for restoration.” In general, the LA is concerned that 

there are too many areas where there is either insufficient or no 

information or where too much is intended to be left for future 

determination by condition to enable the LA to provide final comments 

to the MPA on Landscape & Visual matters. Through the MPA’s EIA 

Reg.25 request for additional information from the applicant, the LA 

sought clarification/further information on the following matters: 

 

Advance Landscape Works 

o Details of advance planting works to include locations, species, 

densities and sizes of planting. 

o Details of screen bunding and topsoil storage bunds to include 

details of heights and side slope batters 

o Details of arboricultural tree protection works and how these and 

offsets are to be maintained for the duration of the works 

o I note that it is intended to retain the farm access from Bow Lane. 

Whilst this is not unreasonable to provide access post restoration, 

the application needs to demonstrate how use of this access will 

Page 129

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=22


94 
 

be precluded during the operational phase i.e. to ensure it is not 

used when the area of the haul road is flooded. 

 

Movement of won material from Quarry to Process Area 

o Details of proposed conveyor system (height/appearance/colour 

etc) 

o Details of radial conveyor and maximum height of stockpiles 

o Type of vehicles and number of vehicle movements between 

stockpile and process area (to include separate identification of 

inert material importation vehicle movements) and assessment of 

visual impact of same on the tranquillity of the landscape in views 

from the southern arc (to include views from west of the river) 

o Details of Haul Road to include height (recognising issues of 

soft/waterlogged ground), provision to ensure flooding is not 

worsened in the area by water retention arising, finishes, details of 

segregation from and crossing for PROW and details of fencing or 

other security/safety measures 

o Recognising that the haul road impacts on registered common 

land; confirmation of and potential loss of common land arising 

from the construction of the haul road and, if required, details of 

provision and quantum of any off-set land. 

o Details of commoners rights potentially affected and how these 

are protected during operation of the haul road. 

 

Process Area 

o Details (Plan & Sections) of the process area to show: areas of cut 

and levels to create working platform(s). Ground finishes. Height 

of bunds to process area and ponds. 

o Details of plant and machinery including screening and washing 

plant and concrete batching plant/silos. 

o Assessment of impact of cut/fill, bunding etc on existing woodland 

to the north of the area 

o Details of weighbridge/office buildings 

o Details of haul road to A38 finishes and bunding 

o Details of A38 visibility splays, existing hedgerow lost and 

mitigation planting 

o More detailed sections to receptors to the south to show the 

above information 

 

Restoration 

o Justification for the need for the importation of inert material. It is 

not clear that the alternative restoration option of no importation 

has been fully considered or assessed. Consideration should be 

given to the extent of restoration to agriculture without importation, 

the additional biodiversity enhancement potential of this and the 

potential wider area benefits of increased flood storage capacity 

arising from reduced restoration levels. 

 

Page 130



95 
 

o Demonstrate that there is sufficient potential inert material 

available within Gloucestershire/Worcestershire to achieve the 

proposed restoration within the timescale applied for. 

 

o Provide justification for biodiversity gain benefits of the proposed 

restoration of Areas A & B to a series of similar sized small ponds 

as opposed to greater variation in habitat. 

 

o Demonstrate how ecological habitat connectivity is achieved 

between the restored settlement ponds and the main restoration 

area and adjacent wildlife corridors. 

 

o I would be unhappy to accept the degree of detail the applicant is 

seeking to have conditioned for the restoration. An indicative only 

plan with no detail will make safeguarding of an appropriate 

restoration difficult. I would wish to see sufficient restoration detail 

provided and approved at this stage such that final scheme detail, 

if necessary, is varied by application. Details should include: 

 

▪ Restoration contours 

▪ Soil profiles 

▪ Planting mixes, sizes, species and densities. Identification 

of areas for woodland/hedgerow/scrub/wetland/grassland 

restoration. Biodiversity enhancements to phase areas 1-

9 including differentiation of proposed drainage ditch 

within these areas. 

▪ Pond profiles including extent of aquatic and marginal 

aquatic planting 

▪ Any provision for enhanced public access to restored 

areas e.g. through footpaths, bird hides etc. 

 

Other Matters 

 

• Whilst not a direct landscape or visual consideration, there appears to 

be limited assessment of the impact of flooding on the time the quarry 

can remain operational, on the potential pollution risk at times of 

flooding from open workings, the security of the conveyor and other 

plant and on operative safety. There also needs to be an assessment of 

any impact of flooding on the ability to or timing of achieving the 

proposed restoration. 

 

6.164 Date comments received: 17.09.2020 

Summary Observation: The additional information submitted covers a number 

of the areas of concern that the LA had previously raised, but not all. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• The following points do not appear to have been covered in the 

additional information: 

Page 131



96 
 

o Details of proposed conveyor system (height/appearance/colour 

etc) 

o Type of vehicles and number of vehicle movements between 

stockpile and process area (to include separate identification of 

inert material importation vehicle movements) and assessment 

of visual impact of same on the tranquillity of the landscape in 

views from the southern arc (to include views from west of the 

river) 

o Impact of the construction of the plant area and bunding on the 

existing woodland belt to the immediate north. 

 

• The LA is of the opinion that these points need to be addressed “in 

order to ensure an informed assessment of visual impact and impact on 

the woodland in the absence of any identified off-sets.” 

 

• In respect of the information submitted in connection with the first EIA 

Reg.25 request, the LA made the following comments: 

 

“1) DR0016 shows the plant site elevations but the vertical dimensions 

do not appear to correspond with the maximum height of the plant 

shown? For example heights shown for the batching plant, conveyors 

and silos are all marked to a point below the highest graphic 

representation. 

 

2) Linked to the above, it is clear, for example section D-DD on DR0013 

that elements of the plant will be visible from nearby residential and 

other receptors. The Landscape & Visual Assessment Addendum, 

however, only assesses the visual impact of the bunding and lighting; 

not of the plant and associated movement e.g. from material on the 

conveyors as it is moved and deposited to stockpiles. 

 

3) Drawing DR0007 shows a better proposed restoration plan than 

previously submitted; especially when read in conjunction with the 

David Jarvis Associates Detailed Restoration Proposals and Landscape 

and Ecology Management Plan. It may be a graphical representation 

issue, but the margins to the retained settlement lagoon area do not 

appear to have been changed from the operational phase and thus 

appear out of keeping with the general landscape character of the area. 

4) The LEMP (Landscape Ecological Management Plan) (para 4.4) 

appears to suggest separate 5-year aftercare plans for each phase? 

Whilst this is primarily an issue for Worcestershire, I would normally 

expect to see a site-wide 5-year plan for all phase areas on completion 

of the final phase and, for a scheme of this size, a longer aftercare and 

monitoring period of, say 25 years, to ensure reintegration of the 

restored scheme with the landscape character of the area and to 

ensure stated biodiversity gains are achieved. Key for this scheme will 

be to ensure that land restored to agriculture meets or betters the 

Page 132



97 
 

stated aims in the soil handling report and is accepted back into 

agricultural use. 

 

5) Appendix 1 of the LEMP helpfully gives details of the different 

landscape character types, the planting sizes, spacings and species; 

however, I could not see spacings for the hedge planting? 

 

6) Whilst it is not directly my area, I am conscious that failure of 

schemes to obtain sufficient imported inert material is frequently the 

reason for applications to extend restoration periods which does directly 

impact on landscape & visual matters. Within the Environmental 

Statement, Section 3 seeks to justify availability of inert material and no 

cumulative impact on other schemes by highlighting the amount of new 

housing allocation in the area. I have concerns that this doesn't 

consider the timeline for this allocation to be brought on line, even as 

an informed estimate, nor the volumes of material that would be 

available once recycling of material to other uses has been maximised. 

 

7) I would note that I consider comment on the visual impact of the 

scheme on the setting of Towbury Hill Camp to be a matter more 

appropriately commented on by the heritage advisors and consultees. 

 

8) Para 9.5 of the LVIA Addendum notes a major adverse visual impact 

from the bunding when viewed from the northern section of Bow Lane. 

Whilst this is noted as temporary, presumably for the duration of the 

bund's existence, I am surprised there appears to be no proposal to 

offer additional mitigation of this impact, for example by slackening 

viewed face batters or planting?” 

 

• “As previously noted, for Gloucestershire the main potential landscape 

and visual impacts arising from the development within the county 

relate to the haul road from the main extraction area, the plant and 

processing area and the access to the A38. I have commented on this 

above, but would reiterate my previous comments that there are, 

however, potential cumulative impacts arising from the potential visual 

impacts of, in particular the stockpiles and radial conveyor in quarry 

area 9, from the workings for flexible phases A & B and from vehicle 

movements, both of won material from quarry to process area and 

thence to the A38 but also from vehicle movements to import the 1.4m 

tonnes of inert material required for restoration. These still appear not 

to have been considered.” 

 

• “I have read the County Ecologist's response and share his concern 

that the impact of loss of trees in some areas, especially around the 

new access, have not been fully assessed. I note that he has proposed 

a number of conditions should you be minded to grant approval to the 

application. In general, these mirror those that I would want for 

landscape. Whilst I would want to wait for responses to my comments 

Page 133



98 
 

above before finalising my proposed conditions, I would anticipate 

proposing they cover the following additional items: 

 

o 5-year replacement of dead or failing nursery stock on completion 

of each phase 

o An overall maintenance period, the duration of which is to be 

agreed, on completion of the final restoration. 

o A condition to ensure land restored to agricultural use is adopted 

for same and farmed appropriately 

o Detailed landscape restoration plans to be submitted for approval 

at least 6 months prior to the completion of each phase and to 

include a detailed pre-commencement plan for advance planting. 

This to include confirmation of detail not covered in the LEMP e.g. 

seeding mixes and sowing rates. 

o A condition to confirm maximum permitted heights of bunding and 

of stockpiles. 

o A condition to provide for appropriate management of woodland, 

hedgerows and veteran trees retained and protected during the 

life of the works and beyond to accord with the aftercare scheme. 

 

As before I have copied this email to Adam Mindykowski at 

Worcestershire to facilitate a coordinated response.” 

 

6.165 Date comments received:  29.04.2021 

Summary Observation:  The LA recommended that the additional information 

they highlighted should be requested from the applicant prior to determination 

and recommendations for conditions. 

Summary/extracts of comments made in response to the information 

submitted in connection with the MPA’s 2nd EIA Reg.25 request: 

 

• “In consideration of the above revised information I am content that the 

majority of my previous comments have now been addressed. I would 

recommend, either by condition or a request for the information now, an 

appropriate colour scheme for the conveyors and plant and machinery 

is agreed to ensure visual impact is minimised.” 

 

• “I note that no provision for permissive public access has been made to 

some or all of the parts of the site not being restored to agriculture. This 

does seem a missed opportunity to add public benefit to the application 

and would offset some of the adverse visual, noise and potentially dust 

impacts on users of the PROW Twining 37, across the site, during 

quarry operation. Can I ask that the applicant is asked to give this 

further consideration?” 

 
Following a review of the public comments received from D Luckett dated 

10.04.21, Local Residents dated 13.04.21 and REACT letter dated 26.04.21, 

the LA made the following comments: 

 

Page 134



99 
 

• “1) Landscape Impact 

 

a. As I have previously noted and as generally accepted; mineral 

extraction can only happen where those minerals exist. New quarrying 

will, of necessity remove the existing landscape. The question is always 

one of acceptability given the quality of that landscape and the 

sufficiency of mitigation in respect of elements retained and the 

restoration proposals. This always accepting that in other than a few 

instances, that existing landscape will in itself be the result of 

agricultural or other intervention in the past. 

 

b. Accepting that the local residents’ value the existing landscape; to 

my mind the now proposed restoration and the agricultural and 

biodiversity gain offered in mitigation is appropriate. 

c. Whilst there may be some intervisibility with the Malverns AONB I 

consider the relative distance between the two is such that adverse 

impact could not reasonably be ascribed. 

 

2) Veteran Trees and Tree Protection 

 

a. Any arboricultural survey linked to a development is usually, of 

necessity an iterative process to balance commercial needs of the 

project with the assessment of tree quality and life expectancy; making 

recommendations for those trees retained, methodology for removal, 

retention of retained trees etc. I cannot agree with the residents 

assertions in respect of the survey. 

 

b. Having reviewed the report by Sharples Tree Services and noting the 

further retention of veteran trees, see comments above; I am content 

that both the survey and the recommendations, including those for tree 

protection, are appropriate and can be conditioned. 

 

c. The volume of timber to be felled and taken out, if will exceed the 

legal annual volume, is for separate application to the Forestry 

Commission. I would not expect to see discussion of this in this 

planning application. 

 

3) Landscape and Visual 

 

a. Firstly, I should note that I am content with the LVIA methodology, 

assessment and findings and that they are in accord with the standard 

GLVIA methodology. Similar to the arboricultural survey, the process is 

to assess the scheme, its landscape and visual impacts and the effect 

on these impacts of the proposed mitigation. I would expect this 

process to be iterative during design development prior to an 

application being submitted (and which may involve officer advice or 

comment if consulted during the pre-application phase) but would not 

necessarily expect to see evidence of this in the submission. 

Page 135



100 
 

b. As previously noted, I am pleased to see that the applicant has been 

willing to take on and address some of my previous comments and 

questions in the design and to reassess the impacts in the LVIA 

addendum. 

 

c. In respect of landscape impacts, I am content that the impacts have 

been appropriately assessed and mitigated and that the restored 

landscape will fit well with both the local landscape character and 

deliver biodiversity gain. 

 

d. The application is for the importation of “inert” fill to make up the 

restoration levels; not “Impermeable”. I would anticipate the fill used 

would be required by condition to meet or better current conditions such 

that the proposed agricultural land quality can be achieved. This, as 

has been done on other applications restoring to agriculture, can be 

conditioned. 

 

e. Matters relating to flooding, ecology, transport, noise, dust etc are 

outside my remit to comment on directly but, where they do pertain to 

landscape or visual matters I will comment. 

 

f. With regard to the importation of inert fill to achieve the restoration 

profiles; I would not expect to see details of vehicle movements within 

the site. That is a matter for the quarry operator to determine as part of 

his excavation and phasing plan. I would expect the nature of the 

material and the land finishes to be achieved conditioned. 

 

g. As I have previously noted, the movement of additional vehicles 

related to the movement of material along the haul road and to the 

public highway network is a potential visual impact both from vehicles 

moving in other wise still views and the associated dust thrown up. I 

cannot comment on the effects of dust blow but I would agree with the 

residents that more assessment of the frequency/interval of all vehicle 

movements on the haul road and of dust suppression methods should 

be requested. 

 

h. Having now viewed the drone still images and videos you kindly 

showed me I would agree with the residents that there still remain a 

number of questions about the visibility of the plant, especially the silos 

and conveyors. I would suggest photomontages are requested from, as 

a minimum, the Far End Cottage and golf course as suggested by the 

residents’ groups? In addition, as noted yesterday, I suggest as part of 

this colours are agreed. I think the residents’ suggestion that maximum 

heights of structures and stockpiles are conditioned. 

 

i. I’ve previously noted my views on the issue of the plant and silos 

relative to agricultural and horticultural buildings in the landscape and, 

given the temporary nature of the processing plant, I have no objection 

Page 136



101 
 

per se to the buildings other than height and colour issues noted above 

in respect of visual impact. It might help review of the applicant’s 

submission if some comparator images were given relative to, for 

example, grain silos.” 

 

To view these comments in full click here 

 

6.166 Date comments received: 18.05.2021 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

The LA commented on the following three areas: 

 

• With regard to the issue of the impact on the setting of Towbury Hillfort 

the LA concurs with Worcestershire’s Landscape Officer that the 

impacts will be adverse but only for the duration of the operational 

phase and that there will be no residual adverse impact after 

restoration. As such and having regard to both the duration of the 

quarry works and the number of people who would be affected by the 

impacts on setting, the LA has no objections on landscape or visual 

grounds. 

 

• The LA can see merit in the requests for a more sensitive approach to 

grassland management, to the mowing regime and to the use of 

herbicides. It seems reasonable to the LA to ask the applicant to 

incorporate these considerations into the LEMP. 

 

• On the question of veteran trees, the LA states that requests to give 

further economic justification for their removal are not unreasonable. 

However, the LA notes that both the wildlife trust and Worcestershire 

officers are content that, if the current scheme was approved, then the 

mitigation in respect of the veteran trees is appropriate. 

 

6.167 Date comments received: 12.10.2021 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

“On 22 June 2021 you emailed me with proposed wording for the 3rd Reg.25 

request: 

 

• Item 3: Within their consultation response dated 29th April 2021 the 

MPA’s Landscape Advisor recommended that ‘an appropriate colour 

scheme for the conveyors and plant and machinery is agreed to ensure 

visual impact is minimised.’ In seeking to address this matter the MPA 

requests that Plant Site Elevations drawing No. 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0016 

P2 is annotated to show that the external colour finish to the processing 

plant, concrete batching plant (including silos), weighbridge office and 

welfare office are dark green in colour. 

 

The Applicant has replied: 

Page 137

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_ATKINS_COMM_29APR21.PDF
https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=17
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_LANDS_COMM_12OCT21.PDF


102 
 

‘A colour swatch is now included on the revised Plant Site Elevation 

plan (revision P3), which accompanies this submission, to confirm the 

proposed colour of the plant site infrastructure. This states - Note: The 

external colour finish to the processing plant, concrete batching plant 

(including silos), weighbridge office and welfare office are to be dark 

green. RAL 6002 (Leaf Green) as an example.’ 

 

I am content with this response. I would ask that, for the purposes of 

mitigating the impact on visual amenity, you include a Condition to 

cover the external finishes, as above.” 

 

• Item 4: In addition to those sightline cross sections shown on Proposed 

Plant Site Cross Sections drawing No. 2636-4-4-2-1 DR-0013 S4-P4 

dated Jan 2021, the MPA agrees with their Landscape Advisor that 

additional sightline cross sections are needed to better understand the 

visual impact of the concrete batching plant and processing plant when 

viewed from other sensitive receptors (Eastings and Northings were 

supplied)… 

 

The Applicant has replied: 

 

‘In response, a series of sight line cross sections has been prepared as 

illustrated by accompanying Drawing No . 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0022-S4-

P1. The sight lines confirm that, owing to a combination of topography, 

existing vegetation and proposed mitigation measures, the plant site 

will be significantly screened from a wide range of views.’ 

 

I would agree in general with the applicant’s comments. I would note 

that the sections do better show the relationship between plant, screen 

bunding and potential receptors than those previously submitted. 

Sections C-CC, D-DD, E-EE, F-FF and G-GG do show that plant and 

stockpiles will be visible from a number of receptors; most notably the 

path south of Gardeners Cottage. There may also be glimpses from Far 

End. Given the relatively short working life of the plant; additional tree 

planting on the bunds is unlikely to provide additional screening within 

the timescale. Whilst raising the bunds would mitigate visual impacts, I 

am of the view that these in themselves would become incongruous 

and intrusive elements in the landscape. The dark green colours noted 

above will assist in visual mitigation. I would suggest a condition to 

restrict the height of stockpiles such that they do not exceed the height 

of the conveyors, shown on the elevations and sections – this to 

mitigate further visual impact from the viewpoints noted.” 

 

• Item 5: In relation to the significance of effect on visual amenity for the 

occupants of “Far End”, in an email dated 25 May 2021, text from Matt 

Golding was quoted who clarified that the ‘enhanced mitigation 

measures’ ‘reduces the level of significance from substantial to minor 

adverse’. The MPA recommend that this information is submitted as 

Page 138



103 
 

part of the suite of information requested, to form a comprehensive 

package of information and for ease of consultation.’ 

The Applicant has replied: 

 

‘Subsequent to the submission of the 2019 LVIA and as part of the 

iterative design process, the plant site has been modified to include 

enhanced mitigation measures to reduce the visual effects from Far 

End. 2.8 Further embedded mitigation has included raising the 

screening bund on the south eastern edge of the plant site to a height 

of 5m. Further detailed assessment and analysis of the predicted views 

from Far End has been undertaken since the submission of the 2019 

LVIA, including sightline cross sections from the plant site to the 

property. This assessment established that these measures result in a  

reduced visual impact on Far End, as described in the February 2021 

Regulation 25 addendum. Consequently, the level of significance of 

effect on ‘Far End’ has been revised from ‘substantial’ to ‘minor 

adverse’.’ 

 

I am content with this clarification. 

 

There are two other points I would comment on. Firstly, I am pleased to 

see that in the revisions to the arboricultural statements and proposals, 

the proposed working scheme has been amended to retain in-situ the 

veteran crack willow trees (T50 and G51) which delineate the internal 

field boundary in Flexible Phase A. 

 

Secondly, I am pleased to see the Applicant has agreed to a 10-year 

aftercare. This will better ensure the restoration aims for the scheme 

are achieved. I have read the County Ecologist’s comments of the 22nd 

September 2021 and note that he is now generally satisfied with the 

submission. With the addition of the two conditions suggested above, I  

consider his proposed conditions are sufficient to cover landscape and 

visual matters as well as ecology and biodiversity.” 

 

6.168 Date comments received: 07.02.2022 

Summary/extracts of comments made in response to the MPA’s 4th EIA 

Reg.25 request: 

 

• The LA notes that GCC’s Principal Ecologist (memo of 19/01/22) is 

generally satisfied with the information submitted and has proposed a 

number of conditions, as well as noting that the majority of the quarry 

and restoration works lie with Worcestershire County Council. 

 

• In terms of landscape conditions, the LA suggested in their memo to 

the MPA of 12th October 2021 that the height of stockpiles be 

conditioned to restrict their height such that they do not exceed the 

height of the conveyors shown on the elevations and sections. 

 

Page 139

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=15


104 
 

• To mitigate any impact on visual amenity, the LA has recommended a 

planning condition to cover the external finishes and colours of plant 

equipment “as shown on the colour swatch included on the revised 

Plant Site Elevation plan (revision P3) submission.” 

 

• David Jarvis Associates “Detailed Restoration Proposals and 

Landscape Management Plan” (2636-4-5-LM-0001 /T1/P4 dated 

17/12/21)”, read with the “Proposed Restoration Plan (2636-4-4-2-

1/DR-0007/S4-P9) provide sufficient detail in terms of restoration goals; 

planting areas, species, sizes and spacings; replacement planting; 

aftercare maintenance, management and annual inspections and 

reporting, for there to be a single landscape condition to reference to 

these documents.” The LA is of the opinion that, “alongside the 

proposals for soils management and restoration of some areas to 

agricultural use, be appropriate to ensure restoration and establishment 

of the scheme planting can be monitored and controlled.”  

 

6.169 Date comments received: 13.06.2022 

Summary/extracts of comments made in response to the MPA’s 5th EIA 

Reg.25 request: 

 

• The conclusion of the assessment of landscape and visual impacts 

from the simultaneous operation of the Bow Farm site and the Ripple 

East site is that this:   

 

“does not materially alter the findings of the LVIA submitted as part of 

the Bow Farm Environmental Statement in November 2019. As the two 

sites are physically separated by the M50 motorway there would be an 

overall negligible cumulative landscape effect and a very localised and 

low effect of cumulative significance limited to a short section of Bow 

Lane and the over bridge crossing the M50 motorway.” 

 

The LA is in agreement with this conclusion; specifically as it relates to the 

element of the Bow Farm application that lies within Gloucestershire, but also 

in respect of the wider Bow Farm application. 

 

 Worcestershire Landscape Officer (WLO) 

 

6.170  The WLO has no objections to the proposal on landscape grounds, subject to 

the imposition of conditions regarding a tree protection and arboricultural 

methods, soil handling strategy, Dust Management Plan, Noise Management 

Scheme, Water Management Scheme, biodiversity mitigation scheme, no 

external lighting to be installed in the part of the site in Worcestershire, phased 

restoration scheme, updated LEMP and a 10-year aftercare period. The WLO 

also welcomes an interpretation signage for landscape / historic landscape.   

 

6.171 In relation to veteran trees the WLO welcomes the updates and clarifications 

concerning the proposed inclusion and management of the veteran tree 

Page 140



105 
 

assemblage and is satisfied this is now represented in the Tree Protection 

Plan.  

 

6.172 In relation to the LEMP, the WLO states that Table 5.1 does not include the 

new hedgerow management section H4. This is also referred to as a proposed 

hedgerow in paragraph 5.2. While these are minor errors, the WLO 

recommends they are rectified by a prior to commencement of development 

condition.  

 

6.173 The WLO states notwithstanding the above comment, the Restoration Plan 

and LEMP are sufficient in detail to deliver all measures and restoration aims. 

The WLO supports the recommended conditions wording advised by the 

County Ecologist (Worcestershire) and Gloucestershire County Council’s 

Principal Ecologist, and considers that this would be sufficient to secure 

phased restoration.  

 

6.174 Overall, the WLO considers that most of the proposed workings would be 

relatively well-contained benefitting from the site topography and existing 

areas of woodland and mature hedgerows. For Worcestershire, Bow Farm is 

the main receptor where the greatest impact would be experienced, in addition 

to receptors traveling along the M50 Motorway, although with the latter the 

impact would be transient. The WLO considers that the haul road and 

processing plant area would be largely screened in Worcestershire, again 

benefitting from the existing topography and established mature vegetation. 

 

6.175 The WLO welcomes the revised LVIA, and the clarifications concerning 

management of the northern boundary hedgerow (adjacent to Bow Lane) and 

is, therefore, satisfied that allowing the hedgerow to grow-out would assist in 

its functional screening of the development from receptors using Bow Lane. 

 

6.176 With regard to Towbury Hill Camp Scheduled Monument, the WLO wishes to 

defer to the comments submitted by Historic England and the County 

Archaeologist in terms of detailed matters of archaeological setting. However, 

having visited the application site, the WLO concurs with the results of the 

visual impact assessment set out in the submitted LVIA and specific 

assessment prepared by Worcestershire Archaeology. The scheme would 

inevitably result in harm to the visual setting of the Scheduled Monument 

during the operational lifetime of the quarry. However, they are satisfied that 

the proposed restoration scheme would return the site to a form that is 

consistent with the historic landscape character of both the setting and wider 

River Severn corridor.  

 

6.177 In terms of restoration, the WLO notes the site is currently largely arable, and 

distinctly a farmed landscape. The impact of the scheme would result in 

significant loss of the agricultural character during the lifetime of the quarry. 

However, the proposed, phased restoration programme would return large 

parts of the landscape to that of functional arable production, in keeping with 

the wider setting, whilst also delivering measurable enhancements for 

Page 141



106 
 

biodiversity net gain. The WLO states that they are not qualified to assess the 

risks of poor hydrological performance in relation to the inert soil that would be 

imported to achieve the restoration levels. However, they agree with the 

Gloucestershire County Council’s Landscape Advisor’s comments to 

Gloucestershire County Council, which state: “the application is for the 

importation of “inert” fill to make up the restoration levels; not “Impermeable”. I 

would anticipate the fill used would be required by condition to meet or better 

current conditions such that the proposed agricultural land quality can be 

achieved. This, as has been done on other applications restoring to 

agriculture, can be conditioned”. 

 

6.178 The WLO defers to the comments of Gloucestershire County Council’s 

Landscape Officer concerning issues raised for the Gloucestershire part of the 

site. 

 

6.179 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the WLO notes that the submitted ES addendum 

concludes in relation to landscape and visual impact, that cumulative effects 

would be limited to receptors using the M50 Motorway and the simultaneous 

operation of the Bow Farm Quarry and Ripple East Quarry does not materially 

alter the findings of the original submitted LVIA. The WLO agrees with this 

conclusion.  

 

6.180 The WLO states that Ripple East Quarry is, by comparison to Bow Farm 

Quarry, a relatively limited area of working, and the WLO does not consider 

that operations there would be sufficient to amplify the overall visual impact 

beyond the immediate setting of the M50 Motorway and possibly some 

sections of Bow Lane. Although in the case of the latter, the WLO is confident 

this would be limited to glimpsed views for receptors travelling along the lane. 

 

6.181 In conclusion, the WLO considers the potential for cumulative landscape 

visual impacts to be minor and limited in area. 

 

County Ecologist (Gloucestershire) 

 

6.182 Within the County Ecologist’s original consultation response (dated  

16.01.2020) they confirm that they have no objections to the proposal, subject 

to conditions and/or informatives and submission of further information and/or 

clarification. Provided the recommended further information is submitted and 

the details receive approval, “the development is likely to provide for 

significant biodiversity net gain over time.” 

 

6.183 In response to the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 

1st EIA Reg.25 Request, the County Ecologist ‘varied’ the comments made on 

the 16.01.2020 as follows: 

 

• Ecological Impact Assessment [EcIA] Addendum updated: Document 1 

(EcIA Addendum) provides additional information related to a Habitats 

Page 142

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNEC_COMM_16JAN20.PDF


107 
 

Regulations Assessment (HRA) in relation to the Severn Estuary 

European Marine Site (SAC/SPA/Ramsar site).  Worcestershire County 

Council is effectively the lead competent authority for HRA matters. The 

major land-take and potential effects lie within Worcestershire. The 

development proposals are also being considered by Worcestershire 

County Council as MPA under the linked planning application 

19/000048/CM. There is an option for Gloucestershire County Council 

and Worcestershire County Council to adopt a joint HRA conclusion 

(see government guidance on this approach at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-competent-

authority-coordination-under-the-habitats-regulations - Figure 1). 

 

• Arboricultural Report on Trees dated 13th July 2020: “At Section 4 

there are details of tree removal and retention in relation to affecting a 

safe site access for the quarry operations. Four trees and part of a tree 

group are to be removed and all are described as having ivy coverage 

and damaged/dead features that could harbour roosting bats or nesting 

birds at certain times of the year. We already have a previously 

identified dead oak to be removed (T91 with small pipistrelle bat roost). 

This means as intimated in my further information request that the 

known closure of a tree roost may have to be extended to others in 

trees at the site entrance location. It is imperative therefore that the 

additional trees proposed for removal are inspected by an ecologist as 

soon as possible.” 

 

• The veteran tree strategy submitted (Arboricultural Report on Trees 

dated 13th July 2020 and Veteran Tree Timber Retention Drawing 

Status SP4-P4 dated June 2020) concerns Worcestershire mainly, so 

the County Ecologist for Gloucestershire states that they “will leave this 

matter to be mainly considered under application 19/000048/CM. 

However, it is noted that within Gloucestershire Document 3 shows 

there is to be two hibernacula areas of cut (willow and other) timber for 

various species which is welcomed.” 

 

• If the HRA (Habitats Regulations Assessment) finalised by 

Worcestershire County Council concludes that a planning consent for 

19/000048/CM can be allowed, then the same conclusion could 

probably be taken by Gloucestershire County Council for the linked 

application 19/0081/TWMAJM. 

 

• The County Ecologist had no observations to make in respect of the 

Initial Works and Phase 1 Extraction Drawing DR-0002 Status S4-P5 

dated July 2020 and Phase 9 Extraction Drawing DR-0006 Status S4-

P5 dated July 2020. 

 

• Proposed Restoration Drawing DR-0007 Status S4-P5 dated August 

2020 shows a bit more detail than the superseded drawing (almost 

entirely in Worcestershire and under 19/000048/CM). “This drawing 

Page 143

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-competent-authority-coordination-under-the-habitats-regulations%20-%20Figure%201
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-competent-authority-coordination-under-the-habitats-regulations%20-%20Figure%201


108 
 

now demarcates arable field margins, hibernacula timber areas and 

shows reinstated hedgerow in a slightly different position but better for 

ecological connectivity. There is also more deciduous woodland 

proposed. Most notably the flexible working phase is shown restored 

with scrapes in generally more open wet grassland as well as open 

water and scrub elsewhere. The changes on the revised ‘final’ drawing 

are welcomed and should deliver a better result for biodiversity.” 

 

• Detailed Restoration Proposals and Landscape & Ecological 

Management Plan [LEMP] dated August 2020: The County Ecologist 

previously recommended that a LEMP was needed no later than 12 

months after any consent was granted for application 

19/0081/TWMAJM. The applicant decided to produce a LEMP prior to 

determination of the application and combine it into a new document 

that explains the detailed varied restoration proposals. Most of this 

document concerns matters in Worcestershire, so the County Ecologist  

confined themselves to looking at aspects most relevant to 

Gloucestershire and application 19/0081/TWMAJM. 

 
6.184 Within their consultation response to the further information submitted in 

connection with the MPA’s 2nd EIA Reg.25 Request, the County Ecologist 

noted that the submitted revised arboricultural report has a Tree Constraints 

Plan dated June 2020 that lists the following trees as being lost or significantly 

impacted : 

 

• T100 – Sycamore (early mature, assessed as in poor condition and 

unsuitable for retention) 

• T101 – Norway Maple (medium mature, extensive bark damage and 

assessed as unsuitable for retention) 

• G102 – Group of hedgerow plants of damson, hawthorn, elm (some/all 

dead) & sycamore with ivy (early mature, assessed as low quality) 

• T103 – Sycamore (early mature, assessed as low quality) 

• T104 – Ash (medium mature, assessed as low quality) 

 

6.185 For all retained trees a Tree Protection and Timber Retention Plan 2636-4-4-3 

Fig 3 S4-P1 dated January 2021 shows root protection zones and these have 

been incorporated into the revised initial works/phase 1 drawing. In 

Gloucestershire there are two extensive tree root protection zones. It should 

be noted that these are almost entirely outside the red line boundary to the 

north of the intended operational plant area. It is only near the ‘lorry sheeting 

area’ that one of the tree root protection zones has a small patch within the 

red line area. Deadwood hibernacula (derived from felled trees) are proposed 

(para 5.5) and are shown on the Tree Protection and Timber Retention Plan 

2636-4-4-3 Fig 3 S4-P1. The County Ecologist welcomes this as part of a 

mitigating biodiversity measure for various lower plant species, invertebrates 

and small vertebrates to benefit from. 

 

Page 144

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNEC_COMM_31MAR21.PDF


109 
 

6.186 At the request of the County Ecologist a Technical Note entitled Bat Tree 

Roost Survey and Assessment was submitted (and referred to in the 

Environment Statement Addendum at 3.10 to 3.11). This was focused on the 

site access location in Gloucestershire, an area that had not been fully 

assessed for bat impact implications. A daytime inspection of trees/groups 

was undertaken in October 2020. Full details of the trees/group characteristics 

(including photographs) relevant to bat occupation probability are set out in a 

detailed table. All trees/group were considered to fall into the negligible 

category for roosting bat potential and this does not trigger the need for a 

further activity survey. The County Ecologist states that they do not have any 

compelling reason to not agree with the report’s conclusions. 

 

6.187 On the issue of noise, the Environment Statement Addendum states to Natural 

England that there is no uncertainty as to the location and design of the haul 

roads and the clear span bridge across the Mythe Brook 

(Gloucestershire/Worcestershire boundary). The County Ecologist notes that 

there will be an estimated 50 internal movements a day across the bridge and 

that the applicant asserts that the noise from the quarry operations would have 

a negligible impact on fish. As a result, there would not be any significant 

change or exceedance of quoted ambient underwater noise levels of 76.9 dB 

to 137.8dB in the AA. 

 

6.188 Within their consultation response to the further information submitted in 

connection with the MPA’s 3rd EIA Reg.25 Request, the County Ecologist 

notes the information covering matters of ecology (including derogation tests 

and deadwood hibernacula), arboriculture (veteran trees) and other matters. 

 

6.189 The County Ecologist advises that on the 2nd July 2021 they attended a site 

visit with the Worcestershire County Ecologist and the applicant’s 

arboricultural consultant. 

 

6.190 Within the revised LEMP document the County Ecologist notes that it is now 

implied that grass cutting would normally be carried out from August to 

September and that ground nesting bird precautions have been included in the 

LEMP Tables. Furthermore, the County Ecologist notes the revised LEMP 

now takes the recommended approach on weed management. 

 

6.191 The Environmental Statement Addendum dated August 2021 states at 2.22 

that the revised Arboricultural Report dated August 2021 now correctly 

references the trees/tree groups T77, G78 and T80 as veteran. The County 

Ecologist notes at paragraph 5.2 precautions for these retained, and to be 

protected, veterans are set out and are reflected in the revised Tree Protection 

Plan drawing DR-0021 status S4-P2 dated August 2021. 

 

6.192 The Environmental Statement Addendum dated August 2021 sets out the 

developer’s reasoning that the 3 Habitats Regulations tests can be met to 

allow the removal of an open field located oak tree (T91) under a Natural 

England licence, as it is very likely to be required. The reasoning is provided 

Page 145

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNEC_COMM_22SEP21.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_3RD_REG25_ES_ADDENDUM_AUG21.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_3RD_REG25_ES_ADDENDUM_AUG21.PDF


110 
 

between paragraphs 2.24 and 2.30. The County Ecologist considers the 

developer’s view to be reasonable and concords with the County Ecologist’s 

own view. In the event that the MPA also adopts such views, then it is possible 

to consent the planning application in accordance with obligations under 

Regulation 55 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

(as amended). Thereafter, a development species licence application would 

be more likely than not to be granted by Natural England. 

 

6.193 The County Ecologist notes that a revised restoration drawing (status S4-P8, 

dated August 2021) was submitted that now shows hibernacula piles 

(deadwood) within Gloucestershire (and Worcestershire). The drawing of 

‘Proposed Management Categories’ in the revised LEMP dated August 2021 

also reflects such details. 

 

6.194 With regards to hedgerow retention, losses and gains, the County Ecologist 

considers the new document entitled ‘Existing & Proposed Habitat Schedule’ 

to be useful. Although overall there will be a net loss of hedgerow length, the 

County Ecologist is of the opinion that this must be considered alongside the 

gain of 1.6ha of woodland and much scrub that will be a feature of the 16.1ha 

of new wet grassland areas. 

 

6.195 The County Ecologist has noted that an aftercare period of 10 years is now 

accepted by the applicant and a planning condition has been drafted by the 

County Ecologist to require the submission of annual reports “……for an 

establishment and ongoing aftercare period of not less than 10 years following 

the restoration of the Plant Site and Silt Lagoons.” 

 

6.196 Within the County Ecologist’s revised recommendations in their comments on 

the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 3rd Reg.25 

Request, they state that all their pre-determination items have now been 

resolved or completed.  

 

6.197 In response to the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 

4th EIA Reg.25 Request, the County Ecologist notes that most of the revised 

information refers to land in Worcestershire. In respect of ecology matters, the 

implications for the site within Gloucestershire pertain to having new 

references to updated documents.  

 

6.198 Having considered the further submissions, the County Ecologist has noted 

the following: 

 

• updated drawings and documents now seem to be more consistent on 

depicting the tree, hedgerow, deadwood/hibernacula proposals. 

• a revised ‘Tree Protection Plan’ numbered: 2636-4-4-2-1 DR-0021 S4-

P3, dated December 2021 shows most of the required veteran trees will 

be retained. 

• the requested updates/improvements to the LEMP have been made 

and in a reasonably appropriate manner. 

Page 146

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNEC_COMM_19JAN22.PDF


111 
 

• there do not appear to be any proposals for fox-proof fencing in places 

(to protect breeding waders). 

• the County Ecologist recommends a planning condition requiring the 

submission of annual restoration, aftercare, and monitoring reports for 

MPA approval. 

• the updated LEMP dated December 2021 refers to 10 years of 

aftercare in various places including crucially paragraph 4.1 and 4.4 but 

also at 4.7, Table 8.2, Table 16.1, and 17.1. 

 

6.199 As part of any approval that may be granted for development falling within 

Gloucestershire (and where appropriate within Worcestershire), the County 

Ecologist recommends the imposition of 8 planning conditions and 3 advice 

notes. 

 

6.200 The County Ecologist agrees with paragraph 2.5 of the ES Addendum (dated 

May 2022) submitted in connection with the MPA’s 5th EIA Reg.25 Request 

that the CEMEX proposal is not an existing or consented development and 

that procedurally, consideration of cumulative impact need only apply to the 

proposal at the CEMEX site in the event that the Bow Farm proposal were 

consented. Furthermore, the County Ecologist goes on to say that there is no 

certainty that the CEMEX proposal will be consented and that the final form of 

this potential development cannot yet be known. 

 

6.201 Appendix 5 of the ES Addendum (dated May 2022) document provides an 

Ecology Technical Note from the applicant’s environmental consultant. On 

reviewing this information, the County Ecologist can agree with its overall 

conclusion. The County Ecologist is of the opinion that there has to be 

sufficient residual effects arising from both developments (if consented) for 

them to interact with each other to be able to have any cumulative (in 

combination) significant adverse effects. In the scenario of both quarries 

operating simultaneously, the existing overall biodiversity value of the area 

would be maintained and a net gain for biodiversity would accrue over time. 

This means that from an ecological (biodiversity) perspective the County 

Ecologist also agrees with the conclusions at paragraphs 2.9 and 2.10 of the 

ES Addendum (dated May 2022). 

 

Natural England (NE) 

 

6.202  Natural England (NE) have no objections to the proposal in terms of potential 

impacts upon the Severn Estuary SPA, SAC and Ramsar site, subject to 

conditions securing the mitigation measures outlined within the HRA AA which 

includes maintenance of all plant, machinery and vehicles; safe on-site 

parking; safe storage of on-site chemicals, oil and fuel; collection and off-site 

removal of wastewater from the site; implementation of best practice pollution 

guidelines; production of a pollution incident contingency plan; no uncontrolled 

run-off would be allowed to leave the site; implementation of surface water 

attenuation and management scheme; management of silt laden water via silt 

lagoons; groundwater level monitoring; grass seeding or matting (e.g. using a 

Page 147

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_5TH_REG25_ENV_STAT_23MAY22.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_5TH_REG25_ENV_STAT_23MAY22.PDF


112 
 

pre-seeded erosion control blanket) the bunds associated with the silt lagoons; 

implementation of a Dust Management Plan; single span bridges over the 

Ripple / Mythe Brooks; restricting all quarrying operations to normal daylight 

working hours; implementation of Noise Mitigation Strategy; retention of 

existing vegetation between proposal and the Ripple Lake and Napps; and the 

development being carried out in accordance with the submitted Fish Rescue 

Strategy. 

 

6.203 NE state that they have reviewed the updated HRA AA produced by an 

ecological consultant on behalf of Worcestershire County Council, as 

competent authority, which includes an update in response to the Environment 

Agency’s original comments on migratory fish. They note that they are a 

statutory consultee on the AA stage of the HRA process. The Council’s AA 

concludes that the proposal would not result in adverse effects on the integrity 

of any of the sites in question. Having considered the assessment, and the 

measures proposed to mitigate for all identified adverse effects that could 

potentially occur as a result of the proposal, Natural England advises that they 

concur with the AA conclusions, providing that all mitigation measures are 

appropriately secured should planning permission be granted.  

 

6.204 They also note that no further details have been provided in relation to timing 

of the soil stripping and soil bund construction, therefore, they advise 

mitigation measures requiring soil stripping is carried out outside the most 

sensitive winter months (December to March inclusive); and soil bund 

construction should also be completed before the sensitive winter months, are 

secured by the imposition of conditions.  

 

6.205 Based on the information submitted, NE consider that the proposed 

development would not damage or destroy the interest features for which the 

Upper Severn Estuary SSSI and the adjacent Severn Estuary SSSI have been 

notified.  

 

6.206 In respect of the sustainable use of soils NE comment that the application 

would cover approximately 65 hectares, including approximately 32.9 hectares 

of BMV agricultural land. While the restoration proposals on some of the BMV 

land are for non-agricultural purposes, NE considers the proposed reclamation 

to a biodiversity afteruse acceptable, provided the methods used in the 

restoration and aftercare would enable for the land to retain its longer-term 

capability to be farmed to its land classification potential, thus remaining a 

high-quality resource for the future.  

 

6.207 NE have confirmed that they are satisfied with the Detailed Restoration and 

LEMP and Soils Handling Strategy, except they consider that the applicant 

should design under land drainage into the scheme at the start rather than rely 

on retro designing if needed.  

 

6.208 NE is satisfied that both the applicant’s Soils and Agricultural Land 

Classification Report and the MAFF Agricultural Land Classification Survey 

Page 148



113 
 

constitutes a record of the pre-working agricultural land classification grading 

and physical characteristics of the land within the application site boundary.  

 

6.209 In their consultation response dated 01.03.2022, NE confirmed that the 

comments they made on the 4th EIA Reg.25 consultation in respect of 

Worcestershire County Council’s application 19/000048/CM apply equally to 

Gloucestershire County Council application 19/0081/TWMAJM. 

 

6.210 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, NE state that they have reviewed the submitted ES 

addendum, and generally agree with the assessment provided and wish to 

make no further comments to those set out above.   

 

 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust (GWT) 

 

6.211 GWT comment that they challenge the claims made by the applicant that the 

restoration would deliver ‘significant Biodiversity Gain’ and ‘significant net 

enhancements for biodiversity’. The existing and proposed habitat schedule 

does not appear to have used the Defra biodiversity metric (biodiversity metric 

is a biodiversity accounting tool that can be used for the purposes of 

calculating biodiversity net gain) and as a result it assesses losses and gains 

in hectares rather than biodiversity units. This is not best practice because it 

does not account for the multiple factors that influence this outcome other than 

area of habitat. 

 

6.212 It also does not account for the adverse impact of the long extraction period. 

At present, the scheme has not provided sufficient evidence to demonstrate 

that is generating Biodiversity Net Gains and without this there is a risk that it 

is not delivering any. If irreplaceable habitats are lost then, according to 

Chartered Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management (CIEEM) best 

practice principles, net gain is not achievable and the best the site can aim for 

is no net loss. Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust requests that the latest version 

(version 3.0) of the Defra biodiversity metric is completed for this application to 

ascertain if the claims about biodiversity gains are substantiated. 

 

6.213 Much of the land on the Gloucestershire side of the border is proposed to 

return to arable use following extraction. The restoration plan on the 

Gloucestershire side of the border should revert more land to semi-natural 

habitat in order to compensate for the ecological and climate impacts of the 

extraction. Considering the carbon impact of this activity, Gloucestershire 

Wildlife Trust also asks for a carbon audit of the scheme.  

 

6.214 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust note the comments of the Worcestershire 

County Ecologist and acknowledge that there is no current legal requirement 

for the scheme to deliver Biodiversity Net Gain but contends the lack of policy 

guidance. Biodiversity Net Gain is part of the vision for the Minerals Local Plan 

for Gloucestershire, which also contains a requirement for “mineral 

development proposals to contribute to the achievement of net gains in 

Page 149



114 
 

biodiversity’ which ‘can be achieved either through the implementation of 

mitigation measures or site restoration”. The exploration of net gains through 

the mitigation hierarchy is also mentioned in Policy DM06: ‘Biodiversity and 

geodiversity’ of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, and paragraph 

179 b) of the NPPF states that local plans should “promote the conservation, 

restoration and enhancement of priority habitats, ecological networks and the 

protection and recovery of priority species; and identify and pursue 

opportunities for securing measurable net gains for biodiversity”.  

 

6.215 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust consider that the submitted ES purports to be 

delivering ‘significant Biodiversity Gain’ and ‘significant net enhancements for 

biodiversity’ without presenting evidence to support this claim. The Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire states that “development proposals must be 

supported by robust evidence regarding biodiversity”. The Defra metric is the 

only robust evidence to demonstrate whether Biodiversity Net Gain is being 

achieved. Without completing the Defra metric, Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust 

consider that sentences in the ES claiming biodiversity net gains are 

misrepresentative and should be retracted.  

 

6.216 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust supports the recommendations made by 

Worcestershire Wildlife Trust.  

 

6.217 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust reiterate their previous 

concerns outlined above. They also state that given that the Environment Act 

2021 requires a management and monitoring period of 30 years for 

Biodiversity Net Gain, they do not agree with the statement in the ES 

addendum or in other accompanying documents that the restoration would 

provide a long-term net gain in terms of landscape and ecological 

enhancement and recommend that the 10-year aftercare period is extended, 

preferably to 30 years, to align with the Biodiversity Net Gain mandates.  

 

Worcestershire Wildlife Trust (WWT) 

 

6.218  WWT have no objections to the proposal, subject to the imposition of 

conditions requiring a Construction and Environmental Management Plan 

(CEMP), LEMP, soil management, lighting scheme, and long-term ground 

water monitoring scheme and maintenance and monitoring scheme for the 

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) and clay barrier.  

 

6.219 The WWT welcome the veteran trees proposals and are content to accept the 

approach set out. The WWT note the comments of the Worcestershire County 

Ecologist and states that assuming that these minor matters can be rectified 

the WWT would not wish to object to the proposed development and are 

content to defer to the Worcestershire County Ecologist for all further on-site 

biodiversity considerations. Notwithstanding this, the WWT also note the 

comments submitted by Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust in relation to 

biodiversity net gain and recommend that the MPA ensure that the proposals 

Page 150



115 
 

are fully compliant with the requirements of Gloucestershire’s mineral planning 

policy prior to determination.  

 

6.220 They comment that there is a reasonable population of the scarce plant 

Mousetail on site. This is very unusual in Worcestershire and so the proposals 

for positive topsoil management and re-spreading are welcome. This should 

be covered by condition. 

 

6.221 The WWT state that the site is clearly important for bats including barbastelle 

and lesser horseshoe. Whilst Tree T91 (a dead oak) is the only confirmed bat 

roost tree to be lost as a result of the development, the loss of hedgerows may 

have an impact on commuting and foraging bats. The Wildlife Trust accept the 

ES’s finding that this effect would be temporary and would most likely affect 

only common species. Mitigation and compensation for harm would 

nonetheless be required and should form part of the aftercare package.  

 

6.222 They note the submitted commentary regarding the use of a clay bund to 

reduce the risk of adverse impacts on ground water quality and flow through 

the nearby LWS and associated habitats. They welcome the clarification 

regarding the use of the bund and the hydrological monitoring associated with 

it. The WWT reiterate the importance of this feature and the need for a rapid 

response to prevent pollution in the event of any failure and consider that 

monitoring would be required in the long-term. They note that this matter is 

covered in the submission and recommend the imposition of a condition 

requiring a long-term groundwater monitoring scheme.  

 

6.223 The WWT notes that the bridge design for the crossings of the Ripple / Mythe 

Brooks would be clear span. The WWT welcome this and recommend this 

requirement is conditioned.  

 

6.224 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the WWT state they accept the conclusions of the 

Ecology chapter of the addendum and do not wish to object to this application 

or add any further comments to those stated above and remain content to 

defer to the opinion of the Worcestershire County Ecologist for all remaining 

on-site biodiversity considerations.  

 

6.225 Notwithstanding the above, the WWT note the comments previously submitted 

by Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust in relation to the mechanisms used to secure 

and demonstrate biodiversity net gain in line with planning policy. The 

submitted ES addendum (further information) does not appear to resolve their 

concerns and WWT refer the MPA to their comments for further consideration. 

 

Crime Prevention Design Advisor (Gloucestershire Constabulary) 

 

6.226 Date comments received: 02.11.2020 

Summary Observation: Further information sought in respect of boundary 

treatments, signage, security measures and CCTV monitoring. 

Page 151



116 
 

Comments made: 

 

“Having looked at the issues affecting other quarries throughout 

Gloucestershire, these incidents include youth accessing quarries, theft and 

arson.  As no details can be found relating to the security of the site within the 

application, further information about the following would be useful. 

 

Boundary treatments and signage to restrict access and prevents trespass. 

The security of any building and plant equipment needs to be considered, from 

locks on buildings and equipment sheds to tracking technology on the plant 

machinery should be considered. 

 

CCTV should be used to monitor buildings, equipment, access gates and 

other key points along the perimeter.” 

 

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) 

 

6.227  Date comments received: 24.02.2020 

Comments: The MPA contacted the RSPB and was advised by their 

Conservation Officer that the RSPB did not anticipate making a formal 

response to application 19/0081/TWMAJM but wished for the RSPB to remain 

on the consultee list for any forthcoming EIA Reg.25 requests. 

 

The Cotswolds Conservation Board (CCB) 

 

6.228 The CCB wishes to make no comments on the application, given the distance 

of the proposal from the Cotswolds AONB National Landscape, located 

approximately 4.3 kilometres west of the foot of Bredon Hill, approximately 5.7 

kilometres from elevated views on public rights of way on the western slopes 

of Bredon Hill and approximately 7.9 kilometres from ‘Banbury Stone’ 

viewpoint on the top of Bredon Hill. 

 

6.229 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) regarding 

cumulative impacts, the Cotswolds Conservation Board confirmed that having 

reviewed the ‘Landscape and Visual Impact’ chapter of the ES addendum and 

given the site’s distance from the Cotswolds AONB National Landscape, they 

have no further comments to make on the application.  

 

Forestry Commission 

 

6.230 Having reviewed the application submission, the Forestry Commission confirm 

they have no comments on the application. Their mapping shows that there 

are no ancient semi-natural woodland or plantations on ancient woodland sites 

in the area. 

 

Canal and River Trust (CRT) 

 

Page 152



117 
 

6.231 The CRT wish to make no comments on this application. 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority (Gloucestershire) 

 

6.232 The LLFA (Glos) have no objections to the proposal, noting that the 

application is accompanied with a Hydrogeological and Hydrological Impact 

Assessment and Flood Risk Assessment which describes potential impacts on 

flooding that may be caused by the quarrying activity both within and outside 

the development boundary. The Assessments include methods for mitigation 

of flood risk during the sites use and post extraction to ensure flood risk is not 

increased. 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority (Worcestershire) 

 

6.233 The LLFA (Worcs) have no objections, subject to the imposition of conditions 

requiring detailed design drawings for surface water drainage and SuDS 

management plan. They go on to state they are generally supportive of the 

approach outlined within the Flood Risk Assessment. 

 

Severn Trent Water Limited (STW) 

 

6.234 STW have no objections to the proposal, and do not require any conditions to 

be imposed, as it would have minimal impact upon the public sewerage 

system.  

 

National Highways (formerly Highways England) 

 

6.235 National Highways have no objections, subject to the imposition of a condition 

requiring a Geotechnical Assessment to ensure that the side slope of the 

excavation does not undermine the M50 Motorway and an inspection regime 

for the edge of the excavation adjacent to the Motorway, a procedure for 

addressing any stability issues should they be identified, and to asses any 

lowering of the groundwater table during excavation to ensure it does not 

undermine the M50 Motorway or the adjacent Bow Lane bridge structure.  

 

6.236 National Highways consider that the trip generation and distribution 

methodology, including staff traffic impact assessment, to be robust and 

suitable. 

 

6.237 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, National Highways reiterate that the above condition 

should be imposed should planning permission be granted.   

 

Highway Authority (Gloucestershire) 

 

6.238 The Highway Authority raises no objections to the proposal, subject to the 

imposition of conditions regarding completion of proposed vehicular access, 

provision of cycle storage, visibility splays, provision of electric vehicle 

Page 153



118 
 

charging points / spaces, HGV Routing Strategy Management Plan, on-site 

parking and loading / unloading facilities, highway condition survey, and limit 

on mineral output (maximum of 250,000 tonnes) or 52,560 two-way HGV 

movements per year.  

 

6.239 The Highway Authority states that they have undertaken a robust assessment 

of the planning application. Based on the analysis of the information submitted 

they conclude that there would not be an unacceptable impact on highway 

safety or a severe impact on congestion. They consider there are no justifiable 

grounds on which an objection could be maintained on highway grounds. 

 

Highway Authority (Worcestershire) 

 

6.240 The Highway Authority (Worcestershire) has no objections to the proposal, 

stating that the application is supported by a Transport Assessment, and that 

this assessment follows the agreed methodology in terms of vehicle 

assignment. The proposed vehicle access is located off the A38 within the 

administrative boundary of Gloucestershire County Council. It is, therefore, a 

matter for Gloucestershire County Council, as the Highway Authority to 

comment on the suitability of the access design and the impact of traffic 

generation within Gloucestershire. 

 

6.241 The impact on Worcestershire’s highway network is limited to trips travelling 

on the A38 north of the M50 Motorway, this is estimated to represent 5% of 

the HGV activity which equates to 7 two-way trips per day. It is not considered 

that this level of activity would have any impact on the operation or safety of 

the A38 heading towards Worcester. Staff trips would be above this but given 

they would be in cars and there is some opportunity for sustainable access it 

is considered that the number of movements would be unlikely to be of such a 

scale to be noticeable given the level of background traffic.  

 

6.242 The County Highways Officer has also reviewed the comments from the 

Action Groups and concludes that these issues relate to concerns specific to 

Gloucestershire’s highway network and as such, do not warrant any additional 

comments. 

 

6.243 The County Highways Officer considers that the proposed bridleway crossing 

is acceptable. The County Highways Officer also notes a public right of way 

runs parallel to the River Severn (Footpath RP‐550), and that this does not 

appear to be impacted by the proposal. The applicant should adhere to their 

obligations with regards to this footpath. 

 

6.244 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the County Highways Officer comments that they have 

reviewed the addendum, and they note the addendum concludes that “no 

significant adverse effects would arrive from the simultaneous working of Bow 

Farm and Ripple East. This is in large part due to the M50 Motorway acting as 

an attenuation buffer between the two sites”. As such the County Highways 

Page 154



119 
 

Officer confirm that their previous comments (above) remain valid and that 

they have no objections to the proposal. 

 

Public Rights of Way Officer (GCC) 

 

6.245 Date comments received: 20.11.2020 

Comments made: 

 

“If public safety demands a temporary closure or diversion of public right/s of 

way the appropriate application should be made, at least 6 weeks prior to the 

earliest requested closure date, to the Public Rights of Way Mapping Team at 

Gloucestershire County Council. Furthermore, it should be noted that, under 

section 34 of the Road Traffic Act 1988, any person who, without lawful 

authority, drives a motor vehicle on a public right of way commits an offence. 

The applicant should make themselves satisfied that they, and anyone else 

who may use public rights of way for private vehicular access in connection 

with the development, has a right to do so. They may wish to seek legal 

advice on the matter. The County Council is responsible for maintaining rights 

of way to a standard suitable for their usual public use. 

 

In addition, the applicant is expected to adhere to the following obligations: 

 

• The Public safety of those using the right of way must be ensured at all 

times.  

• There must be no disturbance of, or change to, the surface of the paths 

or part thereof without our written consent.  

• There must be no diminution in the width of the rights of way available for 

use by the public.  

• Buildings materials must not be stored on the rights of way.  

• Vehicle movements and parking are to be arranged so as not to 

unreasonably interfere with the public’s use of the rights of way.  

• No additional barriers are to be placed across the rights of way. No stile, 

gate, fence or other structure should be created on, or across, a public 

right of way without written consent of the Highway Authority. 

 

The developer should also be aware of the Department of Environment 

Circular 1/09 (part 7) which explains that the effect of development on a public 

right of way is a material consideration in the determination of applications for 

planning permission and that the grant of planning consent does not entitle 

developers to obstruct a public right of way. GCC would recommend that 

Public Rights of Way (PROWs), potentially affected by planned works, are 

clearly designated on all associated planning maps, diagrams or schematics 

as a matter of course. 

 

Our data is derived from the Gloucestershire Definitive Map which is a 

minimum record of public rights of way and does not preclude the possibility 

that unrecorded public rights may exist, nor that higher rights may exist than 

those shown.” 

Page 155



120 
 

The comments set out above were repeated by GCC’s Public Rights of Way 

team in their email to the MPA (GCC) dated 07.06.2022. 

 

The British Horse Society – South West (BHS) 

 

6.246 The BHS note that the site would have a site speed restriction at all times. 

This is an important safety measure. There should be adequate signage 

indicating the speed restriction and in addition, towards the location of the 

crossing point with the bridleway, horse warning signs should be displayed 

and a ‘bridleway crossing’ sign be placed at the crossing point itself reinforcing 

the location of the bridleway. There would also need to be warning signs 

strategically placed on the bridleway warning of lorry movements and the 

crossing location. 

 

6.247 The British Horse Society (South West) notes that the proposed bridleway 

crossing would be in an area of reduced visibility due to the bridleway 

following the hedge line at a right angle to the access track. The signage and 

reduced speeds would mitigate these risks, but the importance of visibility to 

both bridleway user and vehicle user is paramount. All efforts should be taken 

to make the location of this crossing as safe as possible, for example by 

ensuring the hedge is not overgrowing thereby obscuring visibility. 

 

6.248 This bridleway is situated in an area of flooding and prone to softer conditions. 

By the nature of the sand and gravel extraction process and the prevailing 

conditions the surface of the bridleway would be soft in the winter and the 

access track may become dusty in dry conditions. The British Horse Society 

(South-West) note that the proposed access track would be of a raised 

construction engineered to carry heavy traffic and the bridleway crossing 

would be over that newly raised surface with appropriate ramps to allow safe 

access and appropriate visibility. Additionally, wheel washing facilities for 

lorries would be available to prevent mud. The issue of dust from the 

application site is relevant, but the effects of dust on humans would be greater 

than on horses and this issue is, therefore, not considered from an access 

perspective. 

 

6.249 It is important to ensure that horses do not stray on to the land from the field 

adjoining the proposed new access track. Currently the horses are kept off the 

application site and the area of the proposed access track to the site by a 

shallow ditch with a part fence / part hedged boundary. It would be best 

practise to ensure that the track is secure from horses either straying on it, or 

the noise of a vehicle using the track causing them to break through the 

current fencing arrangement.  

 

6.250 They comment that where the proposed fence runs alongside the fields at the 

side of the bridleway a height of between 1.1 metres and 1.2 metres would be 

appropriate. However, where the field runs alongside the new access road to 

be constructed running up towards the main road towards the bungalow, then 

Page 156



121 
 

they recommend a higher height of 1.4 metres to prevent horses jumping out 

over the rails if they reacted to a lorry coming past.  

 

6.251 The British Horse Society (South West) would welcome an ongoing dialogue 

to explore any opportunities in the future for public access, either during the 

mineral extraction period or upon restoration of the site.  

 

The British Horse Society (East and West Midlands) 

 

6.252 The BHS (East and West Midlands) have no objections to the proposal as it 

would not directly affect the equestrian rights of way within Worcestershire. 

However, they fully support the comments of their colleague at the British 

Horse Society (South West) which were submitted to Gloucestershire County 

Council and would like to reinforce their colleague’s comments in relation to 

the opportunities this development presents for the creation of multi-use paths 

for equestrians, pedestrians and cyclists that cross the county boundary as 

part of the community pay-back requirement on developers.  

 

6.253 The British Horse Society would welcome an ongoing dialogue to explore any 

opportunities in the future for public access, either during the mineral 

extraction period or upon restoration of the site. 

 

Ramblers Association and Malvern Hills District Footpath Society 

 

6.254 Whilst content with the latest proposals for Bridleway Twyning ATW37 

crossing of the haul road in Gloucestershire, they are, however, disappointed 

that an additional new public access route that they suggested (running 

eastwards from Footpaths ZTE49 and RP-550 adjacent to the River Severn to 

Bridleway ATW37, roughly following the county boundary along the southern 

boundary of Flexible Working Areas A and B and the southern and eastern 

boundaries of Phase 9, adjoining Bridleway ATW37 to the north of the 

proposed haul road) has not been adopted by the applicant and included in 

the application submission. They consider that this is a missed opportunity.    

 

Open Space Society 

 

6.255 No comments received. 

 

Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) Gloucestershire 

 

6.256 The CPRE object to the proposal stating that whilst they do not object to the 

principle of mineral extraction from this site, they consider planning permission 

should be withheld unless and until the issues raised below have been 

properly addressed. 

 

6.257 CPRE Gloucestershire comment that the benefits of maximising restoration of 

the Grade 3a agricultural land to original agricultural quality is desirable but 

should be balanced against the downside of increased HGV movements. 

Page 157



122 
 

Importing 'inert' fill as a commercially attractive operation in itself would not, in 

CPRE Gloucestershire’s view, be acceptable in this location.  

 

6.258 CPRE Gloucestershire note that additional information has been provided by 

the applicant regarding the sourcing of inert fill. However, it does not indicate 

in any detail the nature and consistency of the material which is proposed to 

be imported. They consider that this is a critical element if restoration to 

agricultural land of BMV quality is to be achieved. On the basis of their 

experience, they remain unconvinced that restoration to such quality can be 

assured even though it may be aspired to.  

 

6.259 CPRE Gloucestershire note and welcome Natural England's detailed 

comments in relation to soil handling and the need for amplification of what 

was set out in the original application. Whilst sound handling, restoration and 

aftercare of indigenous soils is critical to re-creating BMV agricultural land, 

verifying the sources and nature of imported inert fill is also a key factor in a 

high-quality restoration (hydrological and settlement factors, for example).   

 

6.260 CPRE Gloucestershire doubt whether the relevant authorities have the 

resources available adequately to monitor incoming material and to ensure 

compliance with any agreed standard. It is for these reasons, and because 

importing fill would add significantly more HGV movements, that they maintain 

that alternative solutions to importing fill should be thoroughly assessed. 

CPRE Gloucestershire acknowledge that there may be tensions between 

minimising HGV movements and achieving restoration to original profiles, 

including the potential area of BMV agricultural land which is achievable. 

 

6.261 Unless it is clear that the scale of restoration to BMV quality would in practice 

be achievable, it would be preferable to evaluate the merits of restoring a 

smaller area to such quality, using materials generated from the site, and 

which might have flood storage benefits. It is important that the high-grade 

soils are not wasted. 

 

6.262 With reference to soil handling and restoration scheme submitted as part of 

the further information request submission, CPRE Gloucestershire comment 

that they do not have the resources available to verify whether the response 

by the applicant fully satisfies the points raised by Natural England, and 

strongly encourage the MPA to consult Natural England on these matters.  

 

6.263 CPRE Gloucestershire note that the site is not allocated for mineral extraction 

in the Gloucestershire Minerals Local Plan or the Worcestershire Minerals 

Local Plan.  

 

6.264 They note that Ripple Parish Council have made comprehensive comments 

on the application, and CPRE Gloucestershire considers that they have made 

a number of important points that require careful consideration. This include 

exploring the feasibility of using an existing processing plant at Ryall House 

Farm with the excavated mineral transported by barge from the site, thus 

Page 158



123 
 

eliminating the construction of a new plant on BMV agricultural land (Grades 2 

and 3a). 

 

The Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) Worcestershire 

 

6.265 CPRE Worcestershire raise no objections to the proposal, commenting that 

they regret but accept the need for sand and gravel to be extracted and hope 

that the MPA impose conditions to minimise the possible disruption to local 

residents from traffic or machinery noise. They comment that they would 

welcome the use of barges to transport mineral by river rather than the 

proposed HGVs by road, where feasible.   

 

6.266 Restoration should be to agriculture or wetland and permission should be 

given in such a way that a further application is needed in order to provide any 

kind of residential accommodation (including houseboats) or any sporting use 

involving the use of artificial power (such as motorboats) to preserve the 

openness and tranquillity of the countryside.  

 

6.267 CPRE Worcestershire consider that should planning permission be granted it 

should be subject to the imposition of an appropriate archaeological condition.   

 

6.268 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, the CPRE reiterate the above comments. 

 

Historic England 

 

6.269 Historic England raise concerns regarding the application on heritage grounds. 

They consider that the issues and safeguards outlined in their comments 

below need to be addressed in order for the application to meet the 

requirements of paragraphs 199, 200 and 202 of the NPPF. 

 

6.270 They consider that the proposal would result in harm to the significance of the 

Scheduled Monument of ‘Towbury Hill Camp’ through the removal of a part of 

its landscape setting. In view of this, Historic England consider that the level of 

harm would be at the higher end of less than substantial harm. Historic 

England consider that the level of harm could be mitigated through appropriate 

restoration to pre- extraction levels and in a manner sympathetic with current 

and historic land conditions. 

 

6.271 The MPA should be satisfied that any harm identified is clearly and 

convincingly justified and should weigh the harm against the public benefits 

associated with the proposal. If the MPA is minded to approve the application, 

Historic England recommend that a formal definition for the lifespan of the 

quarry is sought to avoid the potential for a long-term or permanent impact to 

the setting of the scheduled hillfort. Historic England advise that a robust and 

detailed Heritage Mitigation Strategy should be devised and conditioned. 

 

Page 159



124 
 

6.272 Historic England state that the MPA in determining this application should bear 

in mind the statutory duty of Section 66(1) and 72(1) of the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess, and to 

pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 

character or appearance of conservation areas, respectively. 

 

6.273 Historic England state that the submitted Archaeological Evaluation Report 

confirms the presence of extensive Iron Age settlement activity within the 

application site, albeit truncated on the river terrace through modern 

agricultural practices. The confirmed presence of a trackway (likely 

contemporary), demonstrating connectivity between the river, floodplain, the 

settlement foci, and the Scheduled Monument of Towbury Hill Camp 

advocates an important relationship between the sites, influenced by their 

immediate setting within the river valley. The application area, therefore, forms 

an important component within a significant Iron Age landscape. It makes a 

positive contribution to the significance of Towbury Hill Camp by providing an 

understanding of the function of the Scheduled Monument within the 

landscape. The site has potential to contribute to the understanding and 

knowledge of changes in social and economic structure in the Iron Age and 

into the Romano-British period.  

 

6.274 Full evaluation of the floodplain area has not been undertaken at this stage 

and, therefore, the nature and significance of non-designated archaeological 

remains in this area cannot be fully understood. However, well preserved 

organic deposits dating from between the Early Neolithic and medieval period 

have been recovered from waterlogged areas elsewhere in the Severn Valley, 

including from the extraction area to the west. There exists the potential for 

remains of considerable importance to survive within the application site. 

 

6.275 The proposals would result in the complete removal of non-designated 

archaeological remains within the application site that contribute to the 

understanding of the Scheduled Monument, and which form a part of its 

landscape. This would, Historic England’s view, result in a high level of harm 

to the Scheduled Monument’s significance (at the higher end of less than 

substantial harm). Non-designated archaeological remains surviving within the 

floodplain area may be of considerable importance in their own right. 

 

6.276 Historic England consider that the proposal would have an impact on the 

setting of the Scheduled Monument through the disruption of the relationship 

between the monument and the land it may have managed or administrated. 

Although a temporary impact, the lifespan of the quarry may still be a 

considerable period of time.  

 

6.277 Historic England also state that there is a demonstrably high potential for 

prehistoric and later archaeological remains to survive within waterlogged 

deposits. These may be of considerable importance in their own right.  

Page 160

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/9/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/9/contents


125 
 

6.278 Historic England note that the updated Proposed Restoration Plan appears to 

be missing annotations regarding the nature of the proposed restoration in 

some areas.  In view of this, the MPA should ensure they are satisfied with the 

clarity of the information provided.  

 

6.279 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative impacts, Historic England reiterate the above comments.  

 

 The Council for British Archaeology (CBA) 

 

6.280 The CBA stated in their comments to WCC that in principle they support the 

recommendation of the applicant’s Cultural Heritage Assessment that a 

specialist geophysical survey, borehole survey and geo-archaeological 

modelling of the area of extraction in the floodplain should be programmed as 

a first stage of the post-determination mitigation programme rather than as 

part of the pre-determination works. They have concerns that the survey 

objective would not be to identify the presence / absence / location of potential 

deposits, but simply to inform and focus further mitigation stages. They are 

aware that mineral extraction can sometimes yield important archaeological 

remains. The CBA stress that their preference whenever possible for pre-

determination investigations rather than post-determination mitigation, to 

safeguard any unanticipated remains at an early stage. However, they realise 

preference can be untenable where minerals extraction is a phased operation 

with progressive restoration over many years and related permissions.  

 

6.281 The CBA have concerns that the Assessment, although competent and 

thorough, seems slightly dismissive with an aim of expressing minimal likely 

impacts on potential archaeology and the significance of the two key above-

ground assets (Scheduled Monument of Towbury Hill Camp and the Listed 

Building of Puck Cottage).  The Assessment does, however, point out that the 

claimed ‘temporary’ nature of mineral extraction still means long-term 

disruption, not just for the estimated 9 years on this phase / site. The CBA 

concur with this comment and request this be taken into consideration.  

 

6.282 CBA wish to draw the MPA’s (WCC) attention to the statement within the 

Assessment that the restoration scheme would reinstate the original ground-

levels. They consider it should be made clear where any imported material 

would come from, and what it might comprise. Even inert building waste could 

compromise undiscovered archaeological features.  

 

6.283 The CBA requests confirmation of a robust pre-commencement or pre-phase 

(as relevant) planning condition to secure the geophysical survey and 

archaeological assessment and evaluation. This should be carried out to a 

pre-agreed (by the MPA) written specification, and the results reported for the 

public record; a watching brief to take place during the extraction phases, to a 

pre-agreed written scheme (by the MPA) to safeguard / identify any 

unexpected remains; and assurances as to what action / mitigation would be 

Page 161



126 
 

undertaken in the event that sites / items of archaeological interest were 

discovered, either by the geophysical survey or during extraction. 

 

County Archaeologist (Gloucestershire) 

 

6.284 Date comments received: 03.12.2019 

Summary Observation:  The applicant should provide the results of a 

programme of archaeological trial-trenching. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• The County Archaeologist (CA) notes the cross boundary nature of the 

application. 

 

• They advise that they have checked the proposed development area 

against the County Historic Environment Record. The locality is known 

to contain extensive archaeological remains relating to prehistoric and 

Roman activity and settlement. The CA is therefore concerned that 

significant archaeological remains may be present within the proposed 

access and plant site, and that these would be adversely affected by 

ground works required for this development. 

 

• In addition, the locality includes Towbury Hill Camp, Gloucestershire, a 

later prehistoric hillfort which is designated a Scheduled Monument in 

recognition of the national archaeological importance of the remains. 

The Scheduled Monument is located c. 600m distant from the area 

proposed for development in Gloucestershire (and only c. 250m distant 

from the proposed mineral extraction in Worcestershire). Therefore, the 

proposed development may have an unacceptable impact on the 

setting of the Scheduled Monument. For that reason the CA 

recommended that the MPA consult Historic England for their views on 

this development proposal prior to its determination. 

 

• The CA notes that this planning application is supported by an 

Environmental Statement (David Jarvis Associates, October 2019) 

which considers the impact of the development on cultural heritage and 

archaeology. The discussion is informed by reports on a desk-based 

assessment (Worcestershire Archaeology, May 2018), a geophysical 

survey (SUMO, November 2018, and a geo-archaeological assessment 

(Landscape Research and Management, May 2019). 

 

• The CA considers that the consideration of archaeological impact is 

incomplete, in that the Environmental Statement lacks a report on the 

results of a programme of archaeological trial-trenching. For that 

reason it is the opinion of the CA that it is not possible to understand 

the nature and extent of any archaeological impacts which may arise in 

connection with this development proposal. 

 

Page 162



127 
 

6.285 Date comments received: 07.09.2020 

Summary Observation:  No objection to the proposed development. However, 

the County Archaeologist considers it necessary to make provision in any 

permission to ensure archaeological monitoring of the ground works required 

for the development, so that any significant archaeological remains revealed 

can be recorded. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

Following submission of Archaeological Evaluation at Bow Farm, Ripple, 

Worcestershire and Gloucestershire (Worcestershire Archaeology, July 2020) 

the CA made the following observations and comments: 

 

• Of the 83 trenches excavated, 19 were in Gloucestershire. 

• The majority of the significant archaeology encountered was in 

Worcestershire. 

• Small amounts of unstratified Roman pottery and sparse undated 

archaeological features were recorded in the Gloucestershire section. 

• The proposed development (within Gloucestershire) is likely to have an 

adverse impact on archaeological remains of local significance. 

• As well as reporting on the results of the trial trenching, the 

archaeological evaluation report defines zones of archaeological 

potential and provides assessments of the levels of impact to these 

zones. It also outlines draft proposed mitigation measures for the 

identified zones. Archaeological monitoring of groundworks is proposed 

for the Gloucestershire area of the site, with which the CA is in 

agreement. 

• The CA advises that they have no objection to the proposed 

development subject to the attachment of the following condition to any 

planning permission which may be granted for this scheme: 

 

“No development shall take place within the application site until the 

applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance 

with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 

applicant and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: It is important to agree a programme of archaeological work in 

advance of the commencement of development, so as to make 

provision for the investigation and recording of any archaeological 

remains that may be destroyed by ground works required for the 

scheme. The archaeological programme will advance understanding of 

any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with paragraph 

199 of the National Planning Policy Framework.” 

 

6.286  Date comments received: 13.10.2020 

Summary Observation:  The CA defers to Historic England advice in relation 

to any impacts of proposed development on the significance and settings of 

Page 163



128 
 

Scheduled Monuments. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• “The important archaeological deposits within the application area that 

Hugh refers to as making 'a positive contribution to the significance of 

Towbury Hill Camp by helping us to understand the function of the 

monument within the landscape, including the occupants’ use of their 

immediate and regional resources and the prestigious nature of the 

hillfort which visually and tactically dominated this landscape' were 

found by the trial trenching almost entirely within Worcestershire, with a 

very low density of archaeological features in Gloucestershire. The 

areas of the Severn floodplain that could not be evaluated and which 

may contain important palaeo-environmental evidence, are also entirely 

within Worcestershire. I therefore advise that MPA responses in these 

regards should be led by Worcestershire County Council. Should 

planning permission be granted, securing the recording of 

archaeological deposits affected through condition remains appropriate 

for Gloucestershire.” 

 

• “As regards setting, I have not visited the site and am uncertain as to 

the impact of the Gloucestershire elements of the proposed operation 

on the setting of the Scheduled Monument at Towbury Hill Camp. The 

photographs included in the archaeological desk-based assessment, 

and also those in the landscape and visual impact assessment (which 

explicitly excluded the Scheduled Monument), do not rule out the 

possibility that the plant and processing areas in Gloucestershire may 

be visible from the SM. I therefore advise that Historic England’s 

request for further information in the form of a specific visual impact 

assessment, which should consider the height of proposed plant, is 

reasonable for them to be able to make fully informed advice on 

settings issues.” 

  

6.287 Date comments received: 30.03.2021 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• The CA reviewed the additional information submitted in relation to 

archaeological issues and is of the opinion that “the main item relating 

to Gloucestershire would appear to be contained in the Environmental 

Statement, Regulation 25 addendum, Appendix 8, section 2.2.2 

Towbury Hillfort, paragraph headed 'Visual Impacts (processing plant)'. 

This paragraph indicates that the impact of the processing plant 

(located in Gloucestershire) on the setting of the scheduled Towbury 

Hillfort has been assessed and concludes that there will be no 

intervisibility between the processing plant and scheduled monument. 

Whilst this result should mitigate concerns in this regard I advise that 

the views of Historic England should also be sought, as I am sure they 

have been. All other issues raised in Appendix 8 would appear to be 

relevant to Worcestershire only.” 

Page 164



129 
 

• In relation to undesignated archaeology in Gloucestershire, the CA’s 

previous recommendation (in an email dated 07.09.2020) that it is 

necessary to make provision in any permission to ensure 

archaeological monitoring of the ground works required for the 

development, so that any significant archaeological remains revealed 

can be recorded, remains unaltered by the additional information, 

including the submitted details of the processing plant. 

 

6.288 Date comments received: 31.05.2022 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• In relation to the additional information provided in response to the 5th 

EIA Reg.25 request. The CA has reviewed this information, in particular 

Appendix 6 (Archaeology and Heritage Technical Note - 

Worcestershire Archaeology) and concurs with the conclusion that no 

amendments are required for the Bow Farm cultural heritage 

documentation as a result of the submission. The CA’s previous 

recommendation for an archaeological condition remains unchanged. 

The CA advises that the MPA should “double check” with Historic 

England as to whether they have concerns over the cumulative effects 

of the two applications (Bow Farm and quarry proposal by Cemex on 

land at Ripple East (Worcestershire County Council Ref: 

22/000015/CM) in relation to the setting of Towbury Hillfort scheduled 

monument. 

 

Gloucestershire Geology Trust 

 

6.289 In their response dated 26th February 2020 Gloucestershire Geology Trust 

confirmed that they were not in a position to be able to respond to the 

consultations on Bow Farm application 19/0081/TWMAJM. 

 

Herefordshire and Worcestershire Earth Heritage Trust (H&WEHT) 

 

6.290 Date comments received: 07.02.2020 

Summary Observation: H&WEHT has found no recognition in the proposal of 

the loss of geological heritage that this action will cause. 

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• The H&WEHT point out that the proposed works “will remove and 

destroy parts of the Worcester and Holt Heath sand and gravel 

members of the internationally recognised River Severn Formation of 

river terraces, rendering them unavailable for future research. This 

impact on geodiversity is not recognised in the Environmental Impact 

Assessment provided with this application.”  

 

• “NPPF requires planners to "protect and enhance biodiversity and 

geodiversity".  In recognition of this obligation, the Worcestershire Local 

Minerals Plan requires extraction companies to "optimise opportunities 

Page 165



130 
 

to improve the condition, legibility and understanding of geodiversity", 

and "where loss is unavoidable, record and advance understanding of 

the significance of any geodiversity feature(s) to be lost (wholly or in 

part) in a manner proportionate to their importance and the impact of 

the loss, and make evidence and any archive generated publicly 

accessible."”  

 

• “The extraction of sand and gravel creates the opportunity to discover 

more about geological structures, the nature and sources of deposited 

material and dates of deposition. Interesting fossils from the quaternary 

period might be also be encountered.” 

 

• “To mitigate the impacts of destroying geological assets, we therefore 

recommend that the applicants be required, as a condition of the 

development, to co-operate with any reasonable requests for access to 

the site for the purposes of geological research, to report the discovery 

of fossils and other organic material at the site so that it can be 

investigated and to support the recording of the information obtained, 

making it publicly available as appropriate.” 

 
6.291 Date comments received: 25.08.2020 

Summary Observation:  

Summary/extracts of comments made: 

 

• “The Severn River Terraces are a geological formation of Internationally 

recognised importance. They provide a record of events in the 

Quaternary that are of significant scientific interest: the history of the 

evolution of the Severn river channel and the environmental history 

recorded in fossils.” 

 

• “The proposed development will not only destroy geological evidence, it 

will also expose it, providing opportunities for scientific investigation, 

subject to the co-operation of the developer. Extraction will extensively 

expose and remove large volumes of the Worcester Sand and Gravel 

member, both at the surface and where it underlies the alluvium.” 

 

6.292 In compensation for the loss of this, the H&WEHT request that during the 

extraction process, the operator should be required to cooperate with 

geologists requesting access to record the structure of exposed faces within 

the river terraces and extract samples for the purposes of research including 

removal and dating of rock samples from the exposed (and otherwise 

undisturbed) face. 

 

6.293 The H&WEHT request vigilance during the extraction process, alerting all 

operatives to the possibility of fossil finds, and that they co-operate in 

investigating and recovering any finds, specifically that they look out for large 

mammal and other remains among the sand and gravel; and layers of darker 

material that might contain a variety of smaller plant and animal remains. 

Page 166



131 
 

6.294 The H&WEHT state that they would welcome a geodiversity interpretation 

scheme, which could include an explanation of the rock that has been 

removed, what it consisted of, how, when and under what environmental 

conditions it was formed.  

 

6.295 In response to the Regulation 25 Submission (further information) relating to 

cumulative effects, the H&WEHT state that their comments remain 

unchanged.  

 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

6.296 No comments received. 

 

Gloucestershire Airport 

 

6.297 No initial concerns, as the site is located approximately 15 kilometres from 

their aerodrome. 

 

Exolum Pipeline System (Formerly CLH Pipeline System) 

 

6.298 Exolum have confirmed that their previous objection comments are withdrawn 

following discussions with the applicant, and comment that their apparatus 

(pipeline) runs north to south through the haul road (between the proposed 

processing plant site and the A38) in Gloucestershire and would be impacted 

by the works. They request that the applicant contacts them to discuss the 

proposal and enter into a Works Consent (if required). They state that the 

Energy Act 2013 prohibits any development and most intrusive activities within 

the easement strip (6 metres) for the pipeline without consent from Exolum 

Pipeline System.  

 

6.299 They note that landowners and third parties have a duty of care not to carry 

out any works that have the potential to damage Exolum Pipeline System’s 

apparatus. This duty of care applies even if the works themselves are situated 

more than 3 metres from the pipeline.  

 

Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) (Ministry of Defence Abandoned 

Pipelines) 

 

6.300 The DIO confirmed that there is a redundant pipeline (former Government Oil 

and Pipeline System) within the application site, running north to south 

through the haul road in Gloucestershire. Should works be required in close 

proximity to the pipeline they recommend that the applicant seek the advice of 

a specialist pipeline contractor by contacting the Pipeline Industries Guild.  

 

6.301 They state the pipeline has been declared redundant by the Ministry of 

Defence and the necessary legal charges have been removed in accordance 

with the Land Powers (Defence) Act 1958 and subsequent legislation. If the 

Page 167



132 
 

landowner wishes to remove the pipeline from the land, they may do so at 

their own cost. 

 

Wales and West Utilities 

 

6.302 No objections to the proposal. They confirm that they have no apparatus  

within the application site, although it is noted that their apparatus is located in 

the highway to the south-east of the application site. Any excavations in the 

vicinity of their apparatus should be carried out in accordance with the 

document titled: ‘HSE Guidance HS(G)47, Avoiding Danger from Underground 

Services'. Should diversion works be required, the applicant should contact 

Wales and West Utilities to discuss the proposals. 

 

Western Power Distribution (WPD) 

 

6.303 Date comments received: 06.03.2020 

Summary Observation: Confirmation received that there is a ‘small amount’ of 

11kV overhead electricity cable in one part of the field (in Worcestershire). The 

developer is advised by WPD to contact them to arrange a site visit to discuss 

safety and any restrictions that WPD may impose. 

 

NOTE: Within the part of the application site that falls within Gloucestershire, 

there is one short section of a low voltage pole mounted overhead cable that 

crosses the field between Fairfield and Church End Nursery. 

 

Gigclear Ltd 

 

6.304 Confirmation received that their apparatus is in the vicinity of the application 

(within the public highway), and the applicant should contact them to discuss 

the proposal. 

 

Zayo Group UK Ltd 

 

6.305 Confirmation received that their apparatus is in the vicinity of the application 

within the public highway to the east of the application site. The applicant 

should contact Zayo Group should any diversions be required. 

 

 Cadent Gas Ltd 

 

6.306 No objection to this proposal from a planning perspective. 

 

 Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLEP) 

 

6.307 No comments received. 

 

Worcestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (WLEP) 

 

6.308 No comments received. 

Page 168



133 
 

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 

 

6.309 The HSE have commented that the proposed development does not lie within 

a consultation distance of a major hazard site or major accident hazard 

pipeline, therefore, HSE does not need to be consulted on this proposal.  

 

 GCC Planning Enforcement (GCCPE) 

 

6.310 GCC’s Planning Enforcement consider that a shared approach to monitoring 

and enforcement will need to be discussed and agreed with Worcestershire 

County Council to ensure the best use of officer resources, and a consistent 

approach to assessing and where necessary responding to any site issues. 

 

6.311 GCC’s Planning Enforcement asked the MPA to take account of the following: 

 

• Conditions should be tightly worded to ensure that the amount of 

materials retained on site for restoration is clear and can be easily 

monitored. 

• The timescale for submission of the detailed restoration plan should be 

included within a condition, and tied closely to phase limitation to avoid 

delays. 

• Any limitations regarding volumes, lorry movements, import of material 

should be clearly defined in terms of what information is to be collected, 

retained for how long and available on request - something we need to 

co-ordinate with Worcs. This will make monitoring and enforcement 

easier. 

• Phasing conditions will be important in defining times and areas, and be 

a help for us. 

• Another area which could cause day to day concerns and generate 

complaints relate to site operations, and practical but necessary 

measures like a wheel wash, hours of operation and other 

environmental factors such as noise and dust. 

 

Minerals and Waste Policy Officer (M&WPO) 

 

6.312 Within the ‘Summary of recommendation’ attached to the response received 

on the 2nd March 2020, the M&WPO stated that further information was 

required. The M&WPO advises that their comments have been prepared on 

the assumption that the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire (2018-2032) 

will have been formally adopted prior to the proposal’s determination. 

 

6.313 The M&WPO refers to the application as being largely concerned with the 

provision of supporting infrastructure that is ancillary to adjacent mineral 

working within Worcestershire. This means that policy MW06 will require very 

careful consideration. This policy seeks to ensure that ancillary development is 

principally for that purpose and should only be allowed where it will be 

justifiable to support a valid and operational mineral working site. The 

M&WPO states that the case officer must be fully satisfied that this will take 

Page 169

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_COUNPO_COMM_02MAR20.PDF


134 
 

place and in doing so may require the use of appropriately worded restrictive 

conditions. 

 

6.314 The M&WPO goes on to state that “in light of the scale and nature of 

supporting infrastructure being sought, the case officer should also be 

satisfied that all of the proposed ancillary development will facilitate the best 

use of minerals being worked and that for other materials (included any which 

is imported) the use of the infrastructure will represent a sustainable option”, 

and that it “would not be unreasonable to seek a statement in respect of these 

matters from the applicant. Furthermore, the case officer must be satisfied that 

all ancillary development will be environmentally acceptable having also 

carefully considered the cumulative effect of multiple activities and impacts 

from the wider mineral working area.” 

 

6.315 In respect of MLP for Gloucestershire policy MA02 (Aggregate working outside 

of allocations), the M&WPO notes that the sand and gravel mineral working in 

Gloucestershire is largely associated with the creation of the silt lagoons, 

which amounts to approximately 40,000 tonnes. The working of mineral at this 

location is not within an MLP allocation, therefore, the proposal must be 

considered against policy MA02. The M&WPO advises that “based on the 

submitted details, attention should be focused upon policy MA02 criterion iii 

and iv.” The applicant is strongly encouraged to provide a clear statement to 

cover the matters arising. 

 

6.316 With regards to satisfying the requirements of MLP for Gloucestershire policy 

DM01 (Amenity), the M&WPO states that “the case officer must be satisfied 

that sufficient evidence has been provided to show that the application will not 

generate unacceptable amenity impacts upon local communities within 

Gloucestershire and in neighbouring Worcestershire and that any conclusions 

drawn in respect of this matter have accommodated the advice of relevant 

technical experts.” 

 

6.317 To satisfy the requirements of MLP for Gloucestershire policy DM03 

(Transport), the M&WPO states that “very careful consideration should be 

given to the requirements of policy DM03. Part a of the policy is concerned 

with actively promoting sustainable transport options. The case officer must be 

satisfied that all alternative and more sustainable transport options have been 

fully assessed and that a sufficiently robust justification has been given as why 

the current proposals have been brought forward. Knowledge of previous 

mineral working operations in the locality that have successfully utilised non-

road based haulage options (e.g. river barging) is a material consideration 

relevant to the application. The case officer is therefore strongly encouraged 

to seek a clear and robust statement to justify why non-road based haulage 

would not be appropriate / realistically achievable for this application. The 

remaining parts of policy DM03 (b and c) are concerned with ensuring 

unacceptable impacts on the highway network and public rights of way 

network (including open access land and National Trails) are avoided or 

satisfactorily mitigated.” 

Page 170

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2096569/mlp-for-glos-2018-2032-adopted-march-2020.pdf


135 
 

6.318 In respect of MLP for Gloucestershire policy DM04 (Flood risk), the M&WPO 

states that the advice of the EA (and potentially) the Lead Local Flood 

Authority will be critical to determining accordance of the application with 

policy DM04. 

 

6.319 The M&WPO remarks that all mineral developments have the potential to 

impact on water resources and in light of the size, scale and locality of the 

proposed development, careful consideration should be given to policy DM05 

(Water resources). The M&WPO is of the opinion that the case officer should 

be fully satisfied that all of the relevant criteria have been satisfactorily 

addressed, and that the advice of the EA and the Lead Local Flood Authority 

will be critical to determining accordance of the application with policy DM05. 

 

6.320 In the opinion of the M&WPO the application may impact on both designated 

and non-designated biodiversity interests and as such will need to be carefully 

assessed against the relevant requirements of policy DM06 (Biodiversity and 

geodiversity). The M&WPO states that the case officer should be fully satisfied 

that the supporting evidence which has been provided is sufficiently detailed 

and robust and technically acceptable having been reviewed by the County’s 

Ecologist. 

 

6.321 The M&WPO is of the opinion that “local soil resources will inevitably be 

impacted by the application” and that “this is a relevant planning issue 

requiring attention because the existing use of the land is for agriculture.” As a 

result “consideration should be given to policy DM07” (Soil resources), and the 

case officer “should be satisfied that the relevant policy criteria will be met.” In 

the event any unacceptable adverse impacts on the quality of soil are 

envisaged, the M&WPO states that the “applicant should provide a clear 

statement as to why the benefits of the development will outweigh adverse 

impacts. The supporting evidence for the application currently appears to be 

somewhat limited in its assessment and also solutions concerning soil impacts 

and this may need to be augmented.” The M&WPO acknowledges that 

importation of restoration materials may have a part to play in arriving at a 

solution, but that more technical details should be forthcoming and clearly 

interpreted to explain how importation will secure at least the maintenance of 

(if not secure improvements to) soil quality. 

 

6.322 With regards the potential impact the proposed development could have upon 

the landscape, the M&WPO advises that the relevant technical advisor should 

be consulted to ensure that the proposal will not cause harm to the local 

landscape and be in accordance with MLP for Gloucestershire policy DM09 

(Landscape). 

 

6.323 The M&WPO understands from the submitted details that development 

associated with this application will be the subject of restoration towards the 

end of the wider mineral working proposals at Bow Farm. Consequently, the 

M&WPO advises that the case officer must be confident that this final activity 

will occur without risk of post-working dereliction and/or the despoiling and 

Page 171

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2096569/mlp-for-glos-2018-2032-adopted-march-2020.pdf


136 
 

degradation of land. The M&WPO states that it must be made clear to the 

applicant that supporting infrastructure/minerals development is currently 

being judged as being ‘temporary’ and that any change to this will require a 

different assessment of acceptability. As previously advised the applicant 

should be encouraged at this stage to provide an indicative timetable and 

action plan for closure and the dismantling of equipment and its removal 

aligned with the wider restoration commitments. According to the M&WPO the 

key tests for the case officer in respect of policy MR01 should be: - “whether 

the proposals for delivering restoration will occur as soon as it practicably 

possible post-working (and if not, what the justification is for this); whether 

they will be achieved to a high environmental standard; and to what extent 

they will complement the restoration of the wider mineral working, where a 

consensus has been reached on the acceptability in planning terms of the 

overall restoration strategy. Any revisions that are forthcoming to the current 

wider restoration strategy for the Bow Farm area, must also be articulated 

through the restoration proposals for this development.” 

 

6.324 In having regard for the policies contained within the adopted Gloucestershire 

Waste Core Strategy, the M&WPO acknowledges that whilst the practice of 

using imported inert materials in restoration is largely an environmental matter 

for Worcestershire County Council to assess, planning issues associated with 

this part of the application should still be carefully scrutinised by 

Gloucestershire County Council. More specifically the case officer should be 

satisfied that the importation of inert materials will meet the relevant 

requirements of policy WCS8 (Landfill). 

 

6.325 The M&WPO states that the “key questions for the case officer to investigate 

include: - How has the applicant demonstrated that the importation of inert 

materials will not prejudice the restoration of other mineral sites within the 

county by virtue of diverting inert materials? How has the applicant 

demonstrated that proposed imported inert material represents the most 

sustainable option available and cannot be better employed further up the 

waste hierarchy through reuse, recycling and recovery?” The M&WPO 

strongly encourages all imported inert materials to be subject to some form of 

prior processing to ensure maximum value has been extracted from it before 

its use in restoration. Other important queries raised by the M&WPO include: - 

“the need to be assured of the quality of the imported materials for achieving 

the desirable restoration outcome; and that importation will be environmental 

acceptable without generate unacceptable pollution risks. Both of these issues 

should ideally be dealt with jointly with Worcestershire County Council who it 

is expected will be rigorously scrutinising site-specific matters.” 

 

6.326 Within their ‘Recommended action’ the M&WPO refers to ensuring the 

application and supporting information contains sufficient details and is 

robustly evidenced. The M&WPO goes on to say that it is important that a 

holistic approach is taken to assessing acceptability with close working 

between Gloucestershire and Worcestershire County Councils. They conclude 

their remarks by saying that “the sustainability of the proposed means of 

Page 172

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/14056/adopted_wcs_211112-53886.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/14056/adopted_wcs_211112-53886.pdf


137 
 

moving minerals and other materials; the plans for the ‘end-of-life’ of the 

supporting infrastructure and how it will fit within the wider restoration strategy; 

and the acceptability of importing materials for restoration would appears to be 

key areas requiring further attention by the applicant at this time.” 

 

6.327 In response to the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 

1st EIA Reg.25 Request, the M&WPO made the following comments in respect 

of the proposed importation of inert waste materials for restoration purposes: 

 

“Whilst the applicant's agent has pointed to the broad rationale for sourcing 

inert materials for restoration purposes, this doesn't really respond to the 

query raised. More robust evidence should be provided as to the level of 

interest from the construction industry operating within the sphere of influence 

of the Bow Farm site. How willing, and more importantly, how able will 

construction sites be in supplying Bow Farm with recoverable surplus inert 

material derived from site preparation and construction. It is fully appreciated 

that full details or indeed specific guarantees cannot be provided at this stage. 

Nevertheless, demonstration of how this aspect of the proposal will be 

carefully monitored and managed is vitally important. There is a difference in 

both the risk profile and potential follow-in issues for the receipt of materials 

from just a few larger sites compared to smaller amounts arriving from a larger 

number of smaller sites (e.g. the reliability of supply and the degree of 

consistency of restoration materials). The query also asks to show how the 

restoration of other mineral sites within the county will not be affected.by the 

potential diversion of any inert waste materials to Bow Farm. No assessment 

of this seems to have been carried out. The applicant's agent needs to 

consider the existing mineral sites in the county and show how they have been 

investigated in terms of understanding their likely demand for and timescales 

for needing restoration materials. The question remains - why will these sites 

not have to compete with Bow Farm and vice versa when it comes to 

acquiring recoverable surplus inert materials (some of which might be classed 

as waste) from evolving development sites?” 

 

6.328 Further to the above, the M&WPO states that the nature and quality of the 

restoration material is another matter that would benefit from clarification. 

Ideally all material imported for restoration purposes should poses no or very 

small quantities of waste material that could otherwise have been re-used or 

subject to recycling. The M&WPO is of the opinion that what is required from 

the applicant's agent is supporting evidence to show what mechanisms will be 

used to avoid this happening. What protocols will be in place for all concerned 

parties to ensure the right standards will be reached? What sort of 

commitments will the operator be willing to make? For example – “only surplus 

inert materials subject to prior mechanical treatment will be accepted at the 

site for restoration purposes.” 

 

6.329 In response to the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 

2nd EIA Reg.25 Request, the M&WPO states that they have no specific 

comments to make. However, they do comment that “there still remains 

Page 173

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=19


138 
 

justifiable concern around the timely availability of appropriate and sufficient 

restoration materials to successfully deliver the restoration commitments that 

are deemed necessary for an acceptable proposal. Consequently, officers 

from across the MWPA have taken time to carefully consider and explore the 

options realistically available to them to secure the desired outcome in the 

most efficient and effective way possible. Subject to the successful resolution 

of any outstanding environmental and amenity matters, it is concluded that a 

carefully monitored phased approach to working that is deeply influenced by 

the principles of delivering progressive restoration should be pursed. In 

practice, this means no objection would be forthcoming from policy to a case 

officer recommendation for approval that incorporated a condition(s) to secure 

restrictions upon working to a limited area(s) / or phase(s) at any given time. 

New areas / phases would only be available for working after the MWPA has 

been suitably satisfied that the necessary restoration commitments had been 

effective planned for and then delivered with the previous approved worked 

area(s) / phase(s). This approach would afford the MWPA a robust framework 

for restoration monitoring and the opportunity to significantly de-risk current 

concern over the availability of appropriate and sufficient restoration materials 

throughout the lifespan of the proposed minerals development.” 

 

6.330 In response to the further information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 

3rd EIA Reg.25 Request, the M&WPO states that they “have no further specific 

advice. However, officers do acknowledge the applicant's decision to adopt 

the MPA's previously advised view on a clear definition of 'inert material' (see 

GCC M&W reference: PR2021/0019/4/PAP - June 2021).” 

 

6.331 Whilst the M&WPO has no policy-related comments to make specifically in 

respect of the additional information that has been subject to the MPA’s 4th 

EIA Reg.25 consultation, officers updated the case officer concerning the 

aggregate landbank analysis for the proposal - a key part of the mineral 'need' 

assessment. At the beginning of February 2022, the County Council updated 

the Local Aggregate Assessment (LAA) for Gloucestershire. The new (9th) 

LAA contains aggregate data and an associated analysis up to the end of 

2019 and replaces the 2018 (8th) LAA. The M&WPO advises that the new 

LAA rate for sand and gravel in Gloucestershire has fallen slightly from 

0.742mtpa at the end of 2018 to 0.740mtpa at the end of 2019 and that the 

countywide reserves have also fallen from 6.561mt as of 31/12/2018 to 

6.106mt as of 31/12/2019. In practice the update is materially insignificant to 

the proposal. Albeit that the aggregate contribution from working in 

Gloucestershire is envisaged to be very small, it will still represent a positive 

contribution to replenishing the aggregate landbank. As of the end of 2019, the 

countywide sand and gravel aggregate landbank stood at 8.25 years. 

 

6.332 A further Local Aggregates Assessment update (10th) was published in July 

2022. This sets out: - the LAA rate for sand and gravel at the end of 2020 

(0.698mt); countywide reserves as of 31/12/2020 (5.32mt); and the calculated 

remaining years of the countywide sand and gravel aggregate landbank, 

which was 7.62 years. 

Page 174

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=16
https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=14
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2116277/10th-laa-for-gloucestershire-july-2022.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2116277/10th-laa-for-gloucestershire-july-2022.pdf


139 
 

6.333 With regards to comments made by the M&WPO in respect of the further 

information submitted in connection with the MPA’s 5th EIA Reg.25 Request, 

the M&WPO notes the potential material significance of the recently submitted 

nearby mineral development @ 'Ripple East', Bow Lane, Worcestershire, 

which introduces a new potential risk of adverse cumulative impacts. 

 

6.334 The M&WPO fully acknowledges that a planning argument could be made, 

that would in effect 'exempt' the Bow Farm application from scrutiny regarding 

cumulative impacts linked to the Ripple East application. Nevertheless, in the 

interests of minimising the risk of dispute with the impending decision on the 

Bow Farm application, the applicant has been encouraged to undertake a re-

appraisal of parts of the Environmental Statement to factor in the Ripple East 

proposal. The decision to engage in this re-appraisal by the applicant is 

welcomed by the M&WPO and it is their view that the addendum has 

reasonably sought to address possible cumulative impact issues that might 

arise. 

 

6.335 Before any conclusions can be drawn, the M&WPO states that individual 

cumulative impact themes will need to be assessed by appropriate technical 

consultees, and that it is only after a clear view can be established on each 

potential cumulative impact that the case officer can make a judgement on 

their material significance. In addition, the M&WPO states that it will be 

important that the case officer also looks beyond each individual cumulative 

impact and considers the overarching view of all the potential cumulative 

impacts taken together. This approach should secure a robust position on the 

presence or otherwise of cumulative impacts of material significance. 

 

Planning Casework Unit (PCU) 

 

6.336  Having acknowledged receipt of the Environmental Statement (ES) relating to 

the proposal, the PCU confirmed that they have no comments to make on the 

ES. 

 

7.0 Planning Considerations 

 

7.1 The main considerations material to the determination of this planning 

application for a new vehicular access off the A38, creation of haul road, 

weighbridge/office, processing plant and equipment (including concrete 

batching plant), creation of clean water ponds, silt ponds, stock piles and other 

works and ancillary development associated with the extraction of sand and 

gravel and import of inert materials with restoration using site derived material 

to wetlands, nature conservation and agriculture (cross-boundary application 

with Worcestershire) are:  

 

• The principle of the development; 

• Need for minerals; 

• Traffic, highway safety and impact upon public rights of way; 

Page 175

https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=12


140 
 

• Residential amenity (including noise, dust, air quality, vibration, lighting 

and health impacts); 

• Economic impact; 

• Landscape character and appearance of the local area; 

• Historic environment; 

• Ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity;  

• Water environment and flood risk; 

• Restoration and aftercare of the site; 

• Climate change and sustainability; 

• Cumulative effects; 

• Other matters (incl. prematurity, site security, utilities / pipelines, 

adequacy of the ES and EIA team and expertise, monitoring and 

enforcement, consultation, Human Rights Act 1998, obligations under 

the Equality Act 2010) 

 

The principle of the development 

 

7.2 A significant proportion of the representations on this planning application 

have commented that the proposal is not within an allocated minerals site and 

that the proposal is not supported by national planning policy. 

 

7.3 It is acknowledged by both MPA’s that this cross-boundary site is not within an 

adopted minerals allocation. Parallel applications have been submitted to both 

Gloucestershire County Council and Worcestershire County Council. This 

report considers the development located in Gloucestershire.  

 

7.4 As with any planning application, this application should be determined in 

accordance with the provisions of the Development Plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. The relevant policies and key issues have 

been set out earlier in this report.  

 

7.5 On the 31st October 2022 Worcestershire County Council’s Planning and 

Regulatory Committee approved, subject to conditions, application 

19/000048/CM for proposed extraction of sand and gravel with restoration 

using site derived and imported inert material to wetland, nature conservation 

and agriculture (cross-boundary application) on land at Bow Farm, Bow Lane, 

Ripple, Worcestershire. A copy of the Agenda report for application 

19/000048/CM can be viewed here. 

 

7.6 The approval of the application in Worcestershire for mineral extraction has 

established the principle of development to which the ancillary development in 

Gloucestershire relates. The focus of the consideration that follow are solely to 

the material considerations that relate to those proposals that lie within 

Gloucestershire. 

 

Need for minerals 

 

Page 176

http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=19/000048/CM&backURL=%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D293858%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%20%3E%20%3Ca%20href%3D%27wphappsearchres.displayResultsURL%3FResultID%3D370717%2526StartIndex%3D1%2526SortOrder%3DAPNID%2526DispResultsAs%3DWPHAPPSEARCHRES%2526BackURL%3D%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D293858%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%27%3ESearch%20Results%3C%2Fa%3E
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43662/PR%202022%2010%2031%20Bow%20Farm%20Quarry.pdf


141 
 

Gloucestershire’s landbank of sand and gravel reserves 

 

7.7 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

ground that the need for minerals in England is overestimated as the demand 

for housing is overestimated. Letters of representation have also been 

received in support of the proposal on the grounds of need for minerals, which 

is a key element for house building.  

 

7.8 National planning policy for minerals is contained within Section 17 

'Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals' of the NPPF. Paragraph 209 of 

the NPPF states "it is essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to 

provide the infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that the country needs. 

Since minerals are a finite natural resource, and can only be worked where 

they are found, best use needs to be made of them to secure their long-term 

conservation". Paragraph 211 of the NPPF states “when determining planning 

applications, great weight should be given to the benefits of mineral extraction, 

including the economy”. 

 

7.9 Paragraph 213 of the NPPF states "minerals planning authorities should plan 

for a steady and adequate supply of aggregates by…maintaining landbanks of 

at least 7 years for sand and gravel…whilst ensuring that the capacity of 

operations to supply a wide range of materials is not compromised". As 

required by the NPPF, the County Council has produced a Local Aggregate 

Assessments (LAA), to assess the demand for and supply of aggregates in 

Gloucestershire. 

 

7.10 The 10th Local Aggregates Assessment for Gloucestershire (LAA) was 

published in July 2022 and covers the period from 01/01/2020 to 31/12/2020 

and, in accordance with the NPPF (paragraph 213), calculates annual 

provision requirements on a rolling average of 10 years' sale data in 

Gloucestershire and other relevant local information. 

 

7.11 An LAA provides data on local aggregates. It includes current levels of supply 

and an understanding of influences upon demand. An LAA’s prime purpose is 

to assist MPAs in their efforts to facilitate steady and adequate supply of local 

aggregates, where reasonable and practicable to do so. LAAs do not set 

policy but are crucial in contributing to the evidence base as to how successful 

or otherwise they are in affecting change. 

 

7.12 The starting point for setting a production guideline for sand and gravel in the 

LAA is to estimate demand on the basis of a rolling average of 10 years sales 

data (the 10-year average) before considering other relevant local information. 

The 10-year sales average is designed to provide a representative baseline 

indication of demand by averaging out economic peaks and troughs. Sales of 

sand and gravel from Gloucestershire in 2020 were approximately 0.477 

million tonnes, considerably lower than the 3-year sales average of 0.689 

million tonnes per annum. The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in enforced 

shutdown of large sections of the UK economy. Within the ‘Comments’ section 

Page 177

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2116277/10th-laa-for-gloucestershire-july-2022.pdf


142 
 

of the ‘summary of sales and reserves’ diagram on page 1 of the LAA it 

acknowledges “a notable decline in the sales of land won sand and gravel and 

crushed rock from the county during 2020” that is “likely to be a result of the 

national restrictions imposed to tackle the COVID-19 Pandemic.” Furthermore, 

it states that “at times during the year [2020] many local operations were 

temporarily closed or functioned at reduced capacity. This was in response to 

direct restrictions on their operations and the indirect impact of a fall in 

demand for aggregates from users for the same reason.” 

 

7.13 A comparison between the 10-year and 3-year averages of annual aggregate 

sales shows there is a difference. Applying the 3-year average would 

represent a slight decrease of around 2% for sand & gravel. In annual supply 

terms, this equates to a decrease in the projected future demand of 9,000 

tonnes per annum for sand & gravel. 

 

7.14 Using published district council five-year housing supply reports, Table 2 at 

para.3.6 of the LAA provides a summary of the calculated demand for new 

homes for all of Gloucestershire to 2024/25. Whilst there was expected to be a 

year-on-year increase in the demand for new homes up to 2022/23, Table 2 

shows a decline for 2023/24 (3,045) and 2024/25 (2,776). 

 

7.15 Economic growth plans for Gloucestershire led by GFirst Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) involve a number of noteworthy local infrastructure 

improvement projects, which may well stimulate demand for local aggregates. 

These projects are either underway as of the start of 2020 or have secured 

funding and are timetabled to commence over in the next few years: 

 

• Upgrades and expansion of education infrastructure at various colleges 

throughout the county; 

• Improvements to Cheltenham town centre (Cheltenham Minster 

Innovation Exchange); 

• A 10-year growth plan for Gloucestershire Airport; 

• The A40 Innsworth Gateway Scheme, involving new and upgraded 

highway infrastructure improvements; 

• Upgrades to Gloucestershire’s towpaths; and 

• Upgrades to sections of the Gloucester South West Bypass. 

 

7.16 In addition, there are also a number of major privately-financed (with some 

public-sector support) construction projects of strategic significance that have 

been earmarked for Gloucestershire. These projects could also have an 

influence on demand for local aggregates and / or impact on regional level 

aggregate supply chains at various points over the coming decade and 

beyond: 

 

• Tewkesbury Garden Town: 10,000+ new homes and 100+ hectares of 

new employment land; 

Page 178



143 
 

• Elms Park at North West Cheltenham: 4,000+ new homes and 20+ 

hectares of new employment land; 

• The Golden Valley (Cyber Park) Development: 1,000+ new homes and 

40+ hectares of employment land; 

• The EcoPark at M5 Junction 13, Stonehouse: a 40+ ha strategic mixed-

use employment development incorporating a new sports stadium and 

associated infrastructure; and 10+ ha of new employment land. 

 

7.17 The Local Transport Plan (2015-2031) for Gloucestershire identifies up to 50 

long-term capital highway project priorities for the period to 2031. The most 

significant of these, which could have an influence on local aggregate supplies 

and / or impact on regional level aggregate supply chains, include: - 

 

• All-movements junction improvements at Junction 10 for the M5; 

• Upgrades, realignment and improvements to the A417 / A419 (‘the 

missing link’); and 

• Upgrades and improvements to the A46/A428 corridor including 

Junction 9 of the M5, Tewkesbury. 

 

7.18 Plans for growth outside of Gloucestershire could also have an influence on 

local aggregate supplies, particularly by impacting on regional-level (and 

beyond) aggregate supply chains. Nationally significant projects (NSIPs) of 

note that may fall into this category include: 

 

• The new nuclear power station in the South West of England (Hinckley 

C); 

• three new gas-fired power stations (Avonmouth, Merthyr Tydfil and 

Swansea); 

• two renewable power-generating tidal lagoons (West Somerset and 

Swansea Bay); 

• improvements to the M42 Junction 6 and several extensions to the 

national rail network (a Great Western Mainline link to Heathrow Airport 

and the Metro-west ‘Portishead’ Branch line); and 

• a new £30 million, 2.5km road link to a new proposed 724ha strategic 

development has been approved between the A419 and M4 within 

Swindon Borough. 

 

7.19 There is little doubt from the scale and ambition of infrastructure projects over 

the coming years either across Gloucestershire or within its sphere of 

influence, there will be a demand placed on locally-sourced aggregate. 

However, there is no evidence to suggest the delivery of these projects 

warrants an alternative demand scenario for the county as is currently being 

envisaged and planned for. Many of the projects will not necessarily require 

materially-significant amounts of land-won aggregate from Gloucestershire 

and / or for those proposed outside of Gloucestershire, these may be 

sufficiently serviced by other aggregate resources from elsewhere (e.g. the 

Mendip Hills or South Gloucestershire). Nevertheless, in the opinion of the 

Page 179



144 
 

MPA, the potential impact on demand arising from the delivery of 

infrastructure projects should be kept under continual review to assess new 

potential projects as they come forward, along with the evolution of existing 

ones. 

 

7.20 In Gloucestershire, the countywide sand and gravel landbank as at 

01/01/2021 was 5.32 million tonnes. The remaining length of this landbank is 

7.62 years. This is based upon the 10-year rolling average sales of 

0.6998mtpa. Applying the 3-year rolling average annual sales, which is lower, 

(i.e. 0.689mtpa) would marginally increase the remaining length of landbank to 

7.72 years. 

 

7.21 At para.4.5 of the LAA the MPA notes that “the length of the remaining 

landbank is of limited value in establishing the future availability of sand & 

gravel supplies. Other influential factors include productive capacities and 

envisaged working schedules for individual sites.” 

 

7.22 Table 3 in the LAA shows that for 2019 locally sourced primary aggregate as a 

percentage of countywide consumption was 78% (0.54 million tonnes). The 

percentage of imported primary aggregates into the county for the same year 

was 22% (0.15 million tonnes). Total Gloucestershire consumption of primary 

aggregates for 2019 was 0.69 million tonnes. 

 

7.23 Table 4 in the LAA shows that for 2019 local sales of primary aggregate as a 

percentage of total sales in the county was 59% (0.54 million tonnes). The 

percentage of sales for exported primary aggregate as a percentage of total 

sales within the county was 41% (0.37 million tonnes). Total sales of primary 

aggregate from Gloucestershire for 2019 was 0.91 million tonnes. 

 

7.24 Gloucestershire’s sand and gravel imports in 2019 mostly arrived from 

Wiltshire, Worcestershire and the South Downs National Park area. A further 

eight other mineral planning authority areas also supplied very small levels of 

sand & gravel to the county. Sand & gravel sourced from Gloucestershire was 

most significant with aggregate consumption in the neighbouring Swindon & 

Wiltshire area. It represented between 60-70% of this area’s total sand & 

gravel aggregate use during 2019. 

 

7.25 South East Wales also received notable imports of sand & gravel from 

Gloucestershire during 2019. Supplies from the county made up between 20 – 

30% of total consumption in South East Wales. 

 

7.26 Overall, the 2019 imports and exports show that Gloucestershire largely 

remains (as was the case in 2014) a local supplier of primary land-won 

aggregates. However, the local market still demanded a not unsubstantial 

proportion of imported aggregates in 2019. External markets also sought 

aggregate exports from Gloucestershire to meet their needs. 

 

Page 180



145 
 

7.27 The Government's PPG (Paragraph Reference ID: 27-082-20140306) states 

"for decision-making, low landbanks may be an indicator that suitable 

applications should be permitted as a matter of importance to ensure the 

steady and adequate supply of aggregates". Notwithstanding this, as indicated 

by the PPG (Paragraph Reference ID: 27-084-20140306) “there is no 

maximum landbank level and each application for mineral extraction must be 

considered on their own merits regardless of length of the landbank. However, 

where a landbank is below the minimum level this may be seen as a strong 

indicator of urgent need”. 

 

7.28 Although the proposal in Gloucestershire is an ancillary minerals development 

required to facilitate the mineral extraction operation in Worcestershire, such  

ancillary development is considered to be consistent with paragraph 213 f) of 

the NPPF as it would contribute towards the MPA’s landbank for sand and 

gravel. 

 

Worcestershire landbank of sand and gravel reserves 

 

7.29 The approval of application 19/000048/CM means that Worcestershire County 

Council have established the contribution to the mineral need both in 

Worcestershire and in Gloucestershire. A copy of Worcestershire’s 

assessment of its landbank of sand and gravel reserves can be found at 

paragraphs 430 to 447 of the report that went to Worcestershire County 

Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee on the 31st October 2022. 

 

Cross border mineral planning authority issues 

 

7.30 Within the LAA’s section on ‘Cross border mineral planning authority issues’ it 

states that “there is a long history of imports and exports of Gloucestershire’s 

aggregate minerals largely with its neighbouring areas, but also further afield. 

Data from 2014 and 2019, suggests that aggregate imports continue to be a 

component, but not a dominant part of consumption within the county. In 

terms of aggregate exports, this appears to have increased in both overall 

tonnage and as a proportion of sales from 2014 to 2019. However, as at 2019 

overall Gloucestershire remains largely a local supplier.” 

 

7.31 The starting point in the consideration of this matter is the Development Plan. 

The adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire (2018-2032) [hereafter 

MLP] is the Development Plan for minerals applications in Gloucestershire.  

 

7.32 According to Policy MW01, Gloucestershire has to provide at least a 7 year 

landbank of sand and gravel throughout the life of the current Plan. The 

proposal would secure in the region of 40,000 tonnes of additional provision to 

existing reserves. Therefore, this proposal represents a small contribution 

towards the sand and gravel requirements for the Plan period. As a result, the 

proposal complies with the first part of Policy MW01. 

 

 

Page 181

http://e-planning.worcestershire.gov.uk/swift/MediaTemp/984-32163.pdf


146 
 

Traffic, highway safety and impact upon public rights of way 

 

7.33 With regards to transport implications, under Policies DM01 and DM02 of the 

MLP for Gloucestershire, the Highway Development Management (HDM) 

Team Leader has confirmed that he has no objection in terms of highway 

network capacity and safety. However, multiple objections have been received 

from local residents and occupiers of commercial premises stating that the 

proposal will cause congestion on the strategic and local highway network. 

 

7.34 Objections have also been received from Twyning Parish Council, Ripple 

Parish Council, Bushley Parish Council, and Longdon, Queenhill and Holdfast 

Parish Council objecting to the proposal on traffic, highway safety grounds 

and public rights of way. Tewkesbury Town Council raise concerns about the 

potential adverse impact of HGVs on Tewkesbury’s highway network.  

 

7.35 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of transport related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.36 Policy DM03: ‘Transport’ of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire states: 

 

“Part a / Sustainable transport 

Mineral development proposals that minimise the miles travelled by minerals 

and demonstrate how road-based transport will also be kept to a minimum will 

be permitted. Wherever possible alternative and more sustainable, modes of 

non-road transport must be used along with fuel efficient and / or low, ultra-low 

or zero greenhouse gas emitting haulage vehicles. 

 

Part b / Highway Network 

 

Mineral development proposals will only be permitted where public safety is 

not adversely affected and it can be demonstrated: - 

 

I. unacceptable impacts on the capacity and function of the strategic and 

local highway networks will be avoided or satisfactorily mitigated; and 

 

II. any unavoidable adverse impacts on the capacity and function of the 

strategic and local highway networks will not be severe. 

 

Part c | Public Rights of Way (PRoW) Network and open access land 

 

Mineral development proposals will only be permitted where it can be 

demonstrated: - 

 

I. public rights of way routes and / or open access land will be retained 

and their safe use maintained, and unacceptable adverse impacts will be 

avoided or satisfactorily mitigated; and / or 

 

Page 182



147 
 

II. the temporary or permanent diversion of public rights of way routes and 

/ or the temporary restriction or permanent exclusion of access to open 

access land is justified and that such changes will not affect public safety 

and cause unacceptable impacts on the integrity and enjoyment of the 

wider public rights of way network and / or open access land in the 

locality; and / or 

 

III. the formal closure of public right of way routes represents a very 

exceptional circumstance where replacement routes are no longer 

required and that unacceptable impacts on the wider public rights of way 

network will be avoided. 

 

Mineral development proposals affecting National Trails will be permitted 

only where unacceptable adverse impacts are avoided or satisfactory 

mitigated.” 

 

7.37 Within the ‘reasoned justification’ for Policy DM03 para.295 of the MLP states 

that “mineral developments are heavily reliant on Gloucestershire’s highway 

networks and those of surrounding areas. They allow for the hauling of 

minerals to markets or for further processing and provide the means by which 

staff and customers can gain access.” On the issue of opportunities for use of 

sustainable modes of transport, the supporting text for Policy DM03 states that 

“The county’s mineral supplies are predominately local in nature and follow 

well established routes that are strongly aligned with the existing road 

infrastructure. This presents very limited opportunities for more sustainable 

modes of non-road transport such as rail, ports or other inland waterways to 

attract the necessary interest and accompanying investment to act as a viable 

alternative.” 

 

7.38 “For new mineral development proposals, the generation of new or additional 

vehicle movements must not result in unacceptable adverse impacts on the 

county’s highway networks and also those of surrounding areas.” [para.296 of 

the MLP] 

 

7.39 Where ‘sensitive sections’ of the highway could be exposed to minerals-

related traffic such as HGVs or ELVs (Extra Long Vehicles), a route 

management plan that formally designates freight routes for mineral 

development may be sought. The requirement for such a plan was discussed 

with the Highway Authority and subsequently deemed by them to be 

unnecessary given that the proposed access is “straight onto the A38 and 

close to the M5” motorway, and that HGV routing “cannot be practically 

controlled through the planning process.” 

 

7.40 In respect of the PRoW network and open access land, the supporting text for 

Policy DM03 sees the retention of accessibility and usability as a priority, but 

acknowledges that “for health & safety and security reasons proportionate 

restrictions or diversions of a temporary or permanent nature may be 

Page 183



148 
 

necessary.” Whilst opportunities to enhance the PRoW network are desirable, 

none are proposed as part of this proposal.  

 

7.41 Policy INF1: ‘Transport Network’ (page 78) of the adopted Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 is comprised of 

four parts. In summary, part 1 requires developers to provide safe and 

accessible connections to the transport network; part 2 states that “planning 

permission will be granted only where the impact of development is not 

considered to be severe…..”; part 3 requires developers to assess the impact 

of proposals on the transport network through a Transport Assessment, and 

part 4 states that “where appropriate the local planning authority may require 

applications to be accompanied by a Travel Plan that has full regard to the 

criteria set out in the NPPF.” 

 

7.42 Within the supporting test for Policy INF1 at para.5.2.4 of the adopted JCS it 

states that “In the JCS area, the Local Highway Authority is Gloucestershire 

County Council. The County Council manages and maintains the local road 

network, supports non-commercial passenger transport services, and 

promotes safe and sustainable travel. The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is 

prepared by the County Council and sits alongside the JCS.” 

 

7.43 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states “development should only be prevented or 

refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on 

highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would 

be severe”.  

 

7.44 Vehicular access into the site would be achieved via a bell mouth priority 

junction onto the A38 in Gloucestershire, leading to an internal haul road. The 

proposed access arrangement includes for a right turn lane ‘ghost island’ 

serving the proposed development access. This would provide room for 

vehicles to wait before turning into the site, without impeding the free flow of 

traffic. This arrangement also presents an opportunity to improve the existing 

right turning provision for Page’s Lane and an opposing minor access to the 

north. A gap would be provided for turning into Page’s Lane and the opposing 

minor access. The layout for these proposed highway alterations can be found 

on drawing No.J32-3580-005 entitled ‘Proposed Ghost Junction Site Access’, 

a copy of which can be seen at page 19 of the Transport Assessment 

Addendum dated August 2020.  

 

7.45 The details of these proposed highway alterations would be secured via the 

following planning condition suggested by the Highway Authority 

(Gloucestershire): 

 

“No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced 

until the means of access for vehicles, pedestrians and/or cyclists have been 

constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans 323580-

005 Rev A and 323580-006. 

 

Page 184

https://jointcorestrategy-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_jointcorestrategy_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Fjointcorestrategy%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FJoint%20Core%20Strategy%20%28JCS%29%20website%2FHome%2FJCS%20Plan%20Adopted%20Verison%20%28PDF%2E%2010MB%29%20Formatted%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Fjointcorestrategy%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FJoint%20Core%20Strategy%20%28JCS%29%20website%2FHome&ga=1
https://jointcorestrategy-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_jointcorestrategy_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Fjointcorestrategy%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FJoint%20Core%20Strategy%20%28JCS%29%20website%2FHome%2FJCS%20Plan%20Adopted%20Verison%20%28PDF%2E%2010MB%29%20Formatted%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Fjointcorestrategy%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FJoint%20Core%20Strategy%20%28JCS%29%20website%2FHome&ga=1
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_11.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_11.PDF


149 
 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure that all road works  

associated with the proposed development are: planned; approved in good 

time (including any statutory processes); undertaken to a standard approved 

by the Mineral Planning Authority and are completed before occupation.” 

 

7.46 Further planning conditions have been suggested by the Highway Authority, a 

copy of which can be found in the conditions list at the end of this report. 

 

7.47 Advice Note No.4 at the end of the conditions list states that the developer 

must enter into a highway agreement with the Highway Authority 

(Gloucestershire) under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980. Such an 

agreement would specify the works and the terms and conditions under which 

such works would be carried out.  

 

7.48 Pedestrian footway provision and crossing facilities are proposed to the north 

and south of the site access. This would comprise provision of a short section 

of footway (measuring approximately 2 metres wide by 15.5 metres long) 

extending from the proposed site access to a proposed uncontrolled 

pedestrian crossing facility across the A38, just south of the proposed site 

access, and a short section of footway (measuring approximately 2 metres 

wide by 25.5 metres long) extending north from Page’s Lane junction to a 

proposed uncontrolled pedestrian crossing facility across the A38, just north of 

Page’s Lane.  

 

7.49 Visibility splays measuring approximately 4.5 metres by 160 metres in each 

direction are proposed, and to achieve this, trees on the boundary frontage 

with the A38 would be removed and the hedgerow managed to a level of no 

more than 0.6 metres high. 

 

7.50 A wheel washing facility would be provided within the proposed processing 

plant area in Gloucestershire to service HGVs when exiting from the proposed 

processing plant site. Water would be sourced from the proposed clean water 

lagoon to feed the facility. 

 

7.51 A haul road measuring approximately 300 metres long by 7.3 metres wide is 

proposed from the site access to the proposed processing plant area in 

Gloucestershire. This would initially be surfaced with a gravel-based finish, but 

once the proposed concrete processing plant is operational, the haul road 

would be formed of site produced concrete. 

 

7.52 A Transport Assessment accompanied the application. To quantify the volume 

and composition of traffic flows on the A38, 2 Automatic Traffic Counters were 

placed to the north and the south of the proposed access position on the A38 

for a consecutive 7-day period. The collated data summarised that the 

average number of HGVs for the same 24-hour period on the A38 during a 

weekday, weekend and whole week inclusive demonstrates that on a 

weekday an average total of 4,674 two-way vehicular movements were 

recorded. 498 (11%) of these were recorded as HGV movements. On a 

Page 185



150 
 

weekend, an average total of 3,205 two-way vehicular movements were 

recorded. 220 (7%) of these were recorded as HGV movements. During a 

whole week average, 4,254 two-way vehicular movements were recorded. A 

total of 419 (10%) of these were recorded as HGV movements. 

 

7.53 The Transport Assessment outlines that under the combined 250,000 tonnes 

extraction and average of 165,222 tonnes import scenario per year, there 

would be approximately 144 HGV movements per day (72 HGVs entering the 

site and 72 HGVs exiting the site per day), equalling 13 two-way HGV 

movements per hour, or 1 HGV movement in either direction every 4 to 5 

minutes during a weekday. This can be subdivided into the HGV movements 

associated with the export of mineral from the site, which are anticipated to be 

approximately 86 HGV movements per day (43 HGVs entering the site and 43 

HGVs exiting the site per day), and the HGVs associated with the import of 

inert waste material, which are estimated to be approximately 58 HGV 

movements per day (29 HGVs entering the site and 29 HGVs exiting the site 

per day). The Transport Assessment states that the proposal would equate to 

an increase of approximately 3.3% of total traffic movements along the A38, 

which equates to approximately 34% increase in total HGV movements along 

the A38 during a whole week average. 

 

7.54 The Transport Assessment anticipates the HGV movements would be 

distributed as follows: 

 

• Worcester (A38 north) – 5% distribution (approximately 7 HGV 

movements) 

• West / Wales (M50 Motorway west) – 30% distribution (approximately 

43 HGV movements) 

• Worcester / West Midlands (M5 Motorway north) – 30% distribution 

(approximately 43 HGV movements) 

• Gloucester / Tewkesbury (M5 Motorway south) – 30% distribution 

(approximately 43 HGV movements) 

• Hereford (A438 west) – 5% distribution (approximately 7 HGV 

movements)  

 

7.55 The Transport Assessment estimated that approximately 90% of HGV 

movements would use the Motorway network, comprising of the M50 and M5 

Motorways to the north of the quarry site. Approximately 5% are expected to 

use the A438 travelling westward and approximately 5% are likely to continue 

north along the A38. 

 

7.56 To further analyse how the HGV development traffic would affect the highway 

network, a net percentage comparison of the two-way vehicle movements for 

the baseline and forecast scenarios during average weekday, weekend and 

whole weekdays was quantified. When comparing the proposal’s two-way 

HGV development traffic to the existing baseline along the A38, the applicant 

anticipates that the proposal’s HGV activity would result in an additional 3.1% 

Page 186



151 
 

of total vehicular movements during an average weekday and approximately 

an increase of 3.4% when taken as a whole week average. 

 

7.57 The applicant anticipates that they would generally seek to avoid HGV 

movements during peak hour travel, as this may inhibit efficient movement of 

materials. However, the Transport Assessment has assessed the impact of 

the proposed HGV movements during peak hours as a worst-case scenario. 

The Assessment demonstrates that the change to traffic movements on the 

A38 during peak hours is very modest. During the AM peak (08:00 to 09:00 

hours) it anticipates an increase of approximately 3.5% of the overall two-way 

HGV movements on the A38 and during the PM peak (17:00 to 18:00 hours) it 

anticipates an increase of approximately 2.6% of the overall two-way HGV 

movements on the A38. 

 

7.58 The Transport Assessment also assessed the proposed HGV movements as 

part of the overall traffic levels at a number of locations. This shows that the 

percentage change in two-way movements on the A38 north of Junction 1 of 

the M50 Motorway is only 0.1%, which the Transport Assessment considers is 

negligible. There would be an increase of approximately 0.4% in movements 

to and from the A438, which was also assessed as negligible. The Transport 

Assessment states that any impact beyond these points on the A38 and A438 

would only dilute further. 

 

7.59 In terms of impacts at Junction 1 of the M50 Motorway, the Transport 

Assessment anticipates that the change in two-way traffic flows between the 

two roundabouts making up the interchange would be limited to approximately 

1.4%, which it considers gives an indication of the impact at the interchange 

as-a-whole. The Transport Assessment notes that whilst the impact is greater 

on the entry and exit links of the mainline of the M50 Motorway itself 

(approximately 32% increase eastbound and westbound exits and entries with 

Junction 1 of the A38, respectively), it considers this is mainly due to the 

comparatively very low movements exiting and leaving the Motorway in this 

location. 

 

7.60 The applicant states that staff vehicular movements to and from the proposal 

are likely to generate, as a worst-case scenario, 40 vehicle movements per 

day (20 vehicles entering the site and 20 vehicles exiting the site per day) 

during identified commuting hours falling outside of the proposed operational 

times and network peak hours. The Transport Assessment states that the staff 

vehicular movements represent approximately 4.8% increase on the A38 

during the proposed AM (06:00 to 07:00 hours) commuter hour for the quarry 

and approximately a 2.7% increase during the PM (17:00 to 18:00 hours) 

commuter hour. The Transport Assessment considers that staff movements 

would have a negligible impact on the existing total traffic movements on the 

A38 and local highway network. 

 

7.61 A highway safety review has been undertaken. This demonstrates that 10 

Personal Injury Collisions were recorded within the review area, of which 9 

Page 187



152 
 

were classified as ‘slight’ and 1 was classified as ‘fatal.’ There were no 

recorded ‘serious’ Personal Injury Collisions. The single Personal Injury 

Collision recorded as ‘fatal’ occurred along the A38, approximately 200-metres 

south of the Junction 1 of the M50 Motorway. The Personal Injury Collision 

was attributed to a car driver losing control when failing to negotiate a left-

hand bend along the road. This resulted in the car colliding with a telegraph 

pole and a road sign. A single Personal Injury Collision was recorded involving 

a goods vehicle (of an unknown weight) and a car. The Personal Injury 

Collision was classified as a combination between loss of control and a head-

to-head collision. The collision can be attributed to the car driver’s 

misjudgement of speed as they approached the M50 Motorway slip-bound to 

exit. The highway safety review concludes that no identifiable significant 

highway patterns or design issues indicate a safety concern with the highway 

network surrounding the site. 

 

7.62 As part of the applicant’s response to the Regulation 25 Request (further 

information), the applicant has clarified that there would be ample circulation 

space within the proposed processing plant site area to avoid the need for 

unnecessary reversing during the loading / unloading of material. While 

ensuring the health and safety of site operatives, this also restricts any 

needless noise effects resulting from reverse / white noise bleepers. 

 

7.63 As part of the applicant’s response to the further information request, they 

questioned the necessity of a vehicle routing plan, as weight restrictions are in 

force on routes south of the application site. A 17-tonne weight restriction is in 

force over the River Severn bridge on the A438 and a 7.5-tonne weight 

restriction applies to the bridge over the River Avon on the route into 

Tewkesbury. The existence of these weight-restricted bridges effectively 

requires all HGV movements to access / egress the site via the M50 Motorway 

and A38 (north of the application site). This is with the exception of any ad-hoc 

(and highly infrequent) deliveries which may be required to development 

schemes within the immediate area. 

 

7.64 The applicant states that in excess of 90% of all HGV movements to / from the 

site would be carried out by the applicant’s own fleet of vehicles. The 

Transport Assessment states that all vehicles are fitted with real-time trackers, 

alert systems, which report to the Fleet Managers if any vehicles utilise 

prohibited routes or in the event of a collision. The applicant states that this 

would help to identify and address any breach of company / planning controls 

should any isolated incidents occur. 

 

7.65 The unladen weight of HGVs operating out of the site would be 32 tonnes. 

The capacity load of these 8-wheeler HGVs is 20 tonnes of sand and gravel. 

 

7.66 In terms of internal movements between the proposed extraction area and 

processing plant site, the applicant anticipates that there would be 

approximately 50 movements per day, operated by 2 dump trucks. 

 

Page 188



153 
 

7.67 The Transport Assessment and ES conclude that overall, there is no 

indication that demonstrable harm or severe impacts would occur on the 

highway network as a result of the introduction of a sand and gravel quarry on 

land at Bow Farm. 

 

7.68 National Highways have been consulted and have raised no objections, 

subject to the imposition of an appropriate condition requiring a Geotechnical 

Assessment to ensure that the side slope of the excavation does not 

undermine the M50 Motorway and an inspection regime for the edge of the 

excavation adjacent to the Motorway. National Highways consider that the trip 

generation and distribution methodology, including staff traffic impact 

assessment to be robust and suitable. 

 

7.69 Concerns have been raised in relation to the capacity of the strategic and local 

highway network for the number of HGV movements associated with the 

proposed quarry and neighbouring operations. 

 

7.70 The quantities of HGV traffic on the strategic and local highway network has 

been brought to the attention of the MPA for a number of years. Some of the 

local Parish Councils and residents have commented that there is an 

apprehension that HGV traffic is above the capacity of the highway network.   

 

7.71 Upon being consulted on HGV traffic and traffic in general, the HDM Team 

Leader has maintained that the local highway network has sufficient capacity 

to accommodate the HGV traffic arising from the proposal. There is therefore 

no objection to the proposal in terms of capacity by the Highway Authority. 

The proposal is therefore considered acceptable by the MPA in terms of 

highway capacity.  

 

7.72 The Highway Authority has not raised any concerns in respect of the physical 

size of HGVs. It is accepted that in terms of physical HGV dimensions, the 

strategic and local highway network can safely accommodate HGV traffic 

generated by the proposal. They have no objections to the proposal, subject 

to the imposition of conditions regarding completion of proposed vehicular 

access, provision of cycle storage, visibility splays, provision of electric vehicle 

charging points / spaces, onsite parking and loading / unloading facilities, 

highway condition survey, and limit on mineral output (maximum of 250,000 

tonnes) or 52,560 two-way HGV movements per year. They consider there 

are no justifiable grounds on which an objection could be maintained on 

highway grounds. 

 

7.73 The Highway Authority in Worcestershire state that the impact on 

Worcestershire’s highway network is limited to trips travelling on the A38 north 

of the M50 Motorway. This is estimated to represent 5% of the HGV activity, 

which equates to 7 two-way trips per day. It is considered that this level of 

activity would not have any impact on the operation or safety of the A38 

heading towards Worcester. 

 

Page 189



154 
 

7.74 Tewkesbury Town Council requests that, in the event of the proposal being 

permitted, it should be on the condition that HGVs from the site do not cross 

the Mythe Bridge, pass through Tewkesbury Town Centre, or use the Black 

Bear roundabout and Bredon Road. As set out above, the applicant has 

confirmed that there are weight restrictions in place on the bridges into 

Tewkesbury and over the River Severn, which rule out the prospect of quarry 

related HGVs crossing them. It is anticipated that all HGVs would access the 

site via the M50 Motorway and A38 (north of the site). The applicant has 

clarified that the reference to ‘ad-hoc deliveries’ in the submitted further 

environmental information is to account for a likely rare scenario whereby 

delivery is required within the local area that does not require access 

northwards on the A38 / M50 Motorway or across the weight-restricted bridges 

to the south. A breach of those weight restrictions would be breaking the law. 

Depending upon the material being delivered from the Site and its destination, 

local deliveries could be made using smaller, ‘lighter’ goods vehicles. 

 

7.75 Ripple Parish Council recommend the imposition of a condition requiring that 

no plant or employment traffic should utilise Puckrup Lane and Bow Lane. The 

applicant has confirmed that there is no intention for any plant or associated 

HGV to use Puckrup Lane or Bow Lane for any reason. It is not possible to 

rule out the potential for employment-related traffic to use the Lane owing to 

the possibility of a nearby resident being employed at the site. A condition is 

recommended that access to the site should be from the proposed access in 

Gloucestershire, off the A38. 

 

7.76 The approval of Worcestershire’s application 19/000048/CM includes the 

imposition of planning condition 11 (Highways) which restricts commencement 

of the development in Worcestershire until such time as planning permission 

has been obtained for access to and from the site via the proposed haul road 

and access onto the A38 in Gloucestershire. This ensures that the proposed 

quarry cannot proceed until such a time that a suitable access has been 

approved from the A38. 

 

7.77 The proposed haul road between the proposed processing plant site and 

Phase 9 would cross Bridleway ATW37 in Gloucestershire. The applicant 

states to avoid any need to divert or stop-up this public right of way, a short 

section of textured concrete would be installed to safeguard the bridleway and 

retain access for recreational users. The applicant has confirmed that the site 

would have an internal speed limit of a maximum 10 miles per hour. A series 

of warning signs would also be erected. Priority would be afforded to users of 

the bridleway. The crossing point would be inspected daily by the mineral 

operator to ensure it remains clean and accessible. Inspections would also 

include a review of any maintenance requirements which would be addressed 

immediately where and when necessary. A post and rail fence would be 

installed on the eastern boundary of the haul road and around the silt and 

freshwater lagoons in the vicinity of the bridleway to ensure the safety of users 

of the public right of way. 

 

Page 190



155 
 

7.78 In relation to impacts upon public rights of way, the Public Rights of Way team 

was consulted and has raised no objections to the proposal, subject to the 

applicant adhering to their obligations with regards to the footpath/bridleway. 

 

7.79 The Department of Environment Circular 1/09 (part 7) explains that the effect 

of development on a public right of way (PRoW) is a material consideration in 

the determination of applications for planning permission and that the grant of 

planning consent does not entitle developers to obstruct a public right of way. 

 

7.80 As shown on Initial Works and Phase 1 Extraction drawing ref.2636-4-4-2-2-

DR-0002 S4-P7, bridleway ATW/37 intersects the proposed haul route at a 

point between the proposed Clean Water Pond and Silt Pond 2. The details of 

the crossing over the bridleway can be found on Proposed Bridleway Crossing 

Detail drawing ref.2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0018 P1. Having assessed the submitted 

details and conducted a site visit in the presence of the planning case officer, 

the British Horse Society (BHS) are of the view that ‘all relevant access issues 

have been considered and addressed regarding this application.’ 

 

7.81 The British Horse Society (South-West) note that the site would have a site 

speed restriction at all times, and there should be adequate signage indicating 

the speed restriction and in addition, towards the location of the crossing point 

with the bridleway, horse warning signs should be displayed and a ‘bridleway 

crossing’ sign be placed at the crossing point itself reinforcing the location of 

the bridleway. They comment that there would also need to be warning signs 

strategically placed on the bridleway warning of lorry movements and the 

crossing location. It is important to ensure that horses do not stray onto the 

land from the field adjoining the proposed new access track, therefore, the 

British Horse Society (South-West) make a number of recommendations 

regarding fencing details and its extent. 

 

7.82 In response to the British Horse Society (South-West), the applicant amended 

the proposed working scheme to introduce post and rail fencing as a safety 

measure on the boundaries of Silt Pond 1, Silt Pond 2 and the Clean Water 

Ponds in Gloucestershire where these border Bridleway Twyning ATW37. The 

applicant states that the type and height of the post and rail fencing would be 

consistent with the recommendations made by the British Horse Society 

(South-West), at a height of approximately 1.2 metres. Fencing adjacent to the 

access road, between the quarry access and plant site, would also be 

installed to a height of approximately 1.4 metres as recommended by the 

British Horse Society (South-West). 

 

7.83 The applicant has submitted details regarding the crossing of Twyning 

ATW37, including example signage, which the MPA finds acceptable. A 

planning condition is recommended regarding protective fencing details. 

 

7.84 The Ramblers Association and Malvern Hills District Footpath Society 

comment that they are content with the latest proposals for Bridleway Twyning 

ATW37 crossing of the haul road in Gloucestershire. They are, however, 

Page 191

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P7.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0002_S4_P7.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0018_S4_P1.PDF
https://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=consulteeComments&keyVal=Q1BOU3HN01600&consulteeCommentsPager.page=9


156 
 

disappointed that an additional new public access route that they suggested 

has not been adopted by the applicant and included in the application 

submission. The applicant has noted this request but reiterates that at this 

time there are no proposals to provide additional public rights of way as part of 

the proposed site restoration. Whilst the MPA considers that this is a missed 

opportunity, it is noted there are no objections from the Highway Authority, 

Public Rights of Way team, British Horse Society (South-West) and British 

Horse Society (East and West Midland), and it is considered that refusal of 

planning permission on these grounds could not be justified in this instance. 

 

7.85 In view of the above, the MPA is satisfied that the proposal would not have an 

unacceptable impact upon traffic, highway safety or public rights of way and 

that the proposal accords with Policy DM03 of the adopted Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy INF1 of the adopted Gloucester, Cheltenham 

and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, and Policy TRAC9 of the 

adopted Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031, subject to the imposition of 

appropriate conditions regarding access only be gained to and from the site 

from the proposed haul road; construction of means of access for vehicles 

prior to commencement of use; provision of cycle storage facilities; provision 

of vehicular visibility splays; provision of electric vehicle charging points prior 

to the development being brought into use; provision of on-site parking and 

loading/unloading facilities; highway condition survey; restriction on the output 

of mineral; internal roads to be maintained in a good condition and free of 

potholes or other defects; site speed limit; appropriate signage; the site not 

being open to the general public for commercial purposes, and protective 

fencing details.  

 

7.86 Allegations that HGV traffic associated with quarry operations exceed the 

posted speed limits on the strategic and local highway network have been 

received. It is a point of fact that the planning system cannot control the speed 

of vehicles on the public highway. It is beyond the remit of the planning 

system to control this type of incident. Excess speed on the public highway 

network is a matter for the local road policing unit and should be reported to 

Gloucestershire Constabulary.  

 

Residential amenity (including noise, dust, air quality, vibration, lighting 

and health impacts) 

 

7.87 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of noise, vibrations, dust, air quality, lighting impacts, adverse 

impacts upon health and residential amenity. Objections include concerns 

regarding: noise from vehicle reversing bleepers; operating hours that would 

be intolerable; questionable robustness of the submitted Noise and Dust 

Assessments; vibration impacts on local residents; ineffective dust control 

measures at other mineral sites; adverse impact of dust upon neighbouring 

glasshouses, adversely effecting crop production; absence of data on wind 

directions, strength and dispersal of dust; closure of doors and windows in the 

Summer due to adverse dust impacts; health impact of silica particles, which 

Page 192



157 
 

once airborne can result in lung cancer, silicosis, bronchitis, COPD and other 

respiratory illnesses, with silicosis being a slow and painful killer.  

 

7.88 Twyning Parish Council objects to the proposal on the grounds of: 

 

• Adverse noise and dust impacts, stating that the submitted Dust 

Management Plan does not include any size distribution for the sand to 

be quarried and portrays the dust issue as trivial as it deliberately 

scopes out any analysis of the fine dust pollution risk; 

• Health implications for local residents; 

• Potential adverse effects on local businesses; 

• The quarrying of sand and gravel from under the bunds without any 

noise attenuation, which the parish council states should be prevented 

by a planning condition in the event the application is approved. 

 

7.89 Ripple Parish Council (neighbouring parish in Worcestershire) object to the 

proposal stating that proposals should not adversely affect the health and 

welfare of local residents and businesses and recreational facilities and fully 

comply with planning statements. Ripple Parish Council cannot see how these 

criteria would be met. The Parish Council also object on the grounds of 

adverse air quality, dust, noise and vibration impacts and request that 

Worcestershire County Council and / or Gloucestershire County Council carry 

out their own independent analysis of the applicant’s noise reports. If planning 

permission is granted the Parish Council recommend the imposition of 

conditions limiting working hours between 07:00 to 18:00 Mondays to Fridays, 

with no working on weekends, or Bank Holidays. 

 

7.90 Longdon, Queenhill and Holdfast Parish Council (neighbouring parish in 

Worcestershire) object to the proposal, stating that the future risk of air 

pollution from quarry dust has not been robustly researched in the application. 

Tewkesbury Town Council note the concerns raised by local residents with 

respect to dust and potential health impacts. 

 

7.91 Tewkesbury Town Council notes the concerns of local residents in relation to 

adverse impacts on air quality as a result of emissions from HGVs. 

 

7.92 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of amenity related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.93 Policy DM01 ‘Amenity’ of the MLP for Gloucestershire states that “Mineral 

development proposals will be permitted only where it can be demonstrated 

adverse impacts on the amenity of local communities within Gloucestershire 

and those of neighbouring administrative areas will be avoided, strictly 

controlled or mitigated so as to ensure unacceptable impacts will not arise in 

respect of noise, vibration, air pollution and visual intrusion.” 

 

7.94 Policy DM02 ‘Cumulative Impact’ states, amongst other matters, that mineral 

development proposals will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated 

Page 193



158 
 

that from within the minerals site a proposal would not generate unacceptable 

cumulative adverse impacts. 

 

7.95 Within Policy SD14 ‘Health and Environmental Quality’ of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, part 1 of 3 states that “high-

quality development should protect and seek to improve environmental 

quality,” and that “development should not create or exacerbate conditions 

that could impact on human health or cause health inequality.” Part 2 lists 8 

criterion that new development must accord with, including the avoidance of 

unacceptable risk and harm to “levels of air, noise, water, light or soil pollution 

or odour, either alone or cumulatively, with respect to relevant national and EU 

limit values.” 

 

7.96 Policy GD6 ‘Effects on nearby occupants’ of the adopted Twyning Parish 

Neighbourhood Development Plan states that “development proposals will 

need to demonstrate that they will not lead to unacceptable levels of noise, 

general disturbance, smell, fumes, loss of daylight or sunlight, loss of privacy 

or have an overbearing effect on neighbouring properties.” 

 

7.97 Paragraph 186 of the NPPF states that “planning policies and decisions 

should sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or 

national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air 

Quality Management Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts 

from individual sites in local areas. Opportunities to improve air quality or 

mitigate impacts should be identified, such as through traffic and travel 

management, and green infrastructure provision and enhancement.…”. 

 

7.98 Paragraph 187 of the NPPF advises that “planning policies and decisions 

should ensure that new development can be integrated effectively with 

existing businesses and community facilities (such as places of worship, pubs, 

music venues and sports clubs). Existing businesses and facilities should not 

have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a result of development 

permitted after they were established”. 

 

7.99 With specific regard to minerals, paragraph 211 of the NPPF states that “when 

determining planning applications, great weight should be given to the benefits 

of mineral extraction, including to the economy. In considering proposals for 

mineral extraction, minerals planning authorities should:…b) ensure that there 

are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment, 

human health or aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect of 

multiple impacts from individual sites and/or from a number of sites in a 

locality; c) ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions and 

any blasting vibrations are controlled, mitigated or removed at source, and 

establish appropriate noise limits for extraction in proximity to noise sensitive 

properties…”. 

 

7.100 The Noise Policy Statement for England was published in March 2010 and 

includes an Explanatory Note. The aim of the document is to “provide clarity 

Page 194



159 
 

regarding current policies and practices to enable noise management 

decisions to be made within the wider context, at the most appropriate level, in 

a cost-effective manner and in a timely fashion”. It sets 3 aims, which are: 

“Through the effective management and control of environmental, neighbour 

and neighbourhood noise within the context of Government policy on 

sustainable development:  

 

• avoid significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life  

• mitigate and minimise adverse impacts on health and quality of life; and  

• where possible, contribute to the improvement of health and quality of 

life”.  

 

Noise 

 

7.101 The application was accompanied by an ES, Noise and Vibration Impact 

Assessment and Noise Management Plan.  

 

7.102 The proposed development within Gloucestershire has the potential for noise 

generation through on-site activities such as soil stripping, bund formation, the 

extraction of sand and gravel to create the two silt and clean water ponds, 

processing and transportation of sand and gravel, and internal traffic 

movements. Off-site noise generated by traffic movements associated with the 

mineral operations have the potential for impact on roadside receptors. 

 

7.103 The ‘Site Description’ section of this report sets out the nearest residential 

properties to the proposed development. The applicant is seeking to operate 

the site between 07:00 to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays, inclusive and 

07:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays, with no working on Sundays, Bank or Public 

Holidays. 

 

7.104 For plant machinery that would be operated within the Gloucestershire side of 

the site, Appendix NVC/8 ‘Plant Inventory & Noise Levels’ of the Assessment 

shows the following ‘Measured Sound Pressure Levels LAeq dB’ for plant 

machinery at 10 metres distance: Tracked Excavator 77 LAeq dB; Front 

Loader 74 LAeq dB; Dump Truck 78 LAeq dB; Power Screen & Wash Plant 81 

LAeq dB; Bulldozer 78 LAeq dB, and HGV 73 LAeq dB*. The MPA (GCC) is of 

the opinion that noise impacts generated by other plant machinery listed in the 

NVC/8 table i.e. Loading Hopper and Conveyor and De-watering Pump are 

matters for Worcestershire, which they have already assessed. 

 

7.105 Further to the above, the MPA has noted that the concrete batching plant 

listed under the heading ‘Mineral Processing (main plant area)’ in para.2.8 of 

the Noise & Vibration Impact Assessment (dated 5th November 2018) does 

not appear in the list of plant set out in Appendix NVC/8: ‘Plant Inventory & 

Noise Levels’. 

 

Page 195



160 
 

7.106 By comparison, at Appendix NVC/4 ‘Glossary of Noise Terms’ of the Noise & 

Vibration Impact Assessment it shows examples of typical indicative noise 

levels for a range of non-minerals related sources or activities: 

 

Source/Activity Indicative noise levels [dB(A)]** 

Threshold of hearing 0 

Rural night-time background 20-40 

Quiet bedroom 35 

Wind farm at 350m 35-45 

Busy road at 5km 35-45 

Car at 65km/h at 100m 55 

Busy general office 60 

Conversation 60 

Truck at 50km/h at 100m 65 

City Traffic at 5m 75-85 

Pneumatic drill at 7m 95 

Jet aircraft at 250m 105 

Threshold of pain 140 

 
* LAeq: “This is a noise index used to describe the "average" level of a noise that varies with 

time (T). It allows for the different sensitivities of the human ear to different frequencies (pitch), 

and averages fluctuating noise levels in a manner, which correlates well with human 

perceptions of loudness.” Decibel (dB): “The unit of measurement for sound based on a 

logarithmic scale. 0dB is the threshold of normal hearing; 140dB is the threshold of pain. A 

change of 1dB is only detectable under controlled laboratory conditions.” 

 

** dB(A) [decibel A weighted]: “Decibels measured on a sound level meter incorporating a 

frequency weighting (A weighting) serves to distinguish sounds of different frequency (or 

pitch) in a similar way to how the human ear responds. Measurements in dB(A) broadly 

agrees with an individual's assessment of loudness. A change of 3dB(A) is the minimum 

perceptible under normal everyday conditions, and a change of 10dB(A) corresponds roughly 

to doubling or halving the loudness of sound.” 

 

7.107 The nearest sensitive receptors to the processing plant site area that are 

identified within the Assessment as having been considered for the proposed 

development include:  

 

• Bow Farm is located within the eastern area of the Site, north-west of 

the plant area and is owned by the applicant and tenanted as a working  

farm. At the time of writing this report, there was no tenant farming. 

 

• Bowbridge Cottage, Scarecrow Stables and Dadsley Cottage, which 

are located north-west of the plant site off Puckrup Lane with Puckrup 

Hall and other properties located north-east of the plant site off Puckrup 

Lane.  

 

• Fairfield Bungalow is located adjacent to the A38 and the proposed 

access road to the processing plant site. This property is owned by the 

applicant. 

Page 196



161 
 

• Located south of the plant site are the properties associated with 

Twyning Farm, Owls End and Redpools Farm.  

 

• Far End / Church End Nursery are the nearest receptors and are 

located east of the plant site.  

 

7.108 Section 5 (Existing Sound Climate) of the Noise & Vibration Impact 

Assessment states that an “environmental baseline sound survey” was carried 

out in the vicinity of “nearest residential receptors” “over a typical weekday 

period during appropriate weather conditions as defined by BS7445-1:2003”. 

Appendix NVC/1 of the Assessment [page 38] shows the location of the static 

and spot roaming sound measurement positions. 

 

7.109 The monitoring locations related to the following: 

 

Fixed Monitoring 

A) off Bow Lane (North) - Worcestershire 

B) off Bow Lane (South) - Worcestershire 

C) Vicinity of Fairfield Bungalow - Gloucestershire 

D) Vicinity of Shuthonger in vicinity of Twyning Farm - Gloucestershire 

 

Spot Roaming Monitoring 

E) South of Redpools Farm - Gloucestershire 

F) 10m A38 road (off Cherry Orchard Lane) - Gloucestershire 

G) Puckrup Lane (in vicinity of Puckrup Hall) - Gloucestershire 

 

7.110 Based on the assessment of background sound levels at nearest sensitive 

receptors, Table 5.2 of the Noise & Vibration Impact Assessment shows the 

following noise limits are established in respect of the PPG guidance for 

Mineral Workings: 

 

Receptor Noise limits 

for general 

site works 

LAeq1hr dB 

Noise limits for 

temporary site 

activities (8 

weeks per year) 

LAeq1hr dB 

A) off Bow Lane (North) - 

Worcestershire 

55 70 

B) off Bow Lane (South) - 

Worcestershire 

54 70 

C) Vicinity of Fairfield Bungalow - 

Gloucestershire 

55 70 

D) Vicinity of Shuthonger in vicinity of 

Twyning Farm - Gloucestershire 

54 70 

E) South of Redpools Farm - 

Gloucestershire 

55 70 

Page 197

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_NOISE%26VIBRATION.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_NOISE%26VIBRATION.PDF


162 
 

F) 10m A38 road (off Cherry Orchard 

Lane) - Gloucestershire 

55 70 

G) Puckrup Lane (in vicinity of Puckrup 

Hall) - Gloucestershire 

53 70 

 

7.111 At Appendix NVC/7: ‘Predicted Noise from Fixed and Mobile Plant on Site at 

Noise Sensitive Receptors’ of the Noise & Vibration Impact Assessment 

(dated 5th November 2018) it sets out multiple tables with ‘Receptor’ locations 

and the figures for the associated ‘Range of likely noise contribution’. The 

most relevant of those tables to the proposed operational development in 

Gloucestershire are set out below: 

 

Processing Plant Noise 

 

Phased 

Workings 

Receptor Range of 

likely noise  

contribution  

from Site 

LAeq1hr dB 

Maximum  

Noise 

Criteria 

LAeq1hr  

dB 

Increase  

above  

maximum  

noise  

criteria 

Processing 

activities 

1. Silvermead 

(Worcs) 
37 55 None 

2. Bow Farm 

(Worcs) 
45 54 None 

3. Puck Cottage 

(Worcs) 
43-45 54 None 

4. Bowbridge 

Cottage (Glos) 
48-50 54 None 

5. Puckrup Lane - 

Puckrup Hall (Glos) 
50 53 None 

6. Fairfield 

Bungalow (Glos) 
51-52 55 None 

7. Twyning (Glos) 44-48 54 None 

8. Redpools (Glos) 44 55 None 

9. Windmill Tump 

(Glos) 
37-39 53* None 

10. The Stalls 

(Worcs) – West of 

River Severn 

37-38 54* None 

*Note: Assumed to be similar to other positions due to relative position to M50 Motorway. 

 

 Soil strip & construction of boundary screening measures 

  

Phased 

Workings 

Receptor Range of 

likely noise  

contribution  

from 

activities 

Maximum  

Noise 

Criteria 

LAeq1hr  

dB 

Increase  

above  

maximum  

noise  

criteria 

Page 198



163 
 

LAeq1hr dB 

Temporary 

Construction 

Activities 

1. Silvermead 

(Worcs) 
35-41 70 None 

2. Bow Farm 

(Worcs) 
44-61 70 None 

3. Puck Cottage 

(Worcs) 
43-57 70 None 

4. Bowbridge 

Cottage (Glos) 
41-48 70 None 

5. Puckrup Lane - 

Puckrup Hall 

(Glos) 

35-43 70 None 

6. Fairfield 

Bungalow (Glos) 
34-35 70 None 

7. Twyning (Glos) 31-42 70 None 

8. Redpools 

(Glos) 
34-41 70 None 

9. Windmill Tump 

(Glos) 
32-40 70 None 

10. The Stalls 

(Worcs) – West 

of River Severn 

33-39 70 None 

 

 

7.112 In ‘Response Q3’ (b)(iii) of the Regulation 25 response (dated 16th December 

2020) from the applicant’s acoustic consultant, it states that at the north 

western boundary of Church End Nurseries/Far End the noise level would be 

48dB LAeq (1hr). This is shown on ‘Noise Map 3: Extraction Activities Phase 4 

& Processing Activities’ on page 10 of the same response. On ‘Noise Map 5: 

Extraction Activities Phase 9 & Processing Activities & Flex A Working’ the 

noise level at the north western boundary of Church End Nursery/Far End 

rises to 48.4dB LAeq (1hr). 

 

7.113 In respect of operational road traffic noise, Table 6.7 (below) of the Noise & 

Vibration Impact Assessment provides details of the noise impact due to the 

increased traffic flow along the local road network based on average demand 

over the operational 10-hour period. 

 

Road Baseline 

Scenario 

‘Do nothing’ 

LA10 10 

hours (dB) 

‘Do 

something’ 

LA10 10 

hours 9dB) 

Change (with 

development) 

LA10 10 

hours (dB) 

A38 (North) Opening year 60.3 61.8 +1.5 

A38 (South) Opening year 61.3 61.4 +0.1 

* The predicted noise levels are based on a notional 10m distance from the kerbside. 

 

Page 199

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_2ND_REG25_APPDX_9.PDF


164 
 

7.114 Based on a maximum HGV demand the impact shows negligible to slight 

impact magnitude and neutral to minor level of effect in respect of traffic 

movements relative to the nearest local road network and at nearest 

residential properties. In terms of the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges 

(DMRB) guidance, in relation to short-term effects an increase of <3dB(A) is 

minor and <1dB(A) is negligible. 

 

7.115 The Assessment considers that the peak noise events would occur during the 

following periods:  

 

• During temporary activities to remove topsoil, overburden and 

construction of soil bunds when at the closest approach to receptors.  

 

7.116 Proposed noise mitigation for control of the above periods of activity would 

require the construction of soil noise attenuation bunds along the boundary of 

the processing plant site. Further proposed mitigation measures include:  

 

• Mobile plant being fitted with broadband type reverse alarms to 

minimise any tonal noise characteristics.  

 

• Any associated water pumps used at site placed as far as is practicable 
from noise sensitive receptors. If pumps are on high ground or within 
100 metres of noise sensitive receptors, they should be fitted with an 
acoustic screen or enclosure to minimise noise levels.  

 

7.117 In addition to the above mitigation measures, the submitted Noise 

Management Plan outlines a range of example mitigation measure which 

could be implemented including regular servicing of plant and equipment, 

fitting all vehicles and plant with effective silencers, use of white noise 

reversing alarms on all mobile plant rather than tonal ‘beeper’ type reversing 

alarm, limiting drop heights, restricting working hours, appointment of a 

community liaison officer, and use of a one-way system. 

 

7.118 The PPG is the most up to date Government Guidance relating to noise 

emissions associated with mineral extraction. It recommends noise levels for 

normal daytime operations (07:00 to 19:00 hours) should not exceed 55dB(A) 

LAeq, 1h (free field). There is also a higher limit of up to 70dB(A) LAeq 1h 

(free field) at specified noise sensitive properties for noisier, but temporary 

operations, such as soil stripping, the construction and removal of baffle 

mounds, soil storage mounds and spoil heaps, construction of new permanent 

landforms and aspects of site road construction and maintenance, but for only 

up to 8 weeks a year. This is to facilitate essential site preparation and 

restoration work and construction of baffle mounds where it is clear that this 

would bring longer-term environmental benefits to the site or its environs 

(Paragraph Reference IDs: 27-021-20140306 and 27-022-20140306). 

 

7.119 The Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment assesses the noise impact of the 

proposal (worst-case scenario) at the nearest sensitive receptors in terms of 

Page 200



165 
 

temporary operations and also normal day to day operations to determine the 

highest likely noise levels.  

 

7.120 The Assessment concludes that the noise levels are predicted to achieve the 

required noise limits set by relevant guidance and standards and would not 

exceed the maximum noise limit or the aim of background noise +10dB(A) for 

the site lifetime. The introduction of appropriate soil screening bunds would 

assist in reducing noise levels to achieve the required noise levels, as would 

the proposed 1 metre high acoustic fence that would be sited on top of the 3 

metre high topsoil/screen bund that would run along the west to northern side 

at the site boundary to the processing plant area. Additionally, use of a 

temporary screen to the northern side of the concrete batching plant area 

would assist in reducing noise. Whilst the proposed development could 

operate within acceptable levels without further attenuation, the applicant’s 

acoustic consultant states that these additional measures would provide a 

further reduction in site generated noise levels at the Puckrup Hall and golf 

course. The size and siting of the proposed screening bunds can be seen on 

‘Plant Site Details’ drawing 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0015 Rev.P5. 

 

7.121 The Assessment considers that overall, there would be a negligible impact 

magnitude in terms of noise. In addition, no significant change in road traffic 

noise onto the local road network is predicted, with impacts shown to be 

between negligible to slight impact magnitude and neutral to minor impact 

significance. 

 

7.122 The results of the Assessment are set out below and include a recommended 

site noise limit in relation to each receptor. This demonstrates that noise levels 

as a result of the proposal would be well below the maximum noise limit of 55 

LAeq, 1 Hour dB for normal daytime operations and 70 LAeq, 1 Hour for 

temporary operations, as set out in the Government’s PPG. The PPG 

guidance refers to these limits being applicable to noise sensitive properties 

and not leisure or recreation receptors. The MPA recommends that should 

planning permission be granted, conditions are imposed setting maximum 

noise limits at the nearest sensitive receptors within Gloucestershire, along 

with associated monitoring. 

 

7.123 In specific relation to the Puckrup Hall Hotel and golf course, the applicant’s 

acoustic consultant states that “the noise levels are within acceptable noise 

levels, complying with PPG and BS8233:2014 guidance levels for external 

garden areas around the Hotel of 50-55dB LAeq for protection of amenity. To 

give context, this level of noise is acceptable for residential development that 

constantly passes through the planning process when considering the effect of 

local transport noise sources and is therefore accepted as reasonable for the 

protection of external amenity in private garden areas.” 

 

7.124 In response to the letters of representation objecting on the grounds of 

adverse noise impacts to Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Course, the applicant 

states that this is a recreational area, rather than a noise-sensitive property as 

Page 201

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0015_S4_P5.PDF


166 
 

defined by the PPG. The use of the golf course is also temporary and 

transitional by its nature as members would constantly be moving around the 

course. This receptor area is, therefore, much less sensitive than the hotel 

buildings and immediate amenity around the hotel. Notwithstanding this, the 

noise levels would be within acceptable noise levels, complying with the PPG 

and BS8233:2014 guidance levels for external garden areas around the hotel 

for protection of amenity. 

 

7.125 During the earth mound screen works, Table 6.2 ‘Temporary Activities – Soil 

strip & construction of boundary screening measures’ shows the predicted 

noise levels at Puckrup Hall as being 35-43dB. This includes for the plant 

machinery operating between the excavation point and mound position and 

does not include for any processing at this point, as it is not relevant, neither is 

mineral extraction. The separation distance from the noise/screening bund at 

its closest point to the south-west corner of Puckrup Hotel is approximately 

274 metres. 

 

7.126 Local residents have objected that Gardeners Cottage and other residential 

properties on the north-eastern edge of the golf course have been ignored in 

the submitted Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. Twyning Parish 

Council have also raised similar concerns in relation to Hillview Lakes fishing 

complex and Tewkesbury Riding School located off Cherry Orchard Lane and 

other sensitive sites along Page’s Lane. In response, the applicant has 

clarified that the Assessment takes the approach of assessing the closest 

receptors to the development as these would be subject to the greatest 

impact, as noise levels would be higher. The Assessment takes this approach 

and receptors that are at similar or greater distance from the activity would be 

subject to similar or lower impacts and, therefore, it is not necessary to predict 

noise at every dwelling in the area. The applicant also notes that noise 

contour line maps within the Assessment provide indicative levels at other 

locations if they have not been specifically referenced within the Assessment.  

 

7.127 In response to objections in relation to the noise measurements, the applicant 

has clarified that the noise levels stated within the Noise and Vibration Impact 

Assessment utilises empirical data from the consultant’s technical library of 

similar plant, collected from an assessment of a variety of sand and gravel 

sites. The applicant states that the data is representative of similar (and 

typical) sand and gravel operations and is considered highly accurate. Added 

to this, the Assessment assumes a worst-case scenario ensuring the noise 

prediction model is robust. 

 

7.128 In response to objections in relation to mineral extraction taking place 

underneath the proposed noise and visual screening bunds. The applicant has 

confirmed that no mineral would be extracted beneath these bunds. The MPA 

for Worcestershire imposed a condition to this effect. 

 

7.129 In response to concerns regarding the use of vehicle reversing tonal ‘bleep’ 

alarms, the applicant states that all mobile plant would be fitted with ‘white 

Page 202



167 
 

noise’ reversing alarms. Not all HGVs visiting the site would be fitted with this 

type of alarm as some of the sites that the vehicles travel to and from only 

allow tonal `beeper’ type. However, health & safety requirements enforce the 

limitation of reversing on sites, as it is seen as an activity having a potential 

risk of accident. The collections area would therefore have a one-way system, 

so vehicles are unlikely to need to reverse. The MPA recommends the 

imposition of a condition requiring all mobile plant and machinery to be fitted 

with white noise reversing alarms. 

 

Tranquillity 

 

7.130 With regard to tranquillity, paragraph of 185 of the NPPF states “planning 

policies and decisions should also ensure that new development is 

appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including 

cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural 

environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to 

impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they should:…b) 

identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed 

by noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this 

reason”. 

 

7.131 Impacts to tranquillity were assessed within the LVIA Addendum, which states 

that it is anticipated that the greatest potential effects on tranquillity would be 

experienced in areas within the immediate vicinity of the proposed processing 

plant site. The embedded mitigation measures associated with the processing 

plant site include grassed overburden bunds and topsoil bunds. These would 

assist in limiting adverse effects on tranquillity of vehicular movements within 

the processing plant site for receptors using the public rights of way on the 

lower ground to the west adjacent to the River Severn floodplain including 

Bridleway ATW37, Footpaths ZTW49 and RP-550. Receptors using these 

public rights of way would already experience some reduced tranquillity levels 

from the movement of traffic along the M50 Motorway to the north. Therefore, 

overall, it is predicted that the proposed operations would result only in an 

intermittent minor adverse temporary effect on tranquillity for receptors to the 

south of the site including the residential property of Far End. For receptors on 

the higher ground to the west and south-west of the site in the vicinity of 

Bredon School on the western bank of the River Severn, it is anticipated that 

there would be a negligible to minor adverse temporary effect of significance 

on tranquillity due to the intervening distance and the existing presence of 

noise from traffic on the M50 Motorway.  

 

Vibration 

 

7.132 With regard to vibration impacts, the Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment 

states that sand and gravel quarries use direct extraction methods using 

mobile plant rather than blasting techniques as a means of surface mineral 

extraction. Therefore, they do not normally generate levels of vibration which 

are perceptible by occupants of residential property unless the plant is working 

Page 203



168 
 

within separation distances of approximately 20 to 25 metres, which would not 

be the case in this instance. 

 

7.133 The highest levels of vibration generated by plant is likely to be the use of 

bulldozers and the loading of HGVs or dump trucks. The Assessment states 

that even at the closest approach to existing residential properties, the likely 

levels of ground-borne vibration would be below perceptible levels of vibration 

(i.e., 0.3mm/sec is said to be the level below which vibration is imperceptible) 

at all receptors. The vibration impacts in respect of neighbouring properties 

from site machinery is anticipated to be 0.1mm/sec vibration levels. The 

Assessment states for cosmetic damage to occur, vibration levels would need 

to reach levels of around 5mm/sec. In view of this, the Assessment considers 

that vibration levels from mobile plant and offloading of vehicles based on the 

closest approach to nearest sensitive receptors would be well within 

acceptable limits and would have a negligible impact. 

 

7.134 With specific reference to vibration impacts upon the Grade II Listed Building 

of Puck Cottage, the Assessment states that the closest likely stand-off 

distance from Puck Cottage is approximately 50 metres. A maximum vibration 

level of 0.1mm/sec is anticipated at Puck Cottage. The Assessment considers 

that the long-term effects on Puck Cottage (or any other residential dwelling) 

from vibration would be insignificant based on the type of plant that would be 

used at the site and separation distance. Furthermore, vibratory sources 

would be temporary in nature at the closest approaches to sensitive buildings. 

Empirical data obtained from typical plant used at sand and gravel quarries 

shows no significant vibration would be likely to occur. 

 

7.135 With regard to vibration impacts associated with the movement of HGVs, the 

results of seismograph monitoring show that based on a distance of 2 metres 

from the kerbside of the road during HGV movements the maximum levels of 

vibration recorded ranged between 0.2mm/s to 0.5mm/s. The applicant states 

that this level of vibration is very low and experience has shown that according 

to BS6472: 2008, even when properties are at this distance, there is normally 

a ‘low probability of adverse comment’ over the operating period indicating 

that nuisance conditions are unlikely. In view of the separation distance to 

noise sensitive receptors, the Assessment concludes that vibration levels 

associated with HGV movements would be imperceptible and, therefore, 

produce a negligible impact and would have a neutral impact.  

 

Dust and Air Quality 

 

7.136 The application was accompanied by an ES, Air Quality Assessment, Dust 

and Air Quality Assessment (DAQA), and Dust Management Plan.  

 

7.137 Within their Regulation 25 response dated 11th February 2021, the applicant’s 

acoustic consultant states that the DAQA “follows industry standard best 

practice guidance produced by the Institute of Air Quality Management to 

assess the potential impact of a planned minerals development on receptors 

Page 204



169 
 

nearby with specific regard to dust emissions. This guidance was produced by 

a panel of the UK’s foremost dust experts in 2016 and it can be considered 

the authoritative protocol for use in assessments such as these.” 

 

7.138 As set out in the 2020 DAQA, there is a potential for dust emissions to occur 

at various stages of the operation. Potential sources or site activities likely to 

give rise to dust within the Gloucestershire side of the application site are: 

 

• Soil stripping, storage and reinstatement; 

• Overburden removal, storage and reinstatement; 

• Mineral extraction (to facilitate creation of silt & clean water ponds) and 

handling; 

• Mineral processing; 

• Mobile plant (on-site and off-site vehicle movements); 

• HGV movements; and 

• Wind scouring of exposed surfaces and stockpiles. 

 

7.139 In addition to any dust arising from the proposed processing plant area and 

haul route, the MPA acknowledges that other dust sources such as road traffic 

and arable farming are also in the vicinity of the application site. 

 

7.140 Extra care would need to be taken during soil stripping and soil bund 

construction, which are identified in the Dust Assessment as the most likely to 

cause dust nuisance impacts at offsite receptors, particularly when working 

close to the site boundary. 

 

7.141 As determined in the Dust and Air Quality Assessment (DAQA), there are 

High sensitivity residential receptors within 250 metres of the proposed 

development. As stated in the updated assessment, this includes the Hilton 

Puckrup Hotel. The façade of Hilton Puckrup Golf Course is considered as a 

Medium sensitivity receptor. The Assessment also suggests that Fairfields 

may experience up to ‘Moderate Adverse Effects’ from site preparation and 

the site haul road. 

 

7.142 The principal dust receptors in the vicinity of the proposed haul road and 

mineral processing area are set out in the table below, which is an extract 

from Table 2.1 in the Dust Management Plan dated December 2021: 

 

Receptor Dust source locations Primary 

direction/s 

to dust 

sources (o) 

Minimum 

distance (m) 

Fairfields 

bungalow 

Haul road and mineral 

processing area 

105-285 20 

Far End Haul road and mineral 

processing area 

255-045 115 

Page 205



170 
 

Sion House 

(Page’s Lane) 

Haul Road 225-255 200 

A38 Properties Haul Road 345-015 230 

Church End 

Nursery 

Haul road and mineral 

processing area 

255-075 60 

Hilton Puckrup 

Hotel 

Haul road and mineral 

processing area 

135-225 250 

Hilton Puckrup 

Golf Course 

Haul road and mineral 

processing area 

075-225 50 

  

7.143 At Table 5.4 of the Dust and Air Quality Assessment dated July 2020 it shows 

the outcome of dust assessment for the relevant receptors potentially affected 

by dust from the proposed mineral processing and handling activities. 

 

Receptor Dust Source 

Location 

Pathway 

Effectiveness 

Dust 

Impact 

Risk 

Magnitude 

of Dust 

Effects 

Far End 
Plant site and 

processing area 
Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Church End 

Nursery 

Plant site and 

processing area 
Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Hilton 

Puckrup 

Hotel 

Plant site and 

processing area 
Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Hilton 

Puckrup 

Golf Course 

Plant site and 

processing area 
Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

 

7.144 At Table 5.5 of the Dust and Air Quality Assessment dated July 2020 it shows 

the outcome of dust assessment for relevant receptors potentially affected by 

dust from on-site and off-site haulage. 

 

Receptor Dust Source 

Location 

Pathway 

Effectiveness 

Dust 

Impact 

Risk 

Magnitude 

of Dust 

Effects 

Fairfields Haul road 
Highly 

Effective 

Medium 

Risk 

Moderate 

Adverse 

Effect 

Far End Haul road Ineffective 
Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Sion House 

(Pages 

Lane) 

Haul road Ineffective 
Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Risk 

A38 

Properties 
Haul road Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Risk 

Church End 

Nursery 
Haul road Ineffective 

Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Page 206

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_3A.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_3A.PDF


171 
 

Hilton 

Puckrup 

Hotel 

Haul road 
Moderate 

Effective 
Low Risk 

Slight 

Adverse 

Effect 

Hilton 

Puckrup 

Golf Course 

Haul road 
Highly 

Effective 

Medium 

Risk 

Slight 

Adverse 

Effect 

 

7.145 At Table 5.6 of the Dust and Air Quality Assessment dated July 2020 it shows 

the outcome of dust assessment for relevant receptors potentially affected by 

dust from wind scouring of exposed surfaces and stockpiles. It should be 

noted that those properties listed with a ‘Dust Source Location’ for ‘Mineral 

extraction area’ have been removed in the table below, as this relates to 

extraction in Worcestershire, which Worcestershire County Council have 

assessed and found to be acceptable. 

 

Receptor Dust Source 

Location 

Pathway 

Effectiveness 

Dust 

Impact 

Risk 

Magnitude 

of Dust 

Effects 

Fairfields 

Plant site and 

processing area 

and haul road 

Ineffective 
Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Far End 

Plant site and 

processing area 

and haul road 

Ineffective 
Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Church End 

Nursery 

Plant site and 

processing area 

and haul road 

Ineffective 
Negligible 

Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

Hilton 

Puckrup 

Hotel 

Plant site and 

processing area 

and haul road 

Highly 

Effective 
Low Risk 

Negligible 

Effect 

 

7.146 With regard to dust impacts, the Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM): 

‘Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust Impacts for Planning’ (2016) 

states that “from the experience of the Working Group, adverse dust impacts 

from sand and gravel sites are uncommon beyond 250 metres. In the absence 

of other information, it is commonly accepted that the greatest impacts would 

be within 100 metres of a source and this can include both large (>30 μm) and 

small dust particles. The greatest potential for high rates of dust deposition 

and elevated PM10 concentrations occurs within this distance. Intermediate-

sized particles (10 to 30 μm) may travel up to 400 metres, with occasional 

elevated levels of dust deposition and PM10 possible. Particles less than 

10μm have the potential to persist beyond 400 metres, but with minimal 

significance due to dispersion”. This guidance goes onto states the “type of 

material being extracted and processed can have a significant influence on 

potential emissions. Sand and gravel deposits may possess an inherently high 

moisture content, which can cause particles to adhere and thereby affords a 

high degree of natural mitigation. However, this does not negate the potential 

Page 207

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_REG25_APPDX_3A.PDF


172 
 

for dust emissions from this material if it dries out, especially during high wind 

conditions”. 

 

7.147 The Dust and Air Quality Assessment assesses the worst-case scenario of 

dust impact risk and magnitude of effect at the nearest sensitive receptors 

within 250 metres of the proposal, this includes Dadsley Cottage, Fairfields, 

Far End, Sion House, A38 Properties, Church End Nursery, Puckrup Hall 

Hotel, and Puckrup Golf Course. 

 

7.148 Having regard for the ‘outcome of dust assessment’, para.5.1 of the DAQA 

(July 2020) states that “Hilton Puckrup Hotel and parts of the Hilton Puckrup 

Golf Course as a worse-case could experience up to Slight Adverse Effects 

from on-site haulage. All other proposed activities and areas of the quarry are 

predicted to have a Negligible effect on Hilton Puckrup Hotel and Golf 

Course.” 

 

7.149 Using the Tables above, the only assessed receptor in Gloucestershire to 

potentially receive up to a ‘Moderate Adverse Effect’ is Fairfield (which is 

under the control of the applicant). 

 

7.150 Subject to the implementation of standard mitigation measures, which 

includes wetting down freshly tipped loads of dry and friable material in dry 

and windy weather conditions; keeping drop heights to a minimum; minimising 

working of soils in very dry and windy conditions; use of water sprays and 

bowser; soil storage bunds to be stabilised by seeding; limiting height of 

stockpiles; sheeting of loaded HGVs; HGVs exiting the site to pass through 

the wheel wash; and limiting speed limits across the site, the Assessment 

concludes that the overall impact of the proposal is considered to be not 

significant.  

 

7.151 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of adverse dust impacts to Church End Nursery. In relation to this 

receptor the Assessment predicts a negligible magnitude of dust effects. The 

applicant states that this is primarily due to the very low frequency of 

potentially dusty winds towards the Nursery from the site (less than 3.5% of all 

winds from a five-year average) and the distance from the main processing 

plant site to the Nursery façade. Whilst the site access to the A38 would pass 

within approximately 60 metres of the northern façade of the Nursery, it can 

again be noted that a very low proportion of potentially dusty winds speeds 

are towards the south, and all of the routes between the site access and the 

processing plant site would be constructed from concrete, and the proposed 

mitigation measures within the Dust Management Plan implemented. 

 

7.152 Letters of representation have also been received objecting to the proposal on 

the grounds of adverse dust impacts to Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Course. 

As a worst-case scenario Puckrup Hall Hotel and parts of the associated golf 

course could experience up to slight adverse effects from on-site haulage.  

 

Page 208



173 
 

7.153 In the absence of any nationally designated ecological receptors within 250m 

of the proposed development, ecological receptors have not been assessed, 

“although it can be considered that where dust deposition levels are below 

those associated with annoyance, they can be expected to be below those at 

which ecological receptors would be affected.” [DAQA July 2020] 

 

7.154 Table 5.4 of the DAQA (July 2020) shows the outcome of dust assessment for 

relevant receptors potentially affected by dust from mineral processing and 

handling. The Table shows four receptors (Far End, Church End Nursery, 

Hilton Puckrup Hotel and Hilton Puckrup Golf Course), all of which are shown 

to have a ‘Negligible’ ‘Dust Impact Risk’ and a ‘Negligible’ ‘Magnitude of Dust 

Effects’.  

 

7.155 Hilton Puckrup Hotel and parts of the Hilton Puckrup Golf Course as a worse-

case could experience up to ‘Slight Adverse Effects’ from on-site haulage. All 

other proposed activities and areas of the quarry are predicted to have a 

‘Negligible’ effect on Hilton Puckrup Hotel and Golf Course. 

 

7.156 Twyning Parish Council consider that the proposal would have a devastating 

impact in terms of dust impacts upon Hillview Lakes fishing complex, 

Tewkesbury Riding School and other sensitive sites along Page’s Lane. The 

MPA notes that the Assessment considered the impact of dust emissions 

upon the receptors which are considered to have the highest potential for dust 

impacts. The proposal did consider the impact upon the nearest sensitive 

receptor along Pages’ Lane, (Sion House) and identified the impact would be 

negligible. Hillview Lakes fishing complex and Tewkesbury Riding School 

located along Cherry Orchard Lane, are situated approximately 325 metres 

north-east of the application site (access) and approximately 1.1 kilometre 

east of the mineral extraction area, which is a significant greater distance than 

the receptors assessed within the Dust and Air Quality Assessment. In view of 

this, the MPA considers that due to the distance the impact of dust on these 

receptors would not be significant. 

 

7.157 With regard to air quality, the Air Quality Assessment states that the key 

pollutants associated with the operational phase of the proposed development 

would be road traffic emissions including Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and 

Particulate Matter (PM2.5 and PM10). 

 

7.158 The applicant states that the DEFRA ‘UK Air – ‘Background Mapping data for 

local authorities’ predicted background concentrations for the earliest year of 

operation for the grid squares of the proposed development were 11.4 and 7.4 

μg/m3 for PM10 and PM2.5 respectively. In accordance with the IAQM 

guidance, when background PM10 concentrations are below 17 μg/m3 it is 

considered unlikely that the proposed quarry process contribution would lead 

to an exceedance of the annual mean objective.  

 

7.159 The impacts of NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 from HGV traffic generated by the 

proposed quarry has been assessed by the applicant. The Assessment 

Page 209



174 
 

predicts that there would be a slight increase in NO2 concentrations at all of 

the modelled receptors as a result of the proposal. The largest increase in 

NO2 concentrations would be at Fairfield, with a rise of 0.36 μg/m3, which is 

less than 1% of the Air Quality Assessment Level. This small increase would 

result in negligible impact at this modelled receptor. The Assessment predicts 

that there would be a very slight increase in PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations 

at all of the modelled receptors as a result of the proposal. The percentage 

change in concentrations relative to the Air Quality Assessment Level is less 

than 0.5%, which is considered imperceptible. This change results in a 

negligible impact at all modelled receptors. The Assessment goes onto state 

that this demonstrates that the annual mean and 1-hour mean NO2 Air Quality 

Objectives are forecast to be met at the façade of all existing receptors. The 

PM10 and PM2.5 concentrations are also forecast to meet their respective 

long and short-term Air Quality Objectives by a considerable margin for all 

modelled receptors. In view of this, the Assessment states no further air 

quality mitigation measures are recommended for the operational phase of the 

proposed scheme.  

 

7.160 In response to concerns noted by Tewkesbury Town Council regarding 

reduction in air quality due to intensification of HGVs on the local highway 

network, the applicant clarified that all roads which triggered the HGV criteria 

for further assessment were scoped into the Air Quality Assessment using 

dispersion modelling. Where required in the model, speeds were slowed at all 

traffic lights and other junctions. The applicant confirms that the worst-case 

receptors were chosen to assess the greatest change in pollution 

concentrations. Furthermore, the dispersion model outputs are the largest 

across three meteorological years, with the worst-case meteorological 

conditions being accounted for, as far as reasonably possible. The applicant 

states that, therefore, the number of HGVs and potential slowing down / 

accelerating at all junctions and traffic lights within the modelled area has 

been taken into account in the Air Quality Assessment. 

 

Technical/EHO advice on amenity issues noise, dust, vibration and air quality. 

 

7.161 Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) were consulted during the course 

of application 19/0081/TWMAJM as they had been, until fairly recently, the 

technical advisors to Tewkesbury Borough Council (as the Environmental 

Health Authority) on matters pertaining to noise, dust, vibration and air quality. 

WRS raise no objections to the proposal, subject to the imposition of 

conditions restricting the operating hours and requiring an updated Noise 

Management Plan to include a scheme for noise monitoring. They state that 

the submitted Noise Impact Assessment appears satisfactory and predicts 

that noise from the proposed activities would be compliant with the relevant 

guidance. The submitted Dust Assessment appears satisfactory and should 

minimise dust impacts due to the proposed good site management measures. 

With regard to the vibration, they note that the predicted worse case 

vibrational impact at Puck Cottage is 0.1mm/s PPV, which is within the 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services’ guidance value of 1mm/s PPV for 

Page 210



175 
 

occupied residential dwellings and, therefore, considered acceptable in terms 

of vibration nuisance. 

 

7.162 Worcestershire Regulatory Services also state that they have reviewed public 

comments, in particular the comments from local residents’ groups, and 

consider that the applicant’s responses to the Regulation 25 Requests (further 

information) relating to noise appear satisfactory and confirm that all 

operational noise levels would be in line with the relevant guidance. They 

understand that the sound pressure levels used within the Noise Assessment 

are actual measured levels as opposed to predicted sound power levels 

based on the BS5228 reference tables and, therefore, should be more 

accurate. In terms of the receptor positions chosen these appear to have been 

addressed within the applicant’s responses to the Regulation 25 Request 

(further information).  

 

7.163 In relation to noise impacting Church End Nurseries and Puck Cottage, 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services have reviewed the submitted further 

information and the applicant’s response and continue to raise no objections 

on noise grounds. 

 

7.164 In relation to noise impacting Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Course, 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services also consider that the response from the 

applicant is acceptable and the proposed additional noise barriers (1m high on 

top of 3m high bund) around the proposed processing / concrete batching 

plant area would further reduce noise impacting these areas and should be 

implemented. 

 

7.165 Worcestershire Regulatory Services (Contaminated Land and Air Quality) 

have no objections in respect to contaminated land or air quality, subject to 

the imposition of a condition requiring continuous dust monitoring. They state 

that the Air Quality Assessment is satisfactory and is in line with the relevant 

policy and guidance. They also state that the submitted Dust Management 

Plan appears satisfactory. 

 

7.166 The MPA notes that the applicant has confirmed that the continuous dust 

monitoring referenced by Worcestershire Regulatory Services would be 

undertaken using equipment that measures real-time concentrations of PM10 

and PM2.5. Values are recorded every 10 seconds, and are typically 

presented as 15 minute averages. The dust monitoring equipment can send 

email alerts when an agreed threshold is breached and all data can be viewed 

by the operator in a real-time dashboard. The monitoring equipment used 

would satisfy the Environment Agency’s Indicative MCERTS standard.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

7.167 The proposed monitoring for Respirable Crystalline Silica (RCS) would need 

to be undertaken using a different type of monitor, which is a gravimetric filter 

reference sampler that collects a physical sample of dust that can be sent off 

to an accredited laboratory for crystalline silica analysis. The monitoring that 

would need to be used for this would not provide any measurements in real 

Page 211



176 
 

time; it typically collects each sample over 7 days and uses a respirable (PM4) 

size selective inlet - so concentrations will be presented as 7 day averages. 

The applicant’s dust consultant does not recommend that this is undertaken 

continuously, as the costs would be prohibitively high. Instead, the applicant’s 

dust consultant recommends a short period of monitoring (ideally including a 

baseline before any work starts), of 3 months, which is considered by the 

applicant’s dust consultant to be sufficient to address any concerns. It is 

important to note that these results can only be compared to international 

standards, as there is no ambient UK limit/target/objective for RCS. 

 

7.168 Worcestershire Regulatory Services state that they have reviewed public 

comments, in particular the comments from local residents’ groups. With 

respect to PM2.5 (particles that have diameter of 2.5 microns or less), the 

guidance (IAQM: ‘Guidance on the Assessment of Mineral Dust Impacts for 

Planning’, May 2016(v1.1)) states that: “the other potential air quality impact is 

the increase in ambient suspended PM concentrations local to the site. As 

noted earlier, the PM10 fraction is relevant to health outcomes. For quarries 

most of this suspended dust would be in the coarse sub-fraction (PM2.5-10), 

rather than in the fine (PM2.5) fraction”. Any PM2.5 levels in the area could 

not readily be attributed to the quarry and are likely to be transboundary or 

associated with agricultural activities and the M50 Motorway.  

 

7.169 With regards to the statement from a local residents’ that “the applicant notes 

that current background levels of harmful 10 micron particles are already at 

over 30% of the permissible levels so again it is inconceivable that the levels 

would not be exceeded when mining starts”. The guidance states that “if the 

long-term background PM10 concentration is less than 17μg/m3 there is little 

risk that the Process Contribution would lead to an exceedance of the annual-

mean objective” and based on the background PM10 concentration data for 

the opening operational year it is considered unlikely that the annual-mean 

objective for PM10 would be exceeded. 

 

7.170 In response to the concerns raised by objectors in respect of the adequacy of 

any dust monitoring regime, the applicant has proposed the use of a 

continuous dust monitoring system, an overview of which has been clarified by 

the applicant’s acoustic consultant and is set out below: 

 

“The continuous dust monitoring will be undertaken using equipment that 

measures real-time concentrations of PM10 and PM2.5. Values are recorded 

every 10 seconds, and typically presented as 15 minute averages. It can send 

email alerts when an agreed threshold is breached and all data can be viewed 

by the operator in a real-time dashboard. The monitoring equipment used will 

satisfy the Environment Agency’s Indicative MCERTS standard.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

The proposed monitoring for RCS [Respirable Crystalline Silica] will need to 

be undertaken using a different type of monitor, which is a gravimetric filter 

reference sampler that collects a physical sample of dust that can be sent off 

to an accredited laboratory for crystalline silica analysis. The monitoring we 

Page 212



177 
 

would need to use for this will not provide any measurements in real time; it 

typically collects each sample over 7 days and uses a respirable (PM4) size 

selective inlet - so concentrations will be presented as 7 day averages. We 

would not recommend this is undertaken continuously, as costs are high. I 

would hope a short period of monitoring (ideally including a baseline before 

any work starts), of say 3 months, should be sufficient to appease any 

concerns.  It’s important to again note that these results can only be compared 

to international standards - at the moment there is no ambient UK 

limit/target/objective for RCS.” 

 

7.171 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the MPA is of the opinion that no soil 

stripping operations should take place until a Noise and Vibration 

Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Mineral Planning Authority, which shall include a scheme for noise and 

vibration monitoring. Thereafter, the development would have to be carried out 

in accordance with the approved scheme. A planning condition to this effect 

can be found at No.35 in the planning conditions list at the end of this report.  

 

Environmental Permit 

 

7.172 Given the applicant is proposing to restore the site by importing inert waste 

materials, the proposed development would require an Environmental Permit 

from the Environment Agency. It is noted that paragraph 188 of the NPPF 

states that "the focus of planning policies and decisions should be on whether 

proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the control of 

processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution control 

regimes). Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will operate 

effectively". Paragraph Reference ID: 27-012-20140306 of the PPG 

elaborates on this matter, stating that “the planning and other regulatory 

regimes are separate but complementary. The planning system controls the 

development and use of land in the public interest…this includes ensuring that 

new development is appropriate for its location – taking account of the effects 

(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the natural environment or 

general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or proposed 

development to adverse effects from pollution. In doing so the focus of the 

planning system should be on whether the development itself is an acceptable 

use of the land, and the impacts of those uses, rather than any control 

processes, health and safety issues or emissions themselves where these are 

subject to approval under regimes. Mineral planning authorities should 

assume that these non-planning regimes will operate effectively”.  

 

7.173 All materials to be imported would be inert restoration materials suitable for 

direct placement without any pre-treatment required (in line with the 

Environment Agency’s Position Statement on the CL:AIRE (Contaminated 

Land: Applications in Real Environments) ‘Definition of Waste: Development 

Industry Code of Practice’. 

 

Page 213



178 
 

7.174 In order to ensure all loads meet these criteria they would be visually and 

olfactory examined when brought onto the site prior to being placed. Imported 

material would be subject to Waste Acceptance and a company inert tipping 

protocol. The material would be directly sourced and would not have passed 

through any waste transfer (thereby reducing any prospect of contamination). 

Combined with the appropriate Environment Agency Environmental Permit 

and subsequent monitoring / reporting requirements, this would ensure that 

the extraction area in Worcestershire is restored using inert material only with 

no prospect of pollutant risks. 

 

7.175 The Environment Agency have made no adverse comments in respect to air 

quality, noise, dust, vibration and residential amenity. The Environment 

Agency confirm that restoration of the site by infilling would be controlled by 

an Environmental Permit. The Environmental Permit would require the site to 

have an adequate liner with an appropriate monitoring network to demonstrate 

compliance. The Permit would also control emissions to land air and water 

(e.g., noise and dust emissions). The Environment Agency also comment that 

infilling material should be sorted at source prior to being imported to the site 

and they would need to be appropriately screened and Waste Acceptance 

Criteria (WAC) tested to make sure that they are compliant and suitable for 

use. The Permit would detail the inert materials which can be landfilled at the 

site. 

 
Health and wellbeing impacts 
  

7.176 With regard to health and wellbeing impacts, the PPG states that “it is helpful 

if the Director of Public Health is consulted on any planning applications 

(including at the pre-application stage) that are likely to have a significant 

impact on the health and wellbeing of the local population or particular groups 

within it. This would allow them to work together on any necessary mitigation 

measures. A health impact assessment is a useful tool to use where there are 

expected to be significant impacts” (Paragraph Reference ID: 53-005-

20190722). 

 

7.177 The applicant submitted a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) Screening which 

concluded that a bespoke full HIA is not required. The submitted ES also 

includes a Health and Wellbeing Chapter, which concluded that through 

implementation of the mitigation and attenuation measures outlined in the ES, 

it considered that the proposed development would not result in any significant 

adverse risk to the health and well-being of sensitive receptors within 

proximity of the development site. For this reason, it considered that no further 

assessment of health impacts is warranted. Notwithstanding this, the County 

‘Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities Hub’ team (CPWCH) originally 

commented that they had no objections to the proposal but would welcome a 

full HIA. 

 

7.178 In response, the applicant undertook and submitted a full HIA, which states 

that the proposal could be achieved without any significant adverse impact 

Page 214



179 
 

upon the environment or residential amenity. The HIA states that the proposed 

temporary mineral extraction would contribute to the economic prosperity both 

directly (through local employment) and indirectly (in the supply of a valuable 

resource which facilitates development in the wider region). Longer-term, the 

development would achieve significant environmental benefits through 

delivery of in excess of 25 hectares of biodiversity and habitat gain and 

increased flood storage capacity within the local area. The HIA concludes that 

there are no significant or demonstrable risks presented to the health and 

well-being of the local population. 

 

7.179 In response, the CPWCH team state in their consultation response dated 1st 

April 2022 that whilst there is evidence that ‘good work’ can improve health 

and wellbeing across people’s lives and employment created through the 

quarry and its associated industries has the potential to have a positive 

impact. The impact of noise, vibration and poor air quality during development 

and operation of the proposed quarry has the potential to have a negative 

impact on physical and mental health and wellbeing. 

 

7.180 On the issue of noise, the CPWCH team state that: 

 

“The environmental assessment indicates that ‘noise levels are predicted to 

achieve the required noise limits set by relevant guidance and standards and 

would not exceed the maximum noise limit or the aim of background noise for 

the site lifetime. It does highlight however that activities such as soil-stripping, 

the construction and removal of baffle mounds, soil storage mounds and spoil 

heaps, construction of new permanent landforms and aspects of site road 

construction and maintenance will be particularly noisy. 

 

Exposure to noise can lead to auditory and nonauditory effects on health. 

Through direct injury to the auditory system, noise leads to auditory effects 

such as hearing loss and tinnitus. Noise is also a nonspecific stressor that has 

been shown to have an adverse effect on human health, especially following 

long-term exposure. These effects are the result of psychological and 

physiological distress, as well as a disturbance of the organism’s homeostasis 

and increasing allostatic load (Basner et al., 2014). This is further outlined in 

the WHO narrative review of the biological mechanisms of nonauditory effects 

(Eriksson et al., 2018). 

 

We would strongly recommend adherence to the appropriate noise standards 

for mineral operators. The National Planning Policy Framework makes it clear 

that minerals planning authorities should ensure that unavoidable noise 

emissions are controlled, mitigated or removed at source and we would 

advocate for close monitoring of noise, particularly for those properties in near 

proximity of the site.” 

 

7.181 In respect of air quality, the CPWCH team has provided the following 

commentary: 

 

Page 215



180 
 

“Particulate Matter (PM) is a generic term used to describe a complex mixture 

of solid and liquid particles of varying size, shape, and composition. Some 

particles are emitted directly from sources such as cars and other vehicles, 

and operations that involve burning fuels such as wood or coal (primary PM); 

others are formed in the atmosphere through complex chemical reactions 

(secondary PM). The composition of PM varies greatly and depends on many 

factors, such as geographical location, emission sources and weather. 

PM is often classified according to aerodynamic size and referred to as: 

 

• coarse particles (PM10; particles that are less than 10 microns (µm) in 

diameter) 

• fine particles (PM2.5; particles that are less than 2.5 µm in diameter) 

• ultrafine particles (PM0.1; particles that are less than 0.1 µm in 

diameter) 

 

The size of particles and the duration of exposure are key determinants of 

potential adverse health effects. Particles larger than 10 µm are mainly 

deposited in the nose or throat, whereas particles smaller than 10 µm pose 

the greatest risk because they can be drawn deeper into the lung. The 

strongest evidence for effects on health is associated with fine particles 

(PM2.5). 

 

There is an extensive body of evidence that long-term exposure to PM 

increases mortality and morbidity from cardiovascular and respiratory 

diseases. Outdoor air pollution, particularly PM, has also been classified by 

the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) as carcinogenic to 

humans (a Group 1 carcinogen) and causing lung cancer. There is some 

experimental evidence that ultrafine particles may also pass through the lungs 

into the bloodstream. There is a developing evidence base for a link between 

exposure to particulate matter and poorer early childhood development as well 

as the development of central nervous system conditions such as Alzheimer’s 

and Parkinson’s disease. Currently, there is no clear evidence of a safe level 

of exposure to PM below which there is no risk of adverse health effects. 

 

Many minerals contain silica and produce silica dust known as respirable 

crystalline silica (RCS). The Bow Farm Quarry will be extracting sand and 

gravel and the crystalline silica concentrations are around 70% in these 

minerals. 

 

silica flour, cristobalite 

flour 

100% 

sandstone, gritstone, 

quartzite 

more than 70% 

sand, gravel, flint more than 70% 

Source: HSE 2017 https://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/guidance/qy0.pdf  

 

All RCS is hazardous by inhalation as the ‘respirable’ dust, which is very fine 

and invisible under normal lighting, can get deep into the lungs. In the 

Page 216

https://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/guidance/qy0.pdf


181 
 

planning documentation, the Dust Management Plan dated December 2021 

notes: 

 

‘The Defra predicted background concentrations for the earliest year of 

operation (2021) for the grid squares of the proposed development were 11.4 

and 7.4 µg/m3 for PM10 and PM2.5 respectively. In accordance with the 

IAQM guidance, when background PM10 concentrations are below 17 µg/m3 

it is considered unlikely that the quarry process contribution would lead to an 

exceedance of the annual mean objective. 

 

The impacts on PM10 and PM2.5 from Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) traffic 

generated by the proposed quarry were assessed in a separate detailed air 

quality assessment. The assessment found that the Air Quality Observations 

(AQOs) at the façade of all existing receptors would be met with or without the 

quarry in place and no further air quality mitigation measures were 

recommended for the operational phase of the proposed development.’ 

 

We would note that whilst the Defra guidance says that ‘from the experience 

of the Working Group, adverse dust impacts from sand and gravel sites are 

uncommon beyond 250 m measured from the nearest dust generating 

activities’, it also says: ‘In the absence of other information it is commonly 

accepted that the greatest impacts will be within 100 m of a source, and this 

can include both large (>30 µm) and small dust particles. The greatest 

potential for high rates of dust deposition and elevated PM10 concentrations 

occurs within this distance. Intermediate-sized particles (10 to 30 µm) may 

travel up to 400 m, with occasional elevated levels of dust deposition and 

PM10 possible. Particles less than 10µm have the potential to persist beyond 

400 m but with minimal significance due to dispersion.’  Six properties are 

within a 100m of the site and therefore fall within the ‘greatest impacts’ zone 

outlined in the Defra guidance. 

 

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) indicate that “no cases of silicosis 

have been documented among members of the general public in Great 

Britain, indicating that environmental exposures to silica dust are not 

sufficiently high to cause this occupational disease”.  However, The World 

Health Organisation (2021) note that small particulate pollution has health 

impacts even at very low concentrations – ‘indeed no threshold has been 

identified below which no damage to health is observed’.  

 

The Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants (COMEAP) published 

an advice note on the health evidence relevant to developing targets for fine 

particulate air pollution (PM2.5) under the Environment Bill in July 2021.  They 

note that both long-term and short-term exposures affect health but likely in 

different ways.  People with pre-existing disease are likely to be most sensitive 

to effects of short-term exposure, including effects that might not have 

occurred without peaks of elevated concentrations. Long-term exposure likely 

has the potential to affect everyone, by contributing to the initiation and/or 

progression of disease. 

Page 217



182 
 

The report further notes that ‘the newer evidence indicates associations of 

adverse effects with lower concentrations than were previously studied. The 

studies have not indicated a threshold of effect below which there is no harm 

nor a threshold below which there are decreases in relative risk (for example, 

the risk per 10 µg/m3 PM2.5) associated with long-term average 

concentrations of PM2.5. These findings suggest that continuing to reduce 

concentrations even below the WHO guideline value of 10 µg/m3 would 

benefit public health’. 

 

The Dust Management Plan notes, ‘dust receptors can be within or beyond a 

quarry site boundary. Whilst dust generation within a minerals site is primarily 

of concern to its operator, staff and visitors, dust can propagate beyond the 

site boundary to affect people and properties beyond, unless adequate control 

measures are in place’, and ‘there are High sensitivity residential receptors 

within 250 m of the proposed development’. The Dust Management Plan 

could be strengthened by including acknowledgement that even at low levels 

PM2.5 poses a health risk, particularly for those properties within 100m of the 

site, and enhancing any operational and design control measures. We would 

highlight that where the Plan recommends visual assessment, this will not 

identify the smallest particles which are not visible under normal lighting.  

 

Public health has taken into account the responses from: Public Health 

England in 2019 which state that it has ‘no significant concerns regarding risk 

to health of the local population from this proposed development, providing 

that the applicant takes all appropriate measures to prevent or control 

pollution, in accordance with the relevant sector technical guidance or industry 

best practice’; Worcester Regulatory Services; and the chapters in the 

Environmental Statement which address matters pertaining to health and 

wellbeing such as noise, dust and air quality.   

 

Reducing public exposures to non-threshold pollutants (such as particulate 

matter and nitrogen dioxide) below air quality standards has potential public 

health benefits. Consequently, we would support any approaches which 

minimise or mitigate public exposure to non-threshold air pollutants, address 

inequalities (in exposure), and encourage their consideration, implementation 

and monitoring throughout. We would support the following mechanisms 

highlighted in the reports: 

 

• Dust control measures be fitted to plant to avoid unacceptable 

emissions of dust; 

• Care be taken to avoid unacceptable dust emissions when inert 

material with relatively low moisture content is handled, especially in 

dry windy conditions; 

• Conditions Monitoring will be undertaken by Officers from 

Worcestershire County Council and Gloucestershire County Council to 

ensure adherence to requirements of planning conditions; 

Page 218



183 
 

• All pneumatic tools/compressors used on site shall be silenced or be 

sound reduced models and located away from noise sensitive 

receptors where possible.  

 

On this occasion, given the matters have been considered in the 

Environmental Statement and recommended mitigations will be implemented, 

we raise no objections to the proposal.  However, for future applications of this 

type we would strongly encourage an in-depth Health Impact Assessment.” 

 

7.182 The UK Health Security Agency (formerly Public Health England) comments 

that based on the information submitted, they have no significant concerns 

regarding the risk to health of the local population from this proposed 

development, providing that the applicant takes all appropriate measures to 

prevent or control pollution, in accordance with the relevant sector technical 

guidance or industry best practice.  

 

7.183 In relation to objections from local residents regarding silicosis, the MPA notes 

that the HSE guidance states that “one of the health risks from working in the 

quarry industry is that of exposure to fine dust containing crystalline silica 

(otherwise known as quartz). Quartz is found in almost all kinds of rock, 

sands, clays, shale and gravel. Workers exposed to fine dust containing 

quartz are at risk of developing a chronic and possibly severely disabling lung 

disease known as "silicosis". It usually takes a number of years of regular 

daily exposure before there is a risk of developing silicosis. Silicosis is a 

disease that has only been seen in workers from industries where there is a 

significant exposure to silica dust, such as in quarries, foundries, the potteries 

etc. No cases of silicosis have been documented among members of the 

general public in Great Britain, indicating that environmental exposures to 

silica dust are not sufficiently high to cause this occupational disease”. 

 

7.184 Furthermore, the MPA notes that the Government’s PPG specifically deals 

with the matter of ‘separation distances / buffer zones’ in relation to mineral 

extraction. The PPG states that “separation distances / buffer zones may be 

appropriate in specific circumstances where it is clear that, based on site 

specific assessments and other forms of mitigation measures (such as 

working scheme design and landscaping) a certain distance is required 

between the boundary of the minerals extraction area and occupied residential 

property. Any proposed separation distance should be established on a site-

specific basis and should be effective, properly justified, and reasonable. It 

should take into account:  

 

• the nature of the mineral extraction activity;  

• the need to avoid undue sterilisation of mineral resources;  

• location and topography;  

• the characteristics of the various environmental effects likely to arise; 

and  

Page 219



184 
 

• the various mitigation measures that can be applied” (Paragraph 

Reference ID: 27-018-20140306).  

 

7.185 The MPA considers that no additional separation distances / buffer zones are 

required over and above that already proposed, given that the ES and 

associated assessments do not identify unacceptable impacts on residential 

amenity, and there are no objections to the development as proposed from the 

relevant technical consultees, including the Environment Agency, 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services, County ‘Prevention, Wellbeing and 

Communities Hub’ team and The UK Health Security Agency. In view of this, it 

is considered that any additional separation distances / buffer zones would not 

be properly justified or reasonable in this instance. 

 

7.186 In view of the above matters, the MPA considers that, subject to the imposition 

of appropriate conditions relating to operating hours, restricting permitted 

development rights, limiting the duration of the development, restricting 

lighting, extent of mineral extraction, phasing scheme, waste acceptance, 

construction of soil screening bund, an updated Noise Management Plan to 

include a scheme for noise monitoring, noise limits and monitoring, vibration 

and dust monitoring, carrying out the development in accordance with the 

Dust Management Plan, limiting height of stockpiles, all vehicles and plant 

being maintained in accordance with the manufacturers' specification, upward 

facing exhausts on plant and machinery, white noise reversing alarms on 

mobile plant and machinery, use of water bowser and spraying, maximum on 

site speed limit, internal roads to be maintained, and Community Liaison 

Group, that there would be no unacceptable adverse air pollution, noise, dust, 

vibration or lighting impacts on residential amenity or that of human health. 

The MPA considers that the proposal is in accordance with Policies DM01 and 

DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy and Policy GD6 

of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Economic impact 

 

7.187 Letters of representation have been received both supporting the proposal 

and objecting to the proposal on economic grounds. Those in support 

consider that the proposal would provide job opportunities in the area 

benefiting the community, note that minerals can only be worked where they 

are found, and the proposal meets the need for increased aggregate supply 

which is essential for the construction industry. Objectors to the proposal 

consider that there would be job losses as the proposal would adversely 

impact nearby businesses, adversely impacting the local economy. 

 

7.188 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of economic related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.189 The NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to 

the achievement of sustainable development. Achieving sustainable 

Page 220



185 
 

development means that the planning system has three overarching 

objectives (economic, social and environmental), which are independent and 

need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways, so that opportunities can be 

taken to secure net gains across each of the different objectives. In particular, 

the NPPF sees the economic role of planning as “to help build a strong, 

responsive and competitive economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the 

right type is available in the right places and at the right time to support 

growth, innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying and 

coordinating the provision of infrastructure” (paragraph 8). 

 

7.190 The NPPF at paragraph 81 states that “planning policies and decisions should 

help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. 

Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth 

and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider 

opportunities for development”. 

 

7.191 In addition, paragraph 209 of the NPPF states that "it is essential that there is 

a sufficient supply of minerals to provide the infrastructure, buildings, energy 

and goods that the country needs. Since minerals are a finite natural resource, 

and can only be worked where they are found, best use needs to be made of 

them to secure their long-term conservation". Paragraph 211 of the NPPF 

states that “When determining planning applications, great weight should be 

given to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to the economy”. 

 

7.192 Within section 10: ‘The local economy’ of the adopted Twyning Parish 

Neighbourhood Development Plan (adopted 2018) it states that “as a rural 

parish the area has historically been highly dependent on land based 

businesses and employment including arable, livestock and mixed farms, 

market gardening, ornamental and tree nurseries. These businesses continue 

to operate although they now account for less than 4% of employment.” 

 

7.193 Within the commentary for Policy E1 of the Neighbourhood Plan, it identifies 

that “some land-based businesses have diversified into leisure and tourism 

propositions including fishing lakes, riverside moorings, camping and caravan 

parks, B&B and holiday cottages.” Furthermore, “the Parish is recognised by 

Cotswolds Tourism as a visitor and tourist destination due to its rural 

character, tourism offering and proximity to local attractions. The most 

significant local provider and employer in the sector is Hilton Group’s Puckrup 

Hall Hotel in Puckrup. The business employs 110 staff and attracts 40,000 

visitors to the area per annum.” 

 

7.194 The Neighbourhood Plan identifies that Twyning Parish “has a good level of 

employment in the area”, but that these are “mainly located in business 

parks.” To help maintain the rural character of Twyning as a Parish, the 

Neighbourhood Plan states that “the community has identified that further 

large scale development at these business parks should be prohibited.” 

 

Page 221



186 
 

7.195 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of adverse impacts upon tourism, particularly Puckrup Hall Hotel and 

Golf Course. Within their objection dated 31.12.2019 the General Manager at 

the hotel confirmed that they employ approximately 110 staff, have 850 leisure 

Club members, 400 Golf Club Members and “at least 40,000 sleepers each 

year”. They also comment that “the business draws visitors from all over the 

UK, Europe and further afield and is one of few Hilton Hotels situated in a rural 

area.” 

 

7.196 Within their further letter of objection dated 08.10.2020, the owners of the 

freehold interest in the land (Zinc Puckrup Hall Hotels Limited) explain that the 

hotel and golf club is “a three-story hotel comprising 112 bedrooms, a 

restaurant and bar, 15 meeting catering for 200 delegates, spa and fitness 

facilities, an 18-hole championship golf course and driving range set within 

140 acres of private land.” As a country house hotel and golf club, “the 

baseline rural countryside environmental conditions and visual amenity are a 

critical part of the Hotel’s attraction to members of the public and its ongoing 

viability as a business.” “A disruption to these baseline environmental 

conditions would likely result from the proposed extraction, processing and 

concrete batching elements of the application. In particular, the inevitable 

increase in noise, dust, and vibration that would be created could result in a 

significant loss of trade, and affect the viability of Puckrup Hall as a significant 

source of employment in the area.” The land owners have expressed 

“particular concern over noise and vibration emanating from the proposed 

development and the potential for this to lead to complaints and refunds to 

guests. In turn, this could also lead to a loss of standing of the Hotel and 

associated facilities in the customer reviews and scoring systems of popular 

booking websites, which are increasingly important.” 

 

7.197 Letters of representation have also been received from Church End Nursery 

objecting to the proposal on the grounds of adverse impacts upon their 

business. Within their objection dated 16.09.2020, it states that their main 

concern “is the deleterious effect of dust. This can pollute the fruit and 

damage the glass surface and the glasshouse structure.” They express 

concern that the proposed processing area, batching plant and haul road are 

“very close to the soft fruit business”. In respect of wind direction and climatic 

conditions, they comment that “weather from the North/North West tends to 

bring dryer conditions and would therefore bring dust from the haul road and 

workings. It only takes one deposit to do damage to a crop of raspberries.” 

“The soft fruit operation takes place in a series of glasshouses which have a 

computerised environment control system which operates air vents and 

watering/feed. Fresh air and sunlight are critical for a good yield of fruit and 

any form of pollution or light restriction would cause a serious loss of crop.” 

 

7.198 The applicant states that the proposal is critical to sustaining both the gravel 

and concrete side of their business, as they estimate they have 2 to 3 years of 

remaining sand and gravel reserve before all of their operational sites are 

Page 222



187 
 

exhausted. The applicant states they currently have no other mineral sites in 

the pipeline; therefore, this site is fundamental to their overall business. 

 

7.199 The applicant anticipates that the proposal would employ 20 full-time 

members of staff. By creating new job opportunities, the proposal would 

support communities and thereby provide a social benefit. Furthermore, by 

providing jobs and a service to other businesses, it would contribute to the 

local economy. In so far as it provides these social and economic benefits, the 

proposal would accord with the aims of the NPPF. 

 

7.200 The MPA acknowledges that the NPPF affords significant weight to the need 

to support economic growth and notes that paragraph 209 of the NPPF states 

that “it is essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to provide the 

infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that the country needs”. Paragraph 

217 of the NPPF also states that “when determining planning applications, 

great weight should be given to the benefits of the mineral extraction, 

including to the economy”. It is considered that the proposal would provide a 

small number of direct employment opportunities (20 full-time equivalent jobs), 

as well as contributing to the wider growth aspirations for the county through 

the supply of local aggregates to the construction market. Therefore, it is 

considered that the proposal would provide substantial sustainable economic 

growth benefits to the local economy in accordance with the NPPF and this 

weighs in its favour. 

 

7.201 The adopted Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 

sets out targets for growth up to the plan period of 2031, including the building 

of 33,500 dwellings and a minimum of 192 hectares of “B-class employment 

land” [now Use Class B2, B8 and E (formerly B1)] to support approximately 

39,500 new jobs. The JCS considers that this level of development would 

reflect both demographic and economic projections and aspirations, and is 

considered to be a sensible assessment of both the future housing needs and 

the economic potential of the JCS area. Such developments will require 

aggregate raw material to allow the various development projects to proceed. 

Through the examination of the JCS, the Inspector recommended an 

additional 5% to increase the provision of affordable housing and add 

flexibility. This brings the total housing requirement figure to 35,175. 

 

7.202 The Gloucestershire Economic Needs Assessment dated August 2020 was 

produced for and on behalf of all six district/borough councils within 

Gloucestershire. The headline figures show that manufacturing jobs are 

particularly high in Tewkesbury (21.7%). Across Gloucestershire there has 

been a net gain of 88,165 sqm of industrial floorspace, the majority (75%) of 

which has been in Tewkesbury borough. 

 

7.203 Para.5.5 of the Assessment states that “Gloucestershire has a prosperous 

and resilient economy which is set within an attractive natural environment 

offering a high standard of living for residents. The county has sectorial 

strengths in science, technical, wholesale and retail, health and social care 

Page 223



188 
 

and construction and great potential for growth in Cyber-tech, Agri-tech and 

Advanced Engineering and Manufacturing.” 

 

7.204 Within the borough of Tewkesbury, the Assessment shows that those sectors 

that are consistently forecasting significant employment growth between 2021-

2041 are in: 

 

• Financial & Business Services;  

• Government services;  

• Construction; and  

• Other services – including creative industries and recreational services 

 

7.205  Table 59: ‘Cambridge Econometrics - Total Employment Growth 2021-41’ of 

the Assessment shows the ‘mining and quarrying’ sector at zero growth for 

employment in Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury, with a total 

reduction of 100 jobs between the Cotswolds (-60), the Forest of Dean (-30) 

and Stroud (-10). Within the same period in Tewkesbury, the forecast for the 

‘agriculture etc’ sector shows -10 jobs. Within the same Table, the 

‘Accommodation & food services’ sector for Tewkesbury shows a gain of 810 

jobs. 

 

7.206 It is noted that the Minerals Product Association estimates that "the 

construction of a typical new house uses up to 50 tonnes of aggregates - from 

the foundations through to the roof tiles". Further aggregates are required for 

the construction of any supporting infrastructure and in the maintenance and 

refurbishment of the existing housing stock and other types of development. 

But broadly, based on this figure of 50 tonnes, the proposed development 

would provide enough aggregate for the construction of approximately 30,000 

homes. 

 

7.207 Noting the conclusions of the submitted ES and associated assessments and 

the conclusions of this report, particularly in relation to residential amenity 

(including noise, dust, air quality, vibration, lighting and health impacts), 

landscape character and appearance of the local area, traffic, highway safety 

and impact upon public rights of way, and restoration and aftercare of the site, 

which are considered to be acceptable subject to the imposition of appropriate 

conditions. The MPA considers that refusal of planning permission on the 

grounds of adverse impacts upon economy, business and tourism could not 

be justified in this instance as any such impacts are capable of being 

controlled.  

 

Landscape character and appearance of the local area 

 

7.208 Local residents object to the proposal on the grounds of adverse landscape 

character and visual impacts, including adverse visual impacts upon the local 

area including the Puckrup Hall Hotel and Golf Course, the proposed sight 

lines are misleading, proposed bunds would have a detrimental visual impact, 

Page 224



189 
 

no control of retention of vegetation outside the application site and request 

height of proposed buildings is conditioned.  

 

7.209 Twyning Parish Council object to the proposal on the grounds of visual 

intrusion into the open landscape. Ripple Parish Council are concerned about 

the loss of recreational amenity in relation to the public rights of way in the 

vicinity of the site, particularly views from the Severn Way and views from the 

east, as walkers would experience substantial adverse effects. 

 

7.210 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of landscape related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.211 Policy DM09 ‘Landscape’ of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire states that “mineral development proposals will be permitted 

where it can be demonstrated they have been informed by, are sympathetic 

to, and wherever practicable, will support the enhancement of the character, 

features and qualities of the landscape character areas or types of the 

relevant NCAs and LCAs that form the Gloucestershire Landscape Character 

Assessment.” 

 

7.212 In respect of undesignated valued landscapes or landscape designations 

other than AONBs, part a of Policy DM09 states that “unacceptable adverse 

impacts on the defining character, features and qualities of these areas must 

be avoided or satisfactorily mitigated.” 

 

7.213 Part b of Policy DM09 is not applicable in this instance as the proposed 

minerals development is not within or does not affect the setting of the 

Cotswolds, Wye Valley or Malvern Hills AONB. 

 

7.214 Policy SD6 ‘Landscape’ of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint 

Core Strategy consists of 3 parts. Part 1 seeks to ensure that development 

protects “the landscape character for its own intrinsic beauty and for its benefit 

to economic, environmental and social well-being.” Part 2 requires proposals 

to have regard to the “local distinctiveness and historic character of the 

different landscapes in the JCS area, drawing, as appropriate, upon existing 

Landscape Character Assessments and the Landscape Character and 

Sensitivity Analysis.” Proposals are also required to demonstrate how they will 

“protect or enhance landscape character and avoid detrimental effects on 

types, patterns and features which make a significant contribution to the 

character, history and setting of a settlement or area.” Part 3 states, amongst 

other matters, that “proposals for appropriate mitigation and enhancement 

measures should also accompany applications.” 

 

7.215 Policy LAN2 ‘Landscape Character’ of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-

2031 requires all development, through sensitive design, siting, and 

landscaping, to be appropriate to, and integrated into, their existing landscape 

setting. Within para.8.10 of the ‘reasoned justification’ for Policy LAN2 it 

stresses the importance of ensuring that each of the discrete character areas 

Page 225



190 
 

are “cherished and conserved on the strength of their intrinsic, locally 

distinctive landscape qualities, rather than through any comparative measure 

of subjective value.” 

 

7.216 Where possible, Policy GD4 ‘Landscape and bio-diversity’ of the Twyning 

Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 states that “development 

should take every opportunity, through design and suitable landscaping, to 

reinforce local distinctiveness and enhance the bio-diversity of the Parish.” 

Part 3 of the assessment criterion for Policy GD4 states, amongst other 

matter, that “new development shall be accompanied by a landscape strategy 

which will identify existing landscape features and set out measures to be 

taken to safeguard, and where appropriate enhance, existing trees, 

hedgerows and other landscape features.” 

 

7.217 A Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) accompanied the application 

submission. With regard to landscape character the Assessment states that 

proposed development would result in the loss of landscape features including 

arable farmland and internal field boundary hedgerows. Post-extraction, areas 

of woodland, scrub and wetland would be established, together with 

reinstatement of arable farmland as part of the restoration proposals. The 

Assessment considers that the overall magnitude of effect on landscape 

character would be low. The overall landscape sensitivity to proposed 

development is assessed as medium. The nature of effect is assessed as 

being adverse during the operational period and neutral in the long-term, 

reflecting a balance between a partial change in landscape characteristics 

(adverse) and nature conservation value (beneficial). 

 

7.218 With regard to visual impacts, the Assessment states that the visual effects of 

advance tree planting, initial soil stripping, storage and construction of the 

mineral haul route would be highly localised. The soil storage screen bunds 

would be grassed and set behind the existing peripheral hedgerows. The 

bunds would be progressively removed, and the topsoil used to restore 

worked phases as extraction progresses through the site. Those primarily 

affected would be users of Bridleway ATW37 moving south to north across the 

application site, and users of Bow Lane passing along the eastern boundary of 

the extraction site. The visual effects for these receptors would be moderate 

adverse visual effect. There would be some oblique and heavily filtered views 

of the pre-extraction phase from Footpath ZTW49, located to the south-west 

of the application site, running along the eastern bank of the River Severn. 

The Assessment considers that typically, the visual effects for these receptors 

would be minor adverse visual effect. 

 

7.219 The Assessment states that the greatest effects on visual amenity as a result 

of mineral extraction operations would generally be for receptors closest to the 

application site, namely users of Bridleway ATW37, which crosses the 

proposed haul road between the extraction area and processing plant area. 

The Assessment predicts that users of this bridleway would experience a 

substantial adverse visual effect. Receptors using Footpath RP-550, located 

Page 226



191 
 

on the eastern bank of the River Severn and Footpath BU-514, located on the 

western bank of the River Severn, would experience substantial adverse 

visual effects. However, such effects would be limited to the duration of the 

mineral extraction in flexible working areas. 

 

7.220 The applicant anticipates that occupiers of the residential property of Far End 

would experience minor adverse visual effects during the operational phase of 

the proposed development. However, the visual effects would generally be 

related to views of the movement of plant and would, therefore, be intermittent 

and transitional. The eastern portion of the site would be visible in oblique, 

mid-range views, with filtered oblique views of the flexible working areas. 

There would be no visibility of the proposed main mineral extraction area due 

to the visual containment provided by deciduous woodland. 

 

7.221 The Assessment states that major adverse visual effects would be 

experienced for motorists using Bow Lane. Users of the section of Bridleway 

ATW37 in the vicinity of Redpools Farm to the south of the application site 

would experience major adverse visual effects as they move south to north 

towards the application site. 

 

7.222 The Assessment states that moderate slight adverse visual effects are likely to 

be experienced by receptors using Footpath ATW34, which passes through 

Puckrup Hall Hotel complex. From the section of this footpath within the 

Puckrup Hall Hotel complex, the Assessment states that the proposal is not 

visible due to intervening landform and vegetation along the western and 

eastern edges of the golf course. The application site would also not visible 

due to intervening landform, hedgerows and trees from this footpath on the 

section between Bow Lane and Puckrup Hall Hotel complex. However, as 

users of this footpath approach the south-eastern edge of Puckrup Hall Hotel 

complex, at the eastern edge of site boundary (near the A38), users would 

have filtered views of the eastern extremities of the site including the Fairfield 

Cottage. 

 

7.223 With regard to the visual impacts upon Bowbridge Cottage and Barn located 

on Puckrup Lane. The Assessment states that small blocks of established 

trees on the edge of Puckrup Lane prevent views of the site from the Cottage. 

As such there is no intervisibility between the cottage and the application site. 

This is considered in further details within the ‘Historic environment’ section of 

this report. 

 

7.224 The Assessment states that the final restoration scheme would re-introduce 

many of the baseline characteristics of the application site which would feature 

in many views. Typically views into the application site from the north, south 

and east would show the restoration of the fields and internal hedgerows 

whilst the area of deciduous woodland which would have been planted at the 

pre-operational phase would be establishing to introduce a congruous element 

into the landscape. Whilst minor-moderate adverse visual effects may be 

experienced during the initial stages of the restoration phase, once newly 

Page 227



192 
 

planted hedgerows begin to establish, the effect would be of minor-negligible 

significance and slightly beneficial. 

 

7.225 The applicant has submitted sight line cross sections from a range of sensitive 

receptors. These demonstrate that the proposed processing plant site would 

be significantly screened from a wide range of views due to a combination of 

topography, existing established vegetation and proposed mitigation 

measures such as soil bunds / fencing. 

 

7.226 Within the processing plant site area, the tallest structure is the first section of 

the ‘Feed Conveyor’ on the processing plant, which is shown on ‘Plant Site 

Elevations’ drawing 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0016 Rev.P3 as being 10.44 metres 

high and 98.64 metres long. The middle ‘Feed Conveyor’ has a height of 8.64 

metres, whilst the end ‘Feed Conveyor’ would have a drop height of 7.57 

metres. 

 

7.227 Within the concrete batching plant area the tallest structures are the two 

feeder pipes from the ‘Cement Silos’ to the top of the ‘Mixing Tower’, which 

would be 9.55 metres above ground level. The two ‘Cement Silos’ would be 

6.65 metres high. 

 

7.228 The single storey ‘Weighbridge Office’ is shown as being 3.5 metres high, 

10.5 metres long and 3.3 metres wide. The proposed ‘Welfare Office’ is the 

same length and width as the ‘Weighbridge Office’ but is slightly lower in 

height at 2.79 metres. 

 

7.229 GCC’s Landscape Advisor raises no objections to the proposal, subject to the 

imposition of appropriate conditions, including a restriction in the height of 

stockpiles and the external finishes and colours of plant and other structures 

as shown on the colour swatch included on the revised Plant Site Elevation 

plan (revision P3) submission. This view is reflected in the comments from the 

Conservation Officer at Tewkesbury Borough Council who suggests that with 

regards to conditions that the infrastructure of the batching plant (i.e. gantrys, 

silo towers etc.) be finished in a recessive colour such as dark green. In terms 

of mitigation of landscape and visual impacts for restoration, GCC’s 

Landscape Advisor states that they defer to Worcestershire County Council. 

GCC’s Landscape Advisor has asked that it be noted that they and the County 

Landscape Officer for Worcestershire “were in liaison during consideration of 

the application and made a joint site visit to consider the application and verify 

[their] interpretation of the LVIA and associated documents.” 

 

7.230 GCC’s Landscape Advisor is of the opinion that if the ‘Detailed Restoration 

Proposals and Landscape Management Plan’ (2636-4-5-LM-0001 /T1/P4 

dated 17/12/21) is read alongside the ‘Proposed Restoration Plan’ (2636-4-4-

2-1/DR-0007/S4-P9), the submission provides sufficient detail in terms of 

restoration goals; planting areas, species, sizes and spacings; replacement 

planting; aftercare maintenance, management and annual inspections and 

reporting, for there to be a single landscape condition to reference to these 

Page 228



193 
 

documents. In the opinion of GCC’s Landscape Advisor this would, alongside 

the proposals for soils management and restoration of some areas to 

agricultural use, be appropriate to ensure restoration and establishment of the 

scheme planting can be monitored and controlled. 

 

7.231 The County Landscape Officer for Worcestershire considers that the proposed 

haul road and processing plant area would be largely screened in 

Worcestershire, again benefitting from the existing topography and 

established mature vegetation. 

 

7.232 Bredon Hill which forms part of the Cotswolds AONB National Landscape is 

located approximately 4.3 kilometres east of the application site, and 

approximately 5.2 kilometres east of the proposed extraction area. The 

Cotswolds Conservation Board wished to make no comments on the 

application. In view of this, and due to the distance of the proposal from the 

Cotswolds AONB National Landscape, the MPA considers that the proposal 

would not have an adverse visual impact upon this AONB. 

 

7.233 The visual impacts of the proposal upon the Scheduled Monument of Towbury 

Hill Camp is considered under the ‘Historic environment’ section of this report. 

 

7.234 Impacts of the proposal upon veteran trees is considered within the ‘Ecology, 

biodiversity and geodiversity’ section of this report. 

 

7.235 The MPA considers that should planning permission be granted, conditions 

should be imposed requiring the site to be restored within a set timescale, 

being carried out in accordance with the Soil Handling Strategy, design of 

screening bunds, phased working scheme, design of conveyors, boundary 

treatments, annual topographical surveys, detailed drainage scheme and 

management plan, restricting lighting, Noise, Vibration and Dust Management 

Plans and Monitoring Schemes, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme, updated 

Landscape Ecological Management Plan, being carried out in accordance with 

the Arboricultural Report, limiting the height of stockpiles, updated restoration 

scheme, aftercare scheme, 10-year aftercare period, Interpretation Strategy, 

and removing permitted development rights. 

 

7.236 In view of the above and based on the advice of GCC’s Landscape Advisor, 

Tewkesbury Borough Council and Cotswolds Conservation Board, the MPA 

considers that the proposed development would not have an unacceptable 

impact upon the character and appearance of the local area, including the 

Cotswolds AONB National Landscape and views from public rights of way, 

subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions. The MPA considers that 

the proposal is in accordance with Policy DM09 of the adopted Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, Policy LAN2 of the adopted Tewkesbury 

Borough Plan and Policy GD4 of the adopted Twyning Parish Neighbourhood 

Development Plan. 

 

Page 229



194 
 

Best and Most Versatile (BMV) agricultural land 

 

7.237 The NPPF defines BMV agricultural land as Grades 1, 2 and 3a of the 

agricultural land classification. 

 

7.238 A Soil Resources and Agricultural Use and Quality of Land Survey and Soil 

Handling Strategy accompanied the application. The Strategy identifies that 

the site consists of a small area of BMV agricultural land classification Grade 2 

(approximately 3.3 hectares, equating to about 5.1%), which is located in 

Gloucestershire. 

 

7.239 BMV agricultural land in Worcestershire falls within classification Grades 3a 

(approximately 29.6 hectares, equating to about 45.7%), together with Grade 

3b (approximately 29 hectares, equating to about 44.8%), which is relatively 

low grade agricultural land, and approximately 2.9 hectares, equating to about 

4.48% of non-agricultural land (such as river embankments, hedgerows and 

farm tracks).  

 

7.240 With regard to the soil resource and BMV agricultural land, it is noted that 

letters of representation object to the proposal on the grounds of permanent 

loss of agricultural land. Ripple Parish Council object to the proposal 

commenting that there does not appear to be any independent confirmation 

that the current high grade agricultural land would be available after 

restoration. Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) Gloucestershire also 

object to the proposal stating that they are not convinced that restoration to 

such quality can be assured even though it may be aspired to, however, they 

do not have the resources available to verify whether the response by the 

applicant fully satisfies the points raised by Natural England in relation to soil 

resource and BMV agricultural land, and strongly encourage the MPA to 

consult Natural England on these matters. 

 

7.241 Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that “planning policies and decision should 

contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by a) protecting 

and enhancing…soils (in a manner commensurate within their statutory status 

or identified quality in the Development Plan);…b) recognising the intrinsic 

character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from natural 

capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of 

the BMV agricultural land, and of trees and woodland". Footnote 58 of the 

NPPF states that “where significant development of agricultural land is 

demonstrated to be necessary, areas of poorer quality land should be 

preferred to those of a higher quality”. 

 

7.242 Policy DM07: ‘Soil resources’ of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032 states that “mineral development proposals will be permitted where 

they have been informed by and are sympathetic to the protection of soil 

resources.” Part III of this policy states that “where Best and Most Versatile 

Agricultural Land (BMVAL) is present, it will be avoided, or where this is not 

possible, it will be restored to the highest quality grade possible unless in 

Page 230



195 
 

doing so, beneficial restoration that outweighs the importance of protecting 

soil resources would be compromised; or 

 
IV. the overall benefits of minerals development will clearly outweigh 

unacceptable adverse impacts on the quality of soil and / or opportunities to 

achieve soil quality improvements to justify of planning permission being 

granted.” 

 

7.243 As set out above, approximately 32.9 hectares of the existing agricultural land 

(in Gloucestershire and Worcestershire combined) is Grades 2 (located in 

Gloucestershire) and 3a, which is BMV agricultural land. The proposed 

restoration seeks to establish new areas of nature conservation and wetland 

and approximately 30 hectares of agricultural land, restored to Grade 3a, 

equating to an overall net loss of BMV by approximately 2.9 hectares 

(Worcestershire and Gloucestershire combined).  

 

7.244 The applicant has confirmed that there would be a loss of approximately 3.36 

hectares of BMV agricultural land in Gloucestershire due to the retention of 

the clean water pond and silt ponds and surrounding habitats. However, in 

Worcestershire there would be a gain of approximately 0.46 hectares as the 

applicant proposes to create additional BMV agricultural land on the swathe of 

former Grade 3b agricultural land in part of Phases 1 to 9. 

 

7.245 It is noted that Natural England comment that whilst the restoration proposals 

on some of the BMV agricultural land are for non-agricultural purposes, they 

consider that the proposed reclamation to a biodiversity afteruse is 

acceptable, provided the methods used in the restoration and aftercare would 

enable for the land to retain its longer-term capability to be farmed to its land 

classification potential, thus remaining a high-quality resource for the future. 

 

7.246 With regard to the land proposed to be restored for agriculture purposes, the 

Soil Handling Strategy states a restored soil profile depth of approximately 1.2 

metres would be achieved for the reinstated areas of agriculture. The Strategy 

recommends that the permeable sandy loam subsoils should be laid to a 

depth of approximately 800mm with light loamy topsoils laid to a depth of 

approximately 400mm, which would result in the land being restored to Grade 

3a agricultural land. This is due to combining the more droughty sandy 

subsoils (that currently give Grade 3b agricultural land) with the loamier 

subsoils elsewhere in the extraction area during the stripping, storage and 

replacement operations it is predicted that this would alleviate any 

droughtiness limitations of the sandier soils. 

 

7.247 With regard to the area proposed for wetland-based restoration, located 

adjacent to the River Severn. This matter was considered by Worcestershire 

County Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee and approved by them 

under application 19/000048/CM. 

 

Page 231



196 
 

7.248 The Soil Resources and Agricultural Use and Quality of Land Survey and Soil 

Handling Strategy make a number of recommendations to protect the valuable 

soil resources from loss or damage, including:  

 

• All topsoil and subsoil would be permanently retained on site and used 

in restoration; 

• All soils shall only be handled when they are in a dry and friable 

condition; 

• When stripping and transporting soils, care would be taken to ensure 

that machinery does not travel across unstripped or reinstated 

materials; 

• Soils will be stripped to their full depth;  

• Topsoil bunds being a maximum height of 3 metres; 

• Topsoil should be stripped from areas used for subsoil storage; 

• Bunds that shall be in situ for more than 6 months should be grass 

seeded to prevent water erosion and loss of nutrients. 

 

7.249 The Strategy concludes that subject to the proposed methods for soil 

stripping, handling, storage and replacement outlined within the Strategy it 

would ensure that the existing soil resource within the application site would 

be protected from compaction and damage during operations.  

 

7.250 Natural England have been consulted in respect of soils and BMV agricultural 

land and are satisfied that the Soil Resources and Agricultural Use and 

Quality of Land Survey and Soil Handling Strategy constitutes a record of the 

pre-working agricultural land classification grading and physical characteristics 

of the land within the application site boundary. Natural England raises no 

objections to the proposal, stating that they are satisfied with the Detailed 

Restoration and LEMP and Soils Handling Strategy, except they consider that 

the applicant should design under land drainage into the scheme at the start 

rather than rely on retrospectively designing if needed. 

 

7.251 Based on the above comments, the MPA considers that subject to the 

imposition of appropriate conditions relating to the management of the soil 

resource including the development being carried out in accordance with the 

submitted Soil Handling Strategy, detailed drainage scheme, an updated 

Outline Aftercare Scheme and Detailed Aftercare Scheme, then the objectives 

of the NPPF in respect of soils and their use in the restoration of BMV 

agricultural land would be met, and the scheme would be in accordance with 

Policy DM07 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032. 

  

Historic environment 

 

7.252 There are a number of Listed Buildings within the vicinity of the application 

site, as outlined within paragraphs 1.27 and 1.28 of this report.  

 

Page 232



197 
 

7.253 Letters of representation have also been received objecting to the proposal on 

heritage grounds, in particular adverse impacts upon heritage assets including 

Puck Cottage, Scheduled Monument of Towbury Hill Camp and Conservation 

Areas, adverse impact upon archaeology, and insufficient information 

submitted regarding heritage assets.  

 

7.254 The following legislation, policies and guidance are considered to be of 

particular relevance to the consideration of historic environment related 

matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.255 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 imposes a general duty as respects to listed buildings in the exercise of 

planning functions. Subsection (1) provides that “in considering whether to 

grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its 

setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of 

State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or 

its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 

possesses”. Section 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 imposes a general duty as regards Conservation Areas in the 

exercise of planning function stating, “in the exercise, with respect to any 

buildings or other land in a Conservation Area…special attention shall be paid 

to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of 

that area”.  

 

7.256 Policy DM08: ‘Historic environment’ of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire states that “Mineral development proposals will be permitted 

where they conserve, and where appropriate, enhance the significance of any 

affected heritage asset.” Where relevant, “archaeological excavation and / or 

the recording of historic buildings will be required, followed by analysis and 

publication of the results.” 

  

7.257 With regards to Scheduled Monuments and other non-designated assets of 

archaeological interest of equivalent importance, Policy DM08 states that 

these assets “will be expected to be preserved in situ.” “Where there are no 

alternative options which will reduce or eliminate any adverse impact, or 

where scheduled monuments and other non-designated archaeological assets 

of equivalent importance cannot be preserved in situ, and harm is therefore 

unavoidable, then measures to mitigate and minimise the impact will be 

considered.” 

 

7.258 Policy SD8: ‘Historic Environment’ of the adopted Gloucester, Cheltenham 

and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 is comprised of the following 

5 parts:  

 

“1. The built, natural and cultural heritage of Gloucester City, Cheltenham 

town, Tewkesbury town, smaller historic settlements and the wider 

countryside will continue to be valued and promoted for their important 

contribution to local identity, quality of life and the economy; 

Page 233



198 
 

2. Development should make a positive contribution to local character and 

distinctiveness, having regard to valued and distinctive elements of the 

historic environment; 

3. Designated and undesignated heritage assets and their settings will be 

conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their significance, and for their 

important contribution to local character, distinctiveness and sense of 

place. Consideration will also be given to the contribution made by 

heritage assets to supporting sustainable communities and the local 

economy. Development should aim to sustain and enhance the 

significance of heritage assets and put them to viable uses consistent with 

their conservation whilst improving accessibility where appropriate; 

4. Proposals that will secure the future conservation and maintenance of 

heritage assets and their settings that are at risk through neglect, decay or 

other threats will be encouraged. Proposals that will bring vacant or 

derelict heritage assets back into appropriate use will also be encouraged; 

5. Development proposals at Strategic Allocations must have regard to the 

findings and recommendations of the JCS Historic Environment 

Assessment (or any subsequent revision) demonstrating that the potential 

impacts on heritage assets and appropriate mitigation measures have 

been addressed.” 

 

7.259 Within the recently adopted Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 there are 

several policies pertaining to the historic environment, the most relevant to 

application 19/0081/TWMAJM are Policies HER2 (Listed Buildings) and HER4 

(Archaeological Sites and Scheduled Monuments). 

 

7.260 Policy HER2 states that development within the setting of Listed Buildings “will 

be expected to have no adverse impact on those elements which contribute to 

their special architectural or historic interest, including their settings. Any 

proposals which adversely affect such elements or result in the significant loss 

of historic fabric will not be permitted.” 

 

7.261 As with MLP Policy DM08, Policy HER4 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 

states that “Scheduled Monuments and sites of national archaeological 

importance will be preserved in situ.” Furthermore, “development which would 

lead to substantial harm or loss of these sites and their setting should be 

wholly exceptional and will not normally be permitted. Where development will 

cause harm or loss, as identified after an appropriate assessment and 

evaluation, provision should be made for excavation and recording with the 

appropriate publication and curation of the archive.” 

 

7.262 In respect of the historic environment, none of the Neighbourhood Plan 

Policies set out on page 22 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood 

Development Plan 2011-2031 are considered to be of particular relevance. 

 

7.263 With regard to heritage assets, paragraph 195 of the NPPF states that “local 

planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance of 

any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by 

Page 234

https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan%2FTwyning%20Neighbourhood%20Plan%20%2D%20adopted%20version%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan&ga=1
https://tewkesburyborough-my.sharepoint.com/personal/website_tewkesburyborough_onmicrosoft_com/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan%2FTwyning%20Neighbourhood%20Plan%20%2D%20adopted%20version%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fwebsite%5Ftewkesburyborough%5Fonmicrosoft%5Fcom%2FDocuments%2FTewkesbury%20Borough%20Council%2FPlanning%20policy%2FNeighbourhood%20development%20plans%2FTwyning%20neighbourhood%20plan%2FMaking%20the%20plan&ga=1


199 
 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the 

available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into 

account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to 

avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and 

any aspect of the proposal”.  

 

7.264 Paragraphs 199 and 200 of the NPPF states that “when considering the 

impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and 

the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 

irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total 

loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. Any harm to, or loss of, 

the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or 

destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and 

convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of: …a) grade II listed 

buildings… should be exceptional; b) assets of highest significance, notably 

schedule monuments…grade I and II* listed buildings…should be wholly 

exceptional”. 

 

7.265 Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that “where a proposed development will 

lead to substantial harm to (or total loss of significance of) a designated 

heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can 

be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to 

achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss…”. 

 

7.266 There is no statutory definition of setting for the purposes of Section 66 (1) of 

the Listed Buildings Act. Annex 2 of the NPPF describes the setting of a 

heritage asset as “the surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced. 

Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings 

evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to 

the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to appreciate that 

significance or may be neutral”. It goes on to describe significance for heritage 

policy, stating that this is “the value of a heritage asset to this and future 

generations because of its heritage interest. That interest may be 

archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic. Significance derives not only 

from a heritage asset’s physical presence, but also from its setting…”. 

 

7.267 The PPG at Paragraph Ref ID: 18a-013-20190723 states that “the extent and 

importance of setting is often expressed by reference to visual relationship 

between the asset and the proposed development and associated visual / 

physical considerations. Although views of or from an asset will play an 

important part in the assessment of impacts on setting, the way in which we 

experience an asset in its setting is also influenced by other environmental 

factors such as noise, dust, smell and vibration from other land uses in the 

vicinity, and by our understanding of the historic relationship between places. 

For example, buildings that are in close proximity but are not visible from each 

other may have a historic or aesthetic connection that amplifies the 

experience of the significance of each…”. 

Page 235



200 
 

7.268 The application was accompanied by Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment, 

which assessed the impact of the proposal upon Listed Buildings, in particular 

the Grade II Listed Building of Station House, located 580 metres to the north 

of the proposal. The Assessment identified the impact would not be significant 

due to the natural topography and intervening M50 Motorway. The 

Assessment considered the impact upon the Grade II Listed Buildings of Bow 

Bridge Cottage and Barn, which are located approximately 260 metres east of 

the proposal. The Assessment identified the impact would not be significant 

due to the intervening steep sandstone cutting, which blocks intervisibility 

between the Listed Buildings and the proposed extraction area. 

 

7.269 In relation to the group of Listed Buildings around at Puckrup located 

approximately 680 metres to the east of the proposed extraction area, 

approximately 455 metres from the proposed screening and washing plant, 

and 364 metres from the proposed concrete batching plant, the Assessment 

identified the impact would not be significant, stating that the intervisibility 

between them and the extraction area is very poor and they are adequately 

shielded from the extraction area by the natural topography and vegetation. 

The original setting (managed farmland) of these buildings has also been 

compromised by the construction of the golf course to the south and a large 

hotel complex to the immediate south of Puckrup Hall. With regard to the 

group of Listed Buildings at Shuthonger in Gloucestershire (Twyning Farm 

including Walled Garden and Dairy, Shuthonger Villa, Shuthonger House, 

boundary wall, gates and gate piers to Shuthonger House and Crown 

Cottage) located approximately 815 metres to the south-east of the proposed 

extraction area. The Assessment identified a minor adverse impact stating 

that the position of these buildings on a high point on the valley edge means 

that they would have a distant view across the proposed extraction area. 

 

7.270 Puck Cottage is located within Worcestershire and sited approximately 205 

metres west of the county boundary with Gloucestershire. Due to the proximity 

of this Grade II Listed Building to the extraction area (approximately 50 metres 

east of the application site), a detailed assessment was undertaken that 

examined the impact of dust, noise, light, vibration and landscape setting. 

Worcestershire County Council’s heritage advisors assessed this information 

and found it to be acceptable in planning terms. Whilst reference to Puck 

Cottage has been made in representations received in connection with 

application 19/0081/TWMAJM, the MPA (Gloucestershire) is satisfied that the 

outcomes from WCC’s review of the Assessment is consistent with the advice 

received from GCC’s technical consultees. Therefore, the MPA does not 

intend to comment any further on this matter. 

 

7.271 In relation to Church End Conservation Area, the Assessment considered that 

due to the distance of the extraction area to this Conservation Area the impact 

would not be significant. Due to the distance from these Conservation Areas, 

and topography and intervening vegetation, the MPA considers that impacts of 

dust, lighting, vibration and noise would not harm the setting of the 

Conservation Areas. 

Page 236



201 
 

7.272 Of the five Scheduled Monuments within the wider context of the application 

site, four are stone crosses, three of which are located in the Villages of 

Uckinghall and Ripple. Due the distance from the proposed development, 

topography and intervening trees, vegetation and buildings the Assessment 

considers that the impact upon these Scheduled Monuments is not significant. 

 

7.273 The Assessment states in relation to the setting of the Scheduled Monument 

of Towbury Hill Camp (which is a hillfort) that it would “directly overlook the 

proposed extraction area and the removal of the gravels and floodplain via 

gravel extraction would significantly alter the setting of the fort and remove the 

resources the forts inhabitants would have been using and protecting. The 

potential that the fort was connected to the floodplain, a river crossing and 

valley settlement via a trackway / driveway that crosses the extraction area, 

also means that significant connections between the two zones would be lost. 

The construction of Bow Lane has already partially broken connection, as has 

the construction of the M50 Motorway with the landscape to the north. 

However, gravel extraction would remove this landscape zone completely, not 

just limiting the access / connection between the two, and this change would 

be considered to be major adverse. This is more pronounced with the eastern 

half of the proposed extraction zone (extraction Phases 1 to 9) as there is 

some intervisibility from the second terrace to the hillfort. However, as the 

hillfort is flanked on its eastern edge by an established deciduous woodland 

belt intervisibility between it and the site is greatly reduced. It is expected that 

the quarry would only be active for around 9 years and the eastern extraction 

area would be progressively backfilled to its original ground levels and 

restored to agricultural land. The more permanent alterations would mostly be 

limited to the floodplain, where flexible working areas would be restored to 

wetland grassland, scrub and small ponds in keeping with their position on the 

floodplain. As a result, the impact of the development on Towbury Hill Camp 

would be reduced to moderate adverse”. 

 

7.274 In respect of the visual impact of the proposed processing plant site upon 

Towbury Hillfort, the Assessment states that “due to the established mixed 

woodland on the southern edge of the hillfort and as there are several tree 

belts between them there is no intervisibility. As a result, the addendum 

concluded that there would be no effect on the hillfort or its setting. The loss of 

part of the hillfort’s hinterland during the life of the quarry is mitigated by the 

short life span of the quarry. Most of former plant processing site will be 

restored to agricultural land, other than three settling pools, which will remain 

as a wetland habitat area. As such habitats are usually restricted to the 

floodplain area, this permeant encroachment onto the higher terraces would 

be regarded as Moderate Adverse.” 

 

7.275 In relation to dust impacts upon the Scheduled Monument, the Assessment 

states that “although the dust and air quality assessment did not assess the 

effects that dust may have on Towbury Hill Camp the highest magnitude of 

effect recorded on any targeted receptors was deemed to be moderate 

adverse. The assessment concludes that with the appropriate mitigation 

Page 237

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_2ND_REG25_APPDX_8.PDF


202 
 

measures in place the overall impact of the development is considered to be 

not significant. Given the greater distance to Towbury Hill Camp…than any 

other dust receptor and the temporary nature of the works the overall impact is 

thought to be not significant”. 

 

7.276 In relation to vibration impacts, the Assessment states “a noise and vibration 

impact assessment was undertaken for the proposed quarry and in particular 

the effects these would have on the surrounding receptors. Towbury Hill 

Camp was not specifically selected as a receptor, but the overall effects of 

predicted vibrations levels would only produce a negligible impact and neutral 

impact significance. As Towbury Hill Camp is at a greater distance than any 

other receptor in the study vibration impacts are regarded as not significant”. 

 

7.277 In relation to noise impacts, the Assessment states “a noise and vibration 

impact assessment was undertaken for the proposed quarry…Towbury Hill 

Camp was not specifically selected as receptor, but the noise prediction 

mapping suggest that the noisiest activity would be during the construction of 

the earth bunds on the eastern side of extraction Phases 1 to 9 [in 

Worcestershire]. However, as the closest receptors in this study suggests this 

work would not exceed the short-term maximum levels of 70dB(A) Leq1 hour 

for 8 weeks per year, the impact magnitude is thought to be negligible. 

Although the greater distance to the hillfort, would reduce these levels further 

there would be minor adverse effect to the setting during the construction of 

the earth mounds. However, as these works are short-term and the life of the 

quarry is expected to be around 9 years, the long-term impact is regarded as 

not significant.” 

 

7.278 Historic England raise concerns regarding the application on heritage 

grounds. They consider that the application site makes a positive contribution 

to the significance of Towbury Hill Camp by providing an understanding of the 

function of the Scheduled Monument within the landscape. Historic England 

consider that the proposal would result in harm to the significance of 

scheduled monument ‘Towbury Hill Camp’ through the removal of a part of its 

landscape setting. It is Historic England’s view that the level of harm would be 

at the higher end of less than substantial. 

 

7.279 In addition to ‘static views’, Historic England advise that “setting must account 

for the way that a heritage asset is experienced when moving through its 

landscape, including the impacts of dust, noise and vibration.” 

 

7.280 Following Historic England’s recommendation that the methodology used for 

the setting assessment be clarified, additional information was provided that 

included an addendum to the Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 

(David Jarvis Associates, Feb. 2021), and a Cultural Heritage Impact 

Assessment (Worcestershire Archaeology, Feb. 2021). Later information 

included the submission of a Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment 

(Worcestershire Archaeology, August 2021) and a cross section drawing 

showing line of sight from Towbury Hill Camp scheduled monument to the 

Page 238



203 
 

proposed concrete batching plant (Drawing No. 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0023. 

Historic England welcomed the submission of this additional information in 

assisting the MPA in understanding the impact of the proposals on the 

scheduled monument. 

 

7.281 Having taken into account the additional supporting information set out in 

para.7.250 above, Historic England reiterated their view that “the proposed 

development would result in harm to the significance of scheduled monument 

‘Towbury Hill Camp’ through the removal of a part of its landscape setting.” 

They consider that the level of harm could be mitigated through “appropriate 

restoration to pre-extraction levels and in a manner sympathetic with current 

and historic land conditions.” 

 

7.282 Historic England states that the MPA should be satisfied that any harm 

identified is clearly and convincingly justified and should weigh the harm 

against the public benefits associated with the proposal. If the MPA is minded 

to approve the application, Historic England recommend that a formal 

definition for the lifespan of the quarry is sought to avoid the potential for a 

long-term or permanent impact to the setting of the scheduled hillfort. Historic 

England advise that a robust and detailed Heritage Mitigation Strategy should 

be devised and conditioned. 

 

7.283 Historic England go on to state that the MPA in determining this application 

should bear in mind the statutory duty of Section 66 (1) and 72 (1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any 

features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess, and to 

pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 

character or appearance of conservation areas, respectively. 

 

7.284 Historic England also note that the updated Proposed Restoration Plan 

appears to be missing annotations regarding the nature of the proposed 

restoration in some areas and, therefore, recommend that the MPA are 

satisfied with the clarity of the information provided. In response to Historic 

England, the applicant has confirmed that the colour / key for Phases 1 to 9 

has been mistakenly omitted, and confirms it is still to be reinstated to arable 

farmland, which is still demonstrated by the detailed restoration scheme 

provided as part of the LEMP. In view of this, the MPA recommends the 

imposition of a condition requiring an updated detailed Restoration Scheme. 

 

7.285 Within their response to WCC’s application 19/000048/CM the Council for 

British Archaeology (CBA) stated that in principle they support the 

recommendation of the applicant’s Cultural Heritage Assessment that a 

specialist geophysical survey, borehole survey and geoarchaeological 

modelling of the area of extraction in the floodplain should be programmed as 

a first stage of the post-determination mitigation programme rather than as 

part of the pre-determination works. The CBA have concerns that the 

Assessment, although competent and thorough, seems slightly dismissive 

Page 239



204 
 

with an aim of expressing minimal likely impacts on potential archaeology and 

the significance of the two key above-ground assets (Scheduled Monument of 

Towbury Hill Camp and the Listed Building of Puck Cottage). The Assessment 

does, however, point out that the claimed ‘temporary’ nature of mineral 

extraction still means long-term disruption, not just for the estimated 9 years 

on this phase / site. The CBA concur with this comment and request this be 

taken into consideration. The CBA request confirmation of a robust 

geophysical survey and watching brief be incorporated into the archaeological 

assessment and evaluation and assurances as to what action / mitigation 

would be undertaken in the event that sites / items of archaeological interest 

are discovered. 

 

7.286 GCC’s Landscape Advisor wishes to defer to the comments submitted by 

Historic England and the County Archaeologist in terms of detailed matters of 

archaeological setting impacting Towbury Hill Camp Scheduled Monument. 

However, in terms of landscape impact, they state having visited the 

application site, GCC’s Landscape Advisor concurs with the results of the 

visual impact assessment set out in the submitted LVIA and specific 

assessment prepared by Worcestershire Archaeology. The scheme would 

inevitably result in harm to the visual setting of the Scheduled Monument 

during the operational lifetime of the quarry. However, they are satisfied that 

the proposed restoration scheme would return the site to a form that is 

consistent with the historic landscape character of both the setting and wider 

River Severn corridor.  

 

7.287 Within the Archaeological Evaluation report produced by Worcestershire 

Archaeology and dated July 2020, GCC’s Heritage team notes that 19 of the 

83 trenches excavated were in Gloucestershire. Whilst there is significant 

archaeology within the application site, GCC’s Heritage team note that “the 

majority encountered was in Worcestershire.” “Small amounts of unstratified 

Roman pottery and sparse undated archaeological features were recorded in 

the Gloucestershire section [of the application site]. An area, located close to 

Ripple Brook in Gloucestershire potentially contained significant 

environmental archaeological evidence, was found to be desiccated, lowering 

the potential for the survival of organic material.” As such, GCC’s Heritage 

team are of the opinion that the proposed development is “likely to have an 

adverse impact on archaeological remains of local significance.” 

 

7.288 Archaeological monitoring of groundworks is proposed for the Gloucestershire 

area of the site, with which GCC’s Heritage team are in agreement. 

Furthermore, GCC’s heritage team state that “it is necessary to make 

provision in any permission to ensure archaeological monitoring of the ground 

works required for the development, so that any significant archaeological 

remains revealed can be recorded.” 

 

7.289 GCC’s heritage team stated in their comments dated 07.09.2020 that their 

observations only relate to land within Gloucestershire and that they have no 

Page 240



205 
 

objections to the proposed development, subject to the imposition of the 

following planning condition: 

 

“No development shall take place within the application site until the applicant, 

or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a 

programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 

investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority'. 

 

Reason: It is important to agree a programme of archaeological work in 

advance of the commencement of development, so as to make provision for 

the investigation and recording of any archaeological remains that may be 

destroyed by ground works required for the scheme. The archaeological 

programme will advance understanding of any heritage assets which will be 

lost, in accordance with paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework.” 

 

7.290 The Conservation Specialist (CS) at Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) has 

‘no objection’ to the proposed development. The CS is of the opinion that 

“there would be no direct visual harm to any of the heritage assets identified 

(in Tewkesbury Borough) around the gravel extraction or the concrete 

batching plant.” Furthermore, the CS’s view is that “no non-designated 

heritage assets were observed to be affected by the development.” As for 

impacts upon heritage due to vibration, noise, light and dust from the 

proposed plant and activities the CS observed that there is likely to be some 

additional noise and traffic movements. However, based on the information 

available it is not realistically possible to attribute any tangible harm to 

heritage assets. In view of this, the CS states that there does not appear to be 

a policy reason regarding heritage to object to this proposal.  

 

7.291 The CS defers the issue of visual impact upon the Scheduled Ancient 

Monument (Towbury Hill Camp) to the ‘county archaeologist’, who in turn has 

deferred this matter to Historic England. 

 

7.292 In view of the above, the MPA considers that the proposals would lead to 'less 

than substantial' harm to the significance of the designated heritage assets of 

Towbury Hill Camp Schedule Monument, the Grade II Listed Buildings of Puck 

Cottage, Twyning Farm including Walled Garden and Dairy, Shuthonger Villa, 

Shuthonger House, boundary wall, gates and gate piers to Shuthonger House 

and Crown Cottage and Ripple and Uckinghall Conservation Areas.  

 

7.293 Notwithstanding this harm is less than substantial, the harm must still be given 

considerable importance and weight, and considerable weight must be given 

to the desirability of preserving the setting of the designated heritage assets. 

Consequently, the fact of harm to a designated heritage asset is still to be 

given more weight than if simply a factor to be taken into account along with 

all other material considerations. 

 

Page 241



206 
 

7.294 Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states "where a development proposal will lead to 

less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, 

this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal 

including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use". 

 

7.295 The PPG at Paragraph Ref ID: 18a-020-20190723 confirms that "public 

benefit may follow from many developments and could be anything that 

delivers economic, social or environmental objectives as described in the 

NPPF. Public benefits should flow from the proposed development. They 

should be of a nature or scale to be of benefit to the public at large and should 

not just be a private benefit. However, benefits do not always have to be 

visible or accessible to the public in order to be genuine public benefits, for 

example, works to a listed private dwelling which secure its future as a 

designated heritage asset could be a public benefit". 

 

7.296 The MPA considers that subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions 

including a programme of archaeological work, an interpretation strategy for 

cultural heritage, landscape, biodiversity and geodiversity, a phasing scheme, 

construction of a temporary screening bund, updated restoration scheme, 

aftercare scheme, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme, LEMP, the development 

being carried out in accordance with the Arboricultural Report, requiring the 

permission to be restored within a set timescale, restricting the working hours, 

restricting lighting, limiting height of stockpiles and Noise, Vibration and Dust 

Management Plans and monitoring schemes, that on balance, in view of the 

public benefits of the proposal, namely the creation of a small number of direct 

employment opportunities (approximately 20 employees), as well as 

contributing to the wider growth aspirations for the County through the supply 

of local aggregates to the construction market, that this outweighs the 

temporary and less than substantial harm to these designated heritage assets. 

 

7.297 Paragraph 194 of the NPPF states that "where a site on which development is 

proposed includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets with 

archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to 

submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field 

evaluation". 

 

7.298 The application was accompanied by an archaeological desk-based 

assessment, archaeological trenching evaluation, geophysical survey report 

and geoarchaeological assessment which identified archaeological assets of 

variable significance within the application site ranging in date from at least 

the earlier prehistoric period through to the post-medieval periods. Of 

particular note are the presence of widespread and regionally significant 

deposits of Iron Age date identified in varying densities across much of the 

terrace area within the application site and coinciding with the greater part of 

the extraction areas. The likely presence of localised areas of regionally 

significant waterlogged organic deposit sequences, and the potential presence 

of a regionally significant Civil War artefacts. Assets of negligible or only local 

significance are also present or potentially present. Impacts of the proposed 

Page 242



207 
 

development on these assets vary from negligible to major adverse in the 

case of the Iron Age remains. The Assessment recommends mitigation to be 

secured by planning condition requiring of archaeological works to be 

established within a Written Scheme of Investigation. 

 

7.299 Having regard to the advice contained at paragraph 209 of the NPPF, which 

states "the effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated 

heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. In 

weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage 

assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of 

any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset". In view of this 

and based on the advice of GCC’s heritage team and the CS at TBC, the MPA 

considers that on balance, subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions, 

that the impact upon the non-designated archaeological assets is not of such 

significance as to constitute a refusal reason in this instance. The MPA 

considers that the proposal is in accordance with Policy DM08 of the adopted 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, and Policies HER1, HER2 

and HER4 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity 

 

7.300 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of adverse impact upon ecology and biodiversity, including impacts 

on wildlife, nature reserves, River Severn, nesting birds and loss of trees. 

Objectors consider that the proposal would create a sanitised area devoid of 

wildlife, along with concerns regarding the removal of the veteran trees 

contrary to planning policy.  

 

7.301 Twyning Parish Council object to the proposal stating that there is no doubt 

that the quarry would destroy the local area stripping away the natural habitat 

for burrowing animals and threatened bird species and removing ancient trees 

and hedgerow. 

 

7.302 Comments have also been sought from the Environment Agency, Lead Local 

Flood Authority, Natural England, Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust and the 

County Ecologist. 

 

7.303 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of ecological related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.304 Part a of Policy DM06: ‘Biodiversity and geodiversity’ of the adopted Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire states that “mineral development proposals 

that demonstrate the conservation of biodiversity and/or geodiversity, in 

addition to providing net gains where possible, will normally be permitted. 

Potential adverse impacts on natural environment assets must be avoided or 

satisfactorily mitigated in line with Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership 

objectives. Exceptionally, where an impact cannot be avoided or mitigated, 

Page 243



208 
 

then compensatory measures including the use of offsets for habitat or 

geological feature losses will be considered. Irreplaceable habitat and 

geological assets must be retained and protected from deterioration unless 

this cannot be avoided because there are exceptional overriding reasons of 

demonstrable public benefit.” 

 

7.305 Part b of Policy DM06 states that “Mineral development proposals which, 

alone or in combination with other plans and projects, are likely to have a 

significant effect on any Internationally Important Site designated as a Special 

Area of Conservation (SAC), Special Protection Area (SPA) or Ramsar site 

will only be permitted, where they have been subject to an Appropriate 

Assessment, which has determined that either:- 

 

I. there will be no adverse affect upon the integrity of such designated 

sites; or 

 

II. where adverse effects on integrity have been concluded, has 

satisfactorily addressed the subsequent stages in the Habitats 

Regulations Assessment (HRA) process as set out in table 4, which 

present imperative reasons of overriding public interest.” 

 

7.306 The reference in Part b of Policy DM06 to minerals development proposals 

within designated Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and National 

Nature Reserves (NNR) is not applicable in this instance. 

 

7.307 Policy SD9: ‘Biodiversity and geodiversity’ of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy is comprised of 6 parts: 

 

• Part 1 states that “the biodiversity and geological resource of the JCS 

area will be protected and enhanced in order to establish and reinforce 

ecological networks that are resilient to current and future pressures. 

Improved community access will be encouraged so far as is compatible 

with the conservation of special features and interests.” 

 

• Part 2 sets out how Part 1 will be achieved by: 

 

“i. Ensuring that European Protected Species and National Protected 

Species are safeguarded in accordance with the law;  

 

ii. Conserving and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity on 

internationally, nationally and locally designated sites, and other assets 

of demonstrable value where these make a contribution to the wider 

network, thus ensuring that new development both within and 

surrounding such sites has no unacceptable adverse impacts;  

 

iii. Encouraging new development to contribute positively to biodiversity 

and geodiversity whilst linking with wider networks of green 

infrastructure. For example, by incorporating habitat features into the 

Page 244



209 
 

design to assist in the creation and enhancement of wildlife corridors 

and ecological stepping stones between sites; 

  

iv. Encouraging the creation, restoration and beneficial management of 

priority landscapes, priority habitats and populations of priority species. 

For example, by securing improvements to Strategic Nature Areas (as 

set out on the Gloucestershire Nature Map) and Nature Improvement 

Areas.”  

 

• Part 3 states that “any development that has the potential to have a 

likely significant effect on an international site will be subject to a 

Habitats Regulations Assessment.” 

 

• Part 4 of Policy SD9 is not applicable in this instance as the minerals 

development is not within a nationally designated site. 

 

• Part 5 of Policy SD9 is not applicable in this instance as the minerals 

development is not within a locally designated site. 

 

• Part 6 of Policy SD9 states that “harm to the biodiversity or geodiversity 

of an undesignated site or asset should be avoided where possible. 

Where there is a risk of harm as a consequence of development, this 

should be mitigated by integrating enhancements into the scheme that 

are appropriate to the location and satisfactory to the local planning 

authority. If harm cannot be mitigated on-site then, exceptionally, 

compensatory enhancements off-site may be acceptable.” 

 

7.308 Policy SD9 contributes towards achieving Objective 4 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham, Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031: 

 

“Ensure that planning policy and decisions:  

• Protect and enhance the JCS area’s unique historic environment, 

archaeological heritage and geological assets;  

• Conserve, manage and enhance the area’s unique natural environment 

and great biodiversity, including its waterways, Sites of Special 

Scientific Interest (SSSI), the Cotswold AONB, and areas of landscape 

and biodiversity importance, and maximise the opportunities to use 

land to manage flood water;  

• Require that all new developments, wherever possible, supports green 

infrastructure and improves existing green infrastructure within urban 

and rural areas to provide movement corridors for people and wildlife;  

• Within the Development Plan, review the current Green Belt boundary 

with a view to releasing land to help meet the long-term development 

needs of the area that cannot be accommodated elsewhere, whilst 

providing a long-term permanent boundary for the future.” 

 

7.309 Policy NAT1: ‘Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural Features’ of the 

recently adopted Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 states that 

Page 245



210 
 

“development proposals that will conserve, restore and enhance, biodiversity 

will be permitted.” Where applicable, proposals will be required to deliver a 

biodiversity net gain “across local and landscape scales, including designing 

wildlife into development proposals, the connection of sites and large-scale 

habitat restoration, enhancement and habitat re-creation.” 

 

7.310 Policy NAT1 goes on to state that development likely to result in the loss, 

deterioration or harm to features, habitats or species of importance to 

biodiversity, environmental quality or geological conservation, either directly or 

indirectly, will not be permitted by unless the following three criteria can be 

met: 

 

“a) the need for, and benefits of the development clearly outweigh its 

likely impact on the local environment, or the nature conservation value 

or scientific interest of the site; 

b) it can be demonstrated that the development could not reasonably 

be located on an alternative site with less harmful impacts; and 

c) measures can be provided (and secured through planning conditions 

or legal agreements), that would avoid, mitigate against or, as a last 

resort, compensate for the adverse effects likely to result from 

development.” 

 

7.311 In terms of the level of protection and mitigation, Policy NAT1 states that this 

should be “proportionate to the status of the feature, habitat or species and its 

importance individually and as part of a wider network.” Development resulting 

in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitat, including (but not restricted 

to) ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees, “will not be permitted 

unless there are wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation 

strategy exists.” 

 

7.312 Policy NAT2: ‘The Water Environment’ of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-

2031 is relevant in so far as the proposed restoration scheme would result in 

the creation of new wetland habitats near existing watercourses. 

 

7.313 Policy NAT3: ‘Green Infrastructure: Building with Nature’ of the Tewkesbury 

Borough Plan 2011-2031 requires all proposals for major development to 

provide “a high standard of design for green infrastructure in accordance with 

established, recognisable standards – including the National Design Guide 

and Building with Nature Standards.” Development must also contribute, 

where appropriate to do so and at a scale commensurate to the proposal, 

“towards the provision, protection and enhancement of the wider green 

infrastructure network.” 

 

7.314 Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 forms part of 

the Development Plan and is therefore a material consideration in the 

determination of this application. Policy GD4: ‘Landscape and Biodiversity’ is 

of particular relevance to this section of the report and is formed of the 

following six criteria upon which new development will be assessed: 

Page 246



211 
 

 

“1. Development shall respect the local landscape quality and ensure that 

important public views are maintained wherever possible (See Appendix 

B). Development shall be of a height, massing and appearance that does 

not adversely affect important public views; 

 

2. Features that are visually, ecologically or biologically important, or 

historically or culturally significant, shall be retained unless there are 

overriding reasons for their removal; 

  

3. Where appropriate, proposals for new development shall be 

accompanied by a landscape strategy which will identify existing 

landscape features and set out measures to be taken to safeguard, and 

where appropriate enhance, existing trees, hedgerows and other 

landscape features. Development shall seek to retain and manage 

existing woodland areas, in-field trees, boundary trees and hedgerows. 

Removal of such features will be resisted; 

 

4. Development will normally be expected to protect and enhance existing 

ecological corridors and landscape features for their biodiversity value. 

New development should avoid causing harm to the network of local 

ecological features such as watercourses, ponds, hedgerows and tree 

lines. If resulting harm cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated or, as a 

last resort, compensated for, then permission will not be granted; 

 

5. New roads associated with all new development shall incorporate grass 

verges where appropriate in order to maintain the rural character of the 

Parish and to provide wildlife habitat; 

 

6. New development proposals likely to affect important public views will be 

expected to be supported by impact assessments and scaled drawings 

setting out how the development meets the above policy objectives. The 

level of detail contained within such assessments shall be 

commensurate with the scale of development proposed.” 

 

7.315 Section 15 of the NPPF paragraph 174 states that "planning policies and 

decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 

environment", by a number of measures including "a) protecting and 

enhancing…sites of biodiversity or geological value and soils in a manner 

commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the 

Development Plan); …d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for 

biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are 

more resilient to current and future pressures". 

 

7.316 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that when determining planning 

applications, local planning authorities should apply four principles (a. to d.), 

this includes: "if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development 

cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with less harmful 

Page 247



212 
 

impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then 

planning permission should be refused"; and "development whose primary 

objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be supported; while 

opportunities to improve biodiversity in and around developments should be 

integrated as part of their design, especially where this can secure 

measurable net gains for biodiversity or enhance public access to nature 

where this is appropriate". 

 

Ecological Impact Assessment 

 

7.317 The submitted Ecological Impact Assessment identifies the application site 

(Worcestershire/Gloucestershire) as being comprised primarily of arable 

farmland incorporating wet woodland, wetland, the Ripple and Mythe Brooks 

with associated grassland and a network of hedgerows, ditches and scattered 

trees. The Assessment identifies that the arable farmland to be of low 

ecological value, with more important ecological features present including 

hedgerows, wet woodland, mature trees, marshy grassland and standing and 

flowing water. The Assessment identified these habitats as important in a 

Local to County context. 

 

7.318 The Assessment also identified a nationally scarce plant species of corky-

fruited water dropwort (located on the margins of the Ripple / Mythe Brooks, 

which is important in a county context). The Assessment states that habitats 

supporting corky-fruited water dropwort would be retained and protected. 

 

7.319 The Assessment considers the site as being of County level importance for 

birds and bats and supports a small number of breeding waders. Evidence of 

otters in the adjacent wetland areas was recorded. Great crested newts and 

water voles were found to be absent from the site, and the Assessment 

identifies a small number of grass snakes using discrete areas of the site, 

particularly the north-eastern area of the site (in Worcestershire). The 

Assessment also identifies the watercourses as providing important habitat for 

eel. 

 

7.320 The Ecological Impact Assessment identifies 1 tree (T91), a dead oak tree 

located within the area of the proposed processing plant site as a confirmed 

bat roost (likely for pipistrelle bats). The removal of this open field oak tree 

would require a licence from Natural England. The licence application would 

require additional bat emergence surveys and would include a Method 

Statement detailing the appropriate mitigation, which could include pre-felling 

tree-climbing inspection, exclusion of bats, timing of felling, and careful section 

felling. 

 

7.321 With regard to impacts upon foraging and commuting bats, the Assessment 

identifies that there would be indirect, temporary, negative impacts of a local 

scale, but that these indirect impacts have been significantly reduced by 

avoiding key habitats on-site. The remaining indirect adverse impacts 

associated with the loss of hedgerow cannot be mitigated, however, the loss 

Page 248

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_ECOLOGY_ASSESS.PDF


213 
 

of hedgerow would be partly compensated for by replanting the hedgerow 

sections removed during operational phase with species-rich native hedgerow 

as soon as possible after excavation has been completed. However, across 

the whole site (Gloucestershire/Worcestershire), there would be loss of 

hedgerow length of approximately 587 metres between the existing baseline 

and proposed restoration. Fundamental to this overall loss is the removal of 

approximately 500 metres of internal hedgerow within the flexible working 

area phases in Worcestershire, which was considered by Worcestershire 

County Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee to be acceptable when 

viewed in the context of the wider Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) benefits the 

proposal brings. Only a single hedgerow (H1) located to the north of the 

Flexible Working Areas A and B (in Worcestershire) is classified as being 

species-rich and is to be retained. All other hedgerows are classified as 

species-poor, and none meet the criteria of being ‘Important’ under the 

Hedgerow Regulations 1997. Overall, the MPA considers that the impacts 

upon foraging and commuting bats would not be significant, and this 

conclusion is not reliant on the impact being temporary. 

 

7.322 The applicant states that a limited amount of artificial lighting would be 

required within the proposed processing plant site area for use only during the 

darker mornings and evenings in winter months. Lighting would be fixed to the 

processing plant and the external façade of the site offices. In all instances, 

the lighting units would be of modern LED design, orientated towards the 

ground to minimise light-spill and powered by the on-site generator, which 

would be housed in an acoustically treated container. No fixed lighting is 

proposed within the proposed extraction areas in Worcestershire, with the only 

lighting being headlights on mobile plant. To ensure that foraging bats are not 

adversely impacted by light pollution, the MPA considers that should planning 

permission be granted a condition should be imposed restricting fixed lighting 

within the administrative boundaries of Gloucestershire. 

 

7.323 A number of mitigation measures are proposed in relation to protected 

species. For otters, mitigation measures include monitoring the water table 

within wetland habitats, and if there is a significant abnormal drop in the water 

table implementing appropriate measures (e.g., pumping clean surface water 

into affected areas). Other beneficial measures include buffer zones from 

riverine and wetland habitats; a dust management plan; and implementation of 

best practice measures to avoid accidental spillages. 

 

7.324 In relation to breeding birds, mitigation measures include undertaking 

vegetation clearance outside the bird breeding season (March to August, 

inclusive), or if this is not possible a pre-works inspection would be undertaken 

by an ecologist, and if nests are found to be present a suitable buffer would be 

left until the nest has been vacated.  

 

7.325 The ES states that the proposed restoration, across the whole site 

(Gloucestershire/Worcestershire), would result in the replacement of 

approximately 29.7 hectares of lower-grade agricultural land with biodiversity 

Page 249



214 
 

and nature conservation gain. This would largely be directed towards the 

Flexible Working Areas A and B in Worcestershire. The ES demonstrates that 

there would be a net gain in the extent and quality of deciduous woodland, 

waterbodies, ditch habitat, wetland grass and scrub, scrapes, and wetland 

marginal habitat.  

 

7.326 After cessation of extraction operations, any temporary infrastructure such as 

the processing area and haul road would be removed. The plant site and 

processing area would be restored to a combination of arable agriculture and 

open water/wet grassland habitats. As part of the restoration scheme, the 

deeper waterbodies within the proposed processing area would be created for 

the benefit of birds, amphibians, aquatic invertebrates and foraging animals 

including bats. 

 

7.327 The ES concludes that the proposed development is considered to provide 

positive ecological benefits at the Local (District) to County scale. In the 

medium to long-term, the proposed development would not contribute to any 

existing or future adverse ecological effects in the local landscape.  

 

7.328 Further details regarding the restoration scheme are considered in the 

‘Restoration and Aftercare of the Site’ section of this report.  

 

7.329 In relation to veteran trees it is noted that paragraph 180 of the NPPF states 

that “when determining planning applications, local planning authorities should 

apply the following principles:…c) development resulting in the loss or 

deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as ancient woodland and ancient 

or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are wholly exceptional 

reasons [for example, infrastructure projects (including nationally significant 

infrastructure projects, orders under the Transport and Works Act and hybrid 

bills), where the public benefit would clearly outweigh the loss or deterioration 

of habitat] and a suitable compensation strategy exists”.  

 

7.330 In Gloucestershire the proposed internal haul route between the mineral 

extraction area (Phases 1 to 9) and the processing plant site area would run 

adjacent to veteran (T77, G78 and T80, which are all Oak Trees, except for 

the group of trees which are Oak and Willow). The applicant is seeking to 

retain these trees but acknowledges that the construction of the haul road and 

its use has the potential to damage their tree roots. Therefore, prior to any site 

clearance, or excavation works a site meeting with an Arboriculturalist would 

be conducted in order to clarify the precise location of the haul route and 

details of the tree protection measures.  

 

7.331 To ensure consistency across the working and restoration scheme plans, 

supporting documents have been updated to reflect that all veteran trees are 

to be retained in-situ with appropriate stand-offs implemented to maintain the 

root protection areas. A copy of the Tree Protection Plan dated Dec 2021 can 

be viewed here. 

 

Page 250

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0021_S4_P3_24JAN22.PDF


215 
 

Wildlife Sites 

 

7.332 There are a number of statutory and non-statutory designated wildlife sites 

within 3 kilometres of the proposal, as outlined within the ‘Site Description’ 

section of this report. For Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) located 700 metres and 

over from the application site the Assessment concludes that there are no 

potential pathways by which the proposal would affect their habitat structure 

and function, or conservation status. The Assessment concludes that there 

would be no direct ecological impact from the proposed scheme on the two 

LWSs located within the application boundary (Ripple Lake and Napps LWS 

and Ripple Brook LWS) and the adjacent River Severn LWS, and mitigation 

measures are proposed to ensure no unacceptable adverse indirect effects.  

 

7.333 Natural England, Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust as well as Worcestershire 

Wildlife Trust have been consulted due to the proximity of the proposals to 

SSSIs and LWSs, respectively. Natural England have raised no objections, 

stating that the proposed development would not damage or destroy the 

interest features for which the Upper Severn Estuary SSSI and adjacent 

Severn Estuary SSSI have been notified.  

 

7.334 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust comment that they challenge the claims made 

by the applicant that the restoration would deliver ‘significant Biodiversity Gain’ 

and ‘significant net enhancements for biodiversity’ throughout the whole cross-

boundary site. The existing and proposed habitat schedule does not appear to 

have used the Defra biodiversity metric and as a result it assesses losses and 

gains in hectares rather than biodiversity units. This is not best practice 

because it does not account for the multiple factors that influence this 

outcome other than area of habitat. In view of this, Gloucestershire Wildlife 

Trust request that the latest version of the Defra biodiversity metric is 

submitted as part of the application to ascertain if the claims about biodiversity 

gains are substantiated, as they consider that the Defra metric is the only 

robust evidence to demonstrate whether Biodiversity Net Gain is being 

achieved. They also requested a longer-term aftercare period, preferably for a 

30-year period to accord with future Biodiversity Net Gain mandates.  

 

7.335 In response to Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust’s comments, the County 

Ecologist states that there is no national or local policy that requires the Defra 

biodiversity metric to be applied at the current time, and the submitted habitat 

schedule is acceptable. Furthermore, the MPA notes that whilst the 

Environmental Act 2021, which received Royal Assent on 9 November 2021 

requires developers to provide at least 10% biodiversity net gain (BNG) and is 

the use of the Defra biodiversity metric to calculate this, the natural 

environment part of the Environmental Act 2021 still requires secondary 

legislation (regulations) and guidance to be confirmed. Mandatory BNG is not 

set to commence until November 2023 and so is not mandatory for this 

minerals application at this current time. This is the same for the imposition of 

a 30-year aftercare period. It is considered that a 10-year after period is 

Page 251



216 
 

acceptable in for this planning application, which is longer than the statutory 5-

year aftercare period normally applied for mineral proposals.  

 

7.336 The County Ecologist raises no objections to the proposal, subject to the 

imposition of conditions regarding tree protection and arboricultural methods; 

soil handling strategy; Dust Management Plan; Noise Management Scheme; 

Water and Soil Pollution Prevention Scheme, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme; 

scheme for any new or replacement external lighting; restoration and aftercare 

scheme, updated LEMP and a 10-year aftercare period.  

 

7.337 The County Ecologist is pleased to see that most documents have been 

updated as per their request in previous comments. However, there are still 

some inconsistencies in the LEMP. The County Ecologist recommends that 

this is addressed by the imposition of a condition requiring an updated LEMP. 

A condition is recommended to this effect, a copy of which can be found in the 

conditions list at the end of this report.  

 

7.338 The County Ecologist has also reviewed comments from local residents; 

however, they consider that the matters raised in relation to ecology have 

either been appropriately addressed or are the subject of recommended 

conditions.  

 

Cumulative Impact 

 

7.339 In respect of ‘cumulative impact’, the County Ecologist agrees with the overall 

conclusion in the Ecology Technical Note from Malford Environmental that 

there have to be sufficient residual effects arising from both the Cemex and 

Bow Farm developments (if consented) for them to interact together to be able 

to have any cumulative (in combination) significant adverse effects. In the 

event that both quarries were consented and then operated simultaneously, 

“the existing overall biodiversity value of the locations would be maintained 

and a net gain for biodiversity would accrue over time.” 

 

7.340 The application site is located approximately 40 kilometres north-east of the 

Severn Estuary Special Protection Area and Special Area for Conservation 

which together form the Severn Estuary European Marine Site. The Severn 

Estuary is also notified as a Ramsar Site (of international importance) and at a 

national level as the Upper Severn SSSI and adjacent Severn Estuary SSSI. 

Despite the distance from the Severn Estuary, the application site is 

hydrologically linked to it and hence there is some potential for impacts, i.e., 

through functional hydrological connectivity and the potential presence of 

migratory species that also use or pass through the Severn Estuary.  

 

7.341 The Government’s PPG provides advice and guidance planning applications 

which may impact upon European sites, stating “all plans and projects 

(including planning applications) which are not directly connected with, or 

necessary for, the conservation management of a habitat site, require 

consideration of whether the plan or project is likely to have significant effects 

Page 252



217 
 

on that site. This consideration – typically referred to as the ‘Habitats 

Regulations Assessment (HRA) screening’ – should take into account the 

potential effects both of the plan / project itself and in combination with other 

plans or projects. Where the potential for likely significant effects cannot be 

excluded, a competent authority must make an appropriate assessment of the 

implications of the plan or project for that site, in view the site’s conservation 

objectives. The competent authority may agree to the plan or project only after 

having ruled out adverse effects on the integrity of the habitats site. Where an 

adverse effect on the site’s integrity cannot be ruled out, and where there are 

no alternative solutions, the plan or project can only proceed if there are 

imperative reasons of over-riding public interest and if the necessary 

compensatory measures can be secured” (Paragraph Ref ID: 65-001-

20190722).  

 

7.342 The PPG goes on to state that “if a proposed plan or project is considered 

likely to have a significant effect on a protected habitats site (either individually 

or in combination with other plans or projects) then an appropriate 

assessment of the implications for the site, in view of the site’s conservation 

objectives, must be undertaken (Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017)...A significant effect should be considered likely if 

it cannot be excluded on the basis of objective information and it might 

undermine a site’s conservation objectives. A risk or a possibility of such an 

effect is enough to warrant the need for an appropriate assessment. The 

conservation objectives relate to each of the habitats and species for which 

the site was designated and will be provided in more detail by Natural 

England. A competent authority must consult Natural England for the 

purposes of the assessment and must have regard to any representations that 

Natural England may wish to make within a reasonable time (as specified by 

the competent authority)” (Paragraph Ref ID: 65-002-20190722).  

 

7.343 The Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) Screening Assessment 

concludes that the proposal could result in likely significant effects to the 

Severn Estuary SAC / SPA / Ramsar site by changes in species distribution 

(migratory fish species and over-wintering bird species), water pollution and 

air pollution. Therefore, these effects require further consideration at the HRA 

Appropriate Assessment (AA) stage to determine whether, in light of any 

mitigation and avoidance measures, they would result in adverse effects on 

the integrity of the above European sites, either alone, or in combination with 

other plans and projects.  

 

7.344 In relation to other European designated sites, the HRA Screening 

Assessment states that a number of European designated sites have been 

identified within 40 kilometres of the application site. Nevertheless, no 

associated impact paths, other than to the Severn Estuary, have been 

established. As such, the proposal is considered highly unlikely to have any 

impact on the functionality or integrity of these other European sites, or have 

any adverse effect on their conservation status, provided that standard 

construction procedures are followed during the proposed works.  

Page 253



218 
 

7.345 The HRA AA concludes that with appropriate mitigation and protective 

measures, there would be no effect on the integrity of the Severn Estuary SAC 

/ SPA / Ramsar site in view of its conservation objectives, either alone or in 

combination with other plans and projects. This conclusion takes into account 

the proposed adjacent Ripple East Quarry by CEMEX. In addition, the HRA 

AA states that there are no anticipated ‘cross boundary’ effects with Wales, 

and as such, it is considered unnecessary in this instance, to consult the 

advice of Natural Resources Wales.  

 

7.346 Mitigation Measures outlined in the HRA AA include: using a groundwater 

interception ditch; maintenance of all plant, machinery and vehicles; safe on-

site parking; safe storage of on-site chemicals, oil and fuel; collection and off-

site removal of wastewater from the site; implementation of best practice 

pollution guidelines; production of a pollution incident contingency plan; no 

uncontrolled run-off would be allowed to leave the site; implementation of 

surface water attenuation and management scheme; management of silt 

laden water via silt lagoons; groundwater level monitoring; grass seeding or 

matting (e.g. using a pre-seeded erosion control blanket) the bunds 

associated with the silt lagoons; implementation of a Dust Management Plan; 

single span bridge over the Ripple / Mythe Brooks; restricting all quarrying 

operations to normal daylight working hours; implementation of Noise 

Mitigation Strategy; and retention of existing vegetation between proposal and 

the Ripple Lake and Napps. In response to original comments from the 

Environment Agency regarding fish potentially becoming trapped in receding 

flood waters, the applicant submitted further information in relation to a Fish 

Rescue Strategy and the HRA AA was updated accordingly.  

 

7.347 In response to the HRA AA, Natural England have confirmed that they have 

no objections to the proposal in terms of potential impacts upon the Severn 

Estuary SPA, SAC and Ramsar site, subject to conditions securing the 

mitigation measures outlined within the HRA AA. They state that they have 

reviewed the updated HRA AA produced by an ecological consultant on behalf 

of Worcestershire County Council, as competent authority, which includes an 

update in response to the Environment Agency’s original comments on 

migratory fish. The Council’s AA concludes that the proposal would not result 

in adverse effects on the integrity of any of the sites in question. Having 

considered the assessment, and the measures proposed to mitigate for all 

identified adverse effects that could potentially occur as a result of the 

proposal, Natural England advises that they concur with the AA conclusions, 

providing that all mitigation measures are appropriately secured should 

planning permission be granted.  

 

7.348 In response to the HRA AA, the Environment Agency originally requested 

further information in relation to impacts upon migratory fish. In response to 

the additional information from the applicant providing a Fish Rescue Strategy, 

and the subsequent updated HRA AA, the Environment Agency comment that 

they note the Strategy is principally directed to the proposed flexible working 

phases located in Flood Zone 3, but the Strategy would be applied site wide, if 

Page 254



219 
 

and when required. The Environment Agency consider that the Fish Rescue 

Strategy addresses their previous concerns and is satisfactory. They 

recommend securing the Strategy with the imposition of an appropriately 

worded planning condition. The Environment Agency confirm they have no 

further comments on the HRA AA.  

 

7.349 Objections have been received stating that a felling licence would be required 

from the Forestry Commission. The applicant states that “if the timber to be 

felled exceeds 5 cubic metres in any one year, a Felling License would be 

sought from the Forestry Commission in advance of any tree works”. The 

MPA also notes that the guidance document titled: ‘Tree Felling Getting 

Permission’, dated 2020 by the Forestry Commission outlines when a Felling 

License is required. This includes a number of exceptions which includes “the 

felling of trees is immediately required for the purpose of carrying out 

development that is authorised by the approval of full planning permission”, 

subject to a number of conditions / caveats being met. Notwithstanding this, it 

is considered that the requirement for a Felling License is separate to that of 

planning and is covered by other legislation. 

 

7.350 It is reported in Table 8 of the Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) that the 

watercourse length (e.g., Mythe Brook/Severn) will remain unchanged. New 

waterbodies of 4ha and wetland habitats of about 4.5ha will be delivered 

mostly from arable. Within Gloucestershire there will be a gain of ponds with a 

good deal of wet grassland and scrub. 

 

7.351 On the matter of groundwater, details supplied to support the application have 

satisfied all queries raised by the Environment Agency and the Lead Local 

Flood Authority. The advice is to impose a condition requiring ongoing 

groundwater monitoring and this will be imposed upon the grant of permission. 

 

7.352 The County Ecologist has noted in summary that the proposal should not 

negatively impact any notable species or habitats. There is one dead oak 

(T91) with a confirmed bat roost that would be removed from an open field 

location in Gloucestershire. There is biodiversity gain in the restoration and 

aftercare of the quarry area and this will be positively sought by the MPA. 

 

7.353 The County Ecologist has responded that there are no objections to the 

proposal, subject to the imposition of conditions. Biodiversity schemes, 

restoration details which support biodiversity and a control on artificial lighting 

are specifically requested to be imposed as conditions. These conditions 

would be imposed upon the grant of condition in order to secure operations 

and restoration which are in compliance with the Law and planning policy on 

biodiversity. 

 

7.354 Given the nature of the proposals the County Ecologist is of the opinion that 

the development is unlikely to significantly affect any SSSIs. In their 

consultation response dated 11/05/2021 Natural England considers that the 

proposed development ‘will not damage or destroy the interest features’ for 

Page 255



220 
 

which the Upper Severn Estuary SSSI and Severn Estuary SSSI has been 

notified and has ‘no objection.’ 

 

7.355 With regards to the impact of the proposed development upon the Severn 

Estuary Special Protection Area – Mobile species (over-wintering and 

passage wild birds) – Natural England has ‘no objection’ subject to securing 

mitigation. 

 

7.356 With regards to the impact of the proposed development upon the Severn 

Estuary SAC/Ramsar Site – Mobile species (migratory fish) – Natural England 

has ‘no objection’ subject to securing mitigation. 

 

7.357 The closest SAC is Bredon Hill, which is over 5km to the north east of the Site. 

The County Ecologist considers that ‘no conceivable effect could result’ upon 

this site.  

 

Derogation Tests 

 

7.358 Of the trees affected by the development proposals there is only one small 

confirmed pipistrelle bat roost (T91 shown on Tree Constraints Plan dated 

June 2018). This is an isolated dead oak and sits in an arable field within the 

curtilage of the proposed processing area. A Natural England licence will be 

required to remove this tree which is proposed. This matter is covered at 5.50, 

5.51, Table 6, 6.17, 7.23, 8.13, 9.3, 9.4 plus Appendices 1, 5 & 6 [Figure 6] of 

the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA). The approach to be 

taken to close down this small pipistrelle bat tree roost is considered to be 

acceptable by GCC’s Principal Ecologist and has not been questioned by 

Natural England. A Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme based on the submitted 

information in the EcIA is recommended as a pre-commencement condition 

for any planning consent given for the proposed development.  

 

7.359 The LPA must consider the three tests in Regulation 55 of the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) before determining this 

application (ODPM Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 99, 112 & 116). Regulation 

55(2) defines the circumstances where derogation is allowed for an affected 

species and a licence could be issued by Natural England.  

 

7.360 The first test at Regulation 55(2)(e) asks if there is a justification of public 

health, public safety or an imperative reason of overriding public interest, 

which includes beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 

environment. To pass this test which would result in beneficial results to the 

local area that are likely to be in accordance with local planning policy 

requirements. The MPA could conclude in this case that there is a high degree 

of need for the development because there are important reserves of mineral 

present of economic and strategic importance and that the development 

proposed is in accordance with local minerals planning policy requirements.  

 

Page 256



221 
 

7.361 The second test set out in Regulation 55(9)(a) deems that there should be ‘no 

satisfactory alternative’. In this case the MPA conclusions could conclude that 

there are no other viable options to the activity proposed and it would be 

unreasonable to additionally sterilise the area around this isolated tree which 

harbours a small pipistrelle bat roost. An alternative minerals site is not 

available and would in case be likely to have similar or more bat issues to 

address. 

 

7.362 The third test set out in Regulation 55(9)(b) deems that the development 

should have no detrimental effect on the favourable conservation status of a 

species. This last test is ultimately made by Natural England if a licence needs 

to be applied for. However, the MPA can be confident that this test is passable 

given the observations of Gloucestershire County Council’s Principal Ecologist 

and that Natural England have raised no concerns on this matter. The 

development if implemented as described and under the recommended 

conditions should not have an adverse impact on local populations of 

pipistrelle bat. 

 

7.363 The LVIA Addendum states that ‘on-site artificial illumination will be limited to 

the processing plant and site offices’. In an email from the applicant’s agent to 

WCC dated 02.06.2021 it clarifies that ‘no fixed lighting proposed within the 

extraction area bar headlights’. 

 

7.364 In view of the above, the MPA considers that subject to the imposition of 

appropriate conditions, that the proposed development would not have an 

unacceptable adverse effect upon ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity at the 

site or in the surrounding area, including European sites, and would protect, 

conserve and enhance the application site’s value for biodiversity. The MPA 

considers that the proposal is in accordance with Policy DM06 of the Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD9 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, Policies NAT1, NAT2 and NAT3 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031, Policy GD4 of the Twyning Parish 

Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 and the aims and objectives 

that the NPPF seeks to safeguard and promote in respect of the Natural 

Environment. 

 

Water environment and flood risk 

 

7.365 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of adverse impact upon the water environment, in particular the 

impact upon flooding of the village of Ripple and Bow Lane, loss of flood 

storage due to use of impermeable inert materials to restore the site, consider 

the Hydrological Assessment is incomplete and water pollution.  

 

7.366 Twyning Parish Council consider there is a very high risk of the site workings 

being inundated by river flood events which in terms of the flexible working 

areas are also at risk during minor flooding even in the summer. Areas of the 

site workings are up to 6 metres deep close to the river and 8 metres deep in 

Page 257



222 
 

the main phases. The only way these voids could be pumped out is directly 

into the river with the attendant silt damage to the river ecosystem. They also 

raise concerns of the proposed screening bunds exacerbating flooding on 

Bow Lane. 

 

7.367 Ripple Parish Council object to the proposal stating that the role of Ripple 

Brook which feeds into Mythe Brook is significant in Ripple Parish and does 

not appear to have been considered in depth by the applicant. Any 

rebalancing of the aquifer has the potential to increase flooding and may 

potentially have adverse effects on the Uckinghall flood relief scheme. The 

Parish Council consider that the drainage mitigation measures are 

inadequate, and little attention has been given to the effects of climate 

change. Calculations relating to rainfall and groundwater recharge appear to 

be based on average figures. 

 

7.368 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of water environment related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

7.369 Policy  DM04: ‘Flood risk’ of the adopted MLP for Gloucestershire states, 

amongst other matters, that minerals development proposals will be permitted, 

where it can be demonstrated that there will be no increase in the risk of 

flooding on site and elsewhere from all sources of flooding now and in the 

future; flood risk reduction initiatives will be incorporated that will achieve a 

reduction in the risk of flooding overall; appropriate measures will be put in 

place to manage and wherever possible, reduce surface water run-off 

including through the use of sustainable drainage systems (SuDS); a net 

increase in flood water storage capacity will be achieved wherever possible; 

flood flow routes will be improved such as through the removal of obstructions; 

there will be no detriment to the integrity of existing flood defences; the 

proposal accords with the policies contained in the River Severn, Severn Tidal 

Tributaries and Thames Catchment Flood Management Plans; and any 

mineral processing plant, associated building(s), and / or equipment should be 

designed to remain operational, safe for users, and flood resilient during a 

flood event. 

 

7.370 Policy DM04 goes on to state that “mineral development proposals will only be 

permitted in areas of flood risk (Flood Risk Zones 2, 3a or 3b) having taken 

into account climate change, where they have passed the Sequential Test 

and, where applicable, the Exception Test as set out in national policy.” 

Mineral development proposals involving sand and gravel working may be 

appropriate within ‘Flood Risk Zone 3b’ or any identified ‘functional floodplain’, 

providing that the following three criteria are satisfied: 

 

• there will be no net loss in flood storage and flood risk reduction 

measures (betterment opportunities) are provided where possible; 

• there will be no impediment to water flow routes; and 

Page 258



223 
 

• any mineral processing plant, associated building(s), and / or 

equipment is designed to remain operational, safe for users, and flood 

resilient during a flood event. 

 

7.371 Within the ‘interpretation and implementation’ for Policy DM04 it states at 

para.317 that “applying a sequential test provides the mechanism for steering 

development towards areas of the lowest probability of flooding. Minerals 

development proposals that are not contained within the plan’s allocations, 

including those for ancillary and / or supporting infrastructure (e.g. processing 

plant) must undergo a sequential test before deciding upon a preferred 

location.” 

 

7.372 As the entire processing area is within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of 

flooding), the advice from the Minerals and Waste Policy Officer is that the 1st 

part of policy DM04 is likely to be the main focus of attention in assessing 

flood risk matters, and that the advice of the EA (and potentially) the Lead 

Local Flood Authority will be critical to determining accordance of the 

application with policy DM04. 

 

7.373 Policy DM05 ‘Water Resources’ of the MLP for Gloucestershire sets out 5 

criteria under which mineral development proposals will be permitted where 

those criterion can be demonstrated. These include measures to enhance and 

protect water quality, including Gloucestershire’s groundwater resources; 

support for the actions and objectives set out in the Severn and / or Thames 

River Basin Management Plan; preservation and wherever possible 

enhancement to the physical integrity of watercourses; and wherever possible, 

measures to achieve the efficient use of water, including appropriate water 

conservation techniques. 

 

7.374 With regards to Policy DM05 the Minerals and Waste Policy Officer states that 

“the advice of the EA and the Lead Local Flood Authority will be critical to 

determining accordance of the application with policy DM05.” 

 

7.375 Policy WCS12 ‘Flood Risk’ of the Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy states 

that there will be a general presumption that all waste-related development 

(including the importation of inert waste for restoration purposes) will be 

located in areas of low flood risk, (Flood Zone 1) unless it can be 

demonstrated that there are no suitable, alternative sites available. 

 

7.376 Policy INF2 ‘Flood Risk Management’ of the adopted Gloucester, Cheltenham 

and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy has two parts, the first of which requires 

development to avoid areas at risk of flooding, in accordance with a risk-based 

sequential approach. Proposals must not increase the level of risk to the 

safety of occupiers of a site, the local community or the wider environment 

either on the site or elsewhere. Part 2 of Policy INF2 sets out 5 methods for 

minimising the risk of flooding and providing resilience to flooding, taking into 

account climate change. 

 

Page 259



224 
 

7.377 Within the recently adopted Tewkesbury Borough Plan, Policy NAT2 ‘The 

Water Environment’ seeks appropriate opportunities, where practical, to 

recreate more natural conditions and new habitat along watercourses, for 

example by requiring; “the de-culverting, restoration or re-profiling of 

watercourses; the removal of barriers to fish migration; or the integration of 

watercourses with wider green/blue infrastructure networks.” Policy ENV2 

‘Flood Risk and Water Management’ sets out 9 principles, including 

“opportunities to reduce the existing risk of flooding from all sources in the 

Borough will be sought, including, requiring developments to contribute 

towards the provision of additional flood storage on sites located within the 

headwaters of the Borough’s watercourses or other techniques such as 

natural flood management and re-naturalisation of watercourses (link with 

Policy NAT2).” 

 

7.378 Policy GD7 of the adopted Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

states, amongst other matters, that “development proposals will need to 

demonstrate that they will not lead to an adverse impact on the foul water 

drainage infrastructure, sewage treatment systems and surface water 

drainage infrastructure. Planning permission will not be granted to any 

development that would be likely to lead to an adverse impact on the foul 

water drainage infrastructure or surface water drainage infrastructure.” 

 

7.379 A Flood Risk Assessment accompanied the application, as required by 

paragraph 167 and Footnote 55 of the NPPF, as the proposed development is 

located within Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding), Flood Zone 2 

(medium probability of flooding) and Flood Zone 3 as identified on the 

Environment Agency's Indicative Flood Risk Map.  

 

7.380 Paragraph 159 of the NPPF states that “inappropriate development in areas at 

risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas 

at highest risk (whether existing or future). Where development is necessary 

in such areas, the development should be made safe for its lifetime without 

increasing flood risk elsewhere”. 

 

7.381 Paragraph 167 of the NPPF states that “when determining any planning 

applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not 

increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported by 

a site-specific flood-risk assessment. Development should only be allowed in 

areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of this assessment (and the 

sequential and exception tests, as applicable) it can be demonstrated that:  

 

a) within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of 

lowest flood risk, unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different 

location;  

b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient such that in 

the event of a flood, it could be quickly brought back into use without 

significant refurbishment;  

Page 260



225 
 

c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear 

evidence that this would be inappropriate;  

d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and  

e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of 

an agreed emergency plan”.  

 

7.382 Paragraph 162 of the NPPF states that “the aim of the sequential test is to 

steer new development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding from any 

source. Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are 

reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas 

with a lower risk of flooding”.  

 

7.383 Paragraph Reference ID: 7-023-20220825 of the PPG makes it clear that the 

sequential approach “is designed to ensure that areas at little or no risk of 

flooding from any source are developed in preference to areas at higher risk. 

This means avoiding, so far as possible, development in current and future 

medium and high flood risk areas considering all sources of flooding including 

areas at risk of surface water flooding”.  

 

7.384 It also recognises that “mineral deposits have to be worked where there is no 

scope for relocation (and sand and gravel extraction is defined as water-

compatible development in the NPPF Annex 3, acknowledging that these 

deposits are often in flood risk areas). However, mineral workings should not 

increase flood risk elsewhere and sites need to be designed, worked and 

restored accordingly” (Paragraph Reference ID: 7-030-20220825).  

 

7.385 With regard to the sequential test, the MPA considers that there are no 

reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development locally 

with a significantly lower flood risk. The applicant has sought to locate the 

processing plant and access in Flood Zone 1 (low probability of flooding). In 

view of this, it is considered that the sequential test is passed in this instance.  

 

7.386 The proposed development is classed as 'water-compatible development', as 

identified by Annex 3: ‘Flood risk vulnerability classification’ of the NPPF. 

'Table 2: ‘Flood risk vulnerability and flood zone ‘incompatibility’' of the PPG 

shows that ‘water-compatible’ development is acceptable in Flood Zones 1 

(low probability of flooding), 2 (medium probability of flooding), 3a (high 

probability of flooding), and 3b (functional floodplain). In accordance with 

Table 2, the exception test outlined in the NPPF is not required, subject to 

being “designed and constructed to:  

 

• remain operational and safe for users in times of flood  

• result in no net loss of floodplain storage  

• not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere” 

(Paragraph Reference ID: 7-079-20220825)  

 

7.387 The submitted Flood Risk Assessment states that to ensure the proposed 

development, which involves the construction of perimeter bunds and 

Page 261



226 
 

placement of temporary stockpiles and soil storage mounds, does not cause a 

net loss of floodplain storage throughout its lifetime, a floodplain storage 

compensation assessment has been undertaken. The results demonstrate 

that no net loss of floodplain storage would occur throughout the life of the 

proposed development. 

 

7.388 The Flood Risk Assessment notes that one temporary bridge in 

Gloucestershire is proposed as part of the proposal across watercourses, 

which would be the proposed eastern bridge crossing over Ripple Brook. The 

Assessment states that to ensure minimum disruption to flow storage and 

conveyance, the bridge would be constructed with flat decks (with only 

handrails on each side), and soffit levels of at least 1 metre above surrounding 

ground levels to the west. Therefore, the only element causing loss of 

floodplain storage and conveyance would be the bridge deck, and this would 

only be the case during major flooding events. In the occurrence of a major 

flooding event, the loss of floodplain storage caused by the bridge deck would 

be fully compensated by the net gain in floodplain storage capacity throughout 

all phases of the development. In order to compensate for the potential loss of 

flood conveyance caused by the bridge deck during major flooding events, a 

slot of ground adjacent to the watercourses, at the proposed bridge locations, 

would be excavated, thereby providing additional conveyance capacity. 

 

7.389 In response to comments from the Wildlife Trust, the applicant has confirmed 

that the bridge would include a clear span to protect both the watercourses 

and their marginal vegetation. A condition is recommended requiring the 

detailed design of these bridges.  

 

7.390 The applicant has also confirmed that the site would register with the 

Environment Agency’s Floodline service. A Flood Warning Procedure and 

Evacuation Plan would be put in place to advise staff of protocols in the event 

of flooding. For instance:  

 

• In the event of receiving a Flood Watch alert (flooding of low-lying land 

and roads expected), all members of staff and site visitors would be 

notified. Groundwater and river water levels in the vicinity of the site 

would be monitored in case overtopping does occur  

 

• In the event of receiving a Flood Warning alert (flooding of homes and 

businesses expected or in severe cases, danger to life or property), all 

visitors would be instructed to evacuate. Mobile machinery would be 

relocated to the processing plant site (located in Flood Zone 1). All 

work would cease, and staff would evacuate the site  

 

7.391 The applicant goes onto state that the processing plant site has been 

purposefully located within Flood Zone 1, as this would enable processing of 

‘as dug’ material to remain operational in the event the mineral extraction area 

is flooded or cut off due to low-lying flood events.  

 

Page 262



227 
 

7.392 In view of the above, it is considered that the applicant has demonstrated that 

the proposal would remain operational and safe for users in times of flood; the 

proposal would not result in a net loss of floodplain storage; and would not 

impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere.  

 

7.393 In terms of potential operational impacts upon water quality, the 

Hydrogeological and Hydrological Impact and Flood Risk Assessment outlines 

a number of mitigation measures, which includes:  

• All plant, machinery and vehicles would be routinely maintained to 

industry standards;  

• All vehicles would be parked overnight on an impermeable 

hardstanding, draining to an oil interceptor;  

• All vehicle and mobile machinery maintenance would be undertaken in 

an off-site facility;  

• On-site fuel storage would be with a double-lined tank located within a 

bunded compound with sufficient storage to retain 110% of the tank 

volume;  

• The site would operate site spill kits and follow industry standard 

accidental spillage and clear up procedures. 

 

7.394 The Environment Agency have raised no objections to the proposal, subject to 

the imposition of appropriate conditions requiring a ground and surface water 

monitoring scheme; and a scheme for flood storage compensation including 

flood risk betterment (post scheme) and improvements to flood flow.  

 

7.395 The Environment Agency also comment in respect of flood risk that sand and 

gravel workings are classed as ‘water compatible’ development and although 

two of the proposed excavation areas do fall within Flood Zone 3 (high 

probability of flooding), the proposed use is suitable in all flood zones. Whilst 

the majority of the excavation areas in Worcestershire are located in Flood 

Zone 1, proposed Silt Pond 2 and the Clean Water Pond adjoining the west 

side of Bridleway ATW/37 are located within Flood Zone 2 and 3. The 

Environment Agency confirm they are generally satisfied with the Flood Risk 

Assessment. They note there is no mention of conveyance and impacts on 

flood flow routes but consider that this could be controlled by a condition. 

 

7.396 With regard to the tributaries (Ripple Brook and Mythe Brook), due to the 

scale of the Severn floodplain and the influence of the River Severn, any 

change to levels in the tributaries would be insignificant in comparison. Given 

the catchment sizes flood events on the River Severn and the two tributaries 

are not likely to occur at the same time. If flow levels in the River Severn are 

high, it does not necessarily follow that flow levels in the tributaries would be 

high, and vice versa. The rivers are likely to behave very differently through 

different events. 

 

7.397 The Environment Agency states that with regard to hydrogeology and 

hydrology they are in agreement with the assessment of potential impacts 

from this development and are satisfied that any relevant impacts on the water 

Page 263



228 
 

environment could be suitably mitigated against to enable the development to 

proceed. 

 

7.398 The Lead Local Flood Authority have no objections to the proposal. Severn 

Trent Water Limited have also raised no objections to the proposal, and do not 

require any conditions to be imposed, as it would have a minimal impact upon 

the public sewerage system. The Canal and River Trust wish to make no 

comments on this application. 

 

7.399 Based on the advice of the Environment Agency, Canal and River Trust, Lead 

Local Flood Authority and Severn Trent Water Limited, the MPA considers 

that the proposal would have no unacceptable adverse effects on the water 

environment, including flooding, subject to the imposition of appropriate 

conditions. The MPA considers that the proposal is in accordance with 

Policies DM04 and DM05 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire, Policy WCS12 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core 

Strategy (2012), Policy INF2 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy, Policies NAT2 and ENV2 of the recently adopted 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 and Policy GD7 of the Twyning Parish 

Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

 Restoration and aftercare of the site 

 

7.400 Local residents have raised objections regarding the proposed infilling of inert 

material to restore Phases 1 to 9 in Worcestershire; consider there is a 

shortage of inert infill material; questions where the inert material would be 

sourced from; concerned that the inert material would be downgraded to make 

up the national shortfall; and concerned that the rate of infilling would not keep 

pace with mineral extraction. 

 

7.401 Twyning Parish Council object to the proposal raising concerns about the use 

of potentially hazardous waste for infilling. Bushley Parish Council object to 

the proposal and note that the inert material does not appear to have been 

specified in the application. 

 

7.402 Ripple Parish Council object to the proposal, stating that a prescriptive 

working and phasing scheme is required, and the MPA should impose a timed 

restoration condition, which should include monitoring. This should include 

phasing of the extraction, and a condition restricting imported inert material to 

not be stockpiled. The Parish Council question if the benefits of restoring the 

site back to agricultural land outweigh improving drainage around Bow Lane 

area. 

 

7.403 CPRE Gloucestershire also consider that the merits of importing fill should be 

examined very carefully. They state whilst sound handling, restoration and 

aftercare of indigenous soils is critical to re-creating BMV agricultural land, 

verifying the sources and nature of imported inert fill is also a key factor in a 

high-quality restoration. They also doubt whether the relevant authorities have 

Page 264



229 
 

the resources available adequately to monitor incoming material and to ensure 

compliance with any agreed standard. It is for these reasons, and because 

importing fill would add significantly more HGV movements, that they consider 

that alternative solutions to importing fill should be thoroughly assessed. 

However, CPRE Gloucestershire acknowledge that there may be tensions 

between minimising HGV movements and achieving restoration to original 

profiles, including the potential area of BMV agricultural land which is 

achievable. 

 

7.404 The NPPF states in relation to the restoration of mineral workings, that 

“planning policies should ensure that worked land is reclaimed at the earliest 

opportunity, taking account of aviation safety, and that high quality restoration 

and aftercare of mineral sites takes place" (paragraph 210 h). It goes on to 

state that mineral planning authorities should “provide for restoration and 

aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to a high environmental 

standard, through the application of appropriate conditions. Bonds or other 

financial guarantees to underpin planning conditions should only be sought in 

exceptional circumstances” (paragraph 211 e). This is reiterated in the 

National Planning Policy for Waste in relation to landfill sites, which states 

“when determining waste planning applications, waste planning authorities 

should…ensure that land raising, or landfill sites are restored to beneficial 

after uses at the earliest opportunity and to high environmental standards 

through the application of appropriate conditions where necessary” (paragraph 

7). 

 

7.405 The PPG provides more detailed guidance on restoration and aftercare of 

mineral workings. In particular, to ensure that applicants deliver sound 

restoration and aftercare proposals, the PPG states at Paragraph Reference 

ID: 27-041-20140306 that “mineral planning authorities should secure the 

restoration and aftercare of a site through the imposition of suitable planning 

conditions and, where necessary, through planning obligations”. 

 

7.406 The applicant has submitted details of a restoration scheme for the site in 

which the land would be primarily progressively restored with the infilling of the 

void in Phases 1 to 9 with a combination of site derived soils and overburden 

and approximately 1.4 million tonnes of inert waste materials to return the site 

to pre-extraction ground levels, except for the western area of the site, which 

would be restored to a nature conservation area comprising of wetlands and 

scrapes. 

 

7.407 During the restoration phases in Worcestershire, imported inert material would 

be stockpiled within the plant site area and transported for deposit within the 

extraction area (in Worcestershire) by dump truck. 

 

7.408 In response to comments from Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust, County 

Ecologist and GCC’s Landscape Advisor who requested a longer-term 

aftercare and maintenance scheme to that of the proposed 5-year period, the 

applicant has amended the scheme proposing a 10-year aftercare scheme. A 

Page 265



230 
 

condition is recommended to this effect. Post restoration, the applicant 

expects that the restored habitats would become self-sufficient after the 10-

year aftercare period has ceased, and that “very limited intervention should be 

required with successful natural habitats”. As landowner, the on-going 

monitoring and maintenance of the site would be of self-interest to the 

applicant. 

 

7.409 Following the completion of mineral extraction operations, the plant site and 

internal haul routes in Gloucestershire would be removed and largely returned 

to agriculture. The silt settlement and clean water lagoons would be retained 

as wetland features. This would comprise a combination of reedbed planting 

and natural regeneration. The site access would be retained to provide long-

term agricultural access into the site.  

 

7.410 The following policies are considered to be of particular relevance to the 

consideration of restoration related matters concerning this proposal: 

 

Policy WCS8: ‘Landfill’ of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy 

states that “proposals for new landfill developments or extensions to existing 

landfill sites will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that” the 

following 5 criterion can be met: 

 

“1. The waste cannot be managed further up the waste hierarchy 

through reuse, recycling and recovery; and 

 

2.  The proposed landfill would enable; 

i. restoration of current or former minerals sites (subject to 

technical suitability of the site); or 

ii. a demonstrable improvement in the quality of the land; or 

iii.  facilitating an appropriate after use; or 

iv. engineering or other operations. 

 

3.  The proposed development would not compromise the permitted 

restoration of mineral sites or existing landfill sites by the diversion of 

significant amounts of material; 

 

4.  The site does not adversely effect the following designations – major 

aquifers, source protection zones and European Sites; and 

 

5. Any proposal for new or extended landfill will need to indicate that it 

is for Gloucestershire’s waste needs unless it can be demonstrated, 

through a supporting statement, to be the most sustainable option to 

manage waste arisings from outside of the county at that facility.” 

 

7.411 Policy MR01: ‘Restoration, aftercare and facilitating beneficial after-uses’ of 

the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire states that mineral 

development proposals will be permitted where it can be demonstrated that 

high quality restoration and aftercare will take place at the earliest opportunity 

Page 266



231 
 

and without generating unacceptable adverse impacts; and be delivered to a 

high environmental standard; and facilitate beneficial after-uses that will 

contribute to the delivery of sustainable development. 

 

7.412 Within the ‘reasoned justification’ for this policy it states, amongst other 

matters, that “the working of minerals is a temporary land use. Once mineral 

resources have been exhausted and / or the working of a site has 

permanently ceased it should be possible to re-use the land that has been 

affected or return it to its original use through a process of restoration.”  

 

7.413 Within the ‘interpretation and implementation’ for Policy MR01 at para.424 of 

the adopted MLP for Gloucestershire states, amongst other matters, that “The 

acceptability of importing materials can only be secured, where sufficient 

evidence has been submitted regarding how possible risks to the natural 

environment and local communities from importation-related activities can 

either be avoided or mitigated so that any residual adverse impacts will be 

minimised to a satisfactory level.” At para.425 it states that “Importing waste 

for use in mineral restoration may be considered a recovery operation that is 

acceptable as outlined in paragraph 4.43 of the adopted Gloucestershire 

Waste Core Strategy. Imported waste suitable for mineral restoration but 

managed by way of disposal to landfill, might also be justified. For the latter, 

the relevant criteria contained within adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core 

Strategy policy WCS 8 (Landfill) (or future replacement) will need to be 

successfully addressed.” 

 

7.414 In respect of Policy MR01: ‘Restoration, aftercare and facilitating beneficial 

after-uses’ the Mineral Waste Planning Officer (MWPA) reminds the MPA that 

that supporting infrastructure / minerals development is currently being judged 

as being ‘temporary’ and that any change to this will require a different 

assessment of acceptability.  The MWPO considers the key tests for policy 

MR01 to be “whether the proposals for delivering restoration will occur as 

soon as it practicably possible post-working (and if not, what the justification is 

for this); whether they will be achieved to a high environmental standard; and 

to what extent they will complement the restoration of the wider mineral 

working, where a consensus has been reached on the acceptability in 

planning terms of the overall restoration strategy.” 

 

7.415 As the applicant is proposing a progressive restoration scheme, this would 

enable the land to be brought back into a beneficial afteruse as soon as 

possible, which accords with criterion 1 of Policy MR01. The submitted LEMP 

also confirms that the existing perimeter woodland and hedgerows would be 

included in the aftercare scheme to ensure that the current level of visual 

screening to the proposed mineral extraction works is maintained throughout 

the duration of operations. 

 

7.416 In relation to part 3 of Policy MR01 it is noted that no additional public rights of 

way or public access is proposed as part of this restoration scheme. The 

applicant states that “the proposed restoration scheme does not intend to 

Page 267



232 
 

create any additional public rights of way or publicly accessible areas. This is 

owing to the extensive public access available through and adjacent to the 

site, achievable via public footpaths and bridleways as well as an approximate 

60 hectares area of Common Land designation that is fully retained during 

and post-development. The proximity of the proposed restoration areas, to 

include wetland and nature conservation enhancement, to publicly accessible 

areas would serve as a benefit to the enjoyment of this area”. As 

recommended by GCC’s Landscape Advisor, County Archaeologist and Earth 

Heritage Trust, a condition is recommended requiring an interpretation 

strategy for cultural heritage, landscape, ecology and geodiversity.  

 

7.417 On balance, the MPA considers that the proposal strikes an acceptable 

compromise between the reinstatement of BMV agricultural land and the 

creation of wetland / nature conservation areas, and is, therefore, considered 

to be essential for operational reasons to be in accordance with Policy WCS8 

of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy. 

 

7.418 In relation to the availability of suitable fill materials, the applicant states that “it 

is anticipated that inert materials would be sourced within a 20-mile radius of 

the application site, derived within a catchment containing large towns and 

cities including Worcester, Tewkesbury, Cheltenham and Gloucester. The 

application site is positioned centrally in relation to these large settlements 

and benefits from excellent transport links given proximity to the motorway 

network”. 

 

7.419 The applicant also states that “the need for inert landfill void space (and 

indeed the proposed sand and gravel) is evident in reviewing development 

aspirations for the catchment area. The Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, adopted in December 2017, sets out the 

long-term vision and objectives for the area, shaping new development and 

their locations up to 2031. The plan period is coincident of the anticipated life 

of the proposed quarry. Policy SP1 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out the 

need for new development for the area. The policy outlines a need for 35,175 

new homes and delivery of a minimum of 192 hectares of employment land 

across the plan period”. 

 

7.420 The applicant also references Draft Policy SWDPR 1: ‘Employment, Housing 

and Retail Requirements’ of the emerging South Worcestershire Development 

Plan Review stating that “across the plan period, the policy aspires to plan, 

monitor and manage the delivery of at least 13,957 additional new dwellings 

and 316 hectares of new employment land”. In view of this, the applicant 

considers that the availability of suitable inert material would not be in short 

supply and would not result in the diversion of inert waste restoration material 

from existing sites. The applicant has also submitted 3 letters of support from 

a prospective customer base, to demonstrate a need for void space for the 

disposal of inert material.  

 

Page 268



233 
 

7.421 The applicant has clarified that they operate two aggregate recycling facilities 

at their Netherhills base (near Stonehouse, south of Gloucester) and at Dairy 

Farm Quarry, Ashton Keynes (in the Upper Thames Valley in Wiltshire). It is, 

therefore, in their interest to ensure that any opportunity to extract additional 

value from inert fill / muck away contracts is utilised via these two facilities. In 

view of this, the applicant has confirmed that where appropriate, material 

brought to site for restoration purposes would have already been screened at 

existing aggregate recycling facilities within Gloucestershire. This would limit 

the potential for disposal of recyclable material in the restoration of the 

proposed quarry, which would accord with part 1 of Policy WCS8 of the 

adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy. 

 

7.422 The materials proposed to be imported to the site would be inert waste 

materials suitable for direct placement without any pre-treatment required, in 

accordance with the Environment Agency’s Position Statement on the 

Contaminated Land: Applications in Real Environments (CL:AIRE): ‘Definition 

of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice’. To ensure all loads meet 

these criteria, they would be visually and olfactory examined when brought 

onto the site prior to being placed. Imported material would also be subject to 

Waste Acceptance Criteria and the applicant’s inert tipping protocol. The 

Environment Agency have also confirmed that importation of any inert waste 

material would require an Environmental Permit from them. 

 

7.423 In response to comments from local residents regarding concerns about 

potentially downgrading wastes to make them inert and, therefore, suitable as 

restoration materials. The Environment Agency comment that whilst some 

natural soils may be contaminated with hazardous elements, there is currently 

a ban on mixing / blending wastes to simply “dilute” hazardous components 

down to safe levels. Barring changes to existing environmental protection 

legislation, any review of current hazardous classifications would of course 

require very careful technical assessment, it is not simply a case of 

“relabelling” materials to say they are now “inert”. 

 

7.424 The MPA (GCC) considers the restoration of part of the site by the importation 

of inert materials to be a matter for Worcestershire County Council (WCC), 

who have already found it to be acceptable in this instance. WCC considered 

the risk of a lack of availability of suitable fill materials and came to the view 

that this can be satisfactorily addressed by the imposition of appropriate 

conditions relating to phasing, progressive working and restoration schemes, 

annual surveys of the ground levels, long-term aftercare period and detailed 

restoration and aftercare schemes. Such conditions were applied to the 

approval notice for WCC application 19/000048/CM. This ensures that there 

would be limited disturbed land during the extraction period in Worcestershire, 

and that the whole site is restored at the earliest opportunity and to a high 

environmental standard. To ensure that the working practices secured by such 

planning conditions are secured throughout the whole cross-boundary site, the 

MPA (GCC) recommends, where relevant to Gloucestershire, that such 

planning conditions are applied to any approval for GCC application 

Page 269



234 
 

19/0081/TWMAJM. A condition to require the site to be restored within 9 years 

of commencement of the development is also suggested, a copy of which can 

be found in the conditions list at the end of this report.  

 

7.425 In view of the above matters, the MPA considers that the proposal is in 

accordance with Policy MR01 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire and Policy WCS8 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core 

Strategy. 

 

7.426 In relation to financial guarantees, the responsibility for the restoration and 

aftercare of mineral sites lies with the operator, and in case of default the 

landowner. The applicant is a Member of the Mineral Products Association 

Restoration Guarantee Fund, which provides guarantees to planning 

authorities against a restoration default. Paragraph Reference ID: 27-048-

20140306 of the PPG states that “a financial guarantee to cover restoration 

and aftercare costs will normally only be justified in exceptional cases. Such 

cases include:  

 

• very long-term new projects where progressive reclamation is not 

practicable, such as an extremely large limestone quarry; 

• where a novel approach or technique is to be used, but the minerals 

planning authority considers it is justifiable to give permission for the 

development; 

• where there is reliable evidence of the likelihood of either financial or 

technical failure, but these concerns are not such as to justify refusal of 

permission.  

 

However, where an operator is contributing to an established mutual funding 

scheme, such as the Mineral Products Association Restoration Guarantee 

Fund, it should not be necessary for a mineral planning authority to seek a 

guarantee against possible financial failure, even in such exceptional 

circumstances”. Furthermore, 9 years for mineral extraction and restoration is 

not considered by the MPA to be a very long-term in the context of mineral 

developments. The development does not propose a novel approach or 

technique to mineral extraction or restoration, and the MPA has no reason to 

believe that there is a likelihood of financial or technical failure. Therefore, it is 

not necessary for the MPA to seek a financial guarantee in this instance. 

 

Climate change and sustainability 

 

7.427 From a climate change perspective, the attention of national planning policy 

for minerals is focused on the effective management of finite mineral 

resources. This recognises that the UK is very much transitioning to 

increasingly more sustainable and less exploitative approaches to 

development, but that it remains vitally important that supplies of primary 

minerals are still sufficient to meet the country’s present needs. Nevertheless, 

key forward thinking policies have been put in place to support the change 

that is needed to achieve the long-term security of mineral resources for future 

Page 270



235 
 

generations. National policy is clear that the best use of minerals needs to be 

made; their supplies should be sourced indigenously wherever possible; and 

that secondary and recycled materials and mineral waste should be seen as a 

valid substitution for the extraction of primary minerals. 

 

7.428 It is acknowledged that both Tewkesbury Borough Council declared a climate 

emergency in October 2019 and that Gloucestershire County Council declared 

a climate emergency in May 2019 and a commitment to tackle its own impacts 

on climate change through the Gloucestershire Climate Change Strategy 

(2021). Of particular relevance to the County Council as the local MPA, is the 

use of planning powers to successfully achieve change and to support others 

to do similar. This is in respect of meaningfully contributing towards a 

reduction in locally-generated carbon emissions through both the delivery of 

development and ongoing land use over the coming years. An overarching 

target has been set to achieve carbon neutrality throughout the UK by 2050. 

For Gloucestershire there is a local ambition to be a net zero carbon county 

and to achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of 80% by 2030. 

 

7.429 In defining the economic objectives of the proposal, the applicant states that “it 

is considered that the extraction of mineral at the site is the “right type” of 

development, on account of the high-grade underlying sand and gravel 

resource; it is the “right place” for mineral development given its position within 

the Lower Severn Strategic Corridor and Area of Search for sand and gravel 

resources; and is the “right time” for the development owing to the proven 

demand for 11.5 million tonnes of sand and gravel within Worcestershire over 

the next 15 years”. 

 

7.430 In addition, the applicant states that “the proposed development provides for 

local and regional economic benefits through additional employment 

(estimated that up to 20 employees would be needed to manage and operate 

the site) and supply of sand and gravel resources and by-products to the 

wider region”. 

 

7.431 In terms of social objectives, the applicant states that this “without providing 

the raw materials to enable required development, the ‘social’ objective of the 

NPPF cannot be delivered”. 

 

7.432 In terms of the environmental objectives of the proposal, the applicant states 

“during site operations, a range of mitigation and attenuation measures would 

be employed to control adverse effects upon the natural, built and historic 

environment. These are assessed in detail within the submitted ES. Following 

the temporary operation, the restored mineral site would result in significant 

biodiversity gains whilst retaining high-grade agricultural land. Added to this, 

restoration of areas of the site to a lower level would provide for additional 

flood storage capacity”. 

 

7.433 The applicant states that “the processing of the extracted material would 

recycle water through a series of silt settlement and clean water lagoons. On 

Page 271



236 
 

this basis, the extraction and processing of material would minimise use of 

water and ensure the resource is used effectively and efficiently”. 

 

7.434 The ES states that the proposed site restoration “contributes to climate 

adaptation through enhancing and expanding the range of semi-natural 

habitats on-site, including open water, wetland habitat, grassland, woodland 

and hedgerow, all of which will aid carbon sequestration/management and 

resilience to extreme weather events”. 

 

7.435 The applicant also states that “they are conscientious of climate change and 

carbon footprint associated with mineral extraction operations. This is 

evidenced by the company being accredited ISO 14001:2015 Environmental 

Management System (EMS). ISO 14001:2015 EMS is a systematic framework 

to manage the immediate and long-term environmental impacts of an 

organisation’s products, services and processes. By completing ISO 14001 

certification, receipt organisations can assure stakeholders that the 

environmental management system meets international industry specific 

environmental standards. ISO 14001 environmental certification provides a 

framework for environmental management best practice to help companies: 

 

• Minimise their environmental footprint 

• Diminish the risk of pollution incidents 

• Ensure compliance with relevant environmental legislation; and 

• Develop their business in a sustainable manner 

 

Accreditation of ISO 14001 is audited annually to ensure services continue to 

meet the requirement of the relevant standards. To maintain standards, the 

Cullimore Group has implemented an Environmental Policy Statement”. 

 

7.436 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust comment that much of the application site within 

Gloucestershire is proposed to return to arable use following extraction. The 

restoration plan for land within Gloucestershire should revert more land to 

semi-natural habitat in order to compensate for the ecological and climate 

impacts of the extraction. Considering the carbon impact of this activity, 

Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust also asks for a carbon audit of the scheme. 

Twyning Parish Council and letters of representation also request a carbon 

offset plan. 

 

7.437 The MPA notes that there are no adopted policies in the Development Plan for 

the area that expressly require a carbon audit or carbon offset plan. 

Furthermore, the ES does not have to contain every last possible detail of 

environmental information. It only needs to cover the “main effects” or “likely 

significant effects”. It is considered that the effects of climate change and the 

vulnerability of the development proposal to these changes has been 

adequately considered as part of the preparation of the ES and supporting 

documents, particularly in terms of the air quality, hydrology / flood risk and 

ecology. The effects upon air quality are considered further in the residential 

amenity section of this report, the effects of hydrology / flood risk is considered 

Page 272



237 
 

further in the ‘Water environment and flood risk’ section of this report and the 

proposed restoration scheme and biodiversity enhancements are considered 

in detail in the ‘Ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity’ and ‘Restoration and 

aftercare of the site’ sections of this report, and considered acceptable subject 

to the imposition of appropriate conditions. The proposed restoration in the 

administrative area of Worcestershire has already been considered and 

approved by Worcestershire County Council at their Planning and Regulatory 

Committee held on the 31st October 2022. 

 

7.438 In respect of carbon off-setting, para.2.18 of the Environmental Statement 

Regulation 25 Addendum dated December 2021 states that “the proposed 

restoration scheme, which incorporates in excess of 28ha of land dedicated to 

creation of habitat and biodiversity gain, carries the potential to offset carbon 

emissions associated with the hauling of mineral extracted and processed 

within the application site.” 

 

7.439 Whilst there is no direct data within the submitted supporting information 

concerning HGV emissions, the applicant has clarified to the MPA that 100% 

of their fleet of diesel vehicles meets Euro VI standard, meaning the fleet 

meets the highest standards in respect of minimising emissions. 

 

7.440 Given that the proposal is well located close to the potential markets it would 

serve; located close to the primary road network; the applicant is proposing 

use of conveyors where possible to reduce dump truck movements across the 

site and thereby reduce vehicle emissions; on site recycling of water; the 

restoration scheme would make provision for SuDS; flood risk betterment; 

habitat creation; and reinstatement of BMV agricultural land. In view of this, 

the MPA considers that overall, the proposal would contribute to achieving 

sustainable development and mitigating and adapting to climate change, in 

accordance with Policy DM04 and DM05 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan 

for Gloucestershire, Policy WCS 1 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core 

Strategy (2012), and paragraphs 8, 9 and 152 of the NPPF. 

 

Cumulative effects 

 

7.441 Letters of representations objecting to the proposal on cumulative effects 

grounds have been received stating that the cumulative impact of the 

excavations, the phasing of the proposal, the processing and operation of the 

batching plant would significantly increase the volume of HGV journeys to and 

from the site with adverse effects greatly outweighing the benefits.  

 

7.442 Ripple Parish Council also object to the proposal on the grounds of cumulative 

effects stating that for over a decade Ripple Parish has been host to a number 

of mineral workings. They consider that these proposals for a further 9 years 

of mineral extraction at Bow Farm would not comply with the NPPF, namely 

“to ensure that permitted and proposed operations do not have an adverse 

impact on the natural and historic environment or human health, taking into 

account the cumulative effects of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or 

Page 273



238 
 

a number of sites in the locality” (paragraph 210 f) of the NPPF). Ripple Parish 

Council consider the proposal does not accord with the adopted Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire, in particular Policy DM02: ‘Cumulative impact’. 

Ripple Parish Council also raised concerns regarding cumulative noise, dust, 

air quality and health impacts associated with the simultaneous working of the 

proposed Bow Farm Quarry and Ripple East Quarry.  

 

7.443 Regulation 4 (2) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 

Assessment) Regulations 2017 states that the Environmental Impact 

Assessment must identify, describe and assess in an appropriate manner, in 

light of each individual case, the direct and indirect significant effects of the 

proposed development on a number of factors this includes the interaction 

between the factors of population and human health, biodiversity, land, soil, 

water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage and the landscape. 

Schedule 4, Part 5 states in relation to information for inclusion within ESs, 

this includes “the cumulation of effects with other existing and / or approved 

projects, taking into account any existing environmental problems relating to 

areas of particular environmental importance likely to be affected or the use of 

natural resources”.  

 

7.444 This is reiterated in the PPG at Paragraph Reference ID: 4-024-20170728, 

which states that “each application (or request for a screening opinion) should 

be considered on its own merits. There are occasions, however, when other 

existing or approved development may be relevant in determining whether 

significant effects are likely as a consequence of a proposed development. 

The local planning authorities should always have regard to the possible 

cumulative effects arising from any existing or approved development”.  

 

7.445 Cumulative effects result from combined impacts of multiple developments 

that individually may be insignificant, but when considered together, could 

amount to a significant cumulative impact; as well as the inter-relationships 

between impacts – combined effects of different types of impacts, for example 

noise, air quality and visual impacts on a particular receptor.  

 

7.446 With regards to inter-relationships between impacts, it is considered that 

based upon the studies and content of the individual chapters within the 

submitted ES, the underlying conclusion is that there is no single topic or 

combination of issues which should objectively prevent the development from 

proceeding.  

 

7.447 With regard combined impacts of multiple developments, the ES has 

considered the effects that are likely to result from the proposed development 

in combination with other projects and activities that are being, have been or 

will be carried out, including the following types of projects:  

 

• Existing completed projects  

• Approved but uncompleted projects  

• On-going activities  

Page 274



239 
 

• Plans or projects for which an application has been made and which 

are under consideration by the consenting authorities  

• Plans or projects which are reasonably foreseeable, i.e., projects for 

which an application has not yet been submitted, but which are likely to 

progress before completion of the development and for which sufficient 

information is available to assess the likelihood of cumulative and in-

combination effects’  

 

7.448 The ES concluded that the applicant is not aware of any of the above plans or 

projects that require due consideration as part of this development proposal 

and is not aware of any anticipated development proposal likely to result in 

any adverse cumulative impacts upon the surrounding environment.  

 

7.449 Notwithstanding the above, since the submission of the proposed Bow Farm 

Quarry application and the above conclusions, a separate planning application 

has been submitted to Worcestershire County Council by CEMEX for 

“proposed extraction of sand and gravel with restoration to agriculture and 

nature conservation, including ponds, wetlands, hedgerows and lowland 

mixed deciduous woodland and meadows on land at Ripple East, Bow Lane, 

Ripple, Worcestershire” (Worcestershire County Council Ref: 22/000015/CM).  

 

7.450 The Ripple East Quarry proposal seeks to extract approximately 475,000 

tonnes of sand and gravel in a total of 3 phases at an approximate rate of 

300,000 tonnes per year. Aggregates extracted from the site would be hauled 

beneath the Motorway and stored at the existing wharf for onward 

transportation by barge to CEMEX`s operational facility at Ryall House Farm 

Quarry, for further processing and onward delivery to the construction 

industry. CEMEX do not propose any mineral extraction to the south of the 

M50 Motorway. The land would be progressively restored using on site 

derived overburden and soils to wetlands, nature conservation and agriculture. 

The land would be worked and restored over an approximately 3-year period. 

The majority of the Ripple East Quarry application site is located immediately 

north of the M50 Motorway and west of Bow Lane, with a section of the 

application site covering the wharf, barge loading and surge pile adjacent the 

River Severn (south of the M50 Motorway and west of the restored Ripple 

East Quarry). The Ripple East Quarry application site is located approximately 

50 metres north of Bow Farm Quarry application site.  

 

7.451 Whilst the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 2017 and Government’s PPG only require the consideration of 

cumulative impacts of existing or approved development, to ensure a robust 

consideration of the Bow Farm Quarry application, the applicant wrote to the 

MPA submitting additional information in the form of an addendum to the ES. 

The addendum provides an assessment of the potential for cumulative 

impacts resulting from the simultaneous operation of the proposed quarry at 

Bow Farm and the neighbouring proposed Ripple East Quarry. The addendum 

includes a suite of technical notes providing a peer review of the CEMEX 

Environmental Statement and cumulative assessment of the following:  

Page 275



240 
 

• Dust and air quality  

• Noise  

• Hydrology and flooding  

• Landscape and visual impact  

• Ecology  

• Archaeology and cultural heritage  

 

7.452 In terms of transport cumulative effects as a result of Ripple East and Bow 

Farm Quarry operating simultaneously, this has been scoped out of further 

consideration as there is considered no likelihood of significant cumulative 

transport effects, due to the sand and gravel being transported by barge from 

Ripple East Quarry to the existing processing plant at Ryall House Farm 

Quarry, and the exports of processed sand and gravel from Ryall House Farm 

would not increase as a result of Ripple East Quarry (should planning 

permission be granted).  

 

7.453 In terms of the Assessment upon landscape and visual impact, GCC’s 

Landscape Advisor is in agreement with the conclusion that the simultaneous 

operation of the Bow Farm site and Cemex’s proposed Ripple East 

development “does not materially alter the findings of the LVIA submitted as 

part of the Bow Farm Environmental Statement in November 2019. As the two 

sites are physically separated by the M50 motorway there would be an overall 

negligible cumulative landscape effect and a very localised and low effect of 

cumulative significance limited to a short section of Bow Lane and the over 

bridge crossing the M50 motorway.” 

 

7.454 The comments of the Minerals and Waste Policy Officer in relation to MLP 

Policy DM02 are that the “the case officer must be satisfied that all ancillary 

development will be environmentally acceptable having also carefully 

considered the cumulative effect of multiple activities and impacts from the 

wider mineral working area.” In respect of the applicant’s decision to re-

appraise the issue of cumulative impact following the submission of the 

neighbouring Cemex application, GCC’s Minerals and Waste Policy Officer is 

of the view that the submitted “addendum has reasonably sought to address 

possible cumulative impact issues that might arise.” 

 

7.455 In summary, the addendum demonstrates that no significant adverse effects 

would arise from the simultaneous working of the proposed Bow Farm and 

Ripple East Quarries. This is in large part due to the M50 Motorway acting as 

an attenuation buffer between the two sites. In cumulatively assessing the 

Ripple East Quarry proposal, the addendum also demonstrates that no 

conclusions previously reached within the Bow Farm Quarry Environmental 

Statement require alteration, and there is also no need for any additional or 

revised mitigation embedded within the working and restoration scheme.  

 

Page 276



241 
 

7.456 The MPA carried out further consultation on the addendum to the 

Environmental Statement, and it is noted that the relevant technical 

consultees confirmed their comments remained unchanged.  

 

7.457 In view of the above, the MPA does not consider that the cumulative impact of 

the proposed development would be such that it would warrant a reason for 

refusal of the application.  

 

Other matters 

 

Prematurity 

 

7.458 Whilst objections on grounds of prematurity have been raised on both cross-

boundary applications by Twyning Parish Council and in letters of 

representation, such matters relate specifically to land within Worcestershire 

and to the proposal coming forward before the adoption of the Worcestershire 

Minerals Local Plan and emerging Mineral Site Allocations DPD. 

 

7.459 As set out earlier, planning law requires that applications for planning 

permission be determined in accordance with the Development Plan, unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise. Paragraphs 48 to 50 of the NPPF 

sets out how weight may be given to policies in emerging plans, and the 

limited circumstances in which it may be justified to refuse an application on 

the basis that it is premature. 

 

7.460 The NPPF states that “arguments that an application is premature are unlikely 

to justify a refusal of planning permission other than in the limited 

circumstances where both:  

 

a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect would 

be so significant, that to grant permission would undermine the plan-

making process by predetermining decisions about the scale, location or 

phasing of new development that are central to an emerging plan; and 

b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of 

the Development Plan for the area” (paragraph 49). 

  

7.461 The NPPF goes onto state that “refusal of planning permission on grounds of 

prematurity will seldom be justified where a draft plan has yet to be submitted 

for examination; or – in the case of a neighbourhood plan – before the end of 

the local planning authority publicity period on the draft plan. Where planning 

permission is refused on grounds of prematurity, the local planning authority 

will need to indicate clearly how granting permission for the development 

concerned would prejudice the outcome of the plan-making process” 

(paragraph 50). This is reiterated within the PPG Paragraph Reference ID: 

21b-014-20190315. 

 

7.462 Although this is a matter relating to Worcestershire, the MPA is mindful of the 

cross-boundary nature of the proposal and notes that the Worcestershire 

Page 277



242 
 

Minerals Local Plan was adopted by Worcestershire County Council on 14 

July 2022 and now forms part of their Development Plan, replacing the 

minerals policies in the County of Hereford and Worcester Minerals Local 

Plan. At para.957 of Worcestershire’s committee report for application 

19/000048/CM, the Head of Planning and Transport Planning at 

Worcestershire County Council considers that “on the whole, the proposal is 

broadly in accordance with the newly adopted Worcestershire Minerals Local 

Plan.”  

 

7.463 As the emerging Mineral Site Allocations DPD for Worcestershire is at an 

early stage of preparation, and has not been subject to consultation, tested at 

examination or adopted by Worcestershire County Council, the MPA for 

Gloucestershire notes that the Head of Planning and Transport Planning at 

Worcestershire County Council is of the opinion that the Minerals Site 

Allocations DPD should be given very limited weight in the determination of 

application 19/000048/CM.  

 

Site security 

 

7.464 With regard to site security the applicant states that they would implement 

company protocols to maintain site security during non-working hours. The 

applicant has confirmed that they would instigate routine daily checks of any 

boundary, perimeter and gated access to ensure they remain fit for purpose. 

All entrances would be locked when not in use. Facilities in the form of steel 

containers would be in use within the proposed processing plant site area to 

store valuable plant and machinery. Mobile plant / machinery would be fitted 

with tracking capabilities.  

 

7.465 The applicant has confirmed that the proposal does not include measures to 

enclose the site with perimeter fencing. This is owing in part due to interaction 

between the site and areas of open access or public right of way. 

Nonetheless, any particularly accessible areas (which are not permitted public 

access) would be blocked by bunding or temporary post-and-rail fencing. The 

proposed processing plant site would also be bound by 4 metre and 5-metre-

high perimeter storage bunds.  

 

7.466 With regard to Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) the applicant has confirmed 

that subject to reasonable broadband capability, the proposed processing 

plant site and site access would be monitored by CCTV. This would be 

remotely monitored outside of hours of operation.  

 

7.467 The applicant states that they have operated a number of sites which interact 

with public rights of way, and in their experience, the presence of public rights 

of way within the boundaries of a quarry has not resulted in anti-social 

behaviour during non-operational hours.  

 

7.468 West Mercia Police have been consulted and raise no concerns or objections 

with this application in relation to issues of crime and disorder.  

Page 278

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43662/PR%202022%2010%2031%20Bow%20Farm%20Quarry.pdf


243 
 

7.469 Gloucestershire Constabulary comments that the applicant’s submitted 

protocols in relation to crime and security offers hints in the right direction but 

lacks any level of detail. They request further information and clarification is 

provided, preferable prior to the determination of the application regarding 

boundary treatments and their specifications. They also consider that CCTV 

should be used to monitor more areas of the site, including gates and site 

offices and requests further details.  

 

7.470 In view of the above, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms 

of its impact upon crime and antisocial behaviour, subject to conditions 

requiring details of boundary treatments and CCTV, as recommended by 

Gloucestershire Constabulary.  

 

Utilities / pipelines 

 

7.471 Within the application site there is a pipeline that has been declared redundant 

by the Ministry of Defence and the necessary legal charges on it have been 

removed in accordance with the Land Powers (Defence) Act 1958 and 

subsequent legislation. A CLH (now Exolum) pipeline can also be found in the 

same location. In 2015 CLH purchased GPSS (Government Pipelines and 

Storage System) from the British government, consisting of a system of 

pipelines and storage terminals. Details of the proposed bridge over these two 

pipelines can be found on Proposed Pipeline Crossing drawing ref.2636-4-4-

2-1-DR-00017 P2 dated 29/01/2021. This bridge is considered by the 

applicant’s agent to provide sufficient protection for both pipelines. Exolum’s 

Easement Strips are 6 metres wide and can incorporate other associated 

Exolum facilities. 

 

7.472 Cadent Gas Ltd have been consulted as their gas assets are in close 

proximity to the application site, and they raise no objections to the proposal 

from a planning perspective.  

 

7.473 Gigclear Ltd, Zayo Group UK Ltd and Wales and West Utilities also have 

apparatus located outside but in close proximity to the application site, 

situated within the public highway in Gloucestershire.  

 

7.474 An underground Exolum Pipeline System oil pipeline and DIO redundant oil 

pipeline are also located in Gloucestershire running north to south though the 

application site on land between the proposed processing plant site and the 

access onto the A38. The pipelines are located outside the proposed 

extraction boundary.  

 

7.475 According to the Environment Agency’s records, the Exolum Pipeline System 

oil pipeline is notified as a Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH) 

pipeline. The Environment Agency state that the developer is advised to check 

with the pipeline operator to inform land use planning and before proceeding. 

HSE has been consulted and comments that the proposed development does 

not lie within a consultation distance of a major hazard site or major accident 

Page 279

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0017_S4_P2.PDF
https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_PLN_DR_0017_S4_P2.PDF


244 
 

hazard pipeline, therefore, HSE does not need to be consulted on this 

proposal.  

 

7.476 The applicant states that they have been in dialogue with advisors of the 

pipelines, which has the potential to be affected by the haul route. As a result, 

the proposal now includes a short bailey bridge over the location of the 

pipelines to maintain integrity of the underground pipes throughout the 

duration of works.  

 

7.477 DIO state that their pipeline has been declared redundant and the necessary 

legal charges have been removed. Should works be required in close 

proximity to the pipeline they recommend that the applicant seek the advice of 

a specialist pipeline contractor by contacting the Pipeline Industries Guild.  

 

7.478 Exolum Pipeline System confirm that their previous objection comments are 

withdrawn following discussions with the applicant. They request that the 

applicant contacts them to discuss the proposal and enter into a Works 

Consent.  

 

7.479 As the pipelines and above apparatus are located in Gloucestershire, it is a 

matter for Gloucestershire County Council to consider if the impact of the 

proposal is acceptable upon these assets. Having received no adverse 

comments from Gigclear Ltd, Zayo Group UK Ltd, Wales and West Utilities, 

DIO or Exolum Pipeline System, the MPA is satisfied that the proposal can be 

carried out safely provided the applicant seeks the required technical 

expertise and consents from those organisations that have responsibility for 

safeguarding such assets.  

 

7.480 In view of the above, the MPA is satisfied that the proposed development 

would not have an unacceptable impact upon utilities.  

 

Adequacy of the ES and Environmental Impact Assessment team and 

expertise 

 

7.481 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds that the Environmental Statement (ES) is inadequate and should be 

disregarded as it has been completed by the applicant’s consultants, and not 

independent consultants. 

 

7.482 The aim of Environmental Impact Assessment is to protect the environment by 

ensuring that a local planning authority when deciding whether to grant 

planning permission for a project, which is likely to have significant effects on 

the environment, does so in the full knowledge of the likely significant effects, 

and takes this into account in the decision-making process. The aim of 

Environmental Impact Assessment is also to ensure that the public are given 

early and effective opportunities to participate in the decision-making 

procedures. 

 

Page 280



245 
 

7.483 The ES must include at least the information reasonably required to assess 

the likely significant environmental effects of the development specified in 

Regulation 18 (3) and meet with the requirements of Regulation 18 (4) and 

include any additional information specified in Schedule 4 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, 

which is relevant to the specific characteristics of the particular development 

or type of development and to the environmental features likely to be 

significantly affected. 

 

7.484 The applicant is responsible for the preparation of the ES. In order to ensure 

the completeness and quality of the ES, Regulation 18 (5) of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 

requires the applicant to ensure that the ES is prepared by competent experts, 

and the ES must be accompanied by a statement from the developer outlining 

the relevant expertise or qualifications of such experts. This is in order to 

ensure the completeness and quality of the ES. 

 

7.485 The ES was compiled and coordinated by David Jarvis Associates Ltd, a 

multidisciplinary consultancy specialising in planning and design, and a 

registered practice of the Landscape Institute. It has a team of professional 

chartered town planners, urban designers and landscape architects. As part of 

the submission the applicant included the qualifications and membership to 

professional bodies of the authors of each of the chapters of the ES. 

 

7.486 In view of this, the MPA is satisfied that the applicant has engaged competent 

experts to prepare the ES. The MPA has also reviewed the ES and 

accompanying documents and undertaken extensive public and technical 

consultation on the submission. Taking into account the submitted ES, the 

Regulation 25 Submissions (further information) and consultation responses, 

the MPA is satisfied with the adequacy of the ES and considers that it accords 

with Regulations 18 (3) and 18 (4) of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. 

 

Monitoring and enforcement 

 

7.487 The Environment Agency have confirmed that the importation of any inert 

waste post extraction is a landfilling activity which would require an 

Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations, which 

would be monitored by the Environment Agency. 

 

7.488 The County Council, as the MPA also has a Planning Monitoring Officer and 

an Enforcement Officer who investigate alleged breaches of planning control 

in relation to minerals and waste management development. Furthermore, the 

MPA carry out proactive monitoring of minerals and landfill sites, as under 

Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, 

Deemed Applications, Requests and Site Visits) (England) Regulations 2012 

(as amended), MPAs dealing with County Matter applications can charge to 

monitor mineral and landfill permissions. This covers initial implementation to 

Page 281



246 
 

the end of the period of aftercare required by a condition of the planning 

permission (Paragraph Reference ID: 22-046-20180222 of the PPG). 

 

7.489 It should be noted that in the event that planning permission is granted, there 

is a planning condition requiring the applicant to submit a scheme that sets out 

measures for liaison arrangements with the local community, and for this local 

liaison to be carried out for the duration of the development. 

 

Consultation 

 

7.490 Letters of representation have been received objecting on the grounds of 

inadequacy of the applicant’s pre-application public consultation. 

 

7.491 It is noted that there is no statutory requirement for applicants to undertake 

pre-application public consultation on such applications. However, it is 

considered good practice for applicants to undertake public consultation on all 

application proposals at the pre-application stage. This is emphasised by the 

NPPF (paragraphs 39 and 40) and in the Statement of Community 

Involvement for Gloucestershire (Adopted June 2020). 

 

7.492 The application was accompanied by a Statement of Community Involvement, 

which states that the applicant held a public consultation event at Ripple 

Parish Hall on 28 February 2019 (12:00 to 20:30 hours). Pre-event publicity 

included pre-notifications to officers and Members from Gloucestershire and 

Worcestershire County Councils, Malvern Hills District Council and 

Tewkesbury Borough Council; Parish Councils; local MPs; local business and 

groups; nearest local residents; and the local media. The event was staggered 

into a statutory consultee preview (attended by 11 people), local residents 

preview for the nearest local residents who could be potentially most affected 

by the proposal (attended by 10 people) and open to the general public 

(attended by 40 people).  

 

7.493 A total of 23 feedback forms were received during the event. The applicant’s 

Statement of Community Involvement identified that the main concerns were 

associated with vehicle movements on and access to the A38. Concerns were 

also raised regarding impacts upon groundwater / surface water and flooding; 

amenity, in particular noise and dust; restoration and public access; 

processing facility and the close proximity to areas of habitation and leisure; 

and need for sand and gravel. The applicant states whilst there were some 

concerns expressed by the local community, in general the feedback indicates 

the attendees were pleased to have the opportunity to view and comment on 

the proposals. 

 

7.494 The statutory requirements for consultation on planning applications by local 

planning authorities are outlined in the Town and Country Planning 

(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), 

the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 2017, as amended by the Town and Country Planning 

Page 282

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2096124/sci-for-gloucestershire-2nd-review-revised-covid-19-version-adopted-june-2020.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2096124/sci-for-gloucestershire-2nd-review-revised-covid-19-version-adopted-june-2020.pdf


247 
 

(Development Management Procedure, Listed Buildings and Environmental 

Impact Assessment) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 

and subsequent Town and Country Planning (Local Planning, Development 

Management Procedure, Listed Buildings etc.) (England) (Coronavirus) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2020. 

 

7.495 The statutory requirement is for a site display in at least one place on or near 

the land to which the application relates for not less than 30 days and by 

publication of the notice in a newspaper circulating in the locality in which the 

land to which the application relates is situated. The dates and location of 

such publicity was co-ordinated between officers at Gloucestershire County 

Council (GCC) and Worcestershire County Council (WCC). Throughout the 

course of both applications (GCC app.19/0081/TWMAJM and WCC 

app.19/000048/CM), the same nine site notice locations were used by both 

authorities to display their respective notices. A copy of the map showing 

these nine locations were displayed on GCC’s website, a copy of which can 

be found here. 

 

7.496 For the consultations that took place in December 2019 – January 2020; 

January 2022 – February 2022; and June – July 2022, 9 Public Notices were 

erected on and in the vicinity of the application site; a Press Notice was 

published in the Gloucestershire Citizen & Echo, giving at least 30 days' 

notice and neighbour consultation letters were sent out to local residents / 

businesses in both Worcestershire and Gloucestershire. Copies of Public 

Notices were also sent to the Parish Councils and neighbouring Parish and 

Town Councils so that they could be displayed on notice boards or similar in 

the local area. 

 

7.497 The public consultation that took place in August 2020 – October 2020 was 

undertaken in accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and Country 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, as amended 

by The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure, 

Listed Buildings and Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) 

(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020. For the consultation that took 

place in April 2021 – May 2021, public consultation was undertaken in 

accordance with Regulation 25 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, as amended by The 

Town and Country Planning (Local Planning, Development Management 

Procedure, Listed Buildings etc.) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2020. This was because the applicant was not able to make 

copies of an ES available at a named address because it was not reasonably 

practicable to do so for reasons connected to the effects of coronavirus, 

including restrictions on movement. For these consultations, additional 

methods of consultation were undertaken to that listed above, including the 

applicant writing to the local residents, businesses and stakeholders on their 

consultation database. 

 

Page 283

https://ww3.gloucestershire.gov.uk/PROW/PROWWS.asmx/GetFileGCCContents?Filename=images%2f19_0081_TWMAJM_SITE_NOTICE_PLAN.PDF


248 
 

7.498 In view of this, the MPA is satisfied that the appropriate procedures have been 

complied with. 

 

Human Rights  

 

7.499 Letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 

grounds of adverse impacts upon Human Rights, in particular Article 8. 

 

7.500 From 2nd October 2000, the Human Rights Act 1998 has the effect of 

enshrining much of the European Convention on Human Rights in UK law. 

Article 8 of the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees a right to respect for 

private and family life and Article 1 of the First Protocol guarantees the right to 

peaceful enjoyment of possessions.  Article 8 also provides that there shall be 

no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except in the 

interests of national security, public safety, or the economic well-being of the 

country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or 

morals, or for the protection of the freedom of others. 

 

7.501 The law provides a right to deny planning permission where the reason for 

doing so is related to the public interest. Alternatively, having given due 

consideration to the rights of others, the local planning authority can grant 

planning permission in accordance with adopted policies in the Development 

Plan.  

 

7.502 All material planning issues raised through the consultation exercise have 

been considered and for the reasons set out in the Planning Considerations 

above it is not considered that there would be any breach of the Convention 

rights.  Even if there was to be an interference with Convention rights then, in 

this case, it is considered that the interference would be justified in the 

interests of economic well-being.  Accordingly, it would not be unlawful to 

grant planning permission for this proposal.  

 

Obligations under the Equality Act 2010 

 

7.503 The MPA in carrying out its duties must have regard to the obligations placed 

upon it under the Equality Act and due regard has, therefore, been had to the 

requirements of Section 149 (Public Sector Equality Duty) to safeguard 

against unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by the Act. It also requires public bodies to advance 

equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 

and people who do not share it; and foster good relations between people who 

share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it. The MPA 

considers that the proposed development would not give rise to significant 

adverse effects upon the communities in the area or socio-economic factors, 

particularly those with ‘protected characteristics’ by virtue that the impacts of 

the proposal can be mitigated so that they would not have a significant impact 

on groups with ‘protected characteristics’. 

 

Page 284



249 
 

Other points 

 

7.504 Concerns have been raised by local residents that their house prices would be 

adversely affected by the proposal. The MPA notes their concerns but advises 

Members that property values are not a relevant material consideration in the 

determination of this planning application.  

 

Conclusions and summary reasons for the grant of planning permission 

 

7.505 The proposal in this planning application is to create a new vehicular access 

off the A38, along with a haul route, weighbridge, welfare office, processing 

plant and equipment (including concrete batching plant), creation of clean 

water ponds, silt ponds, stockpiles and other works. This proposal is an 

ancillary development associated with the extraction of sand and gravel in 

Worcestershire and importation of inert materials to facilitate the restoration of 

the quarry site in Worcestershire to wetlands, nature conservation and 

agriculture. 

 

7.506 The application site straddles the administrative boundaries of Gloucestershire 

and Worcestershire. Parallel applications have been submitted to both 

Gloucestershire County Council and Worcestershire County Council. The 

majority of the mineral extraction is proposed within Worcestershire. 

 

7.507 The proposed development is seeking to extract approximately 1.44 million 

tonnes of sand and gravel, that would be extracted at an estimated rate of 

approximately 250,000 tonnes per year. It is estimated that the site would be 

exhausted of mineral and restored within 9 years of the commencement of the 

development.  

 

7.508 The site would be progressively restored using a combination of site derived 

soils, overburden and imported inert waste material. The application 

submission defines imported inert waste as “including uncontaminated or 

treated sub-soils, as well as construction, demolition and excavation waste 

such as, but not limited to concrete; bricks; tiles; and ceramics that will not 

undergo any physical, chemical or biological transformations of significance 

and will not give rise to environmental pollution or risk harm to human health 

as a result of coming into contact with other matter”. Approximately 1.4 million 

tonnes of inert waste material would be required to return Phases 1 to 9 in 

Worcestershire back to pre-extraction levels. The estimated annual rate of 

disposal would be about 165,222 tonnes per year. 

 

7.509 With regard to the soil resource and BMV agricultural land, approximately 32.9 

hectares of the existing agricultural land (in Gloucestershire and 

Worcestershire combined) is Grades 2 (located in Gloucestershire) and 3a, 

which are BMV agricultural land. The proposed restoration seeks to establish 

new areas of nature conservation and wetland and approximately 30 hectares 

of agricultural land, restored to Grade 3a, equating to an overall net loss of 

BMV by approximately 2.9 hectares (Worcestershire and Gloucestershire 

Page 285



250 
 

combined). The applicant has confirmed that there would be a loss of 

approximately 3.36 hectares of BMV agricultural land in Gloucestershire due 

to the retention of the clean water pond and silt ponds and surrounding 

habitats. However, in Worcestershire there would be a gain of approximately 

0.46 hectares as the applicant proposes to create additional BMV agricultural 

land on the swathe of former Grade 3b agricultural land in part of Phases 1 to 

9. Natural England raises no objections to the proposal, stating that they are 

satisfied with the Detailed Restoration and LEMP and Soils Handling Strategy, 

except they consider that the applicant should design under land drainage into 

the scheme at the start rather than rely on retro designing if needed.  

 

7.510 In view of the above the MPA (Gloucestershire) consider that subject to the 

imposition of appropriate conditions relating to the management of the soil 

resource including the development being carried out in accordance with the 

submitted Soil Handling Strategy, detailed drainage scheme, an updated 

Outline Aftercare Scheme and Detailed Aftercare Scheme, then the objectives 

of the NPPF in respect of soils and their use in the restoration of BMV 

agricultural land would be met, and the scheme would be in accordance with 

Policy DM07 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032. 

 

7.511 In respect of matters concerning traffic, highway safety and public rights of 

way, the proposal would generate approximately 144 HGV movements per 

day (72 HGVs entering the site and 72 HGVs exiting the site per day), 

equalling 13 two-way HGV movements per hour, or 1 HGV movement in 

either direction every 4 to 5 minutes during a weekday. This equates to an 

increase of approximately 3.3% of total traffic movements along the A38. 

 

7.512 Vehicular access into the site would be achieved via a bell mouth priority 

junction onto the A38 in Gloucestershire, leading to an internal haul road. 

Based on the advice of National Highways, the Highway Authority, County 

Public Rights of Way team, and the British Horse Society (South-West), the 

MPA is satisfied that the proposal would not have an unacceptable impact 

upon traffic, highway safety or public rights of way in Gloucestershire, in 

accordance with Policy DM03 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire, Policy INF1 of the adopted Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, and Policy TRAC9 of the adopted 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031, subject to the imposition of appropriate 

conditions regarding access only be gained to and from the site from the 

proposed haul road; construction of means of access for vehicles prior to 

commencement of use; provision of cycle storage facilities; provision of 

vehicular visibility splays; provision of electric vehicle charging points prior to 

the development being brought into use; provision of on-site parking and 

loading/unloading facilities; highway condition survey; restriction on the output 

of mineral; internal roads to be maintained in a good condition and free of 

potholes or other defects; site speed limit; appropriate signage; the site not 

being open to the general public for commercial purposes, and protective 

fencing details. 

Page 286



251 
 

7.513 Based on the advice of Worcestershire Regulatory Services, Environment 

Agency, UK Health Security Agency and the County ‘Prevention, Wellbeing 

and Communities Hub’ team. The MPA considers that, subject to the 

imposition of appropriate conditions that there would be no unacceptable 

adverse noise, dust, air pollution, vibration or lighting impacts on residential 

amenity or that of human health, in accordance with Policies DM01 and DM02 

of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy and Policy GD6 of the 

Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

7.514 With regards to landscape character and appearance of the local area, the 

MPA considers that should planning permission be granted, conditions should 

be imposed requiring the permission to be restored within a set timescale, 

being carried out in accordance with the Soil Handling Strategy, design of 

screening bunds, phased working scheme, design of conveyors, boundary 

treatments, annual topographical surveys, detailed drainage scheme and 

management plan, restricting lighting, Noise, Vibration and Dust Management 

Plans and monitoring schemes, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme, updated 

LEMP, being carried out in accordance with the Arboricultural Report, limiting 

the height of stockpiles, updated restoration scheme, aftercare scheme, 10-

year aftercare period, interpretation strategy, and removing permitted 

development rights.  

 

7.515 In view of the above and based on the advice of GCC’s Landscape Advisor 

and Tewkesbury Borough Council, the MPA considers that the proposed 

development would not have an unacceptable impact upon the character and 

appearance of the local area, including the Cotswolds AONB National 

Landscape and views from public rights of way, subject to the imposition of 

appropriate conditions. The MPA considers that the proposal is in accordance 

with Policy DM09 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, 

Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy, Policy LAN2 of the adopted Tewkesbury Borough Plan and Policy 

GD4 of the adopted Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

 

7.516 With regards to the historic environment, there are a number of heritage 

assets with the context of the application site. The MPA considers that the 

proposals would lead to 'less than substantial' harm to the significance of the 

designated heritage assets of Towbury Hill Camp Schedule Monument, 

Twyning Farm including Walled Garden and Dairy, Shuthonger Villa, 

Shuthonger House, boundary wall, gates and gate piers to Shuthonger House 

and Church End Twyning Conservation Area. Notwithstanding this harm is 

less than substantial, the harm must still be given considerable importance 

and weight, and considerable weight must be given to the desirability of 

preserving the setting of the designated heritage assets. Consequently, the 

fact of harm to designated heritage assets is still to be given more weight than 

if simply a factor to be taken into account along with all other material 

considerations.  

 

Page 287



252 
 

7.517 The MPA considers that subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions, 

that on balance, in view of the public benefits of the proposal, namely the 

creation of a small number of direct employment opportunities (approximately 

20 employees), as well as contributing to the wider growth aspirations for the 

County through the supply of local aggregates to the construction market, that 

this outweighs the temporary and less than substantial harm to these 

designated heritage assets.  

 

7.518 Based on the advice of the County Heritage team and the Conservation 

Officer at Tewkesbury Borough Council, the MPA considers that on balance, 

subject to the imposition of an appropriate condition, that the impact upon the 

non-designated archaeological assets is not of such significance as to 

constitute a refusal reason in this instance. The MPA considers that the 

proposal is in accordance with Policy DM08 of the adopted Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD8 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, and Policies HER1, HER2 and HER4 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031. 

 

7.519 With regards to ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity the application site is 

located approximately 40 kilometres north-east of the Severn Estuary SPA 

and SAC which form the Severn Estuary European Marine Site. The Severn 

Estuary is also notified as a Ramsar Site (of international importance) and at a 

national level as the Upper Severn SSSI and the adjacent Severn Estuary 

SSSI. Despite the distance from the Severn Estuary, the application site is 

hydrologically linked to it and hence has some potential for impacts through 

hydrological connectivity and the potential presence of migratory species that 

use or pass through the Severn Estuary.  

 

7.520 Consultants on behalf of the MPA as the competent authority have carried out 

a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) Screening to identify whether the 

proposal would result in likely significant effects upon European sites. The 

HRA Screening concludes that the proposal could result in likely significant 

effects to the Severn Estuary SAC / SPA / Ramsar site. Therefore, these 

effects require further consideration at the HRA Appropriate Assessment (AA) 

stage to determine whether, in light of any mitigation and avoidance 

measures, they would result in adverse effects on the integrity of the above 

European sites, either alone, or in combination with other plans and projects.  

 

7.521 The HRA AA stage concludes that with appropriate mitigation and protective 

measures, there would be no effect on the integrity of the Severn Estuary SAC 

/ SPA / Ramsar site in view of its conservation objectives, and as such an 

adverse effect in combination is also ruled out and no further assessment is 

required.  

 

7.522 Based on the advice of Natural England, County Ecologist and the Earth 

Heritage Trust, it is considered that subject to the imposition of appropriate 

conditions, that the proposed development would have no unacceptable 

adverse effects on the ecology, biodiversity and geodiversity at the site or in 

Page 288



253 
 

the surrounding area, including European sites, and would protect, conserve 

and enhance the application site’s value for biodiversity, in accordance with 

Policy DM06 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD9 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, Policies NAT1, 

NAT2 and NAT3 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031, Policy GD4 of 

the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 and the 

aims and objectives that the NPPF seeks to safeguard and promote in respect 

of the Natural Environment. 

 

7.523 With regards the water environment and flood risk, a Flood Risk Assessment 

accompanied the application, as the proposed development spans all three 

Flood Zones as shown on the Environment Agency's Indicative Flood Risk 

Map. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment demonstrate that no net loss of 

floodplain storage would occur throughout the life of the proposed 

development. As all of the site area would be restored to or below pre-

excavation ground levels, it would provide a net gain in floodplain storage and 

conveyance.  

 

7.524 Based on the advice of the Environment Agency, Canal and River Trust, Lead 

Local Flood Authority and Severn Trent Water Limited, the MPA considers 

that the proposal would have no unacceptable adverse effects on the water 

environment, including flooding, subject to the imposition of appropriate 

conditions. The MPA considers that the proposal is in accordance with 

Policies DM04 and DM05 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire, Policy WCS12 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core 

Strategy (2012), Policy INF2 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy, Policies NAT2 and ENV2 of the recently adopted 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 and Policy GD7 of the Twyning Parish 

Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

7.525 The MPA considers that the proposal strikes an acceptable compromise 

between the reinstatement of BMV agricultural land and the creation of 

wetland / nature conservation areas. The imposition of appropriate conditions 

relating to restoration schemes, annual surveys of the ground levels, requiring 

the site to be restored within 9 years of commencement of the development, 

long-term aftercare period and detailed restoration and aftercare schemes. 

This would ensure that there was limited disturbed land, and that the site is 

restored at the earliest opportunity and to high environmental standards. In 

view of the above, it is considered that the proposal accords with Policy MR01 

of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire and Policy WCS8 of 

the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy. 

 

7.526 In terms of economic impact, the MPA acknowledges the potential adverse 

impacts upon neighbouring businesses such as Puckrup Hall Hotel and 

Church End Nursery and that the NPPF affords significant weight to the need 

to support economic growth and that great weight should be given to the 

benefits of the mineral extraction and on-site processing. In the planning 

balance, it is considered that the proposal would provide a small number of 

Page 289



254 
 

direct employment opportunities (20 full-time equivalent jobs), as well as 

contributing to the wider growth aspirations for the county through the supply 

of local aggregates to the construction market. Therefore, it is considered that 

the proposal would provide substantial sustainable economic growth benefits 

to the local economy in accordance with the NPPF and this weighs in its 

favour.  

 

7.527 On the issue of climate change and sustainability, the MPA notes that the 

proposal is well located close to the potential markets it would serve; located 

close to the primary road network; the applicant is proposing use of conveyors 

(in Worcestershire) where possible to reduce dump truck movements across 

the site and thereby reduce vehicle emissions; on site recycling of water; the 

restoration scheme would make provision for SuDS; flood risk betterment; 

extensive habitat creation; and reinstatement of BMV agricultural land. In view 

of this, the MPA considers that overall, the proposal would contribute to 

achieving sustainable development and mitigating and adapting to climate 

change, in accordance with Policy DM04 and DM05 of the adopted Minerals 

Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy WCS 1 of the adopted Gloucestershire 

Waste Core Strategy (2012), and paragraphs 8, 9 and 152 of the NPPF. 

 

7.528 Cumulative effects result from combined impacts of multiple developments 

that individually may be insignificant, but when considered together, could 

amount to a significant cumulative impact; as well as the inter-relationships 

between impacts – combined effects of different types of impacts, for example 

noise, air quality and visual impacts on a particular receptor.  

 

7.529 With regards to inter-relationships between impacts, it is considered that 

based upon the studies and content of the individual chapters within the 

submitted ES, the underlying conclusion is that there is no single topic or 

combination of issues which should objectively prevent the development from 

proceeding.  

 

7.530 With regard combined impacts of multiple developments, the ES states that 

the applicant is not aware of any of the above plans or projects that require 

due consideration as part of this development proposal and is not aware of 

any anticipated development proposal likely to result in any adverse 

cumulative impacts upon the surrounding environment.  

 

7.531 Since the submission of the proposed Bow Farm Quarry application and the 

above conclusions, a separate planning application has been submitted to 

Worcestershire County Council by CEMEX for Ripple East Quarry 

(Worcestershire Ref: 22/000015/CM), located approximately 50 metres north 

of Bow Farm Quarry application site.  

 

7.532 To ensure a robust consideration of cumulative effects the applicant submitted 

additional information in the form of an addendum to the ES. The addendum 

provides an assessment of the potential for cumulative impacts resulting from 

the simultaneous operation of the proposed quarry at Bow Farm and the 

Page 290



255 
 

neighbouring proposed Ripple East Quarry. The addendum demonstrates that 

no significant adverse effects would arise from the simultaneous working of 

the proposed Bow Farm and Ripple East Quarries, and no conclusions 

previously reached within the Bow Farm Quarry ES require alteration, and 

there is also no need for any additional or revised mitigation embedded within 

the working and restoration scheme.  

 

7.533 In view of the above, the MPA does not consider that the cumulative impact of 

the proposed development would be such that it would warrant a reason for 

refusal of the application.  

 

7.534 Paragraphs 7.1 to 7.506 of this report discuss the main issues arising in the 

consideration of this application and the degree with which they comply with 

policy. These paragraphs also discuss the degree to which any issues which 

have arisen in the consideration of proposals can potentially be addressed 

with the imposition of appropriate conditions or other controls. 

 

7.535 It is considered that the proposals comply with the Development Plan, 

National Planning Policy and any other relevant policies or Guidance and 

where there is a conflict with any Policy, those conflicts are considered to 

either not be significant enough to recommend refusal or alternatively they are 

capable of mitigation. 

 

Conclusion 

 

7.536 In accordance with paragraph 11 c) of the NPPF, development proposal that 

accord with an up-to-date Development Plan should be approved without 

delay. On balance, taking into account the provisions of the Development Plan 

and in particular Policies MW01, MW06, DM01, DM02, DM03, DM04, DM05, 

DM06, DM07, DM08; DM09, MA02 and MR01 of the adopted Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, along with Policy WCS8 of the 

Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (adopted November 2012); Policies 

SP1, SD3, SD4, SD6, SD8, SD9, SD14, INF1, INF2, INF3, INF5 and INF6 of 

the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031; 

Policies HER1, HER2, HER4, NAT1, NAT2, NAT3, ENV2, COM4 and TRAC9 

of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (adopted June 2022); Policies 

GD3, GD4, GD5, GD6, GD7, GD8, LF1, E1, TP1, TP2 and ENV1 of the 

adopted Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 and 

the aims and Interests that the National Planning Policy Framework seeks to 

protect and promote in respect of minerals related developments, it is 

considered the proposal would not cause demonstrable harm to the interests 

intended to be protected by these policies or highway safety.  

 

7.537 In determining this application, the Minerals Planning Authority has worked 

with the Applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on seeking 

solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning 

application by liaising with consultees, respondents and the Applicant/agent 

and discussing changes to the proposal where considered appropriate or 

Page 291



256 
 

necessary. This approach has been taken positively and proactively in 

accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, as set out in the Town and 

Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 

2015. 

 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 

8.1 It is recommended that planning permission is GRANTED for the reasons 

summarised in paragraphs 7.505 to 7.536, subject to the following conditions: 

  

Commencement of Development 

 

1. The development hereby approved must begin not later than the expiration of 

3 years beginning with the date of this permission. 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  

 

Prior Notification 

 

2. The operator shall ensure that notification of the date of commencement of the 

development detailed in this application shall be given in writing to the 

Mineral Planning Authority at least 14 days prior to: 

 

 i. The commencement of works to create the site entrance; 

 ii. The commencement of soil stripping operations; 

 iii. The commencement of mineral extraction; 

 iv. The commencement of operation of processing plant; 

 v. The commencement of operation of concrete batching plant; and 

 vi. The completion of soil replacement operations.  

 

Reason:  To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to monitor the operations 

and to ensure compliance with this permission. 

 

Time Limits 

 

3. All mineral processing and associated operations shall cease, and all the 

processing plant will be cleared and the site shall be restored in accordance 

with the approved restoration scheme as required by Condition 58 of this 

permission within 9 years of commencement of the development hereby 

approved. Should operations within the processing plant site cease before this 

date, the Mineral Planning Authority shall be notified in writing within 1 month 

of such activities ceasing. 

  

Reason: To comply with the requirements of section 72(5) and section 1 of 

Part 1 of Schedule 5 to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, along with 

policy MA02 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032. 

Page 292



257 
 

Scope of the Permission 

 

4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out and completed in 

accordance with the particulars of the development, plans, specifications, 

working programmes or other details contained in the application except as 

modified by conditions attached to this permission. The approved plans and 

documentation comprise:  

 

• 2636-4-4-3-Fig.2-S4-P6, titled: ‘Existing Conditions’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0002-S4-P9, titled: ‘Initial Works and Phase 1 

Extraction’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0003-S4-P8, titled: ‘Phases 3 and 4 Extraction’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0004-S4-P8, titled: ‘Phases 5 and 6 Extraction’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0005-S4-P8, titled: ‘Phases 7,8 and B Extraction’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0006-S4-P9, titled: ‘Phase 9 Extraction’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0007-S4-P9, titled: ‘Proposed Restoration’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0008-S4-P2, titled: ‘Overburden Depth Isopachyte’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0009-S4-P2, titled: ‘Mineral Depth Isopachyte’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0010-S4-P1, titled: ‘Bridge Detail’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-DR-0011-S4-P1, titled: ‘Site Location’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0012-S4-P2, titled: ‘Borehole Location Plan’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0013-S4-P4, titled: Proposed Plant Site Cross 

Sections’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-2-DR-0014-P3, titled: ‘Cross Section – Interceptor Ditch’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0015-P5, titled: ‘Plant Site Details’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0016-P3, titled: ‘Plant Site Elevations’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0017-P2, titled: ‘Proposed Pipeline Crossing’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0018-P2, titled: ‘Proposed Bridleway Crossing Detail’;  

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0019-P2, titled: ‘Bridleway, Common Land and Haul 

Route’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0020-P1, titled: ‘Common Land Designation’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0021-S4-P3, titled: ‘Tree Protection Plan’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0022-P1, titled: ‘GCC Cross Sections’; 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0023-P1, titled: ‘Towbury Hillfort SAM Sections’; and 

• 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0024-P1, titled: ‘Flexible Working Area A Restoration 

Cross Section’.  

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the nature of the development 

permitted and to ensure development is carried out in accordance with the 

approved application details and the aims and objectives of development plan 

Policies MW01, MW06, DM01, DM02, DM03, DM04, DM05, DM06, DM07, 

DM08; DM09, MA02 and MR01 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire 2018-2032, along with Policy WCS8 of the Gloucestershire 

Waste Core Strategy (adopted November 2012); Policies SP1, SD3, SD4, 

SD6, SD8, SD9, SD14, INF1, INF2, INF3, INF5 and INF6 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031; Policies HER1, 

HER2, HER4, NAT1, NAT2, NAT3, ENV2, COM4 and TRAC9 of the 

Page 293



258 
 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (adopted June 2022); Policies GD3, 

GD4, GD5, GD6, GD7, GD8, LF1, E1, TP1, TP2 and ENV1 of the adopted 

Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031 and the aims 

and interests that the National Planning Policy Framework seeks to protect 

and promote in respect of minerals related developments. 

 

5. The development hereby approved is to be used solely in conjunction with and 

ancillary to the mineral working operations permitted by Worcestershire 

County Council under their planning application reference 19/000048/CM. 

 

Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to adequately control the 

development and to ensure that the land is restored to a condition of beneficial 

use and to accord with Policy DM09, MA02 and MR01 of the Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Waste Acceptance 

 

6. No waste materials other than those defined in the application or stipulated by 

conditions(s) attached to this permission shall be imported to the site. 

 

 Reason: To define the permission. 

  

7. Inert waste material that is imported for the purpose of infilling and restoration 

purposes shall consist of uncontaminated or treated sub-soils and 

construction, demolition and excavation waste such as but not limited to: 

concrete, bricks, tiles, and ceramics that will not undergo any physical, 

chemical or biological transformations of significance and will not give rise to 

environmental pollution or risk harm to human health as a result of coming into 

contact with other matter. 

 

Reason: To define the permission. 

 

Hours of Working 

 

8. Except in emergencies, all operations and uses on the site including the 

running of any plant or machinery, shall only take place between 07:00 to 

18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays, inclusive, and 07:00 to 13:00 hours on 

Saturdays, with no operations on the site at any time on Sundays, Bank or 

Public Holidays. The Mineral Planning Authority shall be informed in writing 

within 48 hours of an emergency occurrence that would cause working outside 

the stipulated hours. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to accord with Policy DM01 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and 

Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-

2031. 

Page 294



259 
 

Highways   

 

9. Access to and from the site shall only be gained via the haul road and access 

onto A38 as shown on approved drawing numbered: 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0002-

S4-P9, titled: ‘Initial Works and Phase 1 Extraction’. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy DM01, 

DM02 and DM03 of the adopted Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

10. No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until 

the means of access for vehicles, pedestrians and/or cyclists have been 

constructed and completed in accordance with the approved plans 323580-

005 Rev A and 323580-006.  

 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure that all road works  

associated with the proposed development are: planned; approved in good 

time (including any statutory processes); undertaken to a standard approved 

by the Mineral Planning Authority and are completed before occupation. 

 

11. No part of the processing plant area shall be brought into use until the cycle 

storage facilities for a minimum of 4 no. cycles have been made available for 

use and those facilities shall be maintained for the duration of the 

development.  

 

Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking 

and to accord with Policy TRAC2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-

2031. 

 

12. Development shall not begin until visibility splays are provided from a point 0.6  

metres above carriageway level at the centre of the access to the application 

site and 2.4 metres back from the near side edge of the adjoining 

carriageway, (measured perpendicularly), for a distance of 144 metres to the 

south and 155 metres to the north measured along the nearside edge of the 

adjoining carriageway. Nothing shall be planted, erected and/or allowed to 

grow on the triangular area of the land so formed which would obstruct the 

visibility described above.  

 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM01, 

DM02 and DM03 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, 

along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint 

Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

13. No part of the processing plant area shall be brought into use until a minimum 

of 2 no. electric vehicle charging spaces have been provided in accordance 

Page 295



260 
 

with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning 

Authority and thereafter such spaces and power points shall be kept available 

and maintained for the use of electric vehicles as approved.  

 

Reason: To encourage sustainable travel and healthy communities. 

 

14. The buildings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular 

parking, turning and loading/unloading facilities have been provided in 

accordance with the submitted plans and those facilities shall be maintained 

available for those purposes thereafter.  

 

Reason: In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with 

Policy DM01, DM02 and DM03 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

15. Prior to any material derived within the site edged red on Site Location Plan 

leaving the site, a Highway Condition Survey shall be submitted to the Mineral 

Planning Authority. Such a survey shall be carried out in accordance with a 

methodology that has been agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning 

Authority. The methodology shall include for a further Highway Condition 

Survey to be carried out on an annual basis for the duration of the 

development hereby approved. A copy of the content of all Highway Condition 

Surveys undertaken in connection with the requirements of this condition shall 

be held on site for the duration of the development hereby approved.  

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM01, 

DM02, DM03 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

 

16. The output of mineral from the site shall not exceed a maximum of 250,000 

tonnes or 52,560 two-way HGV trips (26,280 HGV movements entering and 

26,280 HGV movements exiting the site) per calendar year.  

 

Reason: Additional levels would require further consideration by the Mineral 

Planning Authority because of the potential capacity implications on the 

highway network. 

 

17. No vehicles exiting the quarry site shall enter the public highway unless the 

wheels and chassis of those vehicles have been cleaned, in order to prevent 

the deposition of materials on the public highway. 

  

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM01, 

DM02, DM03 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Page 296



261 
 

Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

 

18. No loaded vehicles shall enter or leave the site unsheeted.  

  

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy DM01, 

DM02, DM03 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, along with Policy INF1 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraph 110 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

 

19. All mobile plant and machinery used on the site shall incorporate white noise 

reversing warning devices or any such audible warning system replacing them 

which meets the industry standard.  

 

Reason: To control noise emissions, in accordance with Policy DM01 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and 

Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-

2031. 

 

20. The haul route shall be maintained such that its surface remains in a good 

condition free of potholes or other defects.  

 

Reason: In the interest of the safety operation of the site. 

 

Vehicle Fumes 

  

21. All vehicles used for the movement of any material including soil, overburden 

or minerals shall have exhausts directed away from the ground. 

  

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policy DM01, DM02, DM05 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and paragraphs 174, 176, 185 

and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Boundary Treatments 

 

22. Details of any new fences, walls and other means of enclosure shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority prior to 

being erected. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details. 

 

Reason:  To protect the visual amenity of the site, the environmental quality of 

the surrounding area, and Public Rights of Way, in accordance with Policy 

DM01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD6 

Page 297



262 
 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031 and Policy LAN2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Visual Amenity 

 

23. Prior to the site being brought into use, the processing plant, concrete 

batching plant (including silos), weighbridge office and welfare office shall 

have an external colour finish of dark green (RAL 6002). 

 

Reason: To diminish any visual harm to the character and appearance of the 

local landscape in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and Policy LAN2 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031. 

 

CCTV 

 

24. Details and locations of any Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) to be installed 

at the site shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval in 

writing prior to being erected. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out 

in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To minimise the risk of crime. 

 

Topographical Survey 

 

25. During the 12th month following the commencement date for mineral 

extraction as notified under Condition 2 Part iii of this permission, a 

topographical survey of the application site as shown edged red on approved 

drawing numbered: 2636-4-4-2-DR-0011-S4-P1, titled: ‘Site Location’, shall be 

carried out and the resulting data submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority 

within 2 months from the date the survey was carried out. Every 12th month 

thereafter, a topographical survey of the site as shown edged red on approved 

drawing numbered: 2636-4-4-2-DR-0011-S4-P1, titled: ‘Site Location’ shall be 

carried out and the resulting data shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning 

Authority within two months of the survey date. Supplementary topographical 

surveys shall be undertaken upon the written request of the Mineral Planning 

Authority and submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority within 2 months of 

such a request. Each topographical survey shall be submitted to the Mineral 

Planning Authority at a scale of 1:1250, with all levels related to Ordnance 

Datum. Each topographical survey shall include the extent of land open for 

quarrying or undergoing restoration and include quarry floor levels. The 

requirement to undertake an annual topographical survey of the site shall 

cease upon the expiration of this permission, as set out in Condition 3 of this 

permission. 

 

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and to assist with the monitoring of the 

planning permission. 

Page 298



263 
 

Water Environment 

 

26. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a scheme 

to monitor ground and surface water features (including but not limited to 

springs, boreholes, and wells) in Gloucestershire, shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, having regard to the 

approved ‘Water Environment and Flood Risk’ section of the Environmental 

Statement, Revision P2, dated 31 October 2019, and section 12: ‘Water 

Environment’ of the Environmental Statement Regulation 25 Addendum, 

Revision P2, dated 7 August 2020, and ‘Bow Farm Sand and Gravel Quarry 

Development Hydrogeological and Hydrological Impact Assessment and 

Flood Risk Assessment undertaken by GWP Consultants, Report Ref: 

190714, Version v.02, dated 27 August 2019. The scheme shall include: 

frequency and location of monitoring boreholes; method and nature of 

sampling. Thereafter, monitoring shall be carried out and reviewed in 

accordance with the approved scheme. 

 

Reason:  To prevent impact upon and deterioration of ground or surface 

waters (‘controlled waters’ as defined under the Water Resources Act 1991), 

in accordance with Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032. 

 

27. If the monitoring scheme approved under Condition 26 of this permission 

shows any adverse risk of deterioration to the water features or 

characteristics, then extraction shall cease immediately until proposals: to 

investigate the cause of deterioration; to remediate any such risks; and to 

monitor and amend any failures of the remediation undertaken, have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 

Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details. 

 

Reason:  To prevent impact upon and deterioration of ground or surface 

waters (‘controlled waters’ as defined under the Water Resources Act 1991), 

in accordance with Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032. 

 

28. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence until 

detailed design drawings for surface water drainage have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter the 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the site can be adequately drained as well as to 

reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating flooding, in accordance with Policy 

DM04 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy INF2 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031, Policy ENV2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 and Policy 

GD7 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Page 299



264 
 

29. No works in connection with site drainage shall commence until a Sustainable 

Drainage Systems (SuDS) Management Plan which shall include details on 

future management responsibilities, together with maintenance schedules for 

all SuDS features and associated pipework has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. The Management Plan 

shall also detail the strategy that will be followed to facilitate the optimal 

functionality and performance of the SuDS scheme throughout its lifetime. The 

approved SuDS Management Plan shall be implemented in full in accordance 

with the agreed terms and conditions and shall be managed and maintained in 

accordance with the approved Management Plan and thereafter. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the site can be adequately drained as well as to 

reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating flooding, in accordance with Policy 

DM04 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy INF2 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031, Policy ENV2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 and Policy 

GD7 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

30. There shall be no discharge of foul or contaminated drainage from the site into 

either groundwater or any surface water whether direct or via soakaways. 

 

Reason:  To protect the water environment and prevent pollution, in 

accordance with Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032 and Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

31. Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited on 

impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls. The volume of 

the bunded compound shall be at least equivalent to the capacity of the tank, 

vessel or the combined capacity of interconnected tanks or vessels plus 10%. 

All filling points, associated pipework, vents, gauges and sight glasses shall be 

located within the bund or have separate secondary containment. The 

drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any 

watercourse, land or underground strata. Associated pipework shall be located 

above ground and protected from accidental damage. All filling points and tank 

or vessel overflow pipe outlets shall be detailed to discharge downwards into 

the bund. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment and to accord with 

Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and 

Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

32. Repair, maintenance and fueling of vehicles, plant and machinery shall only 

take place on an impervious surface drained to a sealed interceptor and the 

contents of the interceptor shall be removed from the site. 

 

Page 300



265 
 

Reason:  To protect the water environment and prevent pollution, in 

accordance with Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032 and Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury 

Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

33. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the construction of the bridges, 

as shown on approved drawing numbered: 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-0002-S4-P9, 

titled: ‘Initial Works and Phase 1 Extraction’, the detailed design of the bridges, 

including surfacing details, materials, colour and finishes shall be submitted to 

the Mineral Planning Authority for approval in writing. Thereafter, the 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason:  To reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating flooding, in 

accordance with Policy DM04 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, 

Policy INF2 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031, Policy ENV2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 

and Policy GD7 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

2011-2031. 

 

Lighting 

 

34. Prior to the installation of any new or replacement external lighting relevant 

details shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval. The 

submission shall be based on paragraph 7.5 of the Ecological Impact 

Assessment and include the following details:  

 

(a) the position, height and type of all lighting  

(b) the predicted intensity and spread of light 

(c) the lighting proposed must create no significant increase in illumination on 

habitats and features that are used by bats  

(d) the expected times throughout the year when such lighting will be used 

and controlled. 

 

The approved external lighting shall be implemented and maintained in 

accordance with the submitted details for the duration of the development. 

 

Reason: To protect local amenity and to ensure that bats are not discouraged 

at this location, in accordance with Policy DM01, DM06 and MA02 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, ODPM Circular 06/2005 

plus National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 174, 180 and 185. 

  

Noise and Vibration 

 

35. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no soil stripping operations shall take 

place until a Noise and Vibration Management Plan has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, which shall include 

a scheme for noise and vibration monitoring. Thereafter, the development 

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 

Page 301



266 
 

 

Reason:  To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policies DM01 and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy, Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

and paragraphs 185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

36. The noise attributable to the development within Gloucestershire that is 

hereby approved shall not exceed the levels set out below at the receptor 

locations identified in approved Appendix 5: ‘Noise and Vibration Response 

and Noise Management Plan – NVC Ltd’, dated July 2020 of the 

‘Environmental Statement – Regulation 25 Addendum’, Revision P2, dated 

August 2020, as updated by Appendix 5: ‘Noise Response’, dated May 2021 

of the ‘Environmental Statement – Regulation 25 Addendum’, Revision P2, 

dated August 2021, when measured in terms of an LAeq 1-hour level (free 

field), as measured at a point closest to the noise source with the microphone 

at a height of 1.2 metres above ground level:  

 

• Silvermead (North): LAeq, 1-hour 55dB;  

• Bow Farm: LAeq, 1-hour 54dB;  

• Puck Cottage, Bow Cottage, Bowfields, Threshing Bow, The Bow 

(East): LAeq, 1-hour 54dB;  

• Bowbridge Cottage, Scarecrow Stables, Dadsley Cottage (East): LAeq, 

1-hour 54dB  

• Puckrup Lane (Puckrup Hall): LAeq, 1-hour 53dB;  

• Fairfield Bungalow: LAeq, 1-hour 55dB;  

• Twyning Farms and Owls End (South-East): LAeq, 1-hour 54dB;  

• Redpools Farm (South): LAeq, 1-hour 55dB;  

• Windmill Tump and Bushley Green (South-West): LAeq, 1-hour 53dB;  

• The Stall, Bredon School, and Church End Farm (West): LAeq, 1-hour 

54dB; and  

• Far End / Church End Nursery: LAeq, 1-hour 55dB.  

 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policies DM01 and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy, Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

and paragraphs 174, 185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

37. During the removal of soils and superficial deposits and the creation of any 

screen bunds or restoration works, the noise limit at the receptor locations 

identified in approved Appendix 5: ‘Noise and Vibration Response and Noise 

Management Plan – NVC Ltd’, dated July 2020 of the ‘Environmental 

Statement – Regulation 25 Addendum’, Revision P2, dated August 2020, as 

updated by Appendix 5: ‘Noise Response’, dated May 2021 of the 

‘Environmental Statement – Regulation 25 Addendum’, Revision P2, dated 

August 2021, shall not exceed 70dB LAeq 1-hour (free field), as measured at 

Page 302



267 
 

a point closest to the noise source with the microphone at a height of 1.2 

metres above ground level. Such temporary operations shall not exceed a 

total of 8 weeks duration at any of the identified receptor locations in any 

continuous 12-month period. Prior written notice of at least 5 working days, 

being Mondays to Fridays inclusive, shall be given to the Mineral Planning 

Authority of the commencement and the duration of such operations. 

 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policies DM01 and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy, Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

and paragraphs 174, 185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

38.  Upon written request from the Mineral Planning Authority, the operator shall, 

at its expense, employ an independent qualified acoustic consultant to assess 

the noise impact from the development hereby approved upon the nearest 

sensitive properties. The scope, methodology and timescales for delivery of 

the noise assessment shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority 

within 21 days of such a request. The noise assessment shall not begin until 

the scope, methodology and timescales for delivery of the noise assessment 

has been agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter, the 

noise assessment shall be completed in accordance with the agreed scope 

and shall be presented to the Mineral Planning Authority within the timescales 

for delivery. 

 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policies DM01 and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy, Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

and paragraphs 174, 185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

39. Upon receipt of the independent consultant’s noise assessment by the Mineral 

Planning Authority required under Condition 38 of this permission, including all 

noise measures and any audio recordings, where the Mineral Planning 

Authority is satisfied of an established breach of noise limits set out in the 

Conditions 36 and / or 37 of this permission, and upon notification by the 

Mineral Planning Authority in writing to the quarry operator, the quarry 

operator shall within 21 days propose a scheme of mitigation for the written 

approval of the Mineral Planning Authority. The scheme of mitigation shall be 

designed to mitigate the breach and to prevent its future recurrence. This 

scheme shall specify the timescales for implementation. Thereafter, the 

approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details. 

 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the local environment in accordance with 

Policies DM01 and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-

2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Page 303



268 
 

Strategy, Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

and paragraphs 174, 185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

40. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no soil stripping operations shall take 

place, until the detailed design of the topsoil and grassed overburden 

screening bunds as shown on approved drawing number: 2636-4-4-2-1-DR-

0002-S4-P9, titled: ‘Initial Works and Phase 1 Extraction’ has been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter, the 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 

topsoil and grassed overburden screening bunds shall be constructed prior to 

mineral processing taking place within the application site within the 

administrative boundaries of Gloucestershire.  

 

Reason:  To control noise emissions and provide suitable soil storage and 

visual screening, in accordance with Policies DM01, DM07 and DM09 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD6, SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, 

Policy LAN2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 and Policy GD4 and 

GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

41. All vehicles, plant and machinery operated within the site shall be maintained 

in accordance with the manufacturers’ specifications at all times, and this shall 

include the fitting and use of silencers. Except for maintenance purposes, no 

machinery shall be operated with its covers either open or removed.  

 

Reason: To control noise emissions, in accordance with Policy Policies DM01 

and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy 

SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, 

Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

 

42. No soil stripping operations shall take place until a scheme to monitor 

vibrations has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral 

Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: method, nature, frequency, 

duration and locations of monitoring, trigger levels and contingency and 

mitigation proposals should a trigger level be breached. Thereafter monitoring 

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.  

 

Reason:  To control the impact of vibrations in accordance with Policy DM01 

and DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy 

SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 

2011-2031 and Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood 

Development Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Dust 

 

43. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved ‘Dust Management Plan – Proposed Quarry at Bow Farm’, Revision 

D, dated 8 December 2021.  

Page 304



269 
 

 

Reason: To control dust emissions, in accordance with Policy DM01 and 

DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031 and Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development 

Plan 2011-2031. 

 

44. Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 43 of this permission, the following 

measures shall be undertaken to suppress dust emissions on the site arising 

from all operations, including vehicular movements, mineral extraction, infilling 

operations and restoration:  

 

i. The provision of a water bowser and spraying units which shall be used at 

all times when there is a risk of dust arising from operations at the site;  

ii.  All plant vehicles shall have upward facing exhausts to ensure that 

emissions are directed away from the ground; and  

iii. There shall be a maximum speed limit of 10mph within the site.  

 

Reason: To control dust emissions, in accordance with Policy DM01 and 

DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031 and Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development 

Plan 2011-2031. 

 

45. No soil stripping operations shall take place, until a scheme for continuous 

dust monitoring has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral 

Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: method, nature, frequency, 

duration and locations of monitoring, trigger levels and contingency and 

mitigation proposals should a trigger level be breached. Thereafter monitoring 

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.  

 

Reason: To control dust emissions, in accordance with Policy DM01 and 

DM02 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 

of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-

2031 and Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development 

Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Archaeology 

 

46. No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological work, 

including a Written Scheme of Investigation, has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. The scheme shall 

include an assessment of significance and research questions and:  

 

 i. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording;  

 ii.  The programme for post investigation assessment;  

 iii.  Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording;  

Page 305



270 
 

iv.  Provision to be made and timetable for publication and dissemination of 

the analysis and records of the site investigation;  

v.  Provision to be made and timetable for archive deposition of the analysis 

and records of the site investigation; and  

vi.  Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake 

the works set out within the Written Scheme of Investigation.  

 

Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details. 

 

Reason: To make provision for the investigation and recording of any 

archaeological remains that may be destroyed by ground works required for 

the development. The archaeological programme will advance understanding 

of any heritage assets which will be lost, in accordance with DM08 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and paragraph 205 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Tree Protection 

 

47. The details and measures of tree protection and arboricultural methods are 

approved and shall be implemented as set out within the revised Arboricultural 

Report on Trees dated December 2021 and the Tree Protection Plan’, 

numbered: 2636-4-4-2-1 DR-0021 S4-P3, dated December 2021. All 

protective structures installed shall be maintained until all works have been 

completed. No materials, soils, or equipment shall be stored under the canopy 

of any retained tree or hedgerow within or immediately bordering the 

application site. 

 

Reason: To ensure that biodiversity and amenity is conserved and in 

accordance with Policy DM06 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for 

Gloucestershire, Policy SD6 and SD9 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 

Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, ODPM Circular 06/2005 plus 

National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 8, 174 and 180. 

 

Ecology 

 

48. No development shall take place until a Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 

The Scheme shall be based on Sections 8, 9.1 to 9.4 and Appendix 5 of the 

Ecological Impact Assessment in addition to Sections 3.14 to 3.25 of the 

Detailed Restoration Proposals and Landscape and Ecological Management 

Plan dated December 2021. The Scheme should be compiled by a suitably 

qualified ecologist and include method statements with details of further 

surveys, protection measures, translocation arrangements, timings of works, 

creation or enhancement of habitats and features, related aftercare 

management, monitoring, and contingency measures. The Scheme shall 

include appropriate and precautionary method statements for: 

 

Page 306



271 
 

 (a) roosting bats in trees; 

 (b) badgers plus hedgehog and polecat; 

 (c) hedgerow, tree and ground nesting birds; 

 (d) flora that will be lost; 

 (e) grass snake and other reptiles; 

 (f) otters; 

 (g) wild mammals; 

 (h) any other legally protected or priority species that might be   

  encountered (precautionary measures only); 

 (i) buffer or stand-off zones for all retained hedgerows, trees, plantations 

  and watercourses; 

  (j) checking of temporary bunds and stockpiles for protected species and 

  their protection prior to bund or stockpile removal; 

  (k) measures to control and prevent the spread of non-native invasive  

  species; 

 (l) a work schedule of tasks (including a 10-year timetable and a long-term 

  strategy for protected and priority species); 

 (m) monitoring and remedial or contingency measures; 

 (n) Ecological Clerk of Works responsible for implementation of the  

  scheme. 

 

 The scheme shall be implemented as approved by the Mineral Planning 

Authority. Any significant modifications to the approved details for example 

because of a protected species licence being required must be submitted to 

and agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 

 

 Reason: To ensure that important biodiversity is conserved and in accordance 

with Policy DM06 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD9 of 

the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 plus National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 

174 and 180. 

 

49.  Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the 

development hereby approved, an updated Landscape and Ecological 

Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be carried 

out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

 Reason: To protect, conserve and enhance the site’s value for biodiversity 

and to maintain the visual and environmental quality of the site, in accordance 

with Policy Policy DM06 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy 

SD9 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 

2011-2031, ODPM Circular 06/2005 plus National Planning Policy Framework 

paragraphs 174 and 180. 

 

50.  A fish rescue shall be carried out in accordance with the approved ‘Fish 

Rescue Strategy – Land at Bow Farm, Ripple, Worcestershire – Planning 

Applications 19/000048/CM and 19/0081/TWMAJM’, dated 31 August 2022. 

Page 307



272 
 

This shall include a post flood event review undertaken by a specialist 

contractor to ensure voids are investigated and cleared of any fish.  

 

Reason: To mitigate impact upon migratory fish and to protect fish which may 

become trapped in voids created from the extraction of sand and gravel, in 

accordance with Policy DM06 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, 

Policy SD9 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031, Policy NAT1 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 

and Policy GD4 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

2011-2031. 

 

Stockpiled Material 

 

51. The height of any stockpiled material shall not exceed 5 metres in height. 

  

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to accord with policy DM01, DM08 

and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and 

Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

Soil Handling and Storage 

 

52. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved Soil Handling Strategy, Revision P4, dated 8 December 2021. 

 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

53. Soil handling and placement shall be carried out in accordance with The 

Institute of Quarrying publication ‘Good Practice Guide for Handling Soils in 

Minerals Workings’ (July 2021), and only when the soils are dry and friable 

and in dry ground conditions. 

 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

54. Notwithstanding Condition 52 of this permission, soil handling and movement, 

including soil stripping and the construction of soil storage bunds shall not be 

carried out between the months of December to March inclusive.  

 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Page 308



273 
 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

55. All topsoil and subsoil shall be permanently retained on site and used in 

restoration. All available soil forming materials shall be recovered during 

excavation to achieve restoration of the site.  

 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

56. All topsoil, subsoil and soil forming materials shall be stored in separate bunds 

which:  

 

i. Shall be constructed with only the minimum amount of soil compaction to 

ensure stability and so shaped as to avoid collection of water in surface 

undulations;  

ii. Shall not be traversed by heavy vehicles or machinery except where 

essential for the purposes of mound construction or maintenance;  

iii.  Shall not be subsequently moved or added to until required for restoration;  

iv.  Shall have a minimum 3 metre stand-off buffer of undisturbed ground 

around each storage mound;  

v.  Shall only store topsoil on like textured topsoil and subsoil on like textured 

subsoil;  

vi.  Topsoil bunds shall not exceed 3 metres in height and subsoil (or subsoil 

substitute) bunds shall not exceed 5 metres in height; and  

vii.  Shall, if continuous bunds are used, have dissimilar soils separated by a 

third material previously approved in writing by the Mineral Planning 

Authority.  

 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

57. No plant or vehicles shall cross any area of unstripped soil or subsoil, except 

where such trafficking is essential for the purposes of undertaking permitted 

operations. Essential traffic routes shall be marked in such a manner as to 

give effect to this condition. No part of the site shall be excavated, traversed or 

used as a road for the stationing of plant or buildings or for the storage of 

subsoil, overburden, waste or mineral deposits, until all available topsoil has 

been stripped from that part. The exceptions are that topsoil may be stored on 

like topsoil and subsoil may be stored on like subsoil.  

 

Page 309



274 
 

Reason: To ensure soils are managed and conserved for beneficial purposes 

to ensure the satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with Policy 

Policy DM07, DM09 and MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 

2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

Restoration of the Site 

 

58. Restoration of the site is to be as depicted in drawing DR-0007 S4-P9 dated 

December 2021 and aftercare based on the management categories and 

details of the Detailed Restoration Proposals and Landscape and Ecological 

Management Plan dated December 2021. A restoration, aftercare and 

monitoring report shall be submitted in writing for approval each year or as 

otherwise agreed by the Mineral Planning Authority. Annual reports are 

required for an establishment and ongoing aftercare period of not less than 10 

years following the restoration of the Plant Site and Silt Lagoons. 

 

Reason: To conserve and enhance the landscape and biodiversity value of 

the land and in accordance with Policy DM06, DM09 and MR01 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD6 and SD9 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 plus National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 

8, 174 and 180. 

 

59. In the event that the winning and working of minerals ceases prior to the 

achievement of the completion of the approved restoration scheme referred to 

in Condition 58 of this permission which, in the opinion of the Mineral Planning 

Authority constitutes a permanent cessation, a revised scheme, to include 

details of restoration and aftercare, shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning 

Authority for approval in writing within 6 months of the cessation of the winning 

and working of minerals. The revised scheme shall be fully implemented within 

12 months of being approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority or 

such revised timescale as shall be determined by the Mineral Planning 

Authority.  

 

Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to adequately control the 

development and to ensure that the land is restored to a condition of beneficial 

use and to accord with Policy DM09, MA02 and MR01 of the Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, along with paragraph 211(e) of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

60. In any part of the site where differential settlement occurs during the 

restoration and aftercare period, the applicant, where required by the Mineral 

Planning Authority, shall fill the depression to the final settlement contours 

specified with suitable imported soils, to a specification to be agreed in writing 

with the Mineral Planning Authority prior to such soils being imported to the 

site.  

 

Page 310



275 
 

Reason: To ensure satisfactory restoration of the site, in accordance with 

Policy MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032. 

 

Aftercare 

 

61. The land within the application site shall undergo aftercare management for a 

10-year period. Prior to any area being entered into aftercare the extent of the 

area and its date of entry into aftercare shall be agreed in writing with the 

Mineral Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To provide for aftercare of the restored site, in accordance with 

Policy MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2031. 

 

62. Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the 

development hereby approved, an updated outline aftercare scheme shall be 

submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval in writing. Such a 

scheme shall specify the steps which are to be taken to bring the land up to 

the required standard for the land uses shown on the approved restoration 

scheme, as required by Condition 58 of this permission. These steps shall 

include the following:  

 

i.  Control of invasive species;  

ii.  Timing and pattern of vegetation establishment;  

iii.  Cultivation practices;  

iv.  Management of soil, fertility and weeds;  

v.  Drainage;  

vi.  Irrigation and watering;  

vii.  A timetable for undertaking the aftercare scheme; and  

viii.  The establishment of an aftercare working group comprising of the 

operator, the Mineral Planning Authority and ecological specialists 

including a timetable for frequency of meetings. The working group shall 

assess and review the detailed programmes of aftercare operations and 

the setting out of actions for subsequent years having regard to the 

condition of the land, progress on its rehabilitation and necessary 

maintenance.  

 

Reason: To provide for aftercare of the restored site, in accordance with 

Policy MR01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2031. 

 

Records 

 

63. From the date that the operation of the processing plant commenced, as 

notified under Condition 2 (iv) of this permission, the operator(s) shall maintain 

records of their monthly tonnage of mineral exported from the site, along with 

the monthly tonnage of imported inert waste for the purpose of restoration of 

the site and shall make such records available to the Minerals and Waste 

Planning Authority at any time upon request. The records should be kept for a 

minimum of 24 months. 

Page 311



276 
 

Reason: To define the scope of the development in the interests of 

safeguarding the amenity of nearby residents, highway safety, for the 

avoidance of an unacceptable impacts on the highway network and monitoring 

purposes in accordance with Policy DM01 and DM03 of the Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire, Policy SD14 and INF1 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, Policy WCS8 of 

the Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (2012) and saved policy 37 of the 

Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan 2002-2012. 

 

Pollution Control 

 

64. No sewage or trade effluent, including cooling water containing chemical 

additives should be discharged to the surface water system. Vehicle 

washdown water shall be discharged into a totally sealed tank. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment and to accord with 

Policy DM05 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and 

Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

Interpretation Strategy 

 

65. Within 6 months of the commencement of the development hereby approved, 

an interpretation strategy for cultural heritage, landscape, biodiversity and 

geodiversity shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval 

in writing. The Strategy shall include the content topic headings, design, size, 

quantity and location of any interpretation panels and the timescales for their 

installation. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To ensure appropriate provision of interpretation facilities, in the 

interests of cultural heritage, landscape, biodiversity and geodiversity, in 

accordance with Policies DM06, DM08 and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan 

for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD6, SD8 and SD9 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, along with 

Policies NAT1 and LAN2 of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031. 

 

Permitted Development 

 

66. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A of Part 2, Class L of Part 7, and 

Class A and Class B of Part 17 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any 

order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), no gate, fence, wall or 

other means of enclosure, fixed or mobile plant, machinery, buildings, 

structures, erections or private ways shall be erected, extended, installed, 

rearranged, replaced or altered within the site without the approval of the 

Mineral Planning Authority.  

 

Page 312



277 
 

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to accord with policy DM01, DM08 

and DM09 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and 

Policy SD6 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

Other Matters 

 

67. There shall be no crushing, screening, sorting or processing of any imported 

waste materials on the site.  

 

Reason: To define the permission and to protect the amenity of adjacent 

residential properties, in accordance with Policies DM01 and DM02 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy, Policy GD6 of 

the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan and paragraphs 174, 

185 and 211 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

68. No direct public sales operation shall be carried out from the site in 

association with the development hereby permitted. 

 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, the amenity of the area and to 

accord with Policy DM01, DM02 and DM03 of the adopted Minerals Local 

Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, 

Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031, along with 

Policy GD6 and TP1 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 

2011-2031. 

 

69. No materials shall be burned on the site.  

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to accord with Policy DM01 of the 

Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032, Policy SD14 of the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 and 

Policy GD6 of the Twyning Parish Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011-

2031. 

 

Local Liaison 

 

70. No development shall commence until a scheme that sets out measures for 

liaison arrangements with the local community has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter, the 

approved scheme shall be implemented for the duration of the development 

hereby approved.  

 

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents and to ensure 

satisfactory restoration of the site. 

 

 

 

Page 313



278 
 

Planning Permission 

 

71. A copy of this decision notice, together with all approved plans and documents 

required under the conditions of this permission shall be maintained at the site 

office at all times throughout the duration of the development and shall be 

made known to any person(s) given responsibility for management or control 

of activities / operations on the site.  

 

Reason: To define the permission and to enable the monitoring of the consent 

in the interests of the amenity of the surrounding area, in accordance with 

Policy DM01 of the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032 and 

Policy SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy 2011-2031. 

 

  

ADVICE NOTES 

 

Ecology 

 

Advice Note 1. - Under the Weeds Act 1959 (as amended) and Ragwort 
Control Act 2003 (as amended) you may need to take action to prevent the 
spread of certain plants onto surrounding areas that could cause a nuisance. 
These plants include native injurious weeds. Further information is available 
on Defra’s section of the government website currently at 
https://www.gov.uk/prevent-the-spread-of-harmful-invasive-and-non-native-
plants . 

 

Advice Note 2. - If a protected species (such as any bat, great crested newt, 

badger, water vole, otter, reptile, barn owl or any nesting bird) is discovered 

using a feature on site that would be affected by the development or related 

works all activity which might affect the species at the locality should cease. If 

such discoveries can be dealt with satisfactorily by the implementation of 

mitigation measures that have already been drawn up by your ecological 

advisor and approved by the Mineral Planning Authority, then these should be 

implemented. Otherwise, a suitably experienced ecologist should be 

contacted, and the situation assessed before works can proceed. This action 

is necessary to avoid possible prosecution and ensure compliance with the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Protection of Badgers 

Act 1992. Works taking place between 1st March and 31st August require 

special care as trees, shrub, open fields, or certain parts of built structures 

could harbour nesting birds unless it is reasonably determined by observation 

or survey by an experienced person that nesting bird activity is absent. This 

advice note should be passed on to any persons or contractors carrying out 

the development/works. 

 

Page 314

https://www.gov.uk/prevent-the-spread-of-harmful-invasive-and-non-native-plants
https://www.gov.uk/prevent-the-spread-of-harmful-invasive-and-non-native-plants


279 
 

Advice Note 3. - In relation to Gloucestershire County Council’s Service Level 

Agreement with the Local Biological Records Centre and to assist in the 

strategic conservation of biodiversity, all species and habitat records from the 

ecological work commissioned by the applicant should be copied [if not 

already] to the Gloucestershire Centre for Environmental Records (GCER). 

 

Highways 

 

Advice Note 4. - The development hereby approved includes the carrying out 

of work on the adopted highway. You are advised that before undertaking 

work on the adopted highway you must enter into a highway agreement under 

Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the County Council, which would 

specify the works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be 

carried out. 

Contact the Highway Authority’s Legal Agreements Development 

Management Team at highwaylegalagreements@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

allowing sufficient time for the preparation and signing of the Agreement. You 

will be required to pay fees to cover the Councils costs in undertaking the 

following actions:  

 

i. Drafting the Agreement  

ii. A Monitoring Fee  

iii. Approving the highway details  

iv. Inspecting the highway works  

 

Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway 

Agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, 

the bond secured and the Highway Authority’s technical approval and 

inspection fees paid before any drawings will be considered and approved. 

 

Advice Note 5. - The development hereby approved and any associated 

highway works required, is likely to impact on the operation of the highway 

network during its construction (and any demolition required). You are advised 

to contact the Highway Authorities Network Management Team at  

Network&TrafficManagement@gloucestershire.gov.uk before undertaking any 

work, to discuss any temporary traffic management measures required, such 

as footway, Public Right of Way, carriageway closures or temporary parking 

restrictions a minimum of eight weeks prior to any activity on site to enable 

Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme of 

Temporary Traffic Management measures to be agreed. 

 

Common Land 

 

Advice Note 6.- Certain works hereby approved by this planning permission 

are not exempt under the Commons Act 2006 and will require prior consent 

under Section 38 of the Act. 

 

 

Page 315

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/application-form-for-consent-to-construct-works-on-common-land


280 
 

Pipelines 

 

Advice Note 7. – Exolum’s apparatus will be affected by the proposals 

approved by this planning permission. The interests of the Exolum are 

conserved by means of the Energy Act 2013, in particular Part IV of the Act, 

and other legislation such as the Pipeline Safety Regulations 1996. It is, 

however, the Energy Act 2013 that prohibits any development and most 

intrusive activities within the Easement Strip without specific consent from 

Exolum. Exolum’s Easement Strips are 6 metres wide and can incorporate 

other associated Exolum facilities. 

 

You should not undertake any work or activity without first contacting Exolum 

for advice and, if required, obtain a Works Consent. For a copy of Exolum’s 

Standard Requirements for Crossing or Working in Close Proximity to Exolum 

Pipelines, please visit https://lsbud.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/10/lsbud-

standard-requirement-uk-um.pdf. This will provide you with practical 

information regarding the legislation that governs the Exolum. 

 

  

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  

 

Planning Application file 19/0081/TWMAJM containing the planning application, 

supporting statement, drawings, consultation responses and representations may be 

viewed by appointment with the case officer below or on the Council’s Public Access 

website www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning by a search with the application 

reference. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Case Officer: Marcus Sparrow (Senior Planning Officer) 

Telephone: 01452 425652 

Email: planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk  

  

Page 316

https://lsbud.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/10/lsbud-standard-requirement-uk-um.pdf
https://lsbud.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/10/lsbud-standard-requirement-uk-um.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning
mailto:planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Delegated decisions between 22nd June 2022 and 10th January 2023
County Matters

Application Ref Proposal Site Location Decision Issue Date Decision
16/0004/COMPLI Compliance with conditions 6 (sign re. 

vehicle route),8 (vehicle passing bay), 25 
(Landscaping) and 27 (Method 
statement) of planning consent 
CD.1838/A dated 22/05/1998.

Land at Three Gates Quarry
Ford
Temple Guiting
Gloucestershire

15/08/2022 Disposed

20/0068/CWMAJW Infilling of mineral voids and relocation of 
metals recycling facility and new access.

Land at The Gravel Pits
Fosseway
Lower Slaughter
Gloucestershire
GL54 2EY

15/09/2022 Consent

21/0045/COMPLI Compliance with conditions 16 (safety 
Checks) & 22 (Noise Bund) relating to 
planning consent 20/0013/CWMAJW 
dated 10/05/2021.

Westington Quarry
Conduit Hill
Chipping Campden
Gloucestershire
GL55 6UR

04/11/2022 Consent

22/0007/COMPLI Compliance with condition 
25(Groundwater Monitoring Scheme for 
the Southern Extension to Naunton 
Quarry dated September 2021.) relating 
to planning consent 18/0065/CWMAJM 
dated 21/10/2021.

Naunton Quarry
Naunton
Gloucestershire
GL54 3BA

05/08/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0016/TWMAJW Relocation of existing open windrow 
composting facility and inert waste 
recycling facility and retention of storage 
area for waste electronic and
electrical equipment.

Wingmoor Landfill
Stoke Road
Bishops Cleeve
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 7DG

02/08/2022 Consent

P
age 317

A
genda Item

 8



22/0018/PAPP1 Pre-application for proposed erection of a 
wash plant and an additional throughput 
of 150,000tpa.

The Old Airfield
Moreton Valence
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL2 7NG

21/07/2022 Closed

22/0021/SCREEN Screening request for the re-activation of 
minerals workings.

Birdlip Quarry
A417 from Stockwell Junction To 
Roundabout Northeast Of 
Watercombe Farm
Nettleton
Birdlip
Gloucestershire.

05/08/2022 Screening/Sco
ping Opinion 
Issued

22/0026/FDCERT Lawful Development Certificate for the 
proposed construction of a new footway 
& installation of street lighting along the 
northern verge of Harbour Road, 
including repairs to the existing drainage 
system, resurfacing of the carriageway 
and associated works.

Land at Lydney Harbour 
Harbour Road
Lydney
Gloucestershire
GL15 4ER

13/07/2022 Lawful 
Development

22/0027/COMPLI Compliance with Condition 7 (bridge 
design details) of 21/0058/CWMAJM  
for vehicular bridge crossing the 
Dudgrove Brook and Removal of 
Hedgerow approved 10/03/2022.

Manor Farm Pit 
Washpool Lane
Kempsford
Gloucestershire
GL7 4NJ

13/07/2022 Consent

22/0029/TWS73W Variation of conditions 1 (Duration), 3 
(Approval of plans and application 
documents) and 19 (Hours of Operation) 
relating to planning consent 
19/0066/TWMAJW dated 03/02/2022.

Wingmoor Farm (East)
Stoke Road
Bishops Cleeve
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 7DG

16/09/2022 Consent

P
age 318



22/0030/COMPLI Compliance with Condition 13 (Noise) 
relating to planning consent 
19/0069/STMAJW dated 01/04/2021.

Watsome Farm
County Boundary to Charfield 
Road
Kingswood
Gloucestershire
GL12 8SP

21/07/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0034/COMPLI Compliance with conditions 36(planting 
of a hedgerow at new access), 
53(boundary treatment) and 
54(Restoration, Landscape and Aftercare) 
relating to planning consent 
19/0089/CWMAJM dated 22/202/2020.

'Loaders Barn'
Northcot Brick
Station Road
Blockley
Gloucestershire
GL56 9LH

17/08/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0038/CWS73M Variation of condition(s) 3 (Cessation 
date) and 25 
(Landscaping/Restoration/Aftercare) 
relating to planning consent 
19/0005/CWMAJM dated 14.08.2019.

Crucis Park 
Barnsley Road
Ampney Crucis
Gloucestershire
GL7 5DX

29/11/2022 Consent

22/0044/COMPLI Compliance with condition(s) 4 
(wheelwash) & 5(weighbridge) relating to 
planning consent 21/0052/CWMAJM 
dated 22/02/2022.

Manor Farm Pit 
Washpool Lane
Kempsford
Gloucestershire
GL7 4NJ

20/10/2022 Consent

22/0046/SCREEN Screening request for proposed upgrades 
to Cirencester Sewage Treatment Works 
(STW) and to advise of Thames Waters 
intention to deliver the upgrade works 
under permitted development rights 
subject to confirmation that the works do 
not constitute EIA development.

Cirencester Sewage Treatment 
Works
Nursery Road
Siddington
Gloucestershire
GL7 6DA

05/10/2022 Screening/Sco
ping Opinion 
Issued

P
age 319



20/0068/CWMAJW Infilling of mineral voids and relocation of 
metals recycling facility and new access.

Land at The Gravel Pits
Fosseway
Lower Slaughter
Gloucestershire
GL54 2EY

15/09/2022 Consent

Regulation 3
Application Ref Proposal Site Location Decision Issue Date Decision

20/0070/GLR3MJ Variation of condition 3 (Scope of 
development) relating to planning 
consent 18/0052/GLR3MJ dated 
10/04/2019.

Gloucester South West Bypass 
(GSWB) 
Llanthony Road
Gloucester
Gloucestershire

11/08/2022 Consent

22/0002/CHR3MJ Proposed erection of a 4 storey building 
to create a multi-storey car park, bus hub, 
passenger waiting facility and cafe with 
associated works in the eastern carpark 
of the existing Park and Ride facility.

Arle Court Park & Ride
Hatherley Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 6PN

22/07/2022 Consent

22/0009/GLREG3 Proposed 3 metre high fence in 
Playground.

Widden Primary School
Sinope Street
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL1 4AW

28/09/2022 Consent

22/0017/COMPLI Compliance with condition 7 (Travel Plan) 
relating to planning consent 
20/0054/TWR3MJ dated 23/03/2021.

Land at Henley Bank School (North 
Of Mill Lane)
Mill Lane
Brockworth
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL3 4QF 

19/10/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

P
age 320



22/0028/NONMAT Non-material amendment for the 
insertion of fencing to existing PRoW 
relating to planning consent 
20/0032/CHR3MJ dated 12/03/2021.  
The original scheme was designed on the 
basis that the PROW that traverses the 
school playing fields would be relocated. 

Land Between
Farm Lane/Kidnappers Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire

29/07/2022 Non Material 
Amendment 
Approval

22/0037/STREG3 Proposed hard landscaping extension to 
school playground and associated 
drainage.

Croft Primary School 
Churchill Way
Painswick
Gloucestershire
GL6 6RQ

16/09/2022 Consent

22/0039/COMPLI Compliance with Condition(s) 4 (Hard 
Landscaping), 6 (CEMP), 8 (Traffic 
Management) & 11 (construction 
management plan) relating to 
21/0075/STMAJW dated 7.6.22.

Land South of A419, Ebley Bypass 09/09/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0045/CHREG3 Laying of artificial grass and installation of 
3 x equipment sheds.

Holy Trinity School
Jersey Street
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 2JP

17/11/2022 Consent

22/0048/CHREG3 Erection of new timber fence to create a 
new 'secret garden'.

The Ridge Academy 
Clyde Crescent
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 5QH

16/11/2022 Consent

P
age 321



22/0050/COMPLI Compliance with conditions 16(School 
Travel Plan) & 17(Tactile Dropped Kerb) 
relating to planning consent 
22/0011/CHR3MJ dated 02/03/2022

Warden Hill Primary School 
Durham Close
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 3DF

20/12/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0053/COMPLI Compliance with Condition 5 (Landscape 
and Biodiversity) and Condition 6 
(Lighting Scheme) relating to planning 
permision 21/0074/CHRG3MJ dated 
05.11.21

Arle Court Park & Ride
Hatherley Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 6PN

05/12/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

22/0056/COMPLI Compliance with condition 13 (Glint & 
Glare) relating to planning consent 
22/0002/CHR3MJ dated 22/06/2022

Arle Court Park & Ride
Hatherley Lane
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 6PN

24/11/2022 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

P
age 322


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Members Site Visit
	7 Application Reference: 19/0081/TWMAJM (District Reference 19/01231/CM) Site: Land at Bow Farm, Bow Lane, Twyning, Tewkesbury
	8 Delegated Decisions

